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CORE VALUES
L EER

VISION To be an acclaimed contractor and developer in Asia with
E\E% dynamic and sustainable growth

R —EE DT - BRED - FEDMOEAREMBRRD

MISSION * Improve people’s quality of life through city and infrastructure
ﬁﬁi development

SEPTMERZER  RITELLRE

e Grow with our employees through fulfilling work environment
and career development

RETENTHEREREXRZRKS BEBEXE

e Create value for shareholders
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CORPORATE CULTURE
EEXIE

We aspire to excel in all aspects of our performance. In our business dealings, we are
responsive to the needs of our clients and ensure that these needs are fully satisfied.
We manage our projects with qualified, competent and experienced staff, whose
clear priorities are to thoroughly plan, execute and follow through the works and to fulfill
our obligations responsibly. Our staff always face up to challenges and proactively
tackle problems with practicality and perseverance in a positive way.

We have followed this culture for half a century and believe that it has been the key to
our success. Our continued success serves to reinforce the culture which has been with
us from the outset.
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DEFINITIONS

Bx

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have the meanings set out below:

ERFEHRA - BXESEEN

Terms

“Audit Committee”

[EZEZEE]

“Board”

=00

“Bye-laws”
INCIEETE

“CG Code”
[{dZEER~FRI]

“Chun Wo"
[ &0

"Company”

[ARE]

“Company Secretary”

NI

“CSR”
[CEHEET]
“Director(s)”

=

"ESGH
[RE - HENER]

“Executive Committee”

[HTZEE]

"Executive Director(s)”

[ITEF]

“Group”
[REEE

"HK$" and “HK cent(s)”

&7 K %A

THFREABATRE

Definitions

B

the audit committee of the Board
EERERZEY

the board of Directors

BEER

the Bye-laws of the Company
RRARZARHR

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

ETR R Stz (B EEIA TR

the construction business of the Group
REBEPET 2 BEHER

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 00711)
DMEAEERIERERLAR - —ERBEEFM I BRAE - HRG 5
RATER B (R 5% - 00711)

the company secretary of the Company

ZAN/NCI AN

corporate social responsibility
rEHEET

the director(s) of the Company
KARZES

Environmental, Social and Governance
RE g kER

the executive committee of the Board
EERWITEZES
the executive director(s) of the Company

RRRZHITES

the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time

RRF RENE 2B RF

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BILNGEN - FENEEEH

TNEA ERERBRAR 202021 F3R a




Definitions

Bx

Terms
AR

“Hong Kong”
(&%

“INED(s)"
(B IFRITES

“Listing Rules”

[ AR Al

“Management Committee”

[BEEEZEE ]
“Model Code”
[Z e =r Al

“Nomination Committee”

[fRREZEE]

“Non-executive Director”

[FEHITES

“PRC”
[ Ed]

“Remuneration Committee”

[FHEZEE

“RMB”
[AR®]

“SFO”
(&7 LB 15 )

“Share(s)”

[ tn ]
“Shareholder(s)"”
(A& =]

“Stock Exchange”

[ 32 Ffr |

“Year”

[AFE ]

nopn
[% ]

Definitions

Bx

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEFBRRITTHRE

the independent non-executive director(s) of the Company

RRRZBIFNTES

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B2 prg s LR Al

the management committee of the Board
EXREREEZEY

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRBIM ST PAEC EHEITAZBFETES R ZNRETAD

the nomination committee of the Board

EEXRRE%EY

the non-executive director of the Company

RRRZIFNITES

the People’s Republic of China
i AR A

the remuneration committee of the Board

EERFMNEZES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR REEEEES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EEEDE 571 B H LB K

the ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the Company
RARRAFEREEO.10E T 2 EiFMAX

the holder(s) of issued Share(s)

BEITROHZFAA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

ERBERZFAAERAA

for the year ended 31 March 2021

BE2021F3A31HIEFE

per cent
Bk
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
TEREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman)
Xu Jianhua, Jerry (Deputy Chairman)
Pang Yat Bond, Derrick (Chief Executive Officer)
Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant
(Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
Li Wai Hang, Christina

Non-executive Directors
Wong Wendy Dick Yee
Wong Nai Keung, Philco (resigned on 17 July 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Wu William Wai Leung

Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Wu William Wai Leung (Chairman)
Wong Wendy Dick Yee

Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman)
Xu Jianhua, Jerry

Pang Yat Bond, Derrick

Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

Pang Yat Bond, Derrick (Chairman)
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic

Xu Jianhua, Jerry

Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman)

Wong Wendy Dick Yee

Wu William Wai Leung

Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Lam Yau Fung, Curt (Chairman)
Wu William Wai Leung
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

COMPANY SECRETARY
Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant
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Corporate Information

EEER

AUDITOR
Ernst & Young

LEGAL ADVISORS

Conyers Dill & Pearman
LC Lawyers LLP

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Chong Hing Bank Limited

HEAD OFFICE AND

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
C1, 5th Floor

Hong Kong Spinners Industrial Building Phase 1
601-603 Tai Nan West Street

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th floor, North Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Secretaries Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.asiaalliedgroup.com

STOCK CODE
00711
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CORPORATE EVENT HIGHLIGHTS
TRARELE

g I.EE | ol J"E Launch of Shijiazhuang “Poly Daduhui” No.1 Building
i | -'Ih i In July 2020, the Group has started the pre-sale of the No.1
led | - building of the phase 3 of “Arc De Royal” in Shijiazhuang in Hebei
) CHH j Province, a comprehensive commercial development project named
Ll E i .![ “Poly Daduhui”, which offers 207 premium residential apartments
r_J #4) . ranging from 50 to 102 square meters in size, with a total value of

. ; ] RMB230 million.

i E '4-."'.—-:‘-'—.':4_..— =, =g = s =— = = m -;

AXERAAHBE 1RELMABE

M2020F 7R AEBETILEARKES
FIZEER] F=HE1(—IBE B [(RFRHEIE | Mz E
PEERIBE)IFERES  HH200EmMEAR
S0ZE1R2FRFKRNESHEERLE  REEA
AR ¥ 230,000,000 7T °

se€Change

Education fi 2 & &

HRIBRAEE
REBEHE XBHEHE EAIRAEE - Hii2

HEMR2020F K - OIS E 16 52 E )
09/202 At AR BERNBRES B
ERRFAERBAMNGELETHRNBIR - A

PEIRHERTS  MREHE RBERME

See Change Education Commenced Operation N Nt Rl T v
See Change Education, the Group’s education business unit BE AREBEERIENEERERE B
officially commenced operation. Founded in 2020, See KEBAHRIBESR - FRRKENSEER

Change Education provides trainings on 21st Century life
skills in “Communications” for children aged 5 to 16 and
firmly believes that “communication” is the bridge that
leads to harmony and a better world tomorrow. See
Change Education provides online classes in public speaking
and debate, writing, social media communication and
crucial life skills for children to thrive academically and
beyond the classroom.

DN A ERIERARAF 202021 F1) a




Corporate Event Highlights
TEARELE

128 Waterloo B R €188 (.

AEBHEFBIEREBBRARBEFITEMERNR
EIEH [128 Waterloo) - BEN R NLEEHZZEM
B BEWRESD - 2020598 » NEB &M
EXAREHEERT8HS - WAKERABURHE -

11/2020

EFHNMEEEERRESHE RERRUBLRRER

AREER2020F 11 AEAFMEHTERE (T34 ) EA%
EAEE HAKBERGER  BOREBERRR
& WABEBERKS hEENERAINESEE
BRAFNRAIANRSE  RESERSIERS - 5
Gh o T ER TR EEBERE L TRENEREST
2 BREFTHNEBAIE  AEBBEEKGERER
EOHEERED - EMESRETHSEERE -

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2020721

09/2020

128 Waterloo’s Show Flats Opening

The Group jointly developed an iconic premium
project “128 Waterloo” with Top Spring
International Holdings Limited. Located in traditional
luxurious residential district of Kowloon, the
property possesses excellent geographical
advantage. In September 2020, the Group hosted a
press conference for this iconic premium project and
the show flats are made available to the media.

Equity Investment with Century Elite
Technology Group to Actively Develop
Renewable Energy Business

In November 2020, the Group has concluded
equity investment with Century Elite Technology
Group ("CET”), an expert in solar energy
systems and specialises in developing renewable
energy systems, and an accredited contractor of
the Hong Kong International Airport, CLP
Power Hong Kong Limited and The Hongkong
Electric Company, Limited for the provision of
various electrical and mechanical engineering
services. CET also engages in the business of
electric vehicles charging station engineering
and smart grid engineering. With its strategic
collaboration with CET, the Group will be able
to extend its footprint in sustainable energy for
environmental sustainability.

(e TS Y




Corporate Event Highlights
TEARELE

11/2020 2 # Hong Kong Cyclotron Laboratories
Limited JUE EB@ AN KT 5

R2020F 11 A - A & B Y B Hong
Kong Cyclotron Laboratories Limited
(THKCLY) - At FREBER G
BEFESEHERM(ESFRED M
HEEEY) - HKCLE BB T ENTY B
BEAREZ R ORI KRR IFEE
BRI & AH IEE 717 i iat i 2
BhEZ—  RAREBETEAEE
BEREBE=BEMZEENERE
RAEREBARRORRE RREEL
Vs

Acquisition of Hong Kong Cyclotron Laboratories Limited
to Enter into the Medical Technology Field

In November 2020, the Group has acquired Hong Kong
Cyclotron Laboratories Limited (“HKCL"), which engages in
manufacturing of positron emission tomography (“PET") radio-
pharmaceuticals for medical use. HKCL has established long
term relationships with major public hospitals and imaging
centers in Hong Kong, and is one of the largest players in the
local PET radiopharmacy market. This acquisition marks the
Group’s expansion into the medical technology business,
allowing the Group to extend the business scope for exploring
its income stream, and contributing to the livelihood of people.

11/2020

Acquisition of a Composite Development Site
at Soy Street

The Group has acquired a composite development
site at Nos. 61-67 Soy Street, Mongkok in form of
joint venture. This project site has an area of 3,612
square feet and has been approved to be
redeveloped into a 23-storey composite residential
and commercial building.

BB HERE N BRBRE

REBLGSEAYEE ABHE61 26754
AABRERME - ZIBBMBEMES3,612F TR -
WEEHSEZ-E23ERNGFEAEERBAEKX
*% o

LS W
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Corporate Event Highlights
TEARELE

01/2021

Chun Wo's Webinar on “Concrete MiC Connection
Systems”

Chun Wo successfully held a webinar on “Chun Wo Concrete
MiC Connection Systems” in January 2021, which attracted
around 450 industry professionals to participate. This
technology and the entire Concrete “Modular Integrated

BRMERERLTAXESHERLE
BASK | BETNE

MR 2021F1 BIBF &7 [ BT
BEARBEEREZRG | BEW
& RS 4450UERNBEEALSR
Ho WRMNULREENRERTHEES
MEFEE|EBBREFEN [RA| LR
Al RFEERNEENEFRRE
B o tbobh - [HEEE S R ) IR HEAR
BEF - BNKAESERBREQR

B BT SR A TR T 40 B A0
T HIHAVE R R EENCE -

Construction” solution have received the “In-principle
Acceptance” from the Buildings Department, allowing be
applied to building development projects in Hong Kong.
Moreover, the “wall connection technology” has also
obtained the pertinent patent. Chun Wo is the first Hong
Kong construction company to utilise such technology in the
design and construction of buildings up to 40-storey high,
hence substantially enhancing construction efficiency.

Wrkamak an

Chun Wo Concrete
MiC Connection System

14 dwimmry FOT1 Jpom | Cavtoness | Widwo Semsdcat

MEBEN : BEHK

AEESHEREUERIIZERER
RE([E#]) ERRALE - AEER
NRHETEBETEREEERDZK
R MEHEAREANE_MEETLS
HITERERN AT - BRERLEIATIE
HIERE - KBIREANNAIREESE
MEERY - BEEFBENGERE
RTMEENER  RALKRESEE
B KiEE - BREE HERKEME
BETHZHEEBRETRE -

AMAIN ENGINEERING DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

New Business Unit — Amain

The Group'’s latest business unit, Amain Engineering Development
Limited (“Amain”), has officially commenced operation. The Group
committed to providing a platform for its employees to develop their
careers and share the result. Amain is the second company in the
Group which allowed employees to have a stake in the investment.
Amain offers professional services in civil engineering maintenance,
waterworks and minor works. The superior maintenance techniques
and experience of the team have enabled the company to secure
maintenance contracts from the Hospital Authority, the Water
Supplies Department, the Architectural Services Department, the
Education Bureau and other institutions.

h Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2020721




Corporate Event Highlights
TEARELE

02/2021

HK$1.3 Billion 3-Year Term Loan and Revolving Credit BEEBIN=FHEHERRBREEME
Facilities

In February 2021, the Group entered into a HK$1.3 billion 202162 A - AEBEEARBRITEI13E
3-Year term loan and revolving credit facilities agreement BT =ZFHTHERRBREERE H

with five banks. Part of the loan will be used to refinance Ho o ERBREEEAEB ZERA
the loan portfolio of the Group, while the rest of the loan & MHRTERBBIEZIFEBREE R

will be used to support its future operations and B GHRMERNRERNEEEREBRERA
development. This facility will lower the overall finance cost NRBAEMBEFERREEN -

of the Group and enhance its financial flexibility and
funding capability.

"N
03/2021

Chun Wo's Innovation Brand Inno@ChunWo's Research and
Development Technique R2M? Garnered “Gold Plus” Award at
“Geneva International Exhibition of Inventions”

The Rapid Repairing Mortar Material (“R*M?”), that was jointly
developed by Chun Wo, the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and Nano and Advanced Materials Institute, has garnered
the “Gold Plus” award at the “Geneva International Exhibition of
Inventions” in March 2021.

% N & B @ EInno@ChunWo i 3 & 1if
RRVPRA[ HRFEEBEEHEE | EEIGold
Plus | 5818

{2 AN B BB B RCR B A R MoK K S v
R?M?, which is one of Chun Wo's = 0T A T R B RS B MR
major innovation projects under its DlPLOME (TR2M2]) » 2021 E3 AT [BRER
innovation brand “Inno@ChunWo", is —— G il PREXEAR | %28 [ Gold Plus] #2318 -
a stainless-steel fibre reinforced mortar a
SALON

that pinpoints the problem of spalling INTERNATIONAL R:M2 2 & F1 1R T 8] B an b2 [Inno@ChunWo |
concrete, a common issue in ageing DES INVENTIONS NEHTEKE L — 2B EME e

buildings. It is a safer and faster
solution that produces less construction
noise and waste than traditional repair
methods. This achievement affirms the
originality and practicability of R?M?,
and proves the Group’s ability to
develop innovation technologies.

B EHEHBEEMECARAENER
FIRE o IR IT Al LA R 2 WIRRIEERITE - I8
L EFRIEER ERIER BT MIEERER -
BERESSTFETRMERAIEMERE 1B
EE T ASEMAEARHRITNE S -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

L

-
s
.

T

“We will capitalise on relevant developments with our depth
of experience, breadth of expertise, sound fundamentals and
solid leadership to forge ahead in existing segments and
new ventures.”

[TFIRFIAEENER  EenmE  RENERLEE
HRE N AL EEBEE - #8IRE 5 8l L E BB
7]

Pang Yat Ting, Dominic
Chairman

T

E=1
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®RE

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the annual results of the Group
for the Year. Under the shadow of Covid-19, the business environment has
continued to remain tough. Nonetheless, we have remained resilient and
performed stably by leveraging our industry experience and expertise to
capture opportunities, including those arising from the Hong Kong
Government'’s projects in infrastructure and housing supply.

The Covid-19 pandemic has brought unprecedented disruptions to the
Hong Kong economy, challenges to numerous industries and hardship
across a wide spectrum of society. Infrastructure projects were still delayed
in the first half year, though the Hong Kong Government'’s active roll out
of new projects brought fresh opportunities to the sector. With our solid
reputation and experience in completing high-end infrastructure works, we
duly secured several prominent public works projects during the Year, and
thus reducing the impact caused by the pandemic. Prospects for the
industry as a whole remain encouraging in view of the Government'’s
supportive policies, and large-scale public works projects in the pipeline
such as the Tung Chung New Town Extension and Development of the Lok
Ma Chau Loop, will provide more opportunities in the years ahead.

Our property development segment encountered greater headwinds but
experienced a pickup in the latter part of the Year. We have continuously
reviewed and adjusted our property portfolio to maximise its returns for
the Shareholders. The Group has entered into a share transfer agreement
with an independent third party regarding the sale of a commercial and
residential development project located in Shijiazhuang, Hebei Province.
Furthermore, sales activity at “128 Waterloo”, a premium residential
property located on Waterloo Road, Ho Man Tin, has commenced during
the Year. Our confidence in the economic recovery of Hong Kong is also
evidenced by a new project located at Soy Street, Mongkok, development
of which has started during the Year. Our land parcel in Tung Chung has
also entered the development approval stage. Overall, our focus for the
property development segment will remain in Hong Kong. To strengthen
our market position, we will be watchful for every opportunity, take a
prudent approach in formulating development plans, and engage in joint
ventures to diversify risks and optimise returns.

Our professional services segment, including the security, tunnel and other
facility management services, has continued to deliver consistent and
favourable returns. In addition, due to the decline in inbound travellers
affected by the pandemic, the non-franchised bus services segment has
transformed from tourist-related business to provision of scheduled services
to distinguished organisations, schools and property management
companies and started to bear fruit.

RAAEBRREZRREAEERAFENE
FERE - ENEHAREERET H €HRE
FAERIE - A BETELRIREZXANE
NEZRETEERARNERNEEHRE
HESRzZEERSE  AEEFRFEN - B
REFIE -

T B AR 1 B A A AT PR R B &
B ZETEEBRIE  £E8SRATBEAR
5o BEBARMNERELHIER RITES
KB B EFFREZEBINAMEE -
BRESWERTREI ANEUEEREE
B AKRERAFEZERSZENEGA
ATREE  EMRERBAHROTE -
ERBUTHE SRR - N LB m AR
RETBI L EFEMAERBEREREAAT
BREBMHEEEE RABEKEHESHK
B BRITRASIDALE -

7

MEFESFITBLEAERANRZ - BR
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EEepHEMMTIEEAREN—EmER
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HRRBEFETARRTRD @ FEZE L
REDBHKERBXGELERIECHE
B EREMEEE R AR EE R SR
1 RERHITE -
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Chairman’s Statement

EE®RE

The Group has made an important acquisition and equity investment in the
Year respectively, including HKCL, which is one of the largest PET
radiopharmacy production and distribution centres in Hong Kong; and
CET, which installs and operates solar energy systems in Hong Kong. Both
companies have consolidating with the Group’s operation and bring
synergy to the Group.

FUTURE STRATEGY AND DIRECTION

As the supply of Covid-19 vaccine has become steady, social distancing
measures will gradually be relaxed, which in turn will expedite Hong Kong's
economic recovery. Real GDP has grown by 7.8% year-on-year in the first
quarter of 2021, and by 5.3% on a seasonally adjusted quarter-on-quarter
comparison. With the Hong Kong Government'’s efforts to bolster land and
housing supply, along with the launch of public infrastructure projects, the
business environment has improved since early 2021, and we believe that
our core businesses will benefit from a healthy uptrend. Amid this dynamic
environment, we will remain vigilant and continue to exercise caution while
seizing opportunities to bolster our market position and encourage
sustainable growth.

Apart from strengthening our core businesses, we will also continue to
expand our business in different areas that not only to contribute to the
Group’s development, but also to echo the Group's belief in building a
better future with trust and commitment. Our long-term plan is to extend
our presence in the healthcare, education, transportation and renewable
energy sectors in Hong Kong and further stepping into the Greater Bay
Area. We will capitalise on relevant developments with our depth of
experience, breadth of expertise, sound fundamentals and solid leadership
to forge ahead in existing segments and new ventures.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I would like to take this opportunity to express my appreciation to the
management team and all of our staff members for their contributions and
commitment, particularly amid difficult conditions that were further
exacerbated by the pandemic. Also, my gratitude must certainly be
extended to all of the Group’s business partners and shareholders for their
unwavering support. Going forward, we will make every effort to bolster
our foundation and reinforce our leadership in Hong Kong, so as to
become one of Asia’s premiere construction and development groups.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR TN

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Profit attributable
to Shareholders*

Total revenue

HK$
7,534,258,000
BT

MRS EAL R A
HK$

87,504,000
BT

Dividend per share

BRKRS

Interim #3: HK0.87 cent ;1L
Full year 2: HK0.87 cent i1l

MBRE

Basic Earnings
per share*

BREXBR

HK4.82 cents
B4l

Excluded the one-off provision for compensation of approximately HK$272.0 million for litigation (see Note 35(b) to the financial statements).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, total revenue of approximately HK$7.53 billion (2020:
HK$8.00 billion) has been recorded by the Group, with net loss attributable
to Shareholders amounting to HK$184.5 million (2020: net profit
attributable to Shareholders of HK$101.4 million). Excluding a one-off
provision for compensation related to the legal proceedings of
approximately HK$272.0 million, the Group is profitable on operational
level with a net profit attributable to Shareholders of HK$87.5 million.
Based on the existing financial performance, the Group has sufficient cash
flow to maintain the ongoing operation.

Easing of filibustering at the Legislative Council from second half year led
to more projects rolled out and greater opportunities for the construction
sector. With respect to the Group, it was able to leverage its renowned
“Chun Wo" brand and reputation for technological prowess to secure
several prominent infrastructure projects. In addition, owing to the Group
sound business fundamentals and strategies, the banking community
continued its strong support to the Group through the concluding HK$1.3
billion term loan and revolving credit facilities agreement in February 2021,
the funds of which will enhance financial flexibility and funding capacity.

E 3 3C1)

RAFE - ANEEER{S S 5£85497,530,000,000
5 7T (2020 4F : 8,000,000,0003# 7T ) + P& 58 fE 1
S E518 1 45 184,500,000 74 7T (2020 F « AR ER &
1634 71 101,400,0008 71) © #BR AR FRFAFT
VR 2 BE B #1749 272,000,0008 70 2 — X 1 #
5 AEBRLIE FIFSET - WIESREE
1% %187,500,00078 7T © RIFRIFIIFERIR -
AEEB RS TRAERRFEE -

SUEGRNMIERR T EFRBTEN - BFHD
BZIEE - BEREETRERNMS - BiAEE
ms @ BREZAN MEM] REMES S TR
MEH AEBREZEMBEREE It
Hh BN BB R RSN MORE - dRTT
F¥REERASBIRMEEESF - WK 20214F
2 A %537 1,300,000,0007% 708 E BiE SRR fE 3R

EEW=  MSESADRSUBREERE
TET e

SIS ERERERAR 2020121 FH#H ’




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Construction

The construction segment under the “Chun Wo" brand delivered HK$6.57
billion (2020: HK$7.02 billion) in revenue during the Year. However, due to
the pandemic which inevitably slowed down project approvals and work
progresses, segmental profit dropped to HK$58.6 million (2020: HK$129.4
million). As at 31 March 2021, the Group held contracts with an aggregate
value of HK$27.86 billion, among which HK$15.09 billion were ongoing
contracts.

Amid the challenging business conditions, the Group was able to win 33
new projects by capitalising on its reputation for quality, excellence and
innovation in the construction sector. Among the new projects secured
include Fanling North New Development Area, Phase 1: Fanling Bypass
Eastern Section (Shek Wu San Tsuen North to Lung Yeuk Tau); In-situ
Reprovisioning of Shatin Water Treatment Works (South Works) — Water
Treatment Works and Ancillary Facilities; and Main Contract for the
Proposed Composite Development at Nos. 12-30 Hang On Street, Kwun
Tong, Kowloon.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group was engaged in 65 ongoing projects,
which mainly include Site Formation and Infrastructure Works for
Development of Anderson Road Quarry Site; Shek Wu Hui Effluent
Polishing Plant — Main Works Stage 1 — Civil Works for Sludge Treatment
Facilities and 132kV Primary Substation; Kwu Tung North New
Development Area, Phase 1 — Roads and Drainage between Kwu Tung
North New Development Area and Shek Wu Hui; Construction of Public
Housing Development at Hiu Ming Street; Hong Kong Disneyland Resort
Project — Arendelle Completion Package; Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin
Tunnel — Tseung Kwan O Interchange and Associated Works; and Hong
Kong International Airport — Terminal 2 Foundation and Substructure
Works.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Construction (continued)

Several projects were concluded during the Year, including Construction of
Public Rental Housing Redevelopment at Pak Tin Estate Phases 7 and 8;
Phase 1 Redevelopment of Ming Wah Dai Ha; Queen's Hill Development —
Road and Drainage Works; In-situ Reprovisioning of Shatin Water
Treatment Works (South Works) — Advance Works; and Foundation for
Public Housing Development at Tuen Mun Area 29 West.

tamasssamssssasy

To explore more opportunities related to construction segment, the Group
during the Year concluded equity investment with CET, an expert in solar
energy systems, which is currently an approved contractor of Hong Kong
International Airport, CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, and The Hongkong
Electric Company, Limited for providing electrical and mechanical engineer
services. The development of the business is progressing smoothly in
renewable energy market and brings synergistic effect to the construction
segment.

The Group believes opportunities remain in the construction sector, owing
to a shortage in housing supply driven by robust public and private demand
and the rollout of public infrastructure projects. However, rising cost of raw
materials in the wake of the Covid-19 pandemic, has indeed put pressure
on the Group’s margin. Looking forward, this will call for careful
monitoring and vetting of projects to optimise profits in prudent approach.
Another persistent challenge the construction sector encountered is the
shortage of professional talents. The Group has been proactively recruiting
young talent while at the same time focusing on retaining staff through
enhanced training and retention programs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENmE D
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E 3 3C1) - 1E))
Major Projects Completed in the Year REAFERIZ2ETEIEH

Project Name

HERHE

Building Construction Works 25 Z £ T 12

1 Construction of Public Rental Housing Redevelopment at Pak Tin Estate Phases 7 & 8
HHSBEERENAARBFEEEEBEEERETRE

2 Phase 1 Redevelopment of Ming Wah Dai Ha
BAEAEE —HEREIER

Civil Engineering Works &= /R T2

3 Queen’s Hill Development — Road and Drainage Works
SRR —BRARBIRE

4 In-situ Reprovisioning of Shatin Water Treatment Works (South Works) — Advance Works
YREKBEMEE T (M) — AE TR

5 Provision of Universal Access Facilities for Highway Structures — Package 2 Contract 1
REEBREDREGERTRE —E_EE—HEH

Electrical & Mechanical Works & 1 & #% T 72

6 Electrical Installation for the Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Development at Tseung Kwan O Area 65C2 Phases 1 & 2
HERFESCQRBREDHEFEERFBE—ME_PRELTRENENRETIR

Foundation Works it & T 72

7  Construction of Bored Pile Works for Foundation, Excavation & Lateral Support and Basement Excavation Works for
New Acute Hospital at Kai Tak Development Area (Site A and Site B)
BEEREFSEEERME EEMNERAAIEMREZHEIRE 2 ARGEEBE IR (ITARIHB)

8 Foundation for Public Housing Development at Tuen Mun Area 29 West

HREBANEFEERBRIMAETE

Maintenance Works #{& T2

9 Term Contract for Minor Works 2015 for Hong Kong East and Hong Kong West Clusters
2015 REEEABRBAE N TRETHAL

10 Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands and Other Properties for
which the Architectural Services Department (Property Services Branch) is Responsible (Designated Contract Area: Tai
Po, North District and Outlying Islands (North))

REFZWMERFBR)BENEEY - D REMYRETIGE - 2 - REMBEIRENTEHEN(AOEER -
R - dble MEs (db))

11 Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands and Other Properties for
which the Architectural Services Department (Property Services Branch) is Responsible (Designated Contract Area:
Central, Peak and Mid-levels)

REZZWMEEBR)BENEEY T REMYFETHE N RERBEIENEHSH(GHEER
HE - IWTERFL)

12 Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4 Phase 1: Mains in Eastern and Southern Districts
FHMRBERKETIRENRRE B REKMEEKETE

13 Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4 Phase 1: Major Mains in Western New Territories
BHREEKE TIRFMNERE B TRADEZKETRE
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In-situ Reprovisioning of Shatin Water Treatment Works (South Works) — Advance Works
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) FEOEe)
Major Projects in Progress at the End of the Year RAEAFELRFEENETEIR

Project Name

EHE BB

Building Construction Works 2FZ £ T2
1 Construction of Public Rental Housing Redevelopment at Pak Tin Estate Phase 11
BEBE+—HAXATEESRERREETRR

2 Construction of Public Housing Development at Hiu Ming Street
R RAEEEER ZZETIE
Civil Engineering Works = R L7
3 Hong Kong Disneyland Resort Project — Arendelle Completion Package
AEFEtELEEREEE —MERLEETE
4 Shek Wu Hui Effluent Polishing Plant — Main Works Stage 1 — Civil Works for Sewage Treatment Facilities
AR FKERE — TR TS MR — 5/KRERENEARTIE
5 Shek Wu Hui Effluent Polishing Plant — Main Works Stage 1 — Civil Works for Sludge Treatment Facilities and 132kV
Primary Substation
ARSEFKERE — TR TIEFE PR — /9RERIERME N 132k TH#EUMN T ARTIE
6 Kwu Tung North New Development Area, Phase 1 — Roads and Drainage between Kwu Tung North New
Development Area and Shek Wu Hui
TR ERESE R — DRI EREEHENBRMER T2
7  Central-Wan Chai Bypass: Tunnel (North Point Section) and Island Eastern Corridor Link
RIRETEE - L ARBGENR R ERERK TR
8  Site Formation and Infrastructure Works for Development of Anderson Road Quarry Site
iERBAOBSAMERN T PR RERERTE
9 Development of Anderson Road Quarry Site — Road Improvement Works and Pedestrian Connectivity Facilities Works
Phase 2A
LERBOLBESAMER — BRREIRERTAEERMIES _HF
10 Hong Kong International Airport — Terminal 2 Foundation and Substructure Works
ERERRE — _REEREHERTEEAB IR
11 Subcontract for the Engineering, Procurement and Construction of South East New Territories Landfill Extension
MARFMBERBRAS 2R  KBEMEIOHASL
12 Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel — Tseung Kwan O Interchange and Associated Works
RER —ERRE — BERREEMEEIRE
13 Design and Construction of the Novaliches — Balara Aqueduct 4
& FLA YD AT — Balara PO 5E %7K BE 8 2 225t M2 & T A2
14 Construction of Government Flying Service Kai Tak Division

HERITIRBG BRI B2E TR

15 Rehabilitation of Trunk Sewers in Tuen Mun

BF5KBRIEERTIZ

"
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Construction of Public Rental Housing Redevelopment at Pak Tin Estate Phase 11
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‘ t Polishing Plant — Main Works Stage 1 — Civil Works for Sewage Treatment Facilities and
ge Treatment Facilities and 132kV Primary Substation
B TRE KB — SAREREN L ATRRSEARRIER 132V TR BEN L RATR

'__‘“ Ty

ol
Kwu Tung North New Development Area, Phase 1 — Roads and Drainage between Kwu Tung North New
Development Area and Shek Wu Hui

ELHFEREE-—RR — LN BREZAPENERNRBIE
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Development of Anderson Road Quarry Site — Road Improvement Works and Pedestrian Connectivity Facilities Works Phase 2A
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Trunk Sewers in Tuen Mun

=T

Subcontract for the Engineering, Procurement and Construction of South East New Territories Landfill Extension

FARRHEEBRRABZRT KBREISHEH
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Tseung Kwan O — Lam Tin Tunnel — Tseung Kwan O Interchange and Associated Works
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENmE D

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E 3 3C1) - 1E))

Major Projects in Progress at the End of the Year REFELRBFEENTEIR @)
(continued)

Project Name

HEEH

Electrical & Mechanical Works = 1 } ### T 72

16

Electrical Installation for Construction of Subsidised Sale Flats Development at Tung Chung Area 54

RAFESABEPHEFERRABEETRENENEKETRE

Foundation Works it & T 72

17

18

19

Foundation for Public Housing Development at Anderson Road Quarry Site RS—1

TERBABESGRS- A AEEEERBEEMATE

Foundation for Public Housing Development at Tung Chung Area 99

FRYBRAEEFEERBEHETR

Foundation for Public Rental Housing Development at North West Kowloon Reclamation Site 1 (East)

Bt NEESRE iR (R) ARHBEEERR 2 ETRE

Foundation, ELS and Excavation Works for Proposed Residential Development at Yau Tong Inland Lot No. 44, Junction

of Shung Shun Street and Yan Yue Wai, Yau Tong
HESEHRCFERHEANMREMMFNETHERIAE 2HE - AIRAERIZETE

Revamp of Public Toilets at Terminal Buildings at Hong Kong International Airport
EEBBRRSTENE R IEFRBHN TR

Shatin to Central Link: Platform Modification and Associated Works at East Rail Line

WA - REIARETL A AE RERETIRE

Term Contract for the Maintenance of Slopes for which the Architectural Services Department (Property Services
Branch) is Responsible (Designated Contract Area: Hong Kong Island and Outlying Islands (South))
REFEEMEEBR) AENRBETREIENTEREN(GHETER - BERES (F))

Construction of Reprovisioning Facilities at Hong Ning Road Park and Ngau Tau Kok Fresh Water Services Reservoir

FEEAERTBEARKIKESEERERETRE
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h Point Section) and Island Eastern Corridor Link

BEIR

Revamp of Public Toilets at Terminal Buildings at Hong Kong International Airport
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n for Public Housing Development at Tung Chung Area 99
EEERREEMETR

P |

i

Construction of Reprovisioning Facilities at Hong Ning Road Park and Ngau Tau Kok Fresh Water Services Reservoir
BREEABERFFARKEKEEERERETRE

Q Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN
BUSINESS REVIEW (continued) E 3 3C1) e )
New Major Projects Awarded in the Year RAFEHRABZENETEERR

Project Name

HER®E

Building Construction Works #FZ £ T2

1 Construction of Lung Tsun Stone Bridge Preservation Corridor at Kai Tak
REEEARRE RBEETRR
2 Main Contract for the Proposed Composite Development at Nos. 12-30 Hang On Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon
EEEELZH 12230 meAeFERETRE

Civil Engineering Works = K L2

3 Fanling North New Development Area, Phase 1: Fanling Bypass Eastern Section (Shek Wu San Tsuen North to Lung
Yeuk Tau)
MeaEltmERRE (R WEAERR (ARt ZERE)

4 In-situ Reprovisioning of Shatin Water Treatment Works (South Works) — Water Treatment Works and Ancillary
Facilities
DHEBKBRBEE T2 (B — BKE N B R

5 Construction of San Shek Wan Sewage Treatment Works, Associated Submarine Outfall and Pui O Sewerage Works
A& SKERIER - HEEESFRE R RRSKEERGREETE

6 Site Formation and Foundation Works For Campus Expansion at Ho Man Tin Slope for the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University
BHBE TR X HMNEREERA AR T B iR TR

7  Improvement to Dongjiang Water Mains P4 at Sheung Shui and Fanling
FAREHERIKEPARETR

Foundation Works it & T 72

8 Foundation for Public Housing Development at Anderson Road Quarry Site R2-5 and Demolition for Redevelopment of
Mei Tung Estate (Older Part)
TERBABESR2-SMBAEEREFRASNMETIERERPELZTEIMFE TR (EEFHH)

9 Foundation for Public Housing Development at Sheung Shui Areas 4 and 30, Site 1 Phase 1 and Site 2 Phase 2 —
Bored Piles Works for Blocks 1, 2 & 3 at Site 2 Phase 2 and Block 2 at Site 1 Phase 1
FKEARREIOR1FHBRE VAR 2FHRE2PARNLEFERRAZMETE — 250RE2HFE1 -2 3
R 1SR AR SE 1 RS 2 BRI K DS EBFLIE A2

10 Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands and Other Properties for
which the Architectural Services Department (Property Services Branch) is Responsible (Designated Contract Area: Wan
Chai (South) and Wan Chai (North))

REEZEWMEEKR)BENEEY - L RHEMYEETEER - R REREEIERNTHEN(EHNEER -
817 (7) R ()

11 Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings and Lands and Other Properties for
which the Architectural Services Department (Property Services Branch) is Responsible (Designated Contract Area: Tai
Po, North District and Outlying Islands (North))

REEEWMEEBHR)EENEEY - T REMYFEETHERE N2 RERMEIRNERSHN(AHEER :
A bR REES (L))

12 Main Works Contract for Alterations and Additions Works of New Annex for Lam Tai Fai College

MAIEFE — B ESAERMELIENEEL

13 Hotel Interior Design Works Package 1 (Guestroom) and Package 2 (Public Area) for Park Hyatt Kuala Lumpur
TEFABEREE— (FF) MREZ (RRZEM) ERRAREETIE
SIS ERERERAR 2020121 FH# ’




ling Bypass Eastern Section (Shek Wu San Tsuen North to Lung Yeuk Tau)
Nt =EER)
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Site Formation and Foundation Works For Campus Expansion at Ho Man Tin Slope for the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
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Composite Development
wun Tong, Kowloon

REEERRETR

Main Works Contract for Alterations and Additions
Works of New Annex for Lam Tai Fai College
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development and Assets Leasing

The property development and assets leasing segment recorded HK$1.7
million (2020: HK$8.8 million) in revenue to the Group during the Year. In
the first half of the Year, the Group disposed the interest in a residential
development site located on Prince Edward Road West, Ho Man Tin.
Further, sales activity of “128 Waterloo”, a premium residential
development project located on Waterloo Road, Ho Man Tin, has
commenced, with the demand of property picking up again in the second
half of the Year, the management is confident in the sales of this project in
the year ahead.

gl
il
il
i1
11
11
11
1.1
fall

128 Waterloo

Other development projects include a land exchange application for a
residential land parcel in Tung Chung. It is believed that with the rapid
development of Tung Chung, the residential development project will have
excellent prospects. And the foundation works of the commercial
development at Nos. 35 and 37 Cameron Road, Tsim Sha Tsui has been
commenced. In addition, the Group recently purchased a site located at
Nos. 61-67 Soy Street, Mongkok in a joint venture, which is planned to be
redeveloped as a hybrid residential and retail building. Meanwhile, the
Group has entered into a share transfer agreement with an independent
third party for the disposal of certain interests in the properties located in
Shijiazhuang, the PRC. The completion of the transaction is subject to
fulfillment of all conditions precedent and this transaction is expected to
bring reasonable returns and further strengthen the liquidity position of the
Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEENWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Property Development and Assets Leasing (continued)

Subsequent to the reporting period, the court decided that the Group's
termination of a proposed transaction in relation to the sale of the
commercial development at No. 8 Clear Water Bay Road and 49% interest
in the car park development at No. 8 Clear Water Bay Road was wrongful
and in breach of terms and conditions of the memorandum entered into
between the plaintiff and the Group in September 2013. The court ordered
the Group to compensate the plaintiff's loss plus interest and the plaintiff's
legal costs incurred. The Company therefore has made a one-off provision
for compensation related to the legal proceedings of approximately
HK$272.0 million during the Year.

The Group's focus for the segment will remain in Hong Kong. In view of
current developments of the Hong Kong property market, it will continue
to take a prudent approach, characterised by the regular review and timely
adjustment of its property portfolio, as well as partnership arrangement for
synergies and risk diversification.

Professional Services

The professional services segment operated by City Services Group Limited
("City Services"), provides the services of security, tunnel and other facility
management. During the Year, professional services segment performed
steadily, generated a revenue of HK$952.2 million (2020: HK$921.5
million) and a profit of HK$157.0 million (2020: HK$63.9 million). In terms
of the security and facility management, quality services allow City Services
to secure the renewal of contracts with several reputable clients during the
Year. With respect to the tunnel management operation, the Group holds
management contracts for six tunnels in Hong Kong, including the Cross-
Harbour Tunnel, the Shing Mun Tunnels, the Tseung Kwan O Tunnel, the
Kai Tak Tunnel, the Lion Rock Tunnel and the Central-Wan Chai Bypass
Tunnel.

EROE =
NEERREEHE®)

REREHR% - SRR AN EE LI
BEARBEKEBSR R KEKEES
RZIEHEBRR A% ERZEEZRHER
Mo WERREABEAEEN2013F9 A%
Rl 2 BB N 2 R MG - RRER S A S
EEERSE A ZBRNEFEURERE AR
EEXZHFARER AEERABNRAFERZ
ﬁiéﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁzﬁ1 #17#9272,000,000

REBEDNARBERZ D BHNERED - £
REBMEMSNENRER  ~AEEREE
REEETH EHERLLERAEEYE
e URERAA BT AG & R e
2B

EXR%

WHREEBAR AR ([MMRE]) 2EN
BERBOHMRERE  BRENMAMEKEE
BRE RAFE BERBHIBERIIAEZ
f# - E A #%5952,200,000% 7T (2020 4F
921,500,000 7T ) & & F 157,000,000 7% 7T
(20204 : 63,900,000 7T) ° FLIRZ M A& T
%@ﬁﬁ'—ﬁmﬁgmﬁﬁﬁWﬁ%Wﬁ
REENERNEETEEBRINEFPEES
%°%LLE@¥%@E REBNREBRE
ERAGEBRENERAY  BREAWERRE
B WPIRRE - BERBRE - RUERE W
FILBFE LA R IR ST EEpE

DA ERERAERAR 202021 3 a




Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DT

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Non-franchised Bus Services

The non-franchised bus services segment operated by Chun Wo Bus
Services Limited recorded a segmental profit of HK$6.0 million (2020:
HK$15.9 million) during the Year. Due to the decline in inbound visitors to
Hong Kong, the Group shrewdly redirected the business focus from tourist-
related to scheduled services. Through the securing of sizeable contracts
with various renowned organisations, schools and property management
companies, the non-franchised bus services business has been able to
enlarge the customer group and broaden the business opportunities.

It is worth noting as well that the non-franchised bus services business has
earned the ISO 9001 certification. This achievement highlights the Group’s
ability to align its Quality Management Systems with the framework set by
the ISO international standard, which is ultimately aimed at delivering
services that meet the requirements and expectations of customers and
other stakeholders in the most efficient manner.

Medical Technology and Healthcare

During the Year, the Group has ventured into the medical technology and
healthcare sector through the acquisition of HKCL. HKCL specialises in the
production of PET drugs and operates one of the largest PET radiopharmacy
distribution networks in Hong Kong, being a key supplier for hospitals and
imaging centers. Further to the acquisition, the management is actively
seeking opportunities to increase market share in Hong Kong by gradually
expanding its production capacity.

Other Business

Online building materials procurement and management platform and
construction financing businesses both continued to progress well. The
Group will continue to direct efforts toward developing these businesses,
with a view to enhance their positions in supporting the core businesses
and expanding income streams.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DN

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group mainly relies upon internally generated funds as well as bank
borrowings to finance its operations and expansion, which is supplemented
by equity funding when it is required.

At 31 March 2021, the total net debts of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,700.0 million, representing total debts of

approximately HK$3,270.9 million less total of cash and bank balances of
approximately HK$1,570.9 million. The debt maturity profile, based on
scheduled repayment dates set out in loan agreements of the Group at 31
March 2021, is analysed as follows:

RBETRYBER

AEBEGLENBERAFBESTERANE
B MRITE  EARERBEARITEN
LS

R2021F3 A31H - AEB 2 FEKRBLAE
1,700,000,0007%7T - BIMER42%E#73,270,900,000
BT AER 2 RIRTT4E#R4R%EEXY1,570,900,000
T IRIBEAREBER 20213 A31 B2 &5
FETE BT ER A EEEEA SN
—|T :

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
R 20214 20204
3H31H 3A31H
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET B &5
Bank borrowings and lease liabilities repayable: AR T HREEER 2 RITER R
HEBERIE:
Within one year or on demand —FRKIZREK 1,161.0 1,632.6
After one year, but within two years —FREMFA
— On demand shown under current liabilities — IATBBEEREXEE 2SS 1,260.3 7.0
— Remaining balances — B 21.1 255.4
After two years, but within five years WFERERFR
— On demand shown under current liabilities — AR B EEREREE 2 H D 784.6 12.0
— Remaining balances — R 20.1 1,008.7
Over five years RFUE
— On demand shown under current liabilities — NARBAGEREREEZDD 3.8 -
— Remaining balances — B 20.0 2.8
Total debts BRHER 3,270.9 2,9185

The Group has continued to implement a prudent financial management
policy, at 31 March 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group, being the
proportion of net interest bearing debts to equity attributable to
Shareholders, was 0.74 (2020: 0.72).

Bank borrowings financial covenants fall into non-compliance due to the
one-off provision related to legal proceedings, triggering certain bank
borrowings being classified as current liabilities. These bank borrowings
were included in the “On demand shown under current liabilities” under
“After one year, but within two years” and “After two years, but within
five years” time bands disclosed above. Consent waivers of non-compliance
with financial covenants have been received subsequent to reporting
period.

AEBEERDETOABEERRE - B
202153 A31H - AEEZEREFH XA
ATEESFREARFEGER ZLE)AR0.74
(20204 : 0.72) °

MR ARBERFRZ — IR - AEER
“%%?ﬁﬁﬁ{%ﬁz,ﬁﬁ%%%@ BB A TRTT
EREDBR/RBAE - ZIRITERDFTA
EXEBEZ [ —FREMFR] R ITMFR
ERFAIN AR REFREREEZ
By e REHR - ARE D BEURREE T
MBROZFATHR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DT

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES (continued)

To minimise exposure on foreign exchange fluctuations, the Group’s bank
borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars or Renminbi which are the same as the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. The Group has no significant exposure to foreign
exchange rate fluctuations and shall use derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk only when it is required. Furthermore,
the Group’s bank borrowings have not been hedged by any interest rate
financial instruments.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the pledge of assets of the Group are set out in Note 34(d) to the
financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in Note 44 to
the financial statements.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group had approximately 6,500 employees as at 31 March 2021. Total
remuneration of employees for the Year amounted to approximately
HK$1,786.7 million. Employees are remunerated according to their nature
of work and the market trend, with merit-based components incorporated
in the annual increment review to reward and motivate individual
performance. Employee bonus is distributable based on the performance of
the respective divisions and the employees concerned. Moreover, the
Group also provides in-house training program and sponsorship for
external training courses which are complementary to their job functions.

With a view to providing incentive for employees to achieve performance
goals and aligning the interests of employees directly to the Shareholders
through ownership of shares of the Company, the Company adopted the
restricted share award scheme on 1 August 2017, pursuant to which the
Company may grant to eligible participants restricted shares of the
Company. Such grant shares are acquired by the scheme trustee on the
market of the Stock Exchange and held upon trust for the benefit of the
grantees and shall become vested in the grantees upon satisfaction of
specified vesting criteria.

In addition, the Company had also adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme"”), under which the Directors are authorised to
grant share options to the eligible participants to subscribe for shares of
the Company for the purpose of, among other things, providing incentives
and rewards to, and recognising the contributions of, the eligible
participants. The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 3 September 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DT

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS
Construction

While weary of downside risks, the Group remains cautiously optimistic
about the construction industry in view of economic, social and political
clarity in Hong Kong. Moreover, the Hong Kong Government’s
commitment to increasing housing supply and investments in public
infrastructure will continue to create opportunities for the industry as a
whole. Specifically, the Group will be strategically targeting opportunities
in large-scale projects such as the Tung Chung New Town Extension, the
Lok Ma Chau Loop and the extension of the MTR network. Furthermore,
the Group will be leveraging its industry leading patents and technology in
the Modular Integrated Construction space to expand its building portfolio.
The Group has expanded its orders on hand due to winning new contracts,
which echoes its belief of opportunities in construction industry.

Property Development and Assets Leasing

In early 2021, investor confidence in the property market has gradually
rebounded. Such confidence will be further strengthened as the impact of
Covid-19 pandemic dissipates, resulting in the relaxation of travel
restrictions and the return of inbound visitors which is vital for revitalising
the economy, and which the property sector will be a major benefactor.
Regardless of market trends, the Group will continue to exercise prudence
when examining opportunities, as reflected by its practice of seeking
partnerships to both generate synergies and to mitigate risk.

Professional Services

As a stable and dependable source of income, professional services has
proved to be less susceptible to economic and social fluxes. The Group will
continue to seek new contracts and opportunities for the security, tunnel
and other facility management businesses to facilitate their sustainable
developments and will maintain its commitment to providing quality
professional services to existing clients to build trust and ongoing support.
At the same time, the Group will continue to explore the feasibility of
various proposals, including the spin-off and separate listing of this
segment on the Stock Exchange.

Non-franchised Bus Services

Having achieved a turnaround since affected by local and external
developments, the non-franchised bus services segment will be actively
extending the local routes of shuttle bus services to enlarge the customer
base. In addition, the Group will make preparations for seizing
opportunities after pandemic, including the revival of local tourism.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DT

OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS (continued)
Medical Technology and Healthcare

With respect to this new segment, while ramping up the integration of
HKCL into the Group and increasing its market share, the management is
seeking to expand the operation through looking into other relevant
business opportunities in this industry.

Other Business

The management maintains the belief in its other businesses play a
contributory role to overall advancement of the Group. In line with this
belief, the Group will nurture the development of existing businesses while
at the same time continue to look for suitable opportunities so as to
diversify operations, expand income streams and create long term
sustainable growth.

Conclusion

While being a leading member of the construction industry, the Group
remains committed to strengthening its position across all of its business
interests. The Group is also adamant about seizing opportunities that can
benefit people from all walks of life. The recent acquisition and equity
investment in the medical technology sector and renewable energy fields
put the Group's determination into practice, and will bring the Group more
opportunities to enter into the Greater Bay Area as well. We believe that
the development of the advanced “wall connection technology” applicable
to the Concrete “Modular Integrated Construction” solution under
“Inno@ChunWo" initiatives collaborated with universities announced
during the Year will bring advancement to the Group and society
concurrently. By raising the Group’s technological prowess, it can promote
industry development, leading ultimately to social progress.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Rk dEBRERES

INTRODUCTION

Our Group is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of CSR. The
business sector is placing an increasing emphasis on CSR performance,
particularly in the aspects of safety and health, sustainable development,
community impact and law and regulatory compliance. We understand
that we do not operate our business in isolation of our society. Employees,
suppliers, clients, the natural environment and the general community are
all our stakeholders influenced by the ways in which our Group transacts
the business.

CSR GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group conducts a top-down management approach regarding its CSR
issues. The Board is responsible for setting out the Group’s CSR strategy
and has established a working group comprising major departments or
divisions to implement the CSR strategy, manage the CSR issues, collect
relevant data and information and prepare the report. The Audit
Committee is responsible for ensuring the effectiveness of CSR risk control
and internal monitoring mechanisms, reviewing and evaluating the CSR
performance and reporting to the Board.

To strengthen the credibility of the CSR data, we have engaged Accredited
Certification International Limited (“ACI") as independent carbon auditor.
ACI conducted the verification with regard to the data of emissions and
use of resources, which included assessment of data, monitoring system
and reporting plan or protocol. This assessment included collection of
evidence of reported data and checking of whether the provisions of the
protocol reference were consistently and appropriately applied.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group tries its utmost best to communicate with the stakeholders
through various communication channels such as surveys and interviews
and had incorporated their feedback into the process of identifying the
material topics, which acts as the foundation of the formulation of long
term CSR strategies as well as a strong reference to this report.

Following the communication with our senior management and operational
staff, we assessed CSR issues relevant to the Group by considering their
importance to our stakeholders. During the Year, five material aspects were
identified in the assessment, including Training and Development,
Employee Health and Safety, Environmental Performance, Product/Service
Responsibility and Anti-corruption.

This ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules, which mainly covers the Group’s principal business activities in Hong
Kong during the Year. The four key subject areas in this ESG Report cover:
(I) Workplace Quality, (Il) Environmental Protection, (Ill) Operating Practices
and (IV) Community Involvement.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRSE

() WORKPLACE QUALITY ()

Our People

As at 31 March 2021, our Group had approximately 6,500 employees
with the majority stationed in Hong Kong. We recognise that
employees are valuable assets to our Group and embrace the
philosophy of investing in people by providing them with a range of
training programs that can enhance their professional skills and
knowledge. We are also committed to maintaining a safe and healthy
working environment for all employees as well as implementing
equal opportunity employment practices.

THEREER
KMWET

H E2021F3A31H AEBHE
6,500 % 1EE + KEDEHRES - HM
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BPMBOIRAEBREEERTERE
BEONTIERE  UNBHIFEmEKS
B o

Employment Statistics

Employee Turnover Rate*

EESTHE BERKER*
2020721 2019/20 2020/21 2019/20
] I
70.1% 68.9% 34.6% 33.4%
29.9% 31.1% 34.4% 32.0%
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Top Management

Top Manage 1.0% 0.8%
m%‘gﬁ“ﬂjggeme“t 4.6% 4.3%
;“%e”’is”y 12.6% 11.5%

€ 81.8% 83.4%

Below 30

15.2% 14.9%
30BE AT ’ o
30-50 " 36.8% 36.5%
3050 5%
Above 50 48.0% 48.6%

508 A £

Age Group F #2485l

16.1% 12.7%
37.3% 33.4%
22.7% 20.7%
37.7% 37.3%

47.1% 44.1%
35.6% 37.3%
28.7% 24.0%
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Hong Kong 95.8%
&8 o
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Overseas
% 3.6%
B

* Employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the number of separation  *

employees in the Year by the number of employees at the end of the Year
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
BRI -HERERRSE

() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)
Working Conditions

To attract, motivate and retain talents, our Group regularly reviews
our staff compensation and benefit packages to ensure our benefits

are competitive in the market. With reference to prevailing market
conditions, a review is conducted annually on the pay packages of
employees and other employment benefits, which include the
medical scheme, health check program, travel insurance, training
subsidies and retirement benefits.

Training and Development
Training

Continuous learning is one of our core values. The Group's support
in training and development applies to staff of all levels. We have
been offering training sponsorship to all staff members to encourage
self-improvement in a learning organisation since 2005. Employees
are provided with comprehensive in-house training and sponsorships
for external training courses including seminars, workshops, visits and
demonstrations to enhance their skills and knowledge for performing
their duties more effectively and promoting personal development.

Since 1999, our Group’s Chun Wo Construction and Engineering
Company Limited has been certified by the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers as a Scheme A Graduate Training approved organisation in
the Civil, Building, Building Services and Structural disciplines.

Training programs offered by the Group
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7 GLAD Program for accounting trainees

@ Core Program

(@ Elite Program

& Women Leaders Program

&7 Young Professional Program

@ Graduate/Freshman Program for Engineers/Quantity Surveyors

& Design Engineer Program

@ Technical Apprentice Program

@ Site Agent Development Program

@ Sub Agent Program

& Construction Industry Council Training Academy Program
@ Contractor Cooperative Training Scheme
& Advanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme
@ Construction Tradesman Collaborative Training Scheme
& Enhanced Construction Manpower Training Scheme

@ Building Information Modelling Internship Program

& Building Frontline Training Program

@ CSG Elite Team Program

& Mentorship Program
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RIE HERERRSE

(|) WORKPLACE QUAL'TY (continued)

Training and Development (continued)

Training (continued)

()

TERBEEZE %)
EINRERE &)
s8I (4)

Trained Employees

ZIEE
2020/21

Gender 1% 3

Male
B

Female

wE

2019/20

Employment Type {E &3 5l _

Top Management 1.4% 0.8%
SEEEAS

Middle Management 3.4% 4.4%
FEEEAR

Supervisory 2.5% 8.0%
E1E

Operation 92.7% 86.8%

BRIE

Development

Beside career development, we place great value on the development
of physical and psychological well-being of our employees. The
Group aspires to a work-life balance for its employees, and thus we
encourage colleagues to take part in volunteering, recreational and
sporting activities at leisure in the hope of helping them relax and
strengthening the team spirit.
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(I) WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) () THEREEE»)
Training and Development (continued) BIRBRE)
Development (continued) BE(E)

Basketball Team {‘;\
BB T

Sport Team Friendly matches with our joint venture partners

& 5 R HEEBHETRER

Demonstrate Team Spirit Promote Harmonious Message Foster Regular Exercise Habit

BB M SHEMERE BRETESHEE

D Request for help E 3R {78

“Caring Hotline” Inquire information & &,
@ [RRRE Q ™M

3  Expressopinions REZR

= Birthday Birthday card and coupon
== EA=R D3 E
Marriage .
69 and New Birth Glft;!o%upon
FEBERET
“Staff Care .
Retirement Souvenir
Programme” AD
@ RS B 8 B REE
o Ho;;:i'lcsj!itjs?;ion Caring call and fruit basket
EERTE BERMERRE
Death Flower wreath and
Q g‘aﬂi condolence money
EEREMmE
In recognition of the Group’s efforts and accomplishments in BREAEEEANEIINRERFESN
manpower training and development, the Group members have LH KRR NEBEKEEEES BIE
been awarded the following accreditations by the Employees PEFUTEE :

Retraining Board.

Name of Company 2 8 &% Status E1& /Award 15

@ Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited @ Manpower Developers
EMERERFRAA AT
@ City Services Group Limited & Manpower Developers
RS EEAFR AR AT BE
7 ERB Excellent Award for Employers
ERB £t fE T FE AR
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() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) ()]
Employee Health and Safety

By integrating internationally-recognised 1SO 9001, I1SO 14001 and
ISO 45001 certifications into our quality, environmental and
occupational safety and health management systems
respectively, our Group demonstrates our
compliance with health and safety standards.
Our Group's “PDCA" system further ensures
all individuals and teams exert themselves to
meet the statutory requirements and to
achieve the ultimate goal of continuous
improvement.

Continuous
Improvment
BENE
We are aware of the significance of workplace
safety. To maintain the occupational safety
standards in our construction operations, we have
introduced a safety audit system designed to
monitor the effectiveness of our safety management
system. For the year of 2020, the corporate average safety
audit score — physical condition was 87% (2019: 87%), exceeding
the target of 83%.

Number of Fatality and Fatality Rate
(No. of work-related fatalities/
1,000 workers)

RTABRETE
(EIEBREMETHAR
1,000 L A)

0 0 0
(0/1,000) (0/1,000) (0/1,000)
E - —~—
2018 2019 2020
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() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) () TEBEEE»)
Employee Health and Safety (continued) BERERZZ(#)
In 2020, all safety indicators were in line with our objectives. In FA20204F © FREZ 2 EE R FIH
particular, the accident frequency rate of construction work within 5 B/ Hf - TRIEEBEINERS
years recorded a decreasing trend, reflecting our dedication and FRERT TEEBE - R ME TEH
achievements in construction site safety and excellent and consistent BT E2MERMKTA N — B 2 A
occupational safety performance. HELERE -

Accident Frequency Rate (per 100,000 man-hours)

BOR(BTEIR)

0210 0.207 0191
0121 2020 Target B 1Z
. 0.070 = 0.20
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
We are fully aware of certain risks of safety and health of workers BIVRAI AR TEEE — R
working on construction sites and hence a series of measures have ERZERRE  BtRMEZETIRRE
been in place at various construction project sites to protect the B b AR H — R AR HE - LMREE T AR
safety and health of workers. LR REE -

Protection Measures

REEIEHE

Heat Shelters and Water

Mini Health Check Stations Sprinklers on Rooftops Morning Exercise
NV BRI Uk ETE PR ZMR Bk es FRES)

Ensure workers are at optimal state Dissipate heat gain glag ol o dis o

. \ o s injuri d ways of prevention
TR B TR s EARRE 15 BEMER njuries and v W b o
Eﬂ%g J&z. I EV’TiHj(E' €T$E/\ ﬂ; E@EEEIE\I/%E\ 1%§ ﬁt/{&fﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁiﬁ@

SIS ERERERAR 2020121 FH#H g




Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERRE

() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)

Health and Safety Policies

Our security and facility management divisions also follow a well-
structured management system and conduct annual audit to ensure
that we meet the international standards. The companies under the
divisions have received accreditations in ISO 45001 occupational
health and safety management system awarded by ACI.

The safety and health of all our employees are of paramount
importance to our Group. Thus, our senior management place a
strong emphasis on our employees’ safety and health. Our non-
franchised bus services division has abided by the Occupational Safety
and Health Ordinance and provided medical examinations voluntarily
for drivers aged 60 or above to ensure they are able to perform their
duties under a good health conditions. We also ensure that
reasonable working hours are allotted to the drivers and provide
enough rest time to them for maintaining good spirits.

Our Group has also set up an effective occupational health and safety
management system conforming to the Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (Safety Management) Regulation and I1SO 45001
requirements. Related guidelines are stated in our Group's safety

policy.

Our target is to fulfill all relevant health, safety and environmental
protection regulatory requirements and provide our staff with a
hazard-free workplace. In order to achieve this goal, we encourage
all employees to take the responsibility and comply with the systems,
policies, manuals, procedures and working rules such as wearing
personal protective equipment and reporting violations of regulatory
requirements or orders.

()

THEIRBEEE %)
BERZEZBER

BPOREMEEEEDFINEIT—E
ERETENETERAMETTERZ
ERE PTG BIRIRE - ZHE T
RAIEEBEERARILE TISO
45001 BERFELRLEERRBARE -

HAKEME @ BURENLEMERE
VERER - At - SBEEABER
ERHMEENZ 2 RERE - RPN
BEEENA DB TRERE REZFK
{5 - I B R 60 R A £ RO RIHEER (1
FERE - EROMENERTOEE
AR TEITEE - IR BT
FEE  YRERBMSITEIKERRE -
PAGRFF R 4f BB 1R RE

REBMBERTHME THELE (LEE
I ) #5210 )2 1SO 45001 R EHR T A
MEBERERLEERRS - GRS
HNAEBRNLZ2BERNA °

BMREERMARENRE 22K
BRREETENR  UARERHZ2ESE
HTAFRIR - RERILBE - BB
PrEREAESELETHRESE - X
B F - BERIERA - fl0ME
EARER R R EHRE R EEERE LI
THEM -

Health and Safety Policies RERZ

@ No violence in the workplace 0 HERETIESARONREN
@ No sexual harassment and discrimination 0 HBUEERIEIR

@ An alcohol-free and drug-free workplace 0 BERESHIERSE

@ A non-smoking workplace O EETIERE

@ Immediate reporting of accidents 0 BNRFEREINER

@ Familiarity with fire prevention and safety working procedures @ PR A KT 2 TERRZF
@ Special arrangement for typhoons and rainstorm warnings 0 RERERESENERZEE
@ Security of property and safety inspection 0 MERLZRLZE2HE

h Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21
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() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) () ITHEBREZR@®
Safety and Health Awards ZERRERIE
In the Year, our various business units garnered more than 40 safety PAREE BPZAEKEENEERB
and health awards, proving our effective implementation of AEZEREESEIE  IEASEE
occupational safety and health management system throughout the BErPANRELTLEREEERANE
various divisions in our Group. BB M o

Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council

RRAREEXES

The 26th Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme

F26F A EMBEETTE

@ Public Works — RMAA Works (Gold Award)
THIRE— 45 RE RERNEIR(EE)

@ Public Works — New Works (1 Silver Award and 1 Merit Award)
THIR —HEIR(—ERER—THERE)

@ Public Works — Model Subcontractor Award (Merit Award)
THIRE —R&Eean(BRE)

Occupational Safety and Health Council

BEZZ2RER

The 19th Hong Kong Occupational Safety & Health Award

F19OEEEBEZERERE

@ Safety Management System Award — Construction Industries (Merit Award)
RZEEERGIE AR — ZEEER (BE5R)

@ Work Safe Behaviour Award (Bronze Award)
TEZ 21T AN (HR04E)

@ Safety Performance Award — Construction Industries (Excellence Award)
LZEREFAE — BB R ()

@ Safety Performance Award (Outstanding) (10 subsidiaries)
ZEREAEZ(GHR)(THREBAR)

Development Bureau, Construction Industry Council and
Hong Kong Construction Association

BRRE BEXFERBEEERS
Innovative Safety Initiative Award 2020
AIEIREZ%#2020

(7 Safety Operational Device (1 Bronze Award and 2 Merit Awards)
LB ERG(—HIRE R MIAEELR)

@ Safety Management System, Training & Promotion (1 Bronze Award and 1 Merit Award)
LEERHE - HREE (AR - RERE)

Institute of Safety and Health Practitioner
ZEEEMES

ISHP Outstanding Safety and Health Awards 2020
ZEREMBSAET2REKNE2020

@ Outstanding Safety Award — Contractor/Subcontractor (Platinum)
BRER 2R —FZER/ HER(EEE)

DN A ERIERARAF 202021 F1) ﬂ
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() WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued) () TEREEZ

Safety Activities

To ensure the continuous improvement of occupational safety and
health standards, we have developed an evaluation questionnaire to
collect feedback from the participants of all meetings, seminars and
forums.

The Group encourages employees to participate in occupational
safety and health activities and voluntary services and share expertise
and information not only with colleagues but also fellow workers in
the Hong Kong construction industry. To actively promote the
awareness of occupational safety throughout the Group, a range of
safety activities, including safety workshops, special safety seminars
and community activities, was organised during the Year.

Through these activities, all participants have improved their
awareness and knowledge of occupational safety. Furthermore, they
exchanged ideas and helped to promote the safety culture in the
Group.

Besides, the Group established a safety training centre called “Chun
Wo Safe Zone” which consists of 5 training zones to simulate the
major causes of accidents at construction sites. Participants can
enhance their safety awareness and improve their work safety
behaviour by attending the “Behavioural Change Safety Training”
("BCST"). All Chun Wo employees and subcontractors’ workers, who
working on site, must be the holder of valid certificate of BCST.

EWEN B A T
AL T TR
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()

(1

WORKPLACE QUALITY (continued)
Compliance with Employment Laws

We have adopted the comprehensive Employee Handbook for
employees of the Group and review the policies from time to time to
ensure that we comply with the Employment Ordinance in respect of
employment protection and benefits for employees. Our human
resource functions of different business units also observe the
departmental manuals so as to ascertain that they adhere to legal
and regulatory requirements throughout the recruitment process,
and to avoid the employment of illegal labour or child and forced
labour.

During the Year, the Group did not identify any non-compliance
cases involving illegal labour or child and forced labour, and complied
with all relevant laws and regulations relating to employment and
labour practices.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

In view of the growing greenhouse effect and climate change, energy
conservation, carbon reduction and minimising pollution have
become an global issue that could affect any one of us. As a
responsible corporate citizen, the Group has established policies and
measures to minimise pollution, efficiently utilise energy, reduce
waste and expand recycling practices in our operation. Risk-based
thinking, lifecycle perspective and mitigation have been incorporated
into our management system to address the latest environmental
challenges. The Group has established effective environmental
management systems in compliance with internationally-recognised
ISO 14001 and ISO 50001 standards. Committed to the core values
of the Group, we have been members of various environmental
protection groups and actively support these organisations. With the
continuation of our environmental protection measures, in view of
the current business environment and nature and period of
construction project, the Group targets to achieve a 5% drop in
emissions and resources used per HK$ million revenue for every five
financial years commencing from the financial year of 2021.

()

(n

THREER®)
& ~F R E D

BAERAEENEERHEEZANEE
F i R AR ZEBR - ARREI
BT A BERBRERES BN ERE
5]« A TREBEMLNANEIRERFT
TRESPEFIFM - AR BEBER
RERZERIERBRE - URIHERRS
IEBETRETRRALEH ©

RAFEE  ANEEW BB KIE
ABTHRET MIRESEREMRERE

BT — ) BB E R 4 T I a0
BIRA ROEN -

RIERE

SRR R AR - 5

B SR A5 R B B AR ETR IS 75?%
HE2IREE - (EARENDER E N

EEEFIFTECR RIREUEE - & BR
RREAER - BRUEBER « BE K
BEEYHER - KMERBERFSEA
B B B4 - £ B IR MR R
e - RS IR IR DS, - N B
B ¥ R B BR 52 Al A91SO 14001 K& 1SO
5000112 % R EHMIREEER
FoBRMEKNAZEARREENSENW
BHRYHEHER  BUIERAEEN
VMFE ZREIEREEHIREURE
HKIFHZMERFH  ANEBFEHTT
RIRE > BEBA20Q1 FHBEER
SRENMRTE  ERSE&BTRE
B 5% N EREREMR -

DA ERERAERAR 202021 3 a
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() ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () RRRE =)
Waste and Resources Management BYREREE
Waste Management Hierarchy has been adopted on-site to reduce BB EE R R IEINERBE - M
waste production and enhance recycling. BAETHAEEEYEIREME -
Top Priority [l
BEEL [ | Avoidance and Minimisation
= BRERKRERD
[ |

Reuse of Materials

ER#H

Recovery and Recycling

By R ERBE

v Treatment
BB
Disposal

R=E

Last Priority
REESL

] = - ] -

Details of Waste Recycled and Reused
BORRBERERFE

soils, Con .ced Safety Hey
ocks ) Crete wpire = @m@t
i BERg, Tramnzemg

Recycled
BERBE
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RiIR #HERERES

(I) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Waste and Resources Management (continued)

Details of Waste Recycled and Reused (continued)

BYERBERERAFE(E)

Soil reused by
other projects

mHEAMIEE ERARNEL

374,864
=

Paper recycled
(office paper)
ERBERE RAEAK)

143

¢

Plastic recycled
REREEEER
Tonnes
7]

Recycled and

Reused Disposed less
over 95% of than 5% waste
construction waste generated
ﬂE;E;ﬁF& ®ELN5 %
AZR 4
95% w1m NEELEY
37

Reduced pressure on landfill

RS I Y B )

() RERE @)
BYRERER &)

¢

Waste recycled at public fill
RARERHERBIENEEY

515,536,

Timber/paper/cardboard
recycled (non-office waste)
RREENARM,BEE R
GERAZEREEY)
9 Tonnes
T

Concrete recycled

RBEBEERL

2’848£gnnes

Metal recycled
BRBESE

5,088 Iﬁ;nnes

898,433,

Infrequent hazardous waste from
demolition of old structures or
equipment (e.g. asbestos)
REFHERERRENTER
BEEER(MAER)

Separated and treated
in accordance
with local regulations

1R R A0 3R Bl e e % BR 22
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(I) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Waste and Resources Management (continued)

Managing Resources and Energy Use in an Eco-friendly Manner

() RFRE )

BYRERER (&)

URERENTNERERKERER

Implementing Eco-Friendly Actions in our offices and project
sites to promote environmental awareness

Phasing out traditional T8 tubes and replacing with energy-
saving T5 fluorescence tubes and LED lighting

Using solar thermal energy for power (electricity) generation to
reduce diesel use and hence carbon emissions

Reusing wastewater after sedimentation treatment for site
cleaning, water suppression systems, wheel washing at site
access, water barrier filling, etc.

Reusing recycled water for preliminary air lifting of bore piles
Using seawater instead of freshwater for marine works

Reusing water dripping from air-conditioners for roof sprinkler
cooling systems and watering of plants of site office

Using noise barriers and enclosure to protect sensitive receivers

Q Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21

O EMRERERMBETRRERET
B URARRER

0 EELRAEHREOTERE - WIALTRLH
T5 &t & E N LED FREFELA

0 ERKGRES  URDERSEH - %
Tk AR HE B

O SKETUBERIRE - BREBANMES
B ORKHERLG R IHH A DB
B MENDKBES

P BKERBARNTSZAEILIE

@ REFTIREAERRERK

P WELREEK  BREBRETRREK
BEORFESM AT MM REEYER

o ERREFENREERESIXRER

EmER

Maximise the Benefits in Environmental
Protection, Energy Efficiency and Carbon
Footprint Reduction

IR £ - AEIRR e SR A iR i E)
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(I) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

) RERE =)

Environmental Measures RIRIETE

It is our unshirkable responsibility to provide and promote green P IR M R B AR B BRI
building solutions and methodologies to create sustainable cities and MAT#ERF BRI T R ESRIEE
to contribute towards climate change. Sustainability designs and FEHEZE - M EE M EKE A
construction methods have been initiated in our project sites with B R R (R R e
developed mitigation measures to protect our environment, reduce HLAMREIRIE RO BEMELERIESRE
waste generation and enhance recycling. IRAIE -

Eco-Friendly Actions at Construction Sites

RIMNRERETE

Green Construction Methods

BREBETE

Noise Reduction &4 & &

Use of drill and split for rock breaking, replacing
traditional noisy breaker, reducing noise emanating
from sites

ERERE DS TEETHA  BRESRAEY
ROBLAER - [RIEMARIR G E AR T

Use of silent piler for sheet pilling, replacing noisy
percussive piling

ERERITHE BREENITHE

Building Information Modelling #& {5 5 8 #k

Improve coordination and clash detection, reduce
amount of unnecessary remedial works with true
representation of the actual construction condition
HEBARERRE KA TV ENEHIE -
7B M AR RS b kR

Estimate material quantities precisely, avoid surplus
of materials

BHELEMHEE - B EHBR

Facilitate off-site precasting of modules, reducing
use of formwork materials

(R BRINERUEAR - R A EIR T AR
#

Reduce of carbon dioxide emission with reduction
in amount of rework, construction and demolition
waste and number of construction plant on site
WO AR - RESTE - TR RIFHE
) B T B SR SR B =

Waste Reduction i& 4 B4

Use of Natural Resources f& i X A &R

B5 Biodiesel B5 4 4 4¢3

Use of more durable aluminium modules and steel
formworks, replacing traditional timber formworks,
for wall and column construction, reducing waste
generation

FEASTE TP 1T 58 A 5 Tt AR A0 8 AR A K S AR AR
BEREGHAER - R EYHESE

Reuse excavated soil and rock in other contracts
REMEHNERBCZRARL AL

Use of seawater instead of freshwater for marine
works (predrilling, piling and airlifting)
REFTIE(FREL  THEEZE) ERBKRE

IR

Surplus rock and soil are reused by other projects
instead of disposal

REMIEEERANBNOMIEL - RERE

Lower well-to-wheel carbon dioxide emission
compared with conventional diesel

HEG SO AL - BRI H R ER /(b
BEmk

DN A ERIERARAF 202021 F1) g
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(1) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () RERE @

Environmental Measures (continued)

Eco-Friendly Actions at Offices
RBAENRRERETH

Carbon Emission Monitoring System Eco-renovation
“ELmEERGR BRREE

@  Paperless meetings @ Applying energy-saving
BAER lighting

@ Switching off lighting and ST
appliances (computers and @  Utilising natural light in interior
monitors) during lunch hours design
RFREREARERAREE EEART EEREAKRIR
(B RFR)

@  Reusing old furniture
@ Maintaining indoor ERERE
temperature between 24°C
and 26°C in summer months
REZAMDERZERNRBEN
THRK24EZE26E

RREE (&)

On-Grid Solar System

HHRAEKISRERB

@  Operating in parallel with the
electricity grid of the site
offices for supplementing the
foil-based generation and
protecting environment
HETHBEAENHEBEAE
BRER AMEIABE /AR
BEBEURRERE

Enhance Staff's Environmental Awareness for Reducing Energy Consumption and Carbon Emissions

e B THIRRE R © IR BEIRUB#E AR

Environmental Performance

The Group has established a comprehensive group-wide carbon audit
system which extended the scope of carbon audit to monitor
emission data of the different business units under the Group. The
Group has developed policy of controlling greenhouse gas emission,
and managing our fuel and electricity usage through deployment of
high efficiency equipment for better use of resources.

The Group supports low carbon
construction and is a signatory
member of “Low Carbon Charter”
of Business Environmental Council.
We support greater use of electric
plant and equipment and low
carbon alternative fuels (e.qg.
biodiesel) where electrification is
not possible. We use B5 biodiesel,
renewable energy system (e.g. solar
power) and mass battery energy
storage to reduce carbon emission
from sites.

Q Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21
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(I) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)

Environmental Performance (continued)

(1) RFRE )
RERENE)

[RERZAR B RIRIE T EAE R 2 BASRAE
ER(ERERERDT

The Key Performance Indicators (“KPI(s)”) demonstrating our Group's
performance under the environmental area are disclosed as follows:

KPIs Description

ARERER Hiat

Aspect A1 Emissions

AT 7135:¢7)]

A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data

BEmiEsE R AERR B R EUE

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION"” above
B2RREX[RERE] — &

A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions and intensity
BERBHNENEE

Scope 1 Scope 2 Total (tonnes CO,e)
EiE1 EiE2 et (W — S tikE =

Direct Emissions (tonnes CO,e)
BHEEER(ME_S/tirsE =

2020/21 2019/20

Energy Indirect Emissions
(tonnes CO,e)
BERGEEEHR(E_A(tREE

33,327

2020/21 2019/20

2020/21:
48,218

2019/20:
64,084

Intensity (tonnes CO,e per
HK$ million revenue)

ZE (M _ftixEE

ISEER-Y -l 6
2020/21: 2019/20:
6.40 8.01

DN A ERIERARAF 202021 F1) g
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(1) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () R[RE =)
Environmental Performance (continued) RREM(E)
KPIs Description
ARERER Hiat
Aspect A1 Emissions (continued)
EmE AT e (&)
A1.3&A1.4 Total hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste produced and intensity

EAAEREEERMBERTE

Hazardous Waste (tonnes) Non-hazardous Waste (tonnes)

BEEEY (W) EmERZEY (W)

2020/21: 2019/20: 2020/21: 2019/20:

15.90 7.00 918,781 599,398

Intensity (tonnes per HK$ million revenue) Intensity (tonnes per HK$ million revenue)
EE (W, SEEEBTWER) EE (W, SEEETRR)

2020/21: 2019/20: 2020/21: 2019/20:

0.01 0.01 121.95 74.92

A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

R PR E MVBEIN B 1R MR B B IR AT IR R P IR

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2RR EX[RERE] — &

Al1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a description of
reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them
MEBAERESERMN L - R AT R E SR EE B 1R R AEE FAERER
B2 B

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2 R EX[RERE] — &

a Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21
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(II) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () BERE)
Environmental Performance (continued) RERENE)
KPIs Description
BRERERZ i
Aspect A2 Use of Resources
[ETE A2 EIRER
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity

ERESMNEEL SERERERERTE

Electricity (kwh) Intensity (kWh per HK$ million revenue)
AEE(TREH) BE(TRE SEE8BTKR)
2020/21: 2019/20: 2020/21: 2019/20:

54,902,532 55,304,327 7,287.30 6,912.35

Diesel (Litre) Intensity (Litre per HK$ million revenue)
e () ZRE(t/SEEBTWE)

2020/21: 2019/20: 2020/21: 2019/20:
9,780,016 11,253,718 1,298.12 1,406.57

Petroleum (Litre) Intensity (Litre per HK$ million revenue)
[ Al (FH) RE (Ft/SEEBETRE)

l\ 2020/21: 2019/20: 2020/21: 2019/20:

435,106 437,300 57.75 54.66
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity

BREKERFE
Water consumption (m?3) Intensity — (m3? per HK$ million revenue)
FEKE (ZFK) RE(LHK SEEETHE)
2020/21: 2019/20: 2020/21: 2019/20:
424,520 502,412 56.35 62.80

DN A ERIERARAT 202021 F1) ’
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RiIR  HERERES

(1) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () BERE®)
Environmental Performance (continued) BRREN &

KPIs

BREAMIER

Aspect A2
[Em A2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

Description
Hiat

Use of Resources (continued)

BERER (&)

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

FORPTRT LMV BETR(E A Res B IR MR 2 B B IR AT IR 2R

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2E EXRBRE] —&0

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them

L SKEGE BKR LA B EAEE - RTS8 K B IR R AERE EATERE
kg

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2 R EX[RERE] —6

Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, with reference to per
unit produced
HREATABREMRNEER (WER) BEEEMEE

Disclosure of packing material is omitted since it is not identified as material aspect in the
business of the Group

HREEMHREBNBRNARECEEEXKTH - At AREEMHZKE

Aspect A3
B A3

A3.1

The Environment and Natural Resources

BRIEMAAER

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural resources
and the actions taken to manage them
MR EHHRBENARARERNEATERCRKNEERRTENTTE

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
B2E EXRERE] —&0

Aspect A4
[EE A4

A4

Climate Change

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them

W E AR AT HETAEERENERRFEBEEE ULERBFEENTH

Please refer to the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION" above
FE2R EX[RERE] —6
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(1) ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) () RERE @
Environmental Awards BiR 4818
Our Group's efforts in contributing to environmental protection have AREBEREIEONBEREBEYHTES
been recognised by the community with the following environmental TF o WRARFELEETNIBREE

awards received during the Year:

Green Council

RREES

Hong Kong Green Awards 2020
EBZEtEKRIE2020

@  Green Management Award — Corporate (Large Corporation) (Gold Award)
BHIRREERE — bFE(KELH)(£148)

@  Green Management Award — Project Management (Large Corporation) (2 Gold Awards, 4 Silver Awards and 1 Merit Award)
BHIRREESR —HETE(KRAECE)(MELEE (YRREL—BEEHR)

@  Environmental, Health and Safety Award (Large Corporation) (2 Gold Awards and 1 Silver Award)
BERREEEER(REGE)(RNESER —HIRE)

@  Sustained Performance (5 Years +)

BB AR (SF L)

Development Bureau and Construction Industry Council
RERREEXES

The 26th Considerate Contractors Site Award Scheme
F26E QBB ETETE

@  Outstanding Environmental Management and Performance Awards (Silver Award)

BRI E IR 88 (IR EE)

Construction Industry Council

BEXEE

CIC Sustainable Construction Award 2020
BEEZEVHEREKRE2020

@  Contractor in New Works (1 Bronze Award and 1 Merit Award)
EGER — IR (—IERR —THERRE)
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(lll) OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

We recognise that supply chain management is essential to
operational efficiency and therefore work closely with suppliers and
contractors to effectively and efficiently meet our clients’ needs,

while emphasising responsible operating practices.

Our Group is stringent in selecting qualified suppliers, ensuring that
their entire production process is in line with our standards and
specifications. Not only do we require our new suppliers to submit all
relevant documents for review, we also run background checks to
evaluate their reliability. We conduct regular inspections and
evaluations to review the standards of our suppliers and cease
cooperation with unqualified suppliers. We are committed to
developing and maintaining effective and mutually fruitful working

relationships throughout our entire supply chain.

The Group also puts forward new requirements on the products and
services provided by suppliers are up to the international standard in
terms of quality and environmental protection, motivating the
suppliers to formulate appropriate environmental policies and
promoting energy-saving emission reduction and low-carbon
production. Regular meetings between the Group and suppliers
would be held for communicating and sharing the experience of

environmental protection.

During the Year, approximately 1,600 suppliers in Hong Kong, 50
suppliers in PRC and 10 suppliers from overseas were engaged by the

Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE -HERERKRE

(111) OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Product/Service Responsibility

We understand that good quality products and services are keys to
success and enhance our competitive edge. To this belief, our Group
has established the Quality Management System embedded with
risk-based thinking, life-cycle perspective and mitigations. Such
system is implemented by reliable business teams, ensuring the
quality of our products and services as well as efficiently handling of
all queries from our clients.

The heads of individual divisions discuss any particular incident
related to our products and services with the relevant division
managers, project managers, supporting departments and
committees. They share their views regarding various aspects of good
standards and statutory compliance. Corresponding improvement
plans are set out and implemented across all levels. The senior
management also regularly conducts reviews with business units and
takes necessary precautionary measures whenever applicable.

We maintain reliable electronic and hard copy recording systems at
various stages, including material delivery notes, origin certificates,
method statements, traceability records, inspection and testing
reports, etc., to facilitate any needs for a recall. Recall procedures are
traced through our recording system to obtain relevant information
to make decisions on any further action that may be necessary.

Our Group implements stringent quality control measures including
detailed operational flows and procedures, project management and
staff training to ensure that we deliver high quality services to our
clients. In recognition of our quality assurance, our various divisions
have been accredited with ISO 9001 quality management system
standard and I1SO 10002 customer management system standard to
sustain our business position. Through the ISO 9001 quality
management system and ISO 10002 customer management system,
the internal and external factors are determined to support our
Group strategic direction.

Applicable laws and regulations governing property development and
assets leasing are being complied with, and practices are being
conformed to those promulgated by Lands Department, Buildings
Department and Planning Department. In property development
projects, from design to after-sales care, health and safety
considerations are taken into account and that our Group is
committed to the delivery of high-quality products and services to the
satisfaction of customers.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE - HERERKRE

(111) OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Product/Service Responsibility (continued)

To address regulatory requirements in the context of property sales,
in addition to internal staff members, external legal advisors and
professional consultancy firms are appointed to advise on the
compliance of relevant laws and regulations, particularly the
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales) Ordinance which regulates
the provisions of sales brochures, promotional advertisements, price
lists, show flats, viewing of properties, sales arrangements, execution
of agreements, register of transactions and the like, as well as
observance and performance of the conditions set out in the Land
Grant and/or the pre-sale consent under the Lands Department
Consent Scheme.

Our security and facility management divisions also adopt control
measures in respect of routine operations and comply with the
relevant laws and regulations, especially the license requirements
under the Security and Guarding Services Ordinance and
responsibilities of a property manager under the Building
Management Ordinance, in order to ensure efficiency, quality
assurance and uniformity of performance.

In the view of the feedback from customers, we treat it seriously and
view it as means to consistently improve the quality of our products
and services we offer. The Group has standard procedures in place to
deal with the client’s feedback. Upon receiving any feedback, the
Group, subject to the situation, will take action and keep track of its
settlement, ensuring every feedback being handled properly. During
the Year, the Group was not aware of any cases of complaints
related to safety and health reasons.

Intellectual Property Rights

The Group is committed to ensuring the intellectual property rights
throughout its course of operation. We primarily rely on the
intellectual property laws in Hong Kong, confidentiality agreements
and internal policies to protect all intellectual property related to the
Group and operations. The employee handbook stipulates the code
and provision that requires our employees to comply.

Data Protection and Privacy Policies

All employees are prohibited from disclosing any confidential
information such as customer data under our privacy protection
policy. Consumer data including project-related information and
other sensitive information are subject to access right control to
ensure its security and prevent any abuse or misuse. Our Group
observes Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and reviews our personnel
and business practices from time to time to ensure its compliance.

a Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21
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(111) OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Anti-corruption

Our Group believes that honesty, integrity and fair play are important
contributors to the value of our assets and business. It is therefore
essential for all employees to ensure that our Group’s reputation will
not be tarnished by dishonesty, disloyalty or corruption. Various
policies and guidelines are in place to avoid any breach of the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance.

Employees should decline an offer of gift if acceptance of it could
affect their objectivity in conducting our Group's business, induce
them to act against the interests of our Group or lead to allegations
of impropriety. If an employee wishes to accept a gift with the
amount greater than the limit as stated in our Employee Handbook,
such employee should seek written permission from the managing
director of the particular subsidiary or our Group. Any employee in
breach of the code of conduct in the Employee Handbook will be
subject to disciplinary action including termination of employment.

Periodic written reminders are sent to our business partners and
suppliers about our Group's policy regarding “No Acceptance of
Advantages”.

The Group encourages the employees to report all illegality,
irregularity, malpractice, unethical acts or behaviours, inappropriate
conducts or actions, which may damage the Group’s interests, and
makes sure that there are sufficient protections for such whistle
blowers. Messages received will be looked into by the management
team at the appropriate level in a timely and impartial manner.

During the Year, the Group did not find any significant risks relating
to corruption and was not subject to any confirmed corruption cases
involving the Group or any corruption litigations against the Group
or any of its employees. In the future, the Group will continue to give
priority to anti-corruption and integrity, strengthen supervision of
anti-corruption and expand the scope of external supervision for the
healthy development of the Company.

Conflict of Interests

All employees should avoid any situation which may lead to an actual
or potential conflict of interests and should make a declaration in
writing to the head of the subsidiary or our Group when such a
situation arises. Failure to do so may give rise to allegations of
favoritism, abuse of authority or even corruption.
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RiIR  HERERES

(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

(IVEEZH

Over the years, the Group has spared no efforts in taking up CSR and
giving back to the society. This Year, our contribution focused on five
core areas: Community, Education, Innovation, Environmental
Concerns, and Health. Our values are put into action through
community activities and volunteering work, with the aim to build a
more inclusive and harmonious society.

Community

Due to the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, our community is
greatly affected. The Group is aware of the struggle of different
groups of people in the community and seeks different solutions to
help them, such as allocating anti-pandemic resources and
encouraging staff to participate in community voluntary activities. We
have been determined to provide immediate assistance and bring
positivity to the community under the pandemic.

Harmony Community Programme

Since 2014, the Group has initiated the “Harmony Community
Programme” with the aims to strengthen our ties with the local
community and to minimise the adverse effects brought by our
construction projects. In this programme, our staff of construction
sites from 18 districts of Hong Kong have been encouraged to serve
the community by joining a wide range of regular voluntary events.
In the Year, we aided approximately 3,500 beneficiaries through the
programme.
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Senior Citizen Home Safety Association “Care-On-Call Service”

Anti-pandemic Team
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measures to fight Covid-19.
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On 8 June 2020, in response to the Senior Citizen Home Safety
Association “Care-On-Call Service” plan, our staff volunteers visited
To Kwan Wan to send out gift bags to the elderly. These gift bags
contained masks, hand sanitisers, anti-bacterial card and food, such as
biscuits, wheat hulls and noodles. In addition to giving out gift bags,
our volunteers also taught the elderly the correct precautionary
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (IV) £t EZ2H )
Community (continued) HE#)
Harmony Community Programme (continued) ML EEE 8 (&)

Pak Tin Charity Platform
HHZE¥E

Chun Wo and The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council — Pak Tin Community Service Team Il are long-term
cooperation partners. Our volunteer team regularly visits the elderlies in Pak Tin Estate, who are affected by the re-
development of Pak Tin Estate project.

On 4 July 2020, Mr. Tung Kar Ming, David, Chun Wo's Division Director (Building), together with our Administration
Department, our Pak Tin site colleagues and The Neighbourhood Advice-Action Council distributed anti-pandemic
packs to the elderly in Pak Tin Estate. Through communicating with the elderly, we understood the impacts brought
by the re-development project and their needs, and gave them community resources in order to overcome their
difficulties in life.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (IVHEZSHE )
Community (continued) HE#)
Harmony Community Programme (continued) ML EEE 8 (&)

Anti-Pandemic Caring Visit at Shun Lee Integrated Family Service Centre

) 47 & 2R BE AR 7% O B9 B B BRRE B

On 16 July 2020, Chun Wo and Hong Kong Family Welfare
Society jointly organised an anti-pandemic caring visit at
Shun Lee Integrated Family Service Centre. During the event, our
staff volunteers from the project of Development of Anderson
Road Quarry Site distributed the anti-pandemic gift bags to 30
low-income families from Shun Lee Estate, Shun On Estate and
Shun Tin Estate. This event aimed at establishing good
relationships within the community, allowing the neighborhood
to understand the construction project, and enhancing harmony
in that area.
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Anti-Pandemic Caring Visit at Hiu Kwong Nursing Centre
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On 16 September 2020, our staff volunteers from the project
of Construction of Public Housing Development at Hiu Ming
Street visited Hiu Kwong Nursing Centre. They prepared anti-
pandemic supplies for the elderly in order to address their
needs under the pandemic.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (IVHEZHE )

Education BE

Education is the foundation of our society. As a corporate, the Group HERHENEL - EA—MNE - K
recognises its obligation to nurture future talents. This Year, the EERAZERRASHEE - RAF
Group continued to work with our non-governmental organisation E - AEEBERIFBITESS ERT
partner, St. James Settlement, to foster the physical and mental EREEHEAE  RESHENEL0
health of around 80 students from 5 primary schools. ZEBENEMEREER -

Moreover, to offer financial and professional support for the young, AN - BRFER —RIEETEE RE
we provide scholarships and funding schemes to local universities ¥YE RMALMAERHE TR
and educational events. Talks, seminars and internships are also MBS NEBTE - R IR E
organised to inspire our next generation. B REEREERE  BET R

E o

Chun Wo x St. James Settlement: NGO Partnership

“D.R.E.A.M. Your Dream Program”
BRAxERZEHS  FBRFHEAZSIED.R.EAM. EEGTE ]

Chun Wo collaborated with St. James’ Settlement to promote the
concept of “Positive Education” this Year. From February to March
2021, our staff volunteers completed a series of online experiential
activities with students from the beneficiary schools. Our
volunteers shared “positive education” stories and guided students
to make greeting cards for elderlies in elderly homes with the help
of teachers.
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On 16 April 2021, our staff volunteers packed “bags of love”
which included greeting cards made by students and daily
necessities for the elderly. These bags of love would be distributed
to elderly homes in the upcoming “Dream Tour” volunteer
activities.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (V)L EZEH %)

Education (continued)

Financial Assistance for Education

HEMBEL

BE#)

This Year, the Group, through Chun Wo Charitable Fund made financial
support in education. Scholarships were awarded to students from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, the Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education
(IVE) and the Hong Kong Institute of Construction.
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“Me and Hong Kong After 10 Years” Presentation and
Prize-giving Ceremony

[THERNENER | BHreBREAR

On 11 July 2020, Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, JP, the Chief % 2020%F7 118 @ &NQ Al{T &R
Executive Officer of the Company attended the “Me and Hong Kong — B+ T2 A L4+ HEHRE SR
After 10 Years” presentation and prize-giving ceremony held by #E&EFTHRAERE((FHEEEAHRE])
Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives Association SB# ) [+EBNBANES| BN &R
("HKPASEA"). The scheme is part of the “HKPASEA Youngsters #8£8i# o W4 2|2 [HBHEW S FTEE
Dream Chasing” project, which allows youngsters to equip 2|2l —2H @ EFFEEHEES @ 5]

themselves and set up
future goals and
demonstrate their
leadership skills. During
the ceremony, Ir Dr. Pang
and other guests shared
with the prize-winning
students their professional
advice and encouraged
young people to pursuit
their dreams.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (V) HEZH )
Education (continued) HBEE)

Life Planning Talk for Secondary School Students

[EEER|FBELEREBEE

On 19 April 2021, Sr Lee Ka Lun, Stephen, Chairman of
Chun Wo Construction, was invited by HKPASEA as a guest
speaker for the “Life Planning Talk for Secondary School
Students” at Po Leung Kuk Ma Kam Ming Secondary
School, to share on the construction areas about projects,
surveying and planning, etc.

Besides, Sr Stephen Lee also shared the job entry
requirements and future prospect of the industry,
encouraging students to find the right direction to develop
their career.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)

Innovation

(IVEtEZHE »)
=i
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Innovation is critical for the future development of our world. The
Group is devoted in fostering the enhancement of technology and
has established our own innovation brand “Inno@ChunWo" in 2016.
Besides showcasing the remarkable results of our research, we also
encourage students to take part in the journey of shaping a smarter

future.

“Chun Wo Innovation Students Awards 2020”
[ 14 70 28 4 £ 37 52 2020 |

d

The “Chun Wo Innovation Students Awards” is a biannual
award established by Chun Wo in 2018, which aims to
empower the next generation of innovators and stimulate the
young minds to develop innovative engineering solutions that
can help cities become more connected and sustainable.

[MEFBLRIFRE| REMNB 2018 FRLEGMFTE XD
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This Year, “Chun Wo Innovation Students Awards 2020” was
extended to the Greater Bay Area, it allows full-time students
of tertiary institutions in Hong Kong and the Greater Bay Area
to participate in this Awards under the theme of “Engineer
for a Smarter Future”, which encourages the students to
build a smart city through engineering approach.

The awards received an overwhelmingly favorable response
this Year as it drew applications from over 70 student teams
and more than 30 detailed proposal submissions. The winning
team would be awarded up to HK$100,000 and the
opportunity to participate in exchanges with innovative
enterprises in the Greater Bay Area. In addition to the cash
prize, Chun Wo would also offer a “2+1 Post-Award
Programme” to the Gold Award winning team, providing
resources and technical support for young people to realise
their dreams.

h Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (V) HEZHE %)
Innovation (continued) BlF (&)

Establishment of Chun Wo InnoBase

R ENAIRE

In March 2021, Chun Wo set up an exhibition venue “Chun Wo
C h un WO InnoBase” in Yuen Long to showcase the remarkable results of our

| innovation brand “Inno@ChunWo".
InnoBase |

g | At Chun Wo InnoBase, prefabricated life-sized MiC structures and
fi EJEEM other innovation products are displayed. Not only do we aim at
—= improving construction technologies, but also reinforcing the

connection between industry professionals and future talents.

2021463 A - (EMAETTRARIZI A AIREN |RRP O - REAEEEIRGE Inno@ChunWo | ERKR -

EMEREMHNRREREETEYANMERNBRER S NEEEEB REMAIER - FIH B R ERES
RERM > EREMBITREFTERRASHEES -

@ Site visit of The Hong Kong Construction
Association Young Members Society

On 27 March 2021, student members of The
Hong Kong Construction Association Young
Members Society made a site visit to Chun Wo
InnoBase.

Guided by our professional technical team,
students walked through our life-sized MiC
structures and were introduced to the details
of Chun Wo's latest construction technologies.
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)
Environmental Concerns

As a corporate, the Group recognises its duty to protect the
environment. In addition to implementing safety and environmental
measures in construction sites, we encourage our staff to participate
in different environmental activities to go green for our planet.

“Tetrapak Clean Recycling Pilot Scheme”

[EEREEEFE W EETE ]

(IVHEZHE #)
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MET - RRIHEMET S MIREET

S BMESBME T2 EZIARRKE

In August 2020, Chun Wo joined the “Tetrapak Clean Recycling Pilot Scheme”
initiated by Greeners Action. Tetrapak recycling box was placed in our

202058 A -

office’s catering area, where staff were taught with the correct

way of recycling and were encouraged to recycle the used

tetrapaks. The goal of the scheme is to raise staff’s
environmental awareness and to reduce waste.
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“Lai See Reuse and Recycle Programme”

[FIRHERERKRTE]
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N

EIIE?E% end, a total number of 27kg red packets was collected.
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As a long-term collaboration partner of the Greeners Action, Chun Wo
has already joined the “Lai See Reuse and Recycle Programme” for
7 consecutive years and this Year is no exception. In February 2021,
we placed recycle boxes in each of our offices to encourage our
staff to recycle used red packets during the Lunar New Year. At the
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (IVHEZHE )
Health 2423
Health is always the top priority for all of us, especially under the BE—BHLERLTHZEE0 & L
threat of the Covid-19 pandemic. We endeavour our best to ensure a HEREHTIAZIEEAR o F 958 g
safe and healthy workplace for our staff, and at the same time, we RETIBRZERIERNITIER - R
are dedicated to helping the construction industry and people in RSO EREERETE
need under this difficult time. AT e

‘ g_r “Construction Industry Caring Campaign”

[REXAETE

On 4 June 2020, a group of our staff from different departments
gathered and packed the “Elderly Care Packets” to support the
"Construction Industry Caring Campaign” organised by the
Construction Industry Council (“CIC"). Each “Care Packet”
contained 10 surgical masks, tea bags, anti-pandemic brochure
and a blessing card.

The “Care Packets” was then distributed to registered workers
aged 60 or above by the CIC. We aimed to bring construction
workers warmth and immediate help under the pandemic hard
times, and to enhance their awareness towards personal health.

R202066 A4 - RERREXRZS((BEXZRS DBMRNZ
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued) (IVEtEZHE »)
Health (continued) RBE %)

“Chun Wo Blood Donation Day 2020”

[&F480m H 2020 |

Due to the pandemic, the blood bank of Hong Kong has
been facing a state of emergency. On 21 October 2020,
Chun Wo, in collaboration with Hong Kong Red Cross,
organised the “Chun Wo Blood Donation Day” to encourage
blood donation among staff and to promote the idea of
“one blood donation saves three lives” to save patients in need.

N
ﬂ' LY
EREEER BENEFSER - R20205F
10H218 - ENEAFBA+FEA M [EFNIEM
Bl BEIRMN Y55 [SRBmA K=
ERA ] REIREIER -

‘ “CIC Happy Run”
P rmemsmom)

Chun Wo sponsored and participated in the “Construction Industry
Virtual Happy Run 2021 hosted by CIC this Year. Since 2018, our staff
have participated in “CIC’s Happy Run” for 4 consecutive years. The goal
of this event is to promote health awareness among the construction
industry. Due to the pandemic, the race was held in an “online” platform
from 11 February to 12 March 2021. To complete the race, participants
had to pass at least one designated “check-in point” to take selfies and
upload it together with their digital running record. A total number of 18
of our staff joined and completed the race.

RAFE  ENEHRSREREXR S TN [REXR LFALNR o~
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)
CSR Awards and Recognition

“Caring Company”

 HARPPY W& ®
comPANY
Syears*

Fartner Employer Award B8 kW

“Happy Company Logo”

“Partner Employer Award”

Chun Wo is proud to be awarded the “15
Years Plus Caring Company” logo from The
Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the
Year 2020/2021. Being a recipient of the
Caring Company Logo for 16 consecutive
years, it confirms our Group's effort in
upholding our social responsibilities. The
Group's subsidiaries City Security Company
Limited and City Professional Management
Limited also hold the “Caring Company 10+"
logo for its dedication in building a caring
community.

Chun Wo has been awarded the “Happy
Company” logo from the Happiness at
Work Promotional Scheme for 8 consecutive
years, confirming the Company’s efforts in
maintaining a positive environment and
motivating team spirit in the workplace.

Chun Wo has been honoured with the
“Partner Employer Award” from The
Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and
Medium Business for 6 consecutive years,
recognising the Company'’s efforts in hiring
graduates from local technical institutes
and universities and offering training
opportunities and practical experience that
facilitate their long-term career planning.

(IVHEZHE #)
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(IV) COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT (continued)

CSR Awards and Recognition (continued)

“Good Employer Charter” and “Family-friendly Good Employer”

Chun Wo has been recognised by the “Good
Employer Charter” and “Family-friendly Good
Employer” from the Labour Department for 3
consecutive years, and our members of City
Services Group Limited have also been
awarded the same recognition, confirming
the Group’s endeavors in implementing
employee-caring policies and maintaining a
positive and family-friendly workplace.

“Equal Opportunity Employer” [FEHESEE

Chun Wo has been conferred the Gold
Award of the “Equal Opportunity Employer”
of the Employer Recognition Scheme

FEMRE presented by the Equal Opportunities
o g Commission. It recognises the Company’s

A e [
ARREEE fory e |y
- .

achievement in implementing policies and
practices according to the values of equality,
diversity and inclusion.

“Breastfeeding Friendly Workplace”

The Group was recognised as “Breastfeeding
unicef & Friendly Workplace” from the Unicef this

| R — Year. In order to give the best working

9 FEEREN

environment and more support for working
mothers, the Group extended maternity
Asia Alfied bnfraetructure leave to 14 weeks and paternity leave to 7

Haldings Limitsd

CABZINREANLE days, and introduced nursing rooms in our

P i e 2 g B NS

Bresatfeeding Frinty Workplace offices and on several construction sites to
= R give privacy to nursing mothers.

BN .1

The Future

Our Group for its part acknowledges the significance of CSR. Moving
forward, we continue strive for better performance in this area.
Following the expansion of our Group’s business in Hong Kong and
Asia, we endeavor to introduce CSR initiatives in these business units
and the communities in which they operate as well.

a Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21

(IVHEZHE #)
TtEMESFRERESTE)

(FEENEIRIRIX]FEE

BNEEIFRETREE[FREE
WE] R IRITER] i EE - AR
MR EE 2K BT ESREER
i UEEAKEREERERBEK
RREFEBREREREN TERER
FEFTIERNE A

EMREFSHELEER TR
MRTEI T FEREREE] 28 X%
ARREREBEYE  ZLREENE
BB EMGBR &R 7 PTG AR
Lo

[ 3L ERIM & & TAER |

AEBRAFEREBABRRERES S
M [ AR R = T IER | R -
BATBEFRIRESEENTIERE
kEZLE  AEEEREBRERE
148 MEERAIERETR  TiE
PWRE KA T AR IR - RE
IR AL o

R IR 3 ]

AEEFALEHEEENEEN - K
K BPSENREMTERR - BEE
AEBBRREBRDMNES - BABS
NEEL R BN LG S R T
ERUESGEEREE -




BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGEEEEARER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic BA, MBA, /D

Chairman

Mr. Pang, aged 48, graduated from Columbia University, New York in
1995 with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics, Political Science and
Mathematics, and obtained a Juris Doctorate from the New York University
School of Law in 1998 and an Executive Master of Business Administration
degree from Kellogg-HKUST in 2010. Mr. Pang currently is a member of
council of the Vocational Training Council and has served as a standing
committee member of Hebei Province of The Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference since January 2018, has been appointed as a vice
president of Belt & Road General Chamber of Commerce in April 2018,
and has served as the chairman of Executive Board of the Hong Kong Real
Property Federation since September 2019.

Mr. Pang joined the Group in 2003 and was appointed as the assistant to
the late Chairman, Dr. Pang Kam Chun. Mr. Pang was appointed as the
Chairman of the Company and the Executive Director in April 2010 and re-
designated as the Co-Chairman of the Company and the Non-executive
Director in January 2015. He has been further re-designated as the
Chairman of the Company and the Executive Director since March 2017.
Mr. Pang is also the Chairman of the Nomination Committee and Executive
Committee and a member of the Management Committee. He is also
currently the Chairman of the property development executive board of
the Group, responsible for the management of the overall property
development and assets leasing business of the Group. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Pang is the
brother of Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, the Executive Director and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, and the son of Madam Li Wai
Hang, Christina (“Madam Li"), the Executive Director. Mr. Pang is a director
of GT Winners Limited (“GT Winners”), the controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules). Mr. Pang and Madam Li each
owns 45% equity interest in GT Winners.

Mr. Xu Jianhua, Jerry (LB, MBA, LLM

Deputy Chairman

Mr. Xu, aged 52, holds a Bachelor’s degree in Law of the China University
of Political Science and Law, a Master's degree in Business Administration
of Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics and a Master of Laws
degree in International Economic Law of City University of Hong Kong. He
was qualified as a lawyer in the PRC in 1994 and a senior economist in the
PRC in 2003. Mr. Xu has over 22 years of corporate management
experience and extensive experience in transactions of mergers and
acquisitions and investment and financing. He was a director of a company
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and two companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Xu was appointed as the Co-
Chairman of the Company and the Executive Director in January 2015. He
has been re-designated as the Deputy Chairman of the Company in March
2017 and is currently a member of the Management Committee and
Executive Committee. Mr. Xu also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries
of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick Jr

BSc, MEng, MBA, PhD, PE(US), MICE, MHKIE

Chief Executive Officer

Ir Dr. Pang, aged 46, graduated from the University of California, Berkeley
in the United States in 1997 with a Bachelor of Science degree and
obtained a Master of Engineering degree in Civil and Environmental
Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of Technology in the United
States in 1998 and a Master’s degree in Business Administration from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2007. He also obtained a Doctor of
Philosophy in Civil Engineering from the Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in 2014. Ir Dr. Pang is a member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
and a Registered Professional Engineer in the State of California, United
States. He has over 21 years of geotechnical design and construction
experience in the United States and Hong Kong. He has been appointed as
a non-official member of the Land and Development Advisory Committee
since July 2015 and has served as a member of the Construction Industry
Council since February 2017. Ir Dr. Pang was appointed Justice of the
Peace by the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in June 2017. He was also a non-official member of the Task Force on Land
Supply from September 2017 to February 2019.

Ir Dr. Pang joined the Group in 2001 and holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He has been appointed as the Executive
Director since April 2010 and acted as the Deputy Chairman of the
Company from April 2010 to March 2017. Ir Dr. Pang has been appointed
as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since April 2017 and acted
as the Chief Operating Officer of the Company from April 2017 to January
2019. He is also the Chairman of the Management Committee and a
member of the Executive Committee. He is also currently the chairman of
the City Services Group executive board of the Group and the member of
the property development executive board of the Group, responsible for
the management of the overall professional services and property
development and assets leasing business of the Group. Ir Dr. Pang is the
brother of Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic, the Chairman of the Company and
the Executive Director, and also the son of Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina,
the Executive Director, both of whom are controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules).
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant (alias Martin, former
name: Shea Chi Lap, Quadrant) BBus., MEcon., LLM, FCPA(Aust.),
CPA, CTA, ACMA, ISCA, ATIHK, CGMA

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

Mr. Shea, aged 54, graduated from Monash University of Australia with a
Bachelor’'s degree in Business and later completed a postgraduate
programme of Public Finance (Taxation) and obtained a Master’s degree in
Economics from Jinan University, China and a Master of Laws degree from
Renmin University of China. He is a fellow member of CPA Australia, a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants of the United Kingdom and Institute of Singapore Chartered
Accountants and a Chartered Global Management Accountant. He is also
a Chartered Tax Adviser of Hong Kong and obtained a Certificate of Pass in
Practice Training Examination for Hong Kong Certified Tax Advisers Serving
in Shenzhen-Hong Kong Modern Service Industry Cooperation Zone,
Qianhai, Shenzhen jointly issued by Shenzhen Municipal Office of the State
Administration of Taxation and Shenzhen Local Taxation Bureau.

Mr. Shea has substantial experience in accounting and finance in listed
companies and worked as qualified accountant and company secretary in
various companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange over the
years. He was the group financial controller of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited
(@ company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
01184) from 1999 to 2005. He has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited (a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00371) since 2002 and
is also the chairman of the audit committee of the company. He has also been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hi-Level Technology
Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 08113) since 2015 and is the chairman of the audit committee,
nomination committee and remuneration committee of the company.
Mr. Shea joined the Group as Financial Controller of property development
segment in 2008 and has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the
Company and the Company Secretary since 2015. He has been appointed as
Executive Director since July 2017 and is also currently a member of the
Management Committee and Executive Committee. He is also currently the
member of the property development executive board of the Group,
responsible for the management of the overall property development business
and assets leasing of the Group. Mr. Shea also holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEARESR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina

Madam Li, aged 70, joined the Group in 1975 and has over 46 years’
experience in the construction industry. Madam Li previously acted as an
Executive Director from July 1992 to February 2015 and had continued to
be a member of the senior management of the Group thereafter. She has
rejoined the Board as an Executive Director since November 2017. She also
holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Madam Li is the
mother of Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic, the Chairman of the Company and
Executive Director, and Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, Executive Director
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. She is a director of GT
Winners Limited (“GT Winners”), the controlling shareholder of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules). Madam Li and Mr. Pang Yat
Ting, Dominic each owns 45% equity interest in GT Winners.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee

Ms. Wong, aged 35, graduated from Occidental College, Los Angeles in
the United States in 2006 with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics and
has over 14 years' experience in marketing and business management. She
is currently the co-founder and director of Wow Concepts Limited and
founder of Topfit Limited. Ms. Wong is a member of Omicron Delta
Epsilon, the International Honor Society in Economics. Ms. Wong has been
appointed as Non-executive Director since May 2020 and is also a member
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.

Ir Dr. Wong Nai Keung, Philco

Ir Dr. Wong, aged 66, holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil
Engineering from the University of Manitoba, Canada, a Master of
Engineering degree in Construction Management and Engineering from
the University of Toronto, Canada, and a Doctor of Business Administration
degree from Curtin University, Australia. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers (“HKIE”) and the Institution of Civil
Engineers in the United Kingdom. Ir Dr. Wong has over 41 years of
experience in business management, implementation and delivery of large-
scale infrastructure projects in Hong Kong, Macau, the Mainland of China
and overseas. He is the part time consultant of Tsuchiya Hong Kong
Corporation Limited and China Railway Construction (HK) Limited on new
business strategy. He joined MTR Corporation Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00066) (“MTR") as
general manager in projects division in November 2011 and was appointed
as an executive director and projects director during the period from
October 2014 to August 2018, responsible for the delivery of new railway
projects in Hong Kong and overseas. Prior to joining MTR, Ir Dr. Wong
started his career in 1978 as an assistant engineer of Gammon Hong Kong
Limited (now known as Gammon Construction Limited) and was further
appointed as the chief operating officer. Ir Dr. Wong currently is the
chairman of the Benevolent Fund Committee of The Lighthouse Club Hong
Kong Branch and he was the past president of HKIE. Ir Dr. Wong has been
appointed as Non-executive Director from September 2020 to July 2021 and
was also the compliance adviser for the construction projects in Hong Kong
under construction segment of the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung

Mr. Wu, aged 54, holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree and
a Master of Business Administration degree of Simon Fraser University in
Canada. He was qualified as a chartered financial analyst of The Institute of
Chartered Financial Analysts in 1996. Mr. Wu was the chief executive
officer of SW Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited (now known as Sunwah
Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited) (a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00188) from April 2006 to September
2010. He was also a director and chief executive officer of RHB Hong Kong
Limited from April 2011 to October 2017. Mr. Wu was also the executive
director and chief executive officer of Power Financial Group Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
00397) from November 2017 to January 2019. Mr. Wu has been appointed
as the non-executive, independent member of the board of Document
Security Systems, Inc. (a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
stock code: DSS) since October 2019, the independent director of Alset
EHome International Inc. (formerly known as HF Enterprises Inc., former
stock code: HFEN) (a company listed on NASDAQ, stock code: AEl) since
November 2020 and the independent non-executive director of JY
Grandmark Holdings Limited (“JY Grandmark”) (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 02231) since November
2019. Mr. Wu has also been appointed as managing director, Investment
Banking of Glory Sun Securities Limited since January 2019.

Mr. Wu previously worked for a number of international investment banks
and possesses over 28 years of experience in the investment banking,
capital markets, institutional broking and direct investment businesses. He
is a registered license holder to carry out Type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
He has been appointed as a member of the Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous
Region Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference since January 2013.

Mr. Wu has been appointed as Independent Non-executive Director since
February 2015 and is also the Chairman of Audit Committee and a
member of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
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EENEEEEARESR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Mr. Lam, aged 52, is the General Manager of Wanda Hotel Development
Company Limited (stock code: 00169), which is listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange and a member of the Dalian Wanda Group. He has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of OOH Holdings
Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
08091) since August 2019 and the independent non-executive director of
CCIAM Future Energy Limited (formerly known as The Hong Kong Building
and Loan Agency Limited) since October 2020 (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00145). He was an
executive director of Yuexiu Property Company Limited (stock code:
00123), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, and
also the chief financial officer of the Yue Xiu Group. Mr. Lam was
previously the head of Corporate Finance and Business Development at
GOME Electrical Appliances Holding Limited (now known as GOME Retail
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 00493) ("GOME"), one of China’s largest
electronics retailers, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Prior to joining GOME, he spent about 10 years working in
investment banking and capital markets at Schroders Asia, ABN AMRO
Rothschild, and Deutsche Bank. Mr. Lam is a Chartered Financial Analyst
(CFA) and holds a Master of Business Administration (MBA) degree from
Rice University in the United States. He has extensive experience in
corporate finance, financial and accounting fields.

Mr. Lam has been appointed as Independent Non-executive Director since
January 2017 and is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAERESR

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Mr. Ho, aged 44, has been appointed as an executive director and a
member of the executive committee of NWS Holdings Limited (“NWS”) in
July 2018 (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
stock code: 00659). He joined NWS in January 2018 and is responsible for
overseeing the business development and mergers and acquisitions affairs,
and certain businesses of NWS. He was also the senior investment director
of New World Development Company Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00017), an executive
director of New World Strategic Investment Limited and was a partner of
an international law firm Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver and Jacobson LLP.

Mr. Ho is a non-executive director of Shoucheng Holdings Limited (stock
code: 00697) since May 2018 and Wai Kee Holdings Limited (“Wai Kee")
(stock code: 00610) since December 2018 and an independent non-
executive director of Kam Hing International Holdings Limited (stock code:
02307) since May 2010. He was an independent non-executive director of
Hailiang International Holdings Limited (stock code: 02336) during May
2014 to August 2020 (all of the above-mentioned companies are listed on
the Stock Exchange). Mr. Ho was also a director and/or senior executive in
several Hong Kong listed public companies.

Mr. Ho is a member of the Industry Advisory Committee of Insurance
Authority, the Deputy Chairperson of CPA Australia Greater Bay Area
Committee, a member of the China Committee of Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce, a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenyang, a standing committee
member of the Youth Federation of Inner Mongolia and a vice chairman of
Inner Mongolia & Hong Kong Youth Exchange Association. Mr. Ho holds a
Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor of Laws degree from The
University of Sydney, Australia and was admitted as a solicitor in New
South Wales, Australia and England and Wales and as a solicitor and
barrister in the High Court of Australia. He is also a fellow member of CPA
Australia. Mr. Ho has extensive experience in the area of corporate
management, investments, corporate finance, merger and acquisition
transactions and international brand and retail management.

Mr. Ho has been appointed as Independent Non-executive Director in
January 2017 and is also a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSEEEAEEH

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley 855 Jp

Dr. Yim, aged 62, is the founder, executive director, chairman and
managing director of S.A.S. Dragon Holdings Limited (a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 01184) since May
1993. He has been appointed as a chairman and executive director of
Hi-Level Technology Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 08113) in October 2015. Dr. Yim has been an
independent director of Innolux Corporation (a company listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange, stock code: 3481.TW) since July 2013.

Dr. Yim is currently the president of the Hong Kong Justice of the Peace
Association, the honorary vice chairman of the Hong Kong Electronic
Industries Association, a member of Yan Chai Hospital Advisory Board, a
member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
Shanghai Committee, the vice chairman of the Hongkong-Shanghai
Economic Development Association, the chairman of the Tsuen Wan
District Civic Education Committee and the vice chairman of Tsuen Wan
District JPC Honorary President Council.

Dr. Yim has been appointed as Independent Non-executive Director in May
2020 and is also a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAERESR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Group

Mr. Yiu Chi Sang, Andy Dip(Eng), LLB(Hons), MA(ArbDR), MSc(C.Mgt),
MRICS, MICE, MHKIE, MASCE, FCIArb, FHKIArb, CEng

Mr. Yiu, aged 65, graduated from Hong Kong Baptist University in 1981
with a Diploma in Civil Engineering. He was awarded a Master of Arts
degree in Dispute Resolution and Arbitration in 1995 and a Master of
Science degree in Construction Management in 1998 from City University
of Hong Kong. He further obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree in 2004
from the University of Wolverhampton, the United Kingdom. He is a
member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, the Institution of
Civil Engineers, the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Institution of
Engineers and the American Society of Civil Engineers as well as a fellow
member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, the United Kingdom and
the Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators. Mr. Yiu has over 40 years’
experience in the construction industry, including civil, building, foundation
and marine engineering projects in Hong Kong, Macau, Vietnam and the
Mainland China. He re-joined the Group in 2008 and was the Chief
Operating Officer of the construction segment of the Group. He is currently
the Executive Vice President of the Group, responsible for assisting the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company to manage the overall business of
the Group.

Mr. Tam Chi Kwong, Steve VSc(Pv)

Mr. Tam, aged 57, obtained a higher diploma in structural engineering and
an associateship in civil and structural engineering from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in 1986
and 1988 respectively. He further obtained a postgraduate diploma in civil
engineering and a master of science degree in project management from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1996 and 2009 respectively. Prior
to joining the Group in 2002, he had served a construction company,
responsible for the construction projects in Hong Kong. He has more than
14 years of experience in corporate management. Mr. Tam is currently the
director of the Group overseeing the overall performance of the internal
operations of the Group. He is also the Chief Executive Officer of City
Services Group Limited, responsible for overseeing the management of the
professional services business of the Group. Mr. Tam holds directorships in
certain subsidiaries of the Company and is also a member of other business
executive board of the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEARESR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Construction Segment

Sr Lee Ka Lun, Stephen BA(AS), B. Bldg, Dip Proj Man (RICS), FRICS,
FHKIS, ACIArb, RPS(QS)

Sr Lee, aged 64, graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Arts (Architectural Studies) degree in 1980 and a Bachelor of
Building degree in 1982. He is a Registered Professional Surveyor (QS) with
fellow membership of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and The
Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and membership of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators. He is on the List of Arbitrators of Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre and is a member of the Joint Panel of
Arbitrators of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and The Hong Kong
Institute of Architects. Sr Lee has 40 years’ experience in quantity surveying
and commercial management in Hong Kong, the Mainland China, Taiwan,
Macau, Singapore, Malaysia and the Philippines. He worked with the
Group from 1998 to 2005 and re-joined the Group in 2011.
Sr Lee was the Chief Executive Officer of the construction segment of the
Group from 2017 and is currently the Chairman of the construction
segment of the Group.

Mr. Boyd Henry Merrett 5 £ng, FIEAust

Mr. Merrett, aged 50, graduated from The University of Queensland,
Australia in 1991 with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Civil
Engineering. He is a fellow of the Institution of Engineers Australia. Prior to
joining the Group in 2020, he was the managing director of Merrett
Consulting, chief executive officer of Arabtec Construction LLC and was
the general manager for Leighton Contractors (Asia) Limited, responsible
for the business activities and construction projects in Hong Kong.
Mr. Merrett has 29 years of experience in global construction spanning
Asia, the Middle East, Europe and Africa. He is currently the Acting Chief
Executive Officer of the construction segment of the Group, responsible for
the management and steering of the overall construction business of the
Group.

h Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21

SEEBAE®

BESE

Z5R2%RI £ BT BAAS), B Bldg, Dip Proj Mean (RICS)
FRICS, FHKIS, ACIArb, RPS(QS)

2R EHD - 645% 0 1980 FRENEB AL

BB+ (RES) B - RN 1982 FHUF
BEEELRN - FARBTMELIEM
(IHAE) TAREEXRFFISMES
LEBINEMEBSEFTE @ WREREF

hEAEEE - BWEFABTBEEMEF
DHHREERM XAEBIEMEERE
BRAMBEHATREZEEKE - THE
BRES  REAM - 4% BPI - H
W BRmGRIEREREA0FEE IR
ELEHER 2L o 1%L 1998 F 2005
FRSZENAER IR201NEERAE
o FHEMB 2017 FRGETAEBELE
BoITHREE BRANEERELZEF -

BB IR B Eng, FIEAUS

BS54 5058 0 1991 FEEMNBMETBA
B, ERLRIRETRRELEN - FAR
NIRRT EERE 8 - R 2020 F AR
L BRI L (TR Merrett Consulting 2 EE42
428 « Arabtec Construction LLC 2 17 Bt 48 £
MEEEE (RN BRARZARKIE a8
EBEREEBNEREEE - HEAERT
M~ R BUMRIEMNER 29 F R EE Y
KEp - R ARNEERENR 2 BEITHER
o BEEBATENEEEBRELEY -




Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENEEEEAERESR

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Construction Segment (continued)

Mr. Ko Wing Nin, Ken B5sc(Eng), MSc(Eng), CEng, MICE, FHKIE,
RPE(Civil), FCHKRI

Mr. Ko, aged 57, graduated from Chu Hai College in 1986 with a Bachelor
of Science and Engineering degree in Civil Engineering. He also obtained a
Master’s degree in Civil and Structural Engineering from the University of
Sheffield, the United Kingdom in 1994 and a Master’'s degree in
Construction Law from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2011. He
is @ member of the Institution of Civil Engineers, the United Kingdom, a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a Registered
Professional Engineer in civil discipline in Hong Kong and a Fellow of the
China Hong Kong Railway Institution. He has 35 years’ experience in the
construction industry including civil, building, foundation and marine
engineering projects in Hong Kong, Macau and the United Arab Emirates.
Mr. Ko joined the Group in 2006 and is currently the Chief Operating
Officer of the construction segment of the Group, responsible for
overseeing of the overall operations of the construction business of the
Group.

Mr. Leung Wing Chuen, William B.C. £, ANEC3&4ECCPM,
MiStructE, FCHKRI

Mr. Leung, aged 57, graduated from University of Glasgow with a Bachelor
of Civil Engineering degree in 1987. He further obtained a NEC3 and NEC4
Engineering and Construction Contract Project Manager Accreditation in
2018. He is a member of the Institution of Structural Engineers and a
fellow member of the China Hong Kong Railway Institution. He has 34
years' experience in construction industry, including infrastructure and
project management in Hong Kong and overseas. Mr. Leung joined the
Group in 2012 and is currently the Deputy Chief Operating Officer of the
construction segment of the Group, responsible for overseeing of several
divisions in the construction business of the Group.

SEEEAR®

BE I E)

=Xk F % QEBSC(EHQ), MSc(Eng), CEng,
MICE, FHKIE, RPE(Civil), FCHKRI

B 575 1986 FRENINEEL - &
FRERTIZIBEA S o FIN 1994 FJER
University of Sheffield 58 % + 7K & 45 T2
ELEM  WR2011FEREEBETIRER
HEELTEN - FARBIATIEMESS
B BAEAIRMEBEgEREE  BEZME
ETRE(EARARN RHREEHEEEE
FEE  BREBEEEREISFLR E4a
EEE RPN EBEERBE ZEART
B ZETRE - WwATITRREETIREE -
BITER 2006 FIIAREE - HAREEZE
HEH s EBEY  AREEEASEREER
BB o

B K B & HBCE, ANEC3&4ECCPM,
MIStructE, FCHKRI

RU A 57k 1987 FEERBNHT AT K
B ERYE+(EARTRE)BAM - HEER
2018 FIEMBEFT L2449 (NEC3 & NEC4) I8
BEIERA] - HALBIEMEee 8 F
HEEHEETEFSE - FHREEXEES
34F 2185 0 BIEREA RGNS 2 B
ERNIBEEIE - REER2012F IMARE
CIHAAREBREEA CBIEERY  BF
EERNEEEAER  AETHE -

TMEE A B ER AT 202021 3] ﬂ




Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSEEEAEEH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Construction Segment (continued)

Mr. Luk Wai Lam, William 8. Eng, EMBA, MICE, CEng, MHKIE,
RPE, ANEC3&4ECCPM

Mr. Luk, aged 43, graduated from the University College London in 2000
with a Bachelor of Engineering degree in Civil Engineering. He was also
awarded an Executive Master of Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong in 2016 and a NEC3 and NEC4 Engineering and
Construction Contract Project Manager Accreditation in 2019. He is a
member of the Institution of Civil Engineers in the United Kingdom and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Registered Professional Engineer
in civil discipline in Hong Kong. Mr. Luk has 21 years’ experience in
construction industry, including infrastructure and project management in
Hong Kong, Macau and the Mainland China. Mr. Luk joined the Group in
2010 and is currently the Operations Director — Civil of the construction
segment of the Group and is in charge of the Civil and Overseas Divisions.

Mr. Chan Anthony Yin Chung

Mr. Chan, aged 35, graduated from University of British Columbia in
Canada in 2008. He is a council member of Hong Kong Construction
Association (“HKCA"), a honorary treasurer of HKCA Civil Engineering
Committee, a vice chairman of HKCA Environmental Committee and a
honorary chairman of HKCA Young Members Society. He is also a board
member of the Construction Industry Council — Zero Carbon Park, a
committee member of Lifewire Foundation Limited, a member of Hong
Kong Institute of Construction STEM Alliance and a member of the
Construction Industry Council Committee on Construction Safety. Mr.
Chan became a business partner of the Group in 2019. He has substantial
experience in construction industry and currently is the director of Kwan
Lee Holding Limited and is responsible for the management of its overall
business.

Mr. Lee Ka Yiu, Eric B £Eng., MBA, CEng.

Mr. Lee, aged 53, graduated from the University of Sunderland in 1992
with a Bachelor of Engineering in Electrical and Electronic Engineering. He
has also awarded a Master of Business Administration in Total Quality
Management from Newport University in 1998. Mr. Lee is a Chartered
Engineer of The Institution of Electrical Engineers (currently known as The
Institution of Engineering and Technology) in the United Kingdom, a
Certified Carbon Auditor and an Accredited Mediator. Mr. Lee had served
several engineering companies in managerial position and has more than
30 years’ experience in control and energy engineering. Mr. Lee became a
business partner of the Group in 2020 and is currently the director of
Century Elite Technology Group, responsible for the management of its
overall business.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSEEEAEEH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Construction Segment (continued)

Dato’ Lim Yuk Meng, Weslie BAF, FCCA, CAM)

Dato’ Lim, aged 47, graduated from the University of Strathclyde in the
United Kingdom with a Bachelor’s degree of Accounting and Finance in
1995. He is a fellow member of Associated Chartered Certified Accountant
and a member of Malaysia Institute of Accountant. Dato’ Lim has 26 years’
experience in accounting and finance, business development and
management, and interior design and fit-out business in Malaysia, Hong
Kong, the Mainland China and Cambodia. He became a business partner
of the Group in 2019 and is the founder and managing director of ECO
Group Holdings Sdn. Bhd., responsible for the management of its overall
business.

Mr. Ng Swee How, Vincent 8. Sc.Eng.(Hons)., M.Sc.Eng., P.Eng.,
CEng., ACPE., MIES., AlStruct.E., M.Con.E.S

Mr. Ng, aged 66, graduated from the Aberdeen University in the United
Kingdom with a Bachelor’s degree of Engineering in 1980. He has also
awarded a Master of Civil Engineering degree from the National University
of Singapore in 1985. Mr. Ng is a Registered Professional Engineer in
Singapore, a Registered Asean Chartered Professional Engineer and a
member of the Institution of Engineers, Singapore. He has 41 years’
experience in structural design, civil engineering and project management
in Singapore, Malaysia, Indonesia, Sri Lanka and Vietnam. Mr. Ng became
a business partner of the Group in 2016 and is currently the managing
director of R.J. Crocker Consultants Pte. Ltd., responsible for the
management of its overall business.
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EERSEEEAEEH

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Property Development and Assets Leasing Segment

Mr. Ho Chun Wai B.Arch, MSc(RED)

Mr. Ho, aged 46, graduated from The University of Southern California in
1999 with a degree in Bachelor of Architecture. He has awarded a Master
of Science degree in Real Estate Development from Columbia University,
New York in 2007. He has more than 18 years’ working experience in
architecture design, project management and property development
aspects for many projects of various size and complexity in Hong Kong and
the United States. Prior to joining the Group in 2018, he had served a
public listed property development company in Hong Kong, responsible for
the property development and management of projects in Hong Kong.
Mr. Ho is currently the General Manager of the property development
segment of the Group, responsible for the management of the overall
property development and investment business of the Group.

Non-franchised Bus Services Segment

Mr. Wong Kwan Kit, Calvin BBA(Mktg)

Mr. Wong, aged 36, graduated from Oxford Brookes University in the
United Kingdom in 2009 with a degree in Bachelor of Business
Administration in Marketing. He has 11 years’ experience in local logistics
industry and business management. Mr. Wong became a business partner
of the Group in 2018 and is currently the Chief Executive Officer of the
non-franchised bus services segment of the Group, responsible for the
management of the overall business of non-franchised bus services of the
Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Education Segment

Mrs. Lee Pang Yat Sum, Rita 84, /D

Ms. Pang, aged 47, graduated from Harvard University, the United States in
1996 with a Bachelor of Arts degree. She has also awarded a degree of Juris
Doctor from Duke University, North Carolina in the United States in 1999.
Ms. Pang is a member admitted to the State of Bar of New York and
Massachusetts in the United States and a certified public accountant of
Delaware in the United States. Prior to joining the Group in 2019, Ms. Pang
had practiced law at Citibank (Hong Kong) and US law firms and has over 20
years' experience in legal and compliance fields in the United States and Hong
Kong. Ms. Pang is the founder and director of See Change Education Limited,
responsible for the management of education business of the Group.

Ms. Pang is the younger sister of Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic, the
Chairman of the Company and the Executive Director, the elder sister of Ir
Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and the Executive Director, and also the daughter of Madam Li Wai Hang,
Christina, the Executive Director, both of Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic and
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina are controlling shareholders of the
Company (as defined in the Listing Rules).

Construction Finance and Construction Material
E-procurement Segment

Mr. Lam Wai Hung, Roy EMBA, Msc, B. Eng(Hon)

Mr. Lam, aged 36, graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
in 2006 with a Bachelor of Engineering in Building Services Engineering. He
has also awarded a Master of Science in Real Estate from The University of
Hong Kong in 2010 and an Executive Master of Business Administration
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 2018. He has 15 years’
experience in business development and property development. Mr. Lam
worked with the Group from 2006 to 2015, responsible for assisting in
management of projects under construction and property development
segments. Mr. Lam re-joined the Group in 2017 and is currently the
director of Asia One Credit Limited and the chief executive officer of
Mattex Asia Development Limited, responsible for the management of
construction finance and construction material e-procurement businesses
of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREREHE

The Company has been making continued efforts to incorporate the key
elements of sound corporate governance into its management structure
and internal control procedures. The Company is committed to maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance, the principles of which serve to
uphold a high standard of ethics, transparency, responsibility and integrity
in all aspects of business, and to ensure that affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the CG Code
throughout the Year. The Board had duly performed its duties relating to
the corporate governance functions and was not aware of any code
provisions of the CG Code being violated during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, after a specific enquiry made by the Company, that they have
fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the management of the Company on behalf of
the Shareholders. Key responsibilities include formulation of the Group's
overall strategies, setting of management targets and supervision of
management performance. The Board confines itself to making broad
policy decisions and also exercising a number of reserved powers as
mentioned below, while delegating responsibility for more detailed
considerations to the Management Committee under the leadership of the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company:

. those functions and matters as set out in the terms of reference of
various Board committees (as amended from time to time), for which
Board’s approval must be sought from time to time;

o those functions and matters for which Board’s approval must be
sought in accordance with the Group’s internal policy (as amended
from time to time);

o consideration and approval of the ESG report, financial statements in
interim reports and annual reports, announcements and press
releases of interim and annual results;

o focusing its attention on matters affecting the Company’s overall
strategic policies, financing and Shareholders;
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

o consideration of dividend policy and dividend amount; and

o reviewing and monitoring the corporate governance policies and
practices of the Group to ensure compliance with the legal and
regulatory requirements.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information,
including regular reports from the Board committees and briefings on
significant legal, regulatory or accounting issues affecting the Group.
Directors may seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, which will be paid for by the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises eleven Directors including
five Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and four INEDs, with
INEDs representing not less than one-third of the Board as required under
the Listing Rules. The Board members are listed below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Jianhua, Jerry (Deputy Chairman)
Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, JP (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant

(Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary)
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee
Ir Dr. Wong Nai Keung, Philco (resigned on 17 July 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley BBS JP

Each of the Non-executive Directors and INEDs has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years. The
appointment letter is renewable subject to consent given by the Company
and the respective Non-executive Directors and INEDs. The Non-executive
Directors and INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Bye-laws.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERER/RRE

BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)

The Board had at all times during the Year met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three INEDs with at
least one INED possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation from each INED
to confirm his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all INEDs are independent under the Listing
Rules.

Relationship between Board Members

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic, the Chairman of the Board, and Ir Dr. Pang
Yat Bond, Derrick, the Chief Executive Officer of the Company, being
brothers, and Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina, the Executive Director, is the
mother of Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic and Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick.

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley is the chairman and executive director of Hi-Level
Technology Holdings Limited (a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 08113) in which Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant, the
Executive Director, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company and the
Company Secretary, is an independent non-executive director. Taking into
consideration his roles in the business activities of, and the relationship
between the two companies, the Nomination Committee considers that
such cross-directorship relationship will not affect Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley
in performing his duties as an INED.

Save as disclosed above, there is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship among members of the Board.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance and maintain a sustainable development in
long run. In this regard, the Nomination Committee has endorsed the
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

Board diversity shall be achieved through consideration of a number of
factors and measurable objectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional expertise, industry experience, skills and
knowledge.
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Corporate Governance Report
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BOARD COMPOSITION (continued)
Nomination Policy

The Company has also adopted the nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) setting out the key selection criteria and principles to be used by the
Company in making recommendations on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors to the Board
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skill, knowledge, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business.

The Nomination Committee shall make reference to the Board Diversity
Policy and the Nomination Policy to nominate suitably qualified candidates to
the Board for consideration and make recommendations on the appointment
of any proposed candidate to the Board or re-appointment of any existing
member(s) of the Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring the implementation
of the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy and will review the
above policies, as appropriate, to ensure their effectiveness.

Board Diversity
The following charts show the diversity profile of the Board as of the date of

this report:

Board Composition
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Corporate Governance Report
EEERME

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT EEHFER 2L
MEETINGS

During the Year, the Company had held five board meetings and one RAFER  ARREBITTAREERSE
general meeting. The attendance records of individual members of the R—XBRAC -EERNEERETEZE
Board and Board committees at the respective meetings during the Year &2 EBIKERAFERNHFEMRESH 2D
are set out below: FEEIINT -

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings held

HEEERY BTEERY

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Annual
Board Committee Committee ~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EER ENZER REZEE FHZEE® BRAF
Directors of 23 -t - F N -
Executive Directors BTEZ
Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman) — ®—EXL4%(F/E) 5/5 - 4/4 - 1/1
Mr. Xu Jianhua, Jerry (Deputy Chairman) — #R3ZELE (51F ) 5/5 - - - 11
Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick ¥—HEL TR
(Chief Executive Officer) (17TH#E%) 5/5 - _ - 11
Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant BT
(Chief Financial Officer and (BREIBEF
Company Secretary) REHE) 55 - - - 11
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina TERTL 5/5 - - - 1
Madam Han Li BRI 22 - - - -
Non-executive Directors FBTES
Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee? Ehia/ A2 4/4 11 3/3 - 0/1
Ir Dr. Wong Nai Keung, Philco? HIESKE L TIRA 2 - - - -

Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung HERLE 5/5 22 4/4 5/5 1/1
Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt WEERE 5/5 2 4/4 5/5 11
Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang EBEL: 4/5 22 - 5/5 "
Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley* BEBEL 4/4 22 33 - 1/1
1 resigned as an Executive Director on 20 July 2020 1 M2020F 7 A20 HHENITES
2 appointed as a Non-executive Director and a member of the Nomination 2 MR2020F5 A1 AEFTAERNTESRIES
Committee on 15 May 2020 and a member of the Audit Committee on 20 July ZEEHBEAKRKR202067 208 £ ASE
2020 BEEEKE
3 appointed as a Non-executive Director on 1 September 2020 and resigned on 17 3 MR2020F9R1BZEAENTEETRR
July 2021 202147 17 BEHT
4 appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director and a member of the Audit 4 M2020F5 A1 B EEARBUIERNITESI
Committee and Nomination Committee on 15 May 2020 hEZZEERIREEZEEKE
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company'’s expense. All Directors are regularly provided with information
in respect of the Group’s latest business development and the latest
development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable statutory and
regulatory requirements to facilitate their effective performance of
directors’ duties and ensure compliance and maintenance of good
corporate governance practices. During the Year, all Directors had
participated in seminars and/or studied materials related to the Listing Rules
for developing and refreshing their knowledge and skills. The Company has
received from all Directors their respective training records for the Year.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

During the Year, the Board had been led by the Chairman, Mr. Pang Yat
Ting, Dominic and the role of Chief Executive Officer is performed by Ir Dr.
Pang Yat Bond, Derrick.

The role of the Chairman is separate from that of the chief executive. The
Chairman is responsible for overseeing the functioning of the Board while
the chief executive is responsible for managing the Group’s business.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Management Committee and the Executive Committee. The respective
terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee are of no less exacting terms than those
set out in the CG Code and are available on the Company’s website. All
committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties.

Management Committee

The Management Committee was established in April 1993. It operates as
a general management committee with overall delegated authority from
the Board in order to increase the efficiency for the business decision and
facilitate the approval of certain corporate actions.

As at the date of this report, the Management Committee comprises four
members, all of whom are Executive Directors.

Members of the Management Committee:

Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick (Chairman)
Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic

Mr. Xu Jianhua, Jerry

Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established in March 2007 to assist the
Management Committee in the running of the day-to-day business of the
Company. It is responsible for the development and implementation of the
business plans for corporate and business units. The Executive Committee
is also supported by the heads of Project Management, cascading
performance management down to project level.

As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee comprises four
members, all of whom are Executive Directors.

Members of the Executive Committee:

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Jianhua, Jerry

Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick

Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was formed in April 2005. The primary
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are, inter alia, to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policies and structure
for the remuneration of all Directors and senior management of the Group
and determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and the senior management of the Group.

As at the date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises three
members, all of whom are INEDs.

Members of the Remuneration Committee:

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt (Chairman)
Mr. Wu William Wai Leung
Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance
and approved the remuneration packages of Executive Directors and senior
management of the Group, and recommended the remuneration of Non-
executive Directors and INEDs to the Board for approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committee (continued)
Emolument Policy for Directors

The Directors’ emoluments are in line with market practice. The Group
adopted the following main principles in determining the Directors’
remuneration:

° No individual should determine his/her own remuneration;

o Remuneration should be broadly aligned with companies with whom
the Group competes for human resources; and

o Remuneration should reflect performance and responsibility with a
view to motivating and retaining high performing individuals and
enhancing the value of the Company to the Shareholders.

In addition to the basic salaries, the Share Option Scheme and the Share
Award Scheme have been adopted for rewarding and retaining Directors
for the continual operation and development of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of Directors during the Year are set out in Note
10 to the financial statements of this annual report. The annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management of the Group by
band for the Year is set out below:
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was formed in April 2005. The responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are, inter alia, to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and the
succession planning for Directors, to review the structure, size and
composition of the Board and to ensure fair and transparent procedures
for the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

In case of necessity, the Nomination Committee will propose candidates for
appointment to the Board for consideration and the Board will review the
qualifications of the relevant candidates for determining the suitability to
the Group on the basis of his/her qualifications, experience and
background. The decision of appointing a director must be approved by
the Board and all Board members’ appointments will be based on merit
while taking into account diversity.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises five
members, consisting of an Executive Director, a Non-executive Director and
three INEDs.

Members of the Nomination Committee:

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley

The following is a summary of work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year:

(i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and
performed the measurable objectives assessment for the year ended
31 March 2020;

(i) assessing the independence of the INEDs;

(i) recommending the retiring Directors who offered themselves for
re-election at the 2020 annual general meeting for Shareholders’

approval;

(iv)  considering the appointment of the Non-executive Directors and
INED; and

(v)  considering the re-appointment of the INED.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established in December 1998. The Audit
Committee provides an important link between the Board and the
Company’s external auditor in matters coming within the scope of the
Group's audit. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review
and supervise the financial and accounting policies and practices of the
Group. It also reviews the effectiveness of both the external audit and
internal controls and risk management system.

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises five members,
consisting of a Non-executive Director and four INEDs with its chairman
possessing appropriate professional qualification, accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.

Members of the Audit Committee:

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung (Chairman)
Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year:

(i) reviewing the annual report and the annual results announcement of
the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

(i)  reviewing the external auditor’'s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process, with a recommendation to the
Board for the re-appointment of the external auditor at the 2020
annual general meeting;

(i) approving the remuneration and the terms of engagement letters for
the purpose of appointing the external auditor in connection with
the statutory audit and review of the results announcement by the
external auditor;

(iv)  reviewing the ESG report of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020, with a recommendation to the Board for approval;

(v)  reviewing the interim report and the interim results announcement
of the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2020, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval; and

(vi) overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system and risk
management and internal control procedures and reviewing the
report of the internal control function on the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the Group's internal control and conducts
review on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.

Role of the Board

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility in ensuring and reviewing
the effectiveness of the systems of internal controls, risk management and
legal and regulatory compliance of the Group in order to safeguard the
interests of Shareholders and the assets of the Group.

Internal Controls and Risk Management

The Board has put in place policies and procedures, including policies for
delegation of authority clearly defining the limits of authorities designated
to specified positions within the Group. Such policies and procedures set
out the framework for the risk management and internal control systems
for adoption throughout the Group. To ensure that the systems in place
are adequate and address the existing weaknesses in implementation, the
Executive Directors, with the assistance of the executive board of different
business divisions, review the existing policies and practices and issue
directives from time to time to highlight the specific issues and concerns in
order to achieve ongoing improvement on the governance practices within
the Group. The Executive Directors also approve operational and financial
reports, business plans and budgets provided by management of each
business division at regular meetings.

Executive Directors and senior management of the Group are appointed to
the boards of all operating subsidiaries and associated companies of
material importance in order to monitor the operation of these companies.
They attend board meetings and participate in significant decision making
process on reviewing and approving financial budgets, establishing
business plans and controlling performance targets with associated risks
identified. The management teams of different business divisions are
accountable for the performance of their respective divisions on a day-to-
day basis. The Executive Directors review the financial and operational
reports from division management regularly to monitor the performance
and assess the significant risk exposure of the subsidiaries.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
Internal Controls and Risk Management (continued)

The Group's Finance Department reports to the Board in respect of
overseeing the financial reporting and control systems for all subsidiaries
and associated companies of the Company. The business segments compile
annual budgets for review by the Group’s finance function and the
consolidated annual budgets are presented to the Executive Directors for
approval. The Executive Directors also hold regular meetings with the
management team of business divisions to review the cashflow position of
the Group, consider material ad-hoc projects which require additional
operating or capital expenditure, and make decisions on significant
investment and lending activities. Payment approval is subject to control of
the limits of authorities clearly setting out the authority with reference to
the specified positions of the relevant personnel.

Legal and Regulatory Compliance

The Contracts and Legal Department is responsible for preparing, reviewing
and endorsing all material contracts entered into by Group companies in
order to safeguard the interests of the Group against legal risks. It also
oversees the regulatory compliance matters of all Group companies in the
environment of their business operations.

Besides, the Company Secretarial Department is in charge of corporate
secretarial documentation of Group companies and overseeing compliance
matters in relation to the Listing Rules and the relevant corporate laws and
regulations of different jurisdictions.

External legal advisors are engaged to advise the Group on important legal
matters and compliance issues when necessary.

Audit Committee and Internal Audit Function

The Company has established an internal audit function. The internal audit
function conducts internal audit on different business divisions and
functions within the Group on an ongoing basis to assess the effectiveness
and identify weaknesses in the existing internal control, legal and
regulatory compliance and risk management systems of the Group. In the
event that defects are identified, the internal audit function engages in
discussions with the management and recommends suggestions for
improvement.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(continued)
Audit Committee and Internal Audit Function (continued)

Delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee reviews the internal audit
report prepared by the internal audit function twice every year. Reviews
have been conducted on the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems during the Year and the Board and the Audit Committee are
satisfied that the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.

Whilst these policies and procedures are designed to manage the risks that
could adversely impact the ability of the Group to achieve its business
objectives, they do not eliminate such risks and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement, loss or non-
compliance.

Handling of Inside Information

The Group has adopted a policy in relation to handling of inside
information in compliance with the SFO. Employees should preserve the
confidentiality of any inside information according to the manner specified
in the policy and the “Code of Employee Conduct and Business Ethics”
contained in the Staff Handbook. The Group has also adopted the pre-
clearance procedures on dealing in the Company’s securities and notified
Directors and relevant employees of restrictions on dealing in the
Company’s securities during blackout periods to prevent possible
mishandling of inside information within the Group.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by Ernst & Young (“EY")
is analysed as follows:
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Annual audit services FEEZRE 5120

Non-audit services* IEEZ RIS * 2,292
7,412

* Such non-audit services include agreed-upon procedures on preliminary * ZEFEERBEBAREFREAZNINE

announcement of annual results, transaction advisory, tax advisory and compliance
services.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

Statements of the Directors’ responsibility for preparing the consolidated
financial statements and the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report of this
annual report.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim
reports and other financial disclosures required by the Listing Rules as well
as reports to regulators and information disclosed pursuant to statutory
requirements.

As at 31 March 2021, the Board is not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis. The management has provided to the Board the
necessary explanation and information to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the financial statements of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant, the Company Secretary,
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General Meeting

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
have rights to require a special general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition, which must
be signed by the requisitionist(s). The requisition must be deposited at the
registered office of the Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda (the “Registered Office”) for the attention of
the Company Secretary. To ensure that the requisition is received by the
Company at the earliest opportunity, a copy of the signed requisition
should also be deposited at the head office of the Company in Hong Kong
at C1, 5th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Industrial Building Phase 1, 601-603
Tai Nan West Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong (the “Head
Office”) for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (continued)

Procedures for Putting Forward Proposals at General
Meetings

Pursuant to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act”),
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting right at general meetings of the Company
or not less than one hundred Shareholders may provide a written
requisition to the Company stating the resolution intended to be proceeded
at the general meeting. The requisition must be deposited at the Registered
Office for the attention of the Company Secretary. To ensure that the
requisition is received by the Company at the earliest opportunity, a copy
of the signed requisition should also be deposited at the Head Office for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the Company by
Shareholders, Shareholders may refer to the procedures available on the
Company'’s website.

Shareholders can also refer to the detailed requirements and procedures as
set forth in the relevant sections of the Companies Act and the Bye-laws
when making any requisitions or proposals for transaction at the general
meetings of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and
comprehensive and transparent reporting of its performance and activities.
The Company’s annual and interim reports and circulars are printed and
sent to all Shareholders. Moreover, announcements, circulars, publications
and press releases of the Company are published on the Company’s
website (www.asiaalliedgroup.com). The Company’s website disseminates
corporate information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information electronically on a timely basis.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with Shareholders and encourages the Directors,
the members of the Board committees and senior management of the
Group to attend and answer questions raised by Shareholders at the
general meetings.

The Company is committed to promoting and maintaining effective
communication with Shareholders and other stakeholders. The
Shareholders Communication Policy has been adopted for ensuring that
the Shareholders are provided with ready, equal and timely access to
balanced and understandable information about the Company in order to
enable Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner, and to
allow Shareholders to engage actively with the Company. The Shareholders
Communication Policy is available on the Company’s website and will be
reviewed by the Board from time to time to reflect current best practice in
communications with Shareholders.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’s share registrars. The addresses of the Company’s share
registrars are set out in the section headed “CORPORATE INFORMATION"
of this annual report. Shareholders may at any time make a request for
the Company’s information to the extent that such information is publicly
available. Shareholders may also send written enquiries or requests
to the Head Office or by fax to (852) 3798 5700 or by email to
info@asiaalliedgroup.com for the attention of the Company Secretary.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted the dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”) for the Company with effect from 1 March 2019 which setting out
the principles and guidelines to provide the Shareholders with regular
dividend.

Subject to the Bye-laws and the statutory requirements, the Company shall
maintain a sustainable and steady profit distribution policy. Under the
Dividend Policy, the Board targets to pay dividends to the Shareholders in
an aggregate annual amount of approximately 30% of the annual
consolidated net profit attributable to the Shareholders.

In proposing distribution of dividend, the Board will take into consideration
of the following factors:

o the long-term interest of the Group;
. the general interest of all the Shareholders;
o the sustainable development of the Group;

o the earnings, cash flow, financial condition, capital requirement and
distributable reserves of the Group; and

o any other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend/not to recommend final
dividend to the Shareholders for approval and to declare/not to declare any
other dividend, including but not limited to interim dividend and/or special
dividends, after taking into consideration the factors as stated above.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company'’s constitutional
documents.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWE

The Board hereby presents the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in civil engineering, electrical and mechanical
engineering, foundation and building construction work, property
development and assets leasing, professional services (including provision
of security, tunnel and other facility management services), non-franchised
bus services and manufacturing of PET radiopharmaceuticals.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 132
and 133.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has approved and adopted a Dividend Policy. Depending on the
financial conditions of the Group and the conditions and factors as set out
in the Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will
be subject to the Shareholders’ approval. Details of the Dividend Policy
have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report of this annual
report of the Company.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
Year (2019/20: HK0.40 cent per share).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM"), the register of
members of the Company will be closed during the following period:

Latest time to lodge transfer documents for registration
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (continued)

In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all completed
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must
be lodged with the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company,
Tricor Secretaries Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than the latest time as stated
above for registration.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

A review of the business and the future development of the Group, its
principal risks and uncertainties and an analysis of its performance for the
Year are provided in the sections headed “CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT" set
out on pages 12 to 14 and "MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS”
set out on pages 15 to 38.

The Group’s environmental policies and performance, compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations as well as its key relationships with
employees, customers and suppliers and other significant stakeholders are
discussed in the section headed “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT" set out on pages 39 to 76.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary of the Group for the last five financial years is set out
on page 298.

EQUITY FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

The Company did not conduct any fund raising activities on issue of equity
securities during the Year.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the revalued investment properties of the Group as at 31 March
2021 are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 15 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in Note 37 to the financial statements.
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EERHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 3 September 2012, the
Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme.

Purposes

The purposes of the Share Option Scheme are to provide the directors and
employees of, and technical, financial or corporate managerial advisers and
consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in the Company, and to encourage the
grantees of options to work towards enhancing the value of and for the
benefit of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Eligible Participants

The eligible participants under the Share Option Scheme include (i) any full
time employee of the Company or of any subsidiary; (ii) directors (including
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or of any subsidiary; (iii) part-time employees of the Company or
of any subsidiary with weekly work hours of 15 hours or above; and (iv)
advisors and consultants to the Company or to any subsidiary in the
technical, financial or corporate managerial aspects.

Scheme Mandate Limit

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all the
share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not exceed 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of passing the ordinary resolution of
the refreshment of the scheme mandate limit under the Share Option Scheme
on 11 December 2017 (i.e. 187,553,384 Shares) (the “Refreshment”). No
share option has been granted by the Company since the Refreshment.

Furthermore, the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding share options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. As at the
date of this report, the Company had 26,380,000 outstanding share
options granted and remaining unexercised under the Share Option
Scheme, representing approximately 1.45% of the issued Shares.

Maximum Entitlement

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to any eligible participant (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
total number of Shares in issue without separate approval from the
Shareholders.
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EER®E

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Option Period

The option period of a particular option is the period during which the
option can be exercised. Such period is notified by the Board to each
grantee at the time of making an offer. In any event, the option period
shall not expire later than 10 years from the date of grant.

Acceptance of Options

The grantee of options shall pay HK$1 in favour of the Company by way of
consideration for the grant of options within 30 days from the date of
offer.

Exercise Price

The exercise price of an option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (i) the closing
price per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;
(i) the average closing price per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value per share.

Life of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to early termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance
with the terms thereof, the Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on 3 September 2012 (i.e. the adoption
date of the Share Option Scheme).

Movements of Share Options

Details of the share options granted and outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the Year were as follows:
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IR EITAEHA
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1TEE
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TRERTIZERE : () FRBRHRE L
AR PR A & ¢ () BB R
SRR A HIAT TE & 5 B R A AT P A
FHYHE K (i) BB HEE -

ZERER 8 2B Y

PRAR IR % B B At 81 2 IR IR AT AR LS - 3%
BEICRERT 2170 20124 9 A3 B (ANZ BBt
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BREZ2F
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BB BT

Number of share options

BREHE

Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding

Name or price as at during as at

category of grantees Date of grant (HK$)  Vesting date  Exercise period 01/04/2020 the Year  31/03/2021

#2020 F #2021 F

i@ 4A81R rEER 3A318

RBARARER e = (1) BEAH f76E 18 RATBE b3 i RATHE
Directors:

EF:

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic* 05/12/2017 1.02  05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000

YERE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000

05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 1,200,000 - 1,200,000

Mr. Xu Jianhua, Jerry 05/12/2017 1.02  05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000

rEELE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000

05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
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EERHEE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) BRETE 2
Movements of Share Options (continued) BRECSE (&)
Number of share options
BREZE
Exercise Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Name or price as at during as at
category of grantees Date of grant (HK$)  Vesting date  Exercise period 01/04/2020 the Year  31/03/2021
#2020 F #2021 F
f7fEfE 481H rEER 3A31R8
ARAHAREFR B A (Fr) BEBEH fTfER e RATHE F3 e RATBE
Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant ~ 05/12/2017 1.02  05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000
KESERE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 900,000 - 900,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 1,200,000 - 1,200,000
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina* ~ 05/12/2017 1.02  05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 360,000 - 360,000
FERLL 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 360,000 - 360,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 480,000 - 480,000
Mr. Wu William Wai Leung 05/12/2017 1.02  05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
HHESEE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 240,000 - 240,000
Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt 05/12/2017 1.02  05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
WhBEE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 240,000 - 240,000
Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang 05/12/2017 1.02  05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
AEELRE 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 180,000 - 180,000
05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 240,000 - 240,000
12,000,000 - 12,000,000
Other employees:
HMER
In aggregate 05/12/2017 1.02  05/12/2018 05/12/2018-04/12/2021 5,142,000 (828,000) 4,314,000
=5 05/12/2019 05/12/2019-04/12/2021 5,142,000 (828,000) 4,314,000

05/12/2020 05/12/2020-04/12/2021 6,856,000 (1,104,000) 5,752,000

17,140,000 (2,760,000) 14,380,000

Total
Hsr 29,140,000 (2,760,000) 26,380,000

Number of options exercisable at the end of the Year

A E R RET ] T8 2 R ERE 26,380,000
Weighted average exercise price (HK$ per share)
EFHITEEGET(8R)) 1.02
* Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic and Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina are also substantial AR EER T TN AARR I EER
and controlling shareholders of the Company, and Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic, PIRARE My —REkA  TEELLTRE—
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina and Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick are associates of HE+ TRMGILE BB A (BIE LTHEL
each other (within the meanings as defined under the Listing Rules). FIREZHE) -
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EERHE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
Movements of Share Options (continued)

The closing price of the Shares immediately before the date of grant as
guoted on the Stock Exchange was HK$1.02 per share.

Save as disclosed above, no share options were exercised or cancelled
during the Year.

Further details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in Note 39 to the
financial statements.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board has adopted the Share Award Scheme, pursuant to which the
Company may grant to eligible participants restricted Shares. A summary
of the Share Award Scheme is set out below:

Purposes

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to encourage and retain
selected participants (the “Selected Participant(s)”), including any eligible
person selected by the administration committee of the Share Award
Scheme in accordance with the terms of and entitled to receive a grant
under the Share Award Scheme, to work with the Company and to provide
incentives for them to achieve performance goals with a view to achieving
the objectives of increasing the value of the Company and aligning the
interests of the Selected Participants directly with those of the Shareholders
through ownership of Shares.

Eligible Persons

The eligible persons under the Share Award Scheme include individuals
being a director (including executive and non-executive director), officer or
employee of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Duration

Subject to any early termination of the Share Award Scheme and without
prejudicing the subsisting rights of any Selected Participant, the Share
Award Scheme shall be valid for the period of 10 years commencing on
1 August 2017 (i.e. the adoption date of the Share Award Scheme).

Maximum Limit

The maximum number of Shares administered under the Share Award
Scheme shall not reach 10% or more of the Company’s issued share
capital from time to time.

Movements of Restricted Shares

No restricted Shares were granted by the Company or vested during the
Year. Further details of the restricted Shares are set out in Note 38 to the
financial statements.
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EERHE

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

To enable the employees to have a stake in the investment in the Group, the
Group during the Year has separately entered into the sale and purchase
agreement (the “Subsidiary SPA”) with two directors (one of which is Ir Dr.
Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company) and six employees of a subsidiary (the “Relevant Subsidiary”)
(collectively, the “Relevant Staff”) for disposal certain shares of the Relevant
Subsidiary to the Relevant Staff. Upon the fulfillment of certain performance
conditions under the Subsidiary SPA, Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick shall
acquire 3.5% equity interest in the Relevant Subsidiary at the consideration
of approximately HK$1.7 million (the “Stake Investment”).

Other than the Share Option Scheme, the Share Award Scheme and the
Stake Investment disclosed above, at no time during the Year and at the
end of the Year was the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Details of the Group’s borrowings are set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements.

Interest capitalised by the Group during the Year is set out in Note 8 to the
financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT OPERATIONS, JOINT
VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, joint operations, joint
venture and associates as at 31 March 2021 are set out in Notes 50, 51, 52
and 53 to the financial statements respectively.

RESERVES

The Company'’s reserves available for distribution to Shareholders as at 31
March 2021 were as follows:
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HK$°000
T/BIT

Contributed surplus o A B 52,552
Retained earnings IR & T 125,101
Total A5 177,653

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 56 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 137 and 138 respectively.
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EERHE

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic

Mr. Xu Jianhua, Jerry

Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick, JP

Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant

Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina

Madam Han Li (resigned on 20 July 2020)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee (appointed on 15 May 2020)
Ir Dr. Wong Nai Keung, Philco (appointed on 1 September 2020 and
resigned on 17 July 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang

Dr. Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley BBS JP
(appointed on 15 May 2020)

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Bye-laws, Mr. Xu Jianhua, Jerry, Ir Dr.
Pang Yat Bond, Derrick and Mr. Wu William Wai Leung will retire from
office by rotation at the AGM. All the retiring Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Madam Han Li resigned as an Executive Director on 20 July 2020 due to
personal work arrangements and Ir Dr. Wong Nai Keung, Philco resigned
as a Non-executive Director on 17 July 2021 in order to pursue his own
professional interests. Each of Madam Han Li and Ir Dr. Wong Nai Keung,
Philco has confirmed to the Board that she/he has no disagreement with
the Board and there is no matter in relation to her/his resignation that
needs to be brought to the attention of the Shareholders and the Stock
Exchange.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all of the INEDs are independent under the Listing
Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or in existence during the Year.

X

REAFEARBEAREZBHRLZES

T

HITES

ZERE
RRELE
Z—AEL
REELESE

FEMLL

TAZENA T

BRI+ (R 20204 7 A 20 HEET)

FHTES

EIRIE/NME (R 202045 A 15 HEZF)
EWESHIE LT TR (R 2020F 9 1 HEZ (T

Kpi20214F7 A 17 HEHE)
BIKHITES
HESLAE
WhEELE
e A
BEBS s Es K T4t
(R20204F5 A 15 HEZ(T)

RIBARIARIE 87 R ZARTE - FREBFELRAE
Z-AELTREMEBRESEESRIRRE
FAELWERE - MAREESTHTAE]

BRI RIRIBE RS EBEEEE -

BRBRBEFASLERETIES  HIE
B X B S B AR AR B A A AT SZ A SR B AN A
R—FANMIERECEERERIN MR LLEZ

RISEH °

BRI 20207 A 20 BEAMEA TIEZHE
BHIMITE R R EMHRE L T2 2021 4

7R17EA
B - B

Ko Bt ZX P R

BAEXELNAR

BHEIRITT

T hEWHEL TR D5
REZRER  REEERHZME
B MEEMERKREEZEFEABBER

% -

N7 =z PaN
WEERS

BMFPITES 2B

ARABEWBZBELIERTESRIELTR
AIFE3IBRERZFERERBE
o ARRRR/ERBILIFATESREL

mARAIG A

B -

EEEH

RAFEER » ARBWEFT LR IFHEERE
AR A 2B SR E R D E B EIE K

TTREHX) -

MM AERIERAR AR

REIFL

2020/21 F ¥




Directors’ Report

EER®E

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid individuals in
the Group are set out in Notes 10 and 11 to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the Year.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover to protect the
Directors from possible legal actions against them.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2021, the interests of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Name of Directors

Capacity

EEpg
Mr. Pang Yat Ting, Dominic Beneficial owner 1
TERE EHnBEAA
Interests of controlled corporation 2
FEmiE
Mr. Xu Jianhua, Jerry Beneficial owner 1
REERE EHREAA

Ir Dr. Pang Yat Bond, Derrick Beneficial owner

¥—RiELT T2 ExBAA
Mr. Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant Beneficial owner 1
REBESE ExEBA
Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina Beneficial owner 1
ZERZL 6 7O

Interests of controlled corporation 2

Rz E R
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Number of Number of Company'’s
ordinary underlying issued

shares held shares held share capital

Y YN

22} 22| ERTRA
EEREA HRRGEE Aol

- 3,000,000 (L) 0.16% (L)

1,107,904,705 (L) 326,000,000 (L) 78.78% (L)
- 3,000,000 (L) 0.16% (L)

7,326,000 (L) - 0.40% (L)

- 3,000,000 (L) 0.16% (L)

11,294,875 (L) 1,200,000 (L) 0.68% (L)
1,107,904,705 (L) 326,000,000 (L) 78.78% (L)
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EER®E

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(continued)

Name of Directors

Capacity

EEpg L)

Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee Beneficiary of a trust 3
EffavE ERAXAA

Mr. Wu William Wai Leung Beneficial owner 1
HEREE ERBEAA

Mr. Lam Yau Fung, Curt Beneficial owner 1
MhEEEE EREAA

Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang Beneficial owner 1
mEELE ERBEAA

(L): Long Position
(S): Short Position

Notes:

1.

Details of the underlying shares of the Company held by the Directors are set out
in the above section headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEME".

GT Winners Limited (“GT Winners”) was owned as to 45% by Mr. Pang Yat Ting,
Dominic and 45% by Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina. By virtue of the SFO, each of
them was deemed to be interested in the ordinary shares/underlying shares of the
Company in which GT Winners had interest or was deemed to have interest. The
details of such interests of GT Winners are set out in the following section headed
“INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES".

The shares were beneficially owned by Best Manage Holdings Limited (“Best
Manage”). Best Manage is wholly owned by Brite-Tech Research Company Limited,
which is in turn wholly owned by Surplus Assets Limited. Surplus Assets Limited is
wholly owned by Credit Suisse Trust Limited as the trustee of The Allan Wong
2011 Trust, a discretionary trust of which Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee is one of the
beneficiaries. She is also one of the directors of Best Manage. By virtue of the SFO,
Ms. Wong Wendy Dick Yee was deemed to be interested in the ordinary shares/
underlying shares of the Company in which Best Manage had interest or was
deemed to have interest.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

EERFTETBRAEREKS
MHERODREZ2EERAR

(&)
% of the
Number of Number of Company'’s
ordinary underlying issued
shares held shares held share capital
ERAR
B8 B8 ERITRA
EEREE HERAEE Bk
166,000,000 (L) 166,000,000 (S) 9.12% (L)
9.12% (S)
- 600,000 (L) 0.03% (L)
- 600,000 (L) 0.03% (L)
- 600,000 (L) 0.03% (L)
L): F&
(S): %E
BEE

Bk ECTIRERESN

EEFAZARAMEBERN 2FBER L
[FaRchEst &I —&0

E—RERERFRBRZERIEAR GT Winners
Limited ([ GT Winners]) 45% & ## - IRIEFEH K
BEIER - BEE AR AHES GT Winners AT
BEREEARAER Z AR R EREKR AR
B8 2 2k » GT Winners B B1E %5 2 S5 E R
X Fﬁigﬁiﬁé‘ﬁﬁfﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁZ%%ﬁ&iﬁ
Bl —fne

#% % B {5 FaBest Manage Holdings Limited ([ Best
Manage |) B2 A ° Best Manage H Brite-Tech
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Directors’ Report

EER®E

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FERRRKRMRE@ERKRD 2
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES AND #=ZRXE
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the following Shareholders (other than Directors or 7202143 831 H » AR AIREFHFLAE
chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by the &5 336 (5 IR T AT 2 Bt 2508k
Company under Section 336 of the SFO as being interested or deemed to A TRE (BZEH ARG EBITHRABEKRIN

have interest in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company: MARR B BITIRAF B SR BEF 5%
A o R

% of the

Number of Number of Company'’s

ordinary underlying issued

Name of Shareholders Capacity shares held shares held share capital

NG

58 5 BRTRA

BRRES B8 £ EERYA HERGEE BAL

GT Winners Beneficial owner 1 1,107,904,705 (L) 326,000,000 (L) 78.78% (L)
ExBEBA

Best Manage Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 2 166,000,000 (L) 166,000,000 (S) 9.12% (L)

ERBEA 9.12% (S)

Brite-Tech Research Company Interests of controlled corporation 2 166,000,000 (L) 166,000,000 (S) 9.12% (L)

Limited XEEER 9.12% (S)

Surplus Assets Limited Interests of controlled corporation 2 166,000,000 (L) 166,000,000 (S) 9.12% (L)

REEERER 9.12% (S)

Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee 2 166,000,000 (L) 166,000,000 (S) 9.12% (L)

TN 9.12% (S)

(L): Long Position L): 78

(S): Short Position (S): KA

Notes: MiEE -

1. These represent (i) a beneficial interest in 1,107,904,705 ordinary shares of the 1. 25 R 1E BGT WinnersE £ # A0
Company, representing approximately 60.87% of the issued share capital of the 1,107,904,705 IR AR B E B 2 BEmiEsms - 18
Company; and (i) a beneficial interest in 326,000,000 underlying shares of the ERADF D BITIRAL60.87% : K (i)iRi#&
Company pursuant to certain call and/or option deeds, representing approximately = TR I ol Rk B 3 49 74 326,000,000
17.91% of the issued share capital of the Company, directly held by GT Winners. RAARMEERG 2 EmEm - HERARAF

BEEITRAL17.91% °

2. The details of such interests of Best Manage Holdings Limited are set out in the 2. Best Manage Holdings Limited 5 B 4 25 7 5£ 18
above section headed “INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS AND HREXEERETETHAERRND - 2
CHIEF EXECUTIVE IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES”. f&tn RiEH 2 EmRKR ] —&f -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Company had not been — B& ESCFT#ERESN - 7R2021F3 A31H - K
notified of any other person or corporation (other than Directors or chief A Rl WEREMEMA TSHEE (EF K
executive of the Company) as being interested or deemed to have interests ARG EZITHA BBRIN) AR ARG K
or short positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company which RGP E BN EERAEEREEZS KB
would fall to be disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange under — B 1§28 XV AR A A B) Sl B 32 P48 5 2 W
Part XV of the SFO. BIOKE °

h Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited = Annual Report 2020/21
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EER®E

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company repurchased 18,198,000 Shares at an
aggregate consideration of HK$10,991,440 (before expenses) on the Stock
Exchange. All repurchased shares were cancelled during the Year.

Particulars of the repurchase during the Year are as follows:

BE - HERWEAXDFZ
FmESs

RARFER - ANQ T LAERE 10,991,440 58
JC (RET M F ) FABS 22 AT iE [E1 18,198,000 A%
i o B EERE 2 I ERAFEE AN -

RAFERNETED 2 ERAT

Aggregate
Number Highest Lowest  consideration
Months of share of shares price paid price paid paid (before
repurchase repurchased per share per share expenses)
L AE) ) ENER ENER ENAKE
RBE R 52 A 5 ZH B BSE BIKE (RFTRBEX)
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
2020 2020
April 4 B 3,798,000 0.66 0.64 2,437,080
August 8 H 558,000 0.61 0.61 340,380
September 9H 6,450,000 0.60 0.57 3,825,200
October 104 1,862,000 0.60 0.60 1,117,200
December 12 A 1,126,000 0.59 0.58 662,080
2021 2021 &
January 1H 3,256,000 0.60 0.59 1,926,560
February 2 A 586,000 0.59 0.59 345,740
March 3R 562,000 0.60 0.60 337,200
Total et 18,198,000 10,991,440

The Directors considered that the repurchases were made with a view to
enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings per share of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws and
there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

EERRETBRRATRSARAEKRE
EFEREBERAR -

B EMXRBEEIN  RAFEA - AATHHE
EAMBEARMERE  HEXBERART]
ERETES -

BrRBERE

RAARY BB EREBRE R TE
REXRDITEL SN Z RS o

SIS ERERERAR 2020121 F#H a
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EERHE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company
has maintained sufficient public float throughout the Year as required
under the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions set out in Note 46 to the financial
statements. Save as disclosed above, no related party transaction
constitutes any connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined under the Listing Rules during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions disclosed in Note 46 to the financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group's business in which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, its holding company, or any subsidiaries of its holding
company was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 March 2021 or at any time
during the Year.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.22 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

In accordance with the requirements under Rule 13.22 of Chapter 13 of
the Listing Rules, the details of the Group’s financial assistance given to
and guarantees given for banking facilities granted to its affiliated company
as at 31 March 2021 pursuant to Rule 13.16 thereof are set out below:

As at 31 March 2021, the amount guaranteed by the Group for banking
facilities granted to Great Prosper Development Limited (“Great Prosper”,
a company in which the Group held a 40% interest) was approximately
HK$935.4 million. The banking facilities will be repayable upon the earlier
of (i) the date falling 48 months from the date of the facility agreement (i.e.
31 May 2017); and (ii) the date falling 6 months after the issuance of the
occupation permit by the Buildings Department for a property development
project owned by Great Prosper (the “Occupation Permit”). The banking
facilities carry interest at the normal commercial rate after arm’s length
negotiation with the respective lenders and are jointly and severally
guaranteed in favour of the banks by the Company and the other
shareholder of Great Prosper. Both parties have further entered into a
deed, pursuant to which one agreed to indemnify the other if it fails to
perform its obligations under the relevant facility agreement(s).

Q Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2020/21
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EER®E

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS
UNDER RULE 13.22 OF CHAPTER 13 OF THE
LISTING RULES (continued)

As at 31 March 2021, an aggregate of HK$677.2 million of such
guaranteed banking facilities had been utilised by Great Prosper.

Subsequent to the end of the Year, Great Prosper and the banks have
entered into supplemental agreements to reduce the principal amount of
the banking facilities to approximately HK$815 million and to extend the
final maturity date of the facilities to the earlier of (i) 31 May 2022; and (i)
the date falling 6 months after the issuance of the Occupation Permit. The
banking facilities are guaranteed by the shareholders of Great Prosper
severally and at the normal commercial rate.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s financial assistance given to and
guarantees given for banking facilities granted to its affiliated company in
aggregate amounted to approximately HK$935.4 million, representing
10.9% of the total assets of the Group, exceeding 8% of the assets ratio
as defined under Rule 14.07(1) of the Listing Rules. The financial
information of the affiliated company as at 31 March 2021 is set out
below:

FHRAIEI13EFE13.22k2
T—rﬁﬁ?ﬂi fE;ZE(f““

MR202143 310 ERDCHAZOERE
1TREE A 2£677,200,000 8 7T °

NAFERE - BREEIRITE AT HE
LUR D IRITREE 2 K€ £ #7815,000,000 %8
TTARERREEFRHZE()2022F5H318 ¢
MG EBEERATAEEBR6EA 2B (AR
BERRE) - ZIRTTHEREREN IR E R
IREERIT A — B EFETEB -

MR2021F3A31H  AEERETFEBRBA
AN E R BEEE QR ER TR
BbE AT E M R IR & £ 4945 935,400,000 75
T HERAEBELEE109%  BiBiEE
MHRBE1407TMIEFTATMNEEL X2
8% o ZHEB A TMN2021E3A31 B 2B

BERESIT

Great

Prosper

&

HK$'000

FET

Non-current assets EMBNEE 14,128

Current assets MENEE 1,594,132
Current liabilities mENAE (903,371)

Net assets BEFE 704,889
Issued capital BT -

Reserves i 704,889

Total equity iR 704,889
As at 31 March 2021, the consolidated attributable interest of the Group ~ 7202153 A31H - REBRBE R R 247

in the affiliated company amounted to approximately HK$370.8 million.

A EhER S £4)/4370,800,000 7T °
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EERHE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

(i) During the Year, Mr. Wu William Wai Leung, the INED, is an
independent non-executive director of JY Grandmark, which had
certain subsidiaries engaged in the property development business.
The Board is of the view that Mr. Wu as an independent non-
executive director of JY Grandmark, is not involved in its daily
operation and therefore it does not compete with the business of the
Group.

(i) During the Year, Mr. Ho Gilbert Chi Hang, the INED, is an executive
director of NWS and a non-executive director of Wai Kee, both of
which had certain subsidiaries engaged in the construction business.
The Board is of the view that the construction business of both
companies is similar to but of different scale and nature with that of
the Group and therefore it does not compete with the business of
the Group.

Each of the Directors is aware of his/her fiduciary duties as Director and will
act in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole and
avoids any conflict of interests between his/her duties as a Director and his/
her personal interests.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in any
business which competes or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for approximately 80% of the Group’s
total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest
customer accounted for approximately 58% of the Group’s total turnover.
The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group'’s five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total purchases.

The Group’s five largest customers include governmental authorities and
statutory organisations, infrastructure and property developers and
property owners. The credit terms granted to these customers are in line
with those granted to other customers as well as industry practices. The
Group’s management has considered the credit quality of these major
customers and is of the view that none of the relevant trade receivables is
considered doubtful. In determining the credit terms, the Group takes into
account various factors, including the background, financial strength and
track records of credit settlement of the counterparties, in order to mitigate
credit risks. In view of the financial strength and high credit rating the
major customers, the Directors consider that the Group’s exposure to
concentration of credit risk is limited.
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EERHE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS (continued)

None of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders (which to the
knowledge the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
approximately HK$1.9 million.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant events of the Group after the reporting period are
set out in Note 54 to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by EY, the
auditor of the Company, which will retire at the conclusion of the AGM
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be proposed to the Shareholders at the AGM to re-appoint EY as the
auditor of the Company and to authorise the Board to fix their
remuneration.

There has been no other change in the auditor of the Company in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Pang Yat Ting, Dominic
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
B\ EER S

e
EY:

To the shareholders of Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia Allied
Infrastructure Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 132 to 297, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ M A% B A R

e
EY:

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Revenue and costs of construction projects

The Group’s revenue from the provision of construction services amounted
to HK$6.57 billion for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Contract revenue is recognised over time using the output method, based
on direct measurements of the value of services delivered or surveys of
work performed by the Group. Contract costs are recognised when work is
performed, together with any provisions for expected contract losses.

The recognition of revenue and profit relies on management’s estimate of
the final outcome of each contract, which involves the exercise of
significant management judgement, particularly in forecasting the costs to
complete a contract, in valuing contract variations, claims and liquidated
damages, in estimating the amount of expected losses and assessing the
ability of the Group to deliver services according to the agreed timetable.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Revenue and costs of construction projects (continued)

In addition, the Group regularly assesses the possible outcome of
construction contracts based on the latest facts and circumstances
relating to the construction work, and past experience in conducting
similar construction work. When there is a change in the expectation as
to when the outcome of construction contracts can be estimated reliably,
the Group will adjust the amounts of contract costs and contract profit
accordingly. Such change constitutes a change in an accounting estimate
and involves significant management estimation and judgement regarding
the outcome of a contract. The effect of any change in an accounting
estimate is recognised prospectively by including it in profit or loss in the
current year and future periods, if appropriate.

Given that the estimation of the total revenue and total costs to complete
the construction contracts involves significant management judgement and
estimation, we considered this a key audit matter.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3.3, 4 and 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As part of our audit procedures, we examined the external or internal
surveys of work for amounts of contract revenue recognised and revenue
cutoff. We selected material construction contracts, read their financial
budgets on contract revenue and costs and interviewed the Group’s
quantity surveyors regarding the preparation and approval processes of
financial budgets of construction contracts and the progress of work
certification by independent surveyors. In addition, we read the
correspondence between the Group and independent surveyors and, if
necessary, obtained professional advice from the dispute resolution advisors
engaged by the contract customers and the Group in respect of
construction work performed. We also assessed the adequacy of the
related disclosures in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of land held for property
development

At 31 March 2021, land held for property development of the Group
amounted to HK$274 million.

The carrying amounts of the land held for property development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Significant management
judgement is involved in determining the estimated net realisable values of
the land held for property development, including the estimation of selling
prices, costs to be incurred until completion.

Given the sensitivity of the assumptions and the level of judgement
involved, management engaged independent professional valuers to
prepare a feasibility report and a valuation report for the land held for
property development of the Group.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3.3, 4 and 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

As part of our audit procedures, we obtained the feasibility report and
valuation report and assessed the objectivity, competence and
independence of the independent professional valuers. We engaged our
internal valuation specialists to assist us in assessing the bases and
assumptions adopted in the impairment assessments. In addition, our
procedures included discussions with management and the independent
professional valuers about the assumptions and parameters used in
estimating the latest selling prices, costs to be incurred until completion,
variable selling expenses and, as applicable, the feasibility of the Group’s
property development plan.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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EY:x

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
¥ M A% B A R

e
EY:

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 M A% B R
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT B BERGESMBERERE
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EENEE 2
STATEMENTS (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine #EEZEZES @ /ERMNEET - BAET Y
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the AHIMGATBKRENEFEZHBEENS
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore I8 @ EMEK R EIZ B8 o FKPIEZEED
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’'s report ¥R ZEEHE @ BRIEERSIERTA
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or FFARFBEZEERE @ K EBIKERNIBER
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should '~ ' A EBHAERMFEF BRE=HE
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of ~KHIBFE A RBHEAN R RFIZ - BIFAH
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest — JRENEIEIRE P (EEZEE -

benefits of such communication.

NN

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent HAXKBIZEMHENESBEEAEZASE

auditor’s report is CHENG, Man. e -

Ernst & Young o ST
Certified Public Accountants HEEITAD

Hong Kong B

30 June 2021 202146 A30H

TMEE A B RER AT 202021 3] a




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REiEm&kEMEENER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31BIEFE

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

REVENUE =] 6 7,534,258 8,000,800
Cost of sales SHE RN (7,223,267) (7,489,203)
Gross profit ESVY| 310,991 511,597
Other income and gains, net E A A R F 5 7 327,547 186,477
Selling expenses HERX (4,748) (3,688)
Administrative expenses ITERFE X (467,254) (453,048)
Provision for litigations A2 B 35(b) (272,010) -
Other expenses, net HAuF = F 58 (20,696) (21,588)
Finance costs RE AN 8 (79,051) (124,788)
Share of profit of a joint venture FE(E—EE & AR 20(c) 3,532 670
Share of profits and losses of associates JE (B 2N B)0 I N B5 18 21(c) 14,978 18,308
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBLAT (B518) R F 9 (186,711) 113,940
Income tax FriS#i 12 (2,374) (13,267)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR REE (BB) &7 (189,085) 100,673

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Htt2EUkz (EE)

Jtems that may be reclassified to R BRI fE ERT H 2 E
profit or loss in subsequent periods: ZIEA :
Exchange differences: bE =5
Translation of foreign operations HMEGINETS 42,431 (45,977)
Reclassification adjustments for BB,/ (W) 2 EFHHE
losses/(gains) included in HE (Gt AER) -
profit or loss upon:
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUBKM B A RléR e AR 43(b) - 4,784
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEHB AR 43(c) 106 (30)
Deregistration of subsidiaries B E A A (3,003) 3,660
Share of movement in the exchange FE{E—FH& & R AlINE
fluctuation reserve of a joint venture WENEE 2 EH) 20(0) 511 118
Share of movements in the exchange JE (LB & N R INE R B)
fluctuation reserves of associates Bz 2 21(c) 1,582 (895)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) AEEH M2 EURZE (BE)
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME EHIREB T ZAEH
TAX OF NIL 41,627 (38,340)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME ZA&FE2H (Ei8) WA %E
FOR THE YEAR (147,458) 62,333
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REEakEMEEEER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31BIEFE

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR BEARERE (EBE) &R
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Shareholders of the Company /NG S (184,506) 101,432
Non-controlling interests e (4,579) (759)
(189,085) 100,673
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FE{LAREE2E (F5E) W
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO: M
Shareholders of the Company RN BIREER (142,879) 63,092
Non-controlling interests Rt (4,579) (759)
(147,458) 62,333
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE RATRREEETR HK cents HK cents
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS (B8 EA B BN
OF THE COMPANY 14
Basic and diluted HEHAR K #E (10.16) 5.51

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# a




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
HREMBRRE

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M R NRE 5 383,544 291,097
Investment properties KEYE 16 11,256 -
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17(a) 181,015 182,184
Goodwill [ 18 122,377 43,211
Investments in joint ventures NEENTIZTE 20 12,349 8,306
Investments in associates NEtE AT Z21RE 21 375,945 448,803
Land held for property development FHEY SRR 2 T 22(a) 236,149 235,480
Debt investments at fair value through AT EFABR 2 EREKRE
profit or loss 28(a) 3,642 -
Deferred tax assets EIEFRIAE B 36 1,648 891
Total non-current assets IEmBIEEATE 1,327,925 1,209,972
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Land held for property development FHEMEER 2 i 22(a) 37,887 35,162
Properties under development KRR 22(b) - 293,990
Properties held for sale HEHE Y 22(b) - 1,028
Inventories FE 23 7.503 =
Contract assets BHEE 24(a) 3,328,765 3,333,744
Trade receivables B Z R RIA 25 783,119 951,828
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables JE{ZXIE - 34 K H fth e Y 0B 26 1,077,936 877,872
Promissory notes = B 27 - 180,000
Income tax recoverable AR Bl A5 H7 38,710 21,984
Equity investments at fair value through BAFEFABRZ ZBRAIEE
profit or loss 28(b) 1,868 59
Restricted cash and pledged deposits XRHIR e KB ERFHR 29 14,294 10,314
Cash and cash equivalents e NENSZEER 30 1,556,582 1,134,824
6,846,664 6,840,805
Non-current asset and assets of a disposal DB AEHEHNE ZIERBEE K
group classified as held for sale —MHEEEZEE 317 399,947 103,481
Total current assets mMENE EBRE 7,246,611 6,944,286
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e IR R

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B S e IR 32 1,505,112 1,809,724
Contract liabilities EHEE 24(b) 64,085 33,105
Other payables and accruals EL b < /1B I FE ET R IE 33 863,997 668,247
Bank borrowings IRITE 34 3,179,019 1,623,620
Lease liabilities HEAE 17(b) 30,722 27,971
Provision for construction works BEETE 7 BYE 35(@) 103,695 130,323
Provision for litigations A A 35(b) 272,010 =
Income tax payables FEGFTSH 68,678 92,179
6,087,318 4,385,169
Liabilities directly associated with the assets E25 48 AF{ETHE 2
of a disposal group classified as held —MHEEEZEE
for sale HEMAENEE 31 77,068 =
Total current liabilities B BEEE 6,164,386 4,385,169
NET CURRENT ASSETS RENEEFE 1,082,225 2,559,117
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ EAFER RS E 2,410,150 3,769,089
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREEE
Bank borrowings RITEK 34 36,079 1,229,585
Lease liabilities HEBE 17(b) 25,083 37,293
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFIEEE 36 3,703 3,469
Total non-current liabilities EmB B EERE 64,865 1,270,347
Net assets BEZE 2,345,285 2,498,742
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE MBI K

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to shareholders of  Z&RQFREKREGELS
the Company
Issued capital BT A 37(a) 182,013 183,833
Reserves i 40(a) 2,105,993 2,278,405
2,288,006 2,462,238
Non-controlling interests FEIERR FE RS 57,279 36,504
Total equity EmAsE 2,345,285 2,498,742
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic Pang Yat Bond, Derrick
—E =—F
Director Director
EF EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RalREDEER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31BIEFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
NG
Shares
held under Share-
the share based
Share award  compen- Exchange Non-
lssued  premium  scheme sation Capital  flutuation  Retained controlling Total

capital  account  account reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity

Bt HNE
RE REE F HMEE EARE RIEE
Notes { [ HK$'000  HK$'000
Kzt BT TAT FET  FAr  ThAr  TAT
At 1 April 2019 MN2019%4 810 186,339 773,174 (10,643) 8,764 11,901 13,207 1,458,860 2,441,602 32,548 2,474,150
Profit for the year REERF = = = = = - 101432 101432 (759) 100,673
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AFEEMZE
for the year: s/ (B8)
Exchange differences: EHER:
Translation of foreign RERNER
operations - - - - - (45,977) - (45,977) - (45,977)
Reclassification adjustments for (1) /B2
(gains)losses included in ENOERE
profit or loss upon: (FtABR) :
Deconsolidation of BB AR
subsidiaries YN 43(b) - - - - - 4,784 - 4,784 - 4,784
Disposal of a subsidiary LE-HNBAR 430 = - - = = (30 = (30 _ (30
Deregistration of a ﬁl%iﬁﬂﬂ—ﬁﬁ
subsidiary WEAR - - - - - 3,660 - 3,660 - 3,660
Share of movement in the - Fﬁ’é’é“’&
exchange fluctuation INERE S
reserve of a joint venture 288 = - - - - 118 - 118 - 118
Share of movements in [EfRRE 2 A RISNE
the exchange fluctuation KB 2
reserves of associates - - - - - (895) - (895) - (895)

Total comprehensive (loss)income  AFE 2 (EH) /hz
for the year b - - - - - (38340) 101,432 63,092 (759) 62,333

Deemed contribution fromthe  R{EAR FHERRE 214
controlling shareholder of

the Company 40(b)(iv) - - - - 6,961 - - 6,961 - 6,961
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKBAR 42(a) - - - - - - - - 27,951 27,951
Deemed disposal of partial interest 8 {FH & —FEHB A

in a subsidiary LENES - - - - (167) (16) - (183) 183 -
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries ~ FUEKBAFIEGA AR 43(b) - - - - - - - - (262260  (26,226)
Cancellation of repurchased shares 5 #42 B ER{ 37(a) (2,506)  (13,103) = = = = - (15609 - (15609
Equity-settled share option expense JARAAE 2 BRIEE S 390) = = = 2,922 = = = 2922 = 2922
Other equity-settled share-based ~ H AR E 7 AR

payment expense RERMFHFEX 9 - - - 2,650 - - - 2,650 - 2,650
Exercise of equity-settled DR EE 7 AR A

share-based payment HBAFz e 9 - - - (2,650) 1173 - = (1,477) 2,807 1,330
Transfer of share-based R R

compensation reserve upon R

forfeiture of share options - - - (444) - - 444 - - -
Final 2019 dividend declared EER2019FERLRES = = = = - - (15561)  (15561) - (15,561)
Interim 2020 dividend declared ~ 2EIR2020FEFHRE 13 - - - - - - (22159 (22159 - (22159
At31 March 2020 R2020£3A318 183833 T60071* (10643 11242* 19868 (25,149 1523016* 2462238 36504 2498742
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERREREH R

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31BIEFE

Attributable to shareholders of the Company
AARRREE
Shares
held under Share-
the share based
Share award  compen- Exchange Non-
Issued  premium  scheme sation  Capital fluctuation Retained controlling Total

capital  account  account  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
RERG
by |
BEf R RET ) HE FER
Ra  RER BENRG BHEE SARE RBERE REEN aa BE  ERAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
FEr FEr T T TEn TEn TEn TAr FiET FiET

At 1 April 2020 202054 81H 183,833 760,071 (10,643) 11,242 19,868 (25,149) 1,523,016 2,462,238 36,504 2,498,742
Loss for the year rEERR - - - - - - (184506) (184506)  (4579) (189,085)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AFEEM 2
for the year: s/ (88) :
Exchange differences: EHER:
Translation of foreign RERNER
operations - - - - - 42,431 - 42,431 - 42,431
Redclassification adjustments for 548,/ (I3) 2
losses/(gains) included in ENOERE
profit or loss upon: (GtABR) :
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RNBAR 430 - - - - - 106 - 106 - 106
Deregistration of subsidiaries REERME AR - - - - - (3003 - (3,003 - (3,003
Share of movement in the El-HAERA
exchange fluctuation INEREIGHE
reserve of a joint venture 22%) - - - - - M - N - 2
Share of movements in BB EARINE
the exchange fluctuation RENEE 2 BE)
reserves of assoclates - - - - - 1,582 - 1,582 - 1,582

Total comprehensive income/(loss)  AEE 2 Elz / (E18)
for the year k| - - - _

41,627 (184,506)  (142,879) (4,579)  (147,458)

Contribution from non-controlling 3R & it B2 F13EHE

equity holders of subsidiaries REFEAZFE - - - - - - - - 2 2
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR 42() - - - - - - - - 9,750 9,750
Consolidation of subsidiaries NG

upon resumption of control RS A AR 4(b) - - - - - - - - 15,657 15,657
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RNBAR 43(0) - - - - - - - - (74) (74)
Deregistration of a subsidiary (6= a0 - - - - (10,240) - 10,240 - - -
Cancellation of repurchased shares 5 $42 B ER 7 37(a) (1,820  (9.171) - - - - - (10,991) - (10,991)
Equity-settled share option expense JRAAE 2 BRIERS 390 - - - 1,048 - - - 1,048 - 1,048
Other equity-settled share-based ~ Efi SARR AL E 2 AR

payment expense AEREFARE 9 - - - 1,804 - - - 1,804 - 1,804
Transfer of share-based MR ERE R

compensation reserve upon R

forfeiture of share options - - - (1,094) - - 1,094 - - -
Final 2020 dividend declared BEER00FERARE 13 - - - - - - (7,334  (7.334) - (7.334)
Interim 2021 dividend declared ~ EEJE2021 FEF MRS 13 - - - - - - (15880)  (15880) - (15880)
At31 March 2021 R2021%3A318 182013 750900+ (10643 13000+  9628*  16478* 1326,630* 2288006 57219 2345285

& These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$2,105,993,000  * M2021F3A310  ZERHEEREGEEH
(2020: HK$2,278,405,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position as at kR R A Z &R A % #52,105,993,0007 JT
31 March 2021. (20204 : 2,278,405,000/87T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER
5% 2001 #3731 R

2021
HK$000

2020
HK3$'000

TET T#ET

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

RAREEDH2HERE

DA ERERERAR 2020721 3R a

(Loss)/profit before tax KES AT (EE) %A (186,711) 113,940
Adjustments for: R

Share of profit of a joint venture EiE—M& &R alm (3,532) (670)
Share of profits and losses of associates FE(EEE 2 A Al m A R EE (14,978) (18,308)
Interest income FBUA 7 (26,170) (45,089)
(Gain)/loss on deregistration of s E AR 2

subsidiaries, net (W), EBFHE 9 (5,689) 5,046
(Gain)/loss on sale of property interests HALENBARIHEE

through disposal of subsidiaries iz (W), /B8 9 (11,515) 1,078
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUEM B A Rl4Ra ARz W 7 - (9,270)
Losses on disposal of other subsidiaries HEHMHTE AR ZEE 9 349 402
Gain on deregistration of a joint operation  BIEH LT —E & & %75 2 Wz 7 (2,863) -
Gain on remeasurement of a pre-existing &t 8N — &L A T

interest in an associate B AR 2 W 7 (3,493) =
Gain on disposal of an associate & — A R |l 2 e 7 - (2,995)
Fair value loss of investment properties, net 1% & ¥ % A\ (&8 %58 9 600 =
Fair value gain of debt investments at BATET ARG

fair value through profit or loss EERE 2 A EKE 7 (97) =
Finance costs B &R A 8 80,962 127,568
Depreciation of items of property, plant S E TSR

and equipment e 9 55,178 56,051
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZINE 9 31,948 30,262
Fair value loss of equity investments BATEFABRZ

at fair value through profit or loss RARIEE 7 A FEEE 9 210 6
Gain on disposal of a self-occupied HE—RERRAEYE

office premise ZWas 7 - (109,479)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of other items of HEHMYE WS NEE

property, plant and equipment, net HAE 7 EE S (Uhss) F5E 9 3,777 (1,810)
Write-off of items of property, M - WS REHEIEE

plant and equipment ZHER 9 357 113
Write-off of investment in an associate R — B S N TR E 2 R 9 3,556 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEE 2 RE 9 - 10,167
Impairment of inventories FEZRE 9 380 -
Impairment of contract assets BHEEZRE 9 2,396 -
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EWFIE 2 RE 9 432 -
Impairment of other receivables H b fE U FIE 2 R E 9 5,116 5,877
Equity-settled share option expense VARR AR 45 5 2 BB AR M A 2 g 1,048 2,922
Other equity-settled share-based HA ARG R 2 ARG &

payment expense AR AR 9 1,804 2,650
Provision for litigations el B 35(b) 272,010 =

205,075 168,461




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
n_\éiﬁﬁiﬁii

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31BIEFE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FEITL
Increase in land held for property BIEYEER 2 T REBERES
development and properties under CIESYIl
development (54,726) (53,387)
Decrease in properties held for sale BEIEHEMER D 388 1,388
Increase in inventories FEEM (311) =
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEBERLD,/ (M) 61,204 (569,105)
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 W IER > 209,199 22,627
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR -~ me R EHMERGIE
deposits and other receivables (&), F (44,451) 106,704
Decrease in trade payables B S RIRm (325,267) (37,178)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities aHaEEMm CRd) 29,593 (472)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables L fth JE < 300 R FE ST RKOE
and accruals i, O A) 205,797 (208,362)
Decrease in provision for construction works 228 T 52 7 B &R (26,628) (2,805)
Cash from/(used in) operations et s J(FRA) 2R S 259,873 (572,129)
Interest paid BHE (1,911) (2,780)
Income taxes paid EFIER (30,056) (9,596)
Net cash flows from/(used in) e REES (TR 2
operating activities WEMEFE 227,906 (584,505)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31BIEFE

2021

2020

Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hitat FET FA&T

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REREZDHZRERE

ACTIVITIES
Interest received = U F B 26,170 32,227
Dividend received from an associate B —ME A RIRE 2 IR B 2,971 1,710
Purchase of motor buses (items of property, BBEE L+ (% - #e5 R RE

plant and equipment) and passenger HE ) RREEEF

service licences (intangible assets) (B EE) - (278,165)
Purchases of other items of property, BEHMYE SRk

plant and equipment FEIEE (95,624) (57,592)
Purchase of right-of-use assets BEFERESE (4,705) -
Proceeds from disposal of a self-occupied — H&E—RBERHAEYE

office premise FriS k18 - 136,889
Proceeds from disposal of other items of HEEMYIZE - SR

property, plant and equipment RABIE B TS RIE 5,219 2,644
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREYEMSIIA

properties - 3,092
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHE A R 42(a) (63,197) 7,927
Consolidation of subsidiaries upon B 188 2 &) PR B2 3T R AT 2 I R R

resumption of control e AR 42(b) 16,006 -
Acquisition of associates Y B Bsk 2 8 Al - (131,448)
Proceeds from sale of property interests BRELENBARLEME

through disposal of subsidiaries M PTIS ROE 43(a) 105,030 436,768
Proceeds from disposal of other subsidiaries & E fth fff BB A & Fr 15 5518 43(c) 1,455 -
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUEME A ml4Ra AR 43(b) - (18,192)
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & — B & A B TS 308 - 3,585
Deposit received from disposal of an EHER—HOEARBEHEEZ

investment in a joint venture which is EMBEENEERAIZ

classified as a non-current asset REFTNE 2 &

held for sale - 11,690
Purchase of equity investments at BER AP E ABRS 2R

fair value through profit or loss & (3,112) =
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments &2 A F{EE A Bz 2 R

at fair value through profit or loss WA TS 3RIE 1,093 -
Redemption/(subscription) of fEm, (RE) A AR

promissory notes 27 180,000 (180,000)
Subscription of convertible bond and REB AR E R M EiE

promissory note (3,545) =
Contribution to an associate m—HEEAREE (12,000) =
(Increase)/decrease in an amount due Rl —F4& & Na) 2 FIE

from a joint venture (), Ed (3,834) 588
Increase in amounts due from associates FE UGBS & A B 2 TRIE S A0 (124,603) (26,628)
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables FEWE FOR A, (1) 85,881 (128,495)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BEFEHELE(FIR)Z

investing activities REMEFHE 113,205 (183,400)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mERERER

Year ended 31 March 2021
HE2021F3A31BIEFE

2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FHETT FET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING REMETBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Repurchase of shares AR g 37(a) (10,991) (15,609)
Advance from a non-controlling equity KRB — MK B R R IR A A A
holder of subsidiaries B AZBNR - 19,765
New bank loans EBRITER 3,415,073 4,324,840
New trust receipt loans FEETBIRER 351,255 511,951
Repayment of bank loans BEIRITTEN (3,122,411) (4,206,622)
Repayment of trust receipt loans EEETUBERER (397,399) (353,796)
Principal portion of lease payments/hire HEMK THEAORRBE
purchase contract and finance lease HMEHSNRZ AL E D
rental payments (36,576) (32,264)
Interest element of lease payments/ REMR HEAOERE
hire purchase contract and finance HEHS MR ZFEE D
lease rental payments (143) (207)
Other interest paid HEMERFLE (84,561) (132,819)
Dividends paid BRRE (23,214) (37,720)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash and SR HIIR € KB IRIBER
pledged deposits (g, @ (13,531) 15,835
Net cash flows from financing activities B ESEE VIS RE R 77,502 93,354
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH ReRERSEHEIER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #i, (R FHE 418,613 (674,551)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of & ¥R 4 & ERIR S5 (EIA B
year 1,134,824 1,829,856
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 4N & R & &) 2558 8,332 (20,481)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERBFRERHEFESZEEER
END OF YEAR 1,561,769 1,134,824
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH ReREFRSEHEER
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EERDM
Cash and bank balances B & MIRITA R 30 1,556,582 1,134,824
Cash and short term deposits attributable D3 AiF{EEE r —RHEHEE£E
to a disposal group classified as held FE(EIR & KRR BIfE K
for sale 37 5,187 -
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the & mE XIS K
statement of cash flows REFMEIEE 1,561,769 1,134,824
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A 35 SR TR 5E

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited is incorporated in Bermuda
as an exempted company with limited liability and its shares are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is located
at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda,
and the principal place of business of the Company is located at C1,
5th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Industrial Building Phase 1, 601-603
Tai Nan West Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”), joint operations, joint ventures and associates were
involved in the following principal activities:

° provision of construction and consultancy services in areas of
civil engineering, electrical and mechanical engineering,
foundation and building construction mainly in Hong Kong;

o development and sale of properties and leasing of assets in
Hong Kong, mainland (“Mainland China”) of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and the United Arab Emirates
(the "UAE");

o provision of security, tunnel and other facility management
services in Hong Kong;

o provision of non-franchised bus services in Hong Kong; and

° production and sale of positron emission tomography (“PET")
radiopharmaceuticals for medical use in Hong Kong (a new
business line acquired during the year ended 31 March 2021).

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries, joint operations, a
joint venture and associates are set out in notes 50, 51, 52 and 53 to
the financial statements, respectively.

At 31 March 2021, in the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), the immediate holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is GT Winners Limited (“GT
Winners”), which is a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) with limited liability.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BB R R MY RE

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 2.1 2 FAEE
Current liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2021 amounted to ANEER2021F3A3MBZREEE
approximately HK$6.16 billion, comprising, inter alia, bank #)/6,160,000,0008 ¢ © EF B IEE
borrowings of approximately HK$3.18 billion which are repayable R—FEARNRIREREEZRITERLY S
within one year or on demand. Despite this, the Directors consider 3,180,000,000/8 7T » B E WL - TF
that the Group will have adequate funds available to enable it to RERNEBEEAETRAHFEES AE
operate as a going concern after taking into account, inter alia, the HiZBERE g zE (HEhaiE)
historical operating performance of the Group and the consent from AEB 7 BELERRNMABRITRE
relevant banks to waive the requirement on the Group to comply NP BEBAEEEBSTEE2021F3 A
with certain financial covenants for the year ended 31 March 2021. BSTHIEFEZETHBROZHETE -
Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on the At - WS FERER RIS E LR E
going concern basis which assumes, inter alia, the realisation of e ERRBRX(EPAEE)RESE
assets and satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. BREPSEEENBITAE -

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.2 fmBE%E

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention except for (i)
investment properties and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss which have been measured at fair value; and (ii) non-current
asset and assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale which
are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell, as further explained in note 3.3 to the financial
statements. These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
("HK$'000") except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that
give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).
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Notes to Financial Statements

B B R R MY R

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.2 IRTEE »)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the shareholders of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control described above. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BB R R MY RE

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) and the following
revised HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

Definition of a Business
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021
(early adopted)

Definition of Material

and HKAS 8

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework and the
revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

The Conceptual Framework sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement
and reporting financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies
the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is
not a standard, and none of the concepts contained therein
override the concepts or requirements in any standard. The
Conceptual Framework did not have any significant impact on
the financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B B R R MY R

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs to
focus on goods or services provided to customers, investment
income or other income from ordinary activities. Furthermore,
the amendments provide guidance to assess whether an
acquired process is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business. The Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to transactions or other events that occurred on or after 1 April
2020. The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an
alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the introduction of the
alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require companies
to provide additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected by these
uncertainties. The amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group as the Group
does not have any interest rate hedge relationships.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BB R R MY RE

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.1 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in June 2020 provides a
practical expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. The practical
expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic and only if (i) the
change in lease payments results in revised consideration for
the lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;
(ii) any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease
(the “2020 Amendment”). In April 2021, the HKICPA issued
another amendment to HKFRS 16 to extend the availability of
the practical expedient for any reduction in lease payments that
affect only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022
(the "2021 Amendment”). The 2020 Amendment and 2021
Amendment are effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020 and 1 April 2021,
respectively, with earlier application permitted. The Group early
adopted these amendments from the accounting period
beginning on 1 April 2020 and these amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably
be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of
those financial statements. The amendments clarify that
materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position and performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B B R R MY R

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements:
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Insurance Contracts?

Insurance Contracts® ©

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current®®

Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

B As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation

5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in

conclusion

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020,
HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement rather than HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial
Instruments for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023
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Notes to Financial Statements

BB R R MY RE

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference
to the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation
of Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual
Framework issued in June 2018 without significantly changing
its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3
Business Combinations an exception to its recognition principle
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would
be within the scope of HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies if
they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a
business combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer
to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21, respectively, instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from 1 April 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date
of transition.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B B R R MY R

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

(b)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the previous
amendments which affect financial reporting when an existing
interest rate benchmark is replaced with an alternative RFR. The
Phase 2 amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the
effective interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount when accounting for changes in the basis for
determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest
rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the
contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9
(2014) to measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The
amendments also provide a temporary relief to entities from
having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when
an RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief allows an
entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume that the
separately identifiable requirement is met, provided the entity
reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore,
the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to
understand the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an
entity’s financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2021 and shall be applied retrospectively,
but entities are not required to restate the comparative
information.

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and foreign currencies
based on the Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR")
and the Singapore Interbank Offered Rate (“SIBOR”) as at
31 March 2021. If the interest rates of these borrowings are
replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this
practical expedient upon the modification of these borrowings
when the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and
expects that no significant modification gain or loss will arise as
a result of applying the amendments to these changes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

BB R R MY RE

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

(@

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and in HKAS 28 (2011)
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures in dealing with
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
joint venture or associate. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its joint venture or associate
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do
not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the
transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that joint
venture or associate. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed
by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for joint venture or associate. However,
the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify
that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is
subject to the entity complying with specified conditions, the
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end
of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at
that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B B R R MY R

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

(e)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset
to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such items, and
the cost of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the
amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the
cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that relate
directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract (e.g., an
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as
contract management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and
shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments.
Earlier application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment
to the opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.2 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(continued)

(90 Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16 Leases, and HKAS 41 Agriculture.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

. HKFRS 9 (2014): clarifies the fees that an entity includes
when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms
of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the
lender, including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity
applies the amendment to financial liabilities that are
modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies
the amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not expected
to have a significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

o HKFRS 16: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes
potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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B B R R MY R

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESTHERE

POLICIES
Investments in joint ventures and associates

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

The Group's investments in joint ventures and associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's share
of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any
dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures and associates is included in
the consolidated profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the joint ventures or associates,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures or associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's investments in the joint ventures or associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of joint ventures or
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in joint
ventures or associates.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of joint control over the
joint venture or significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the joint ventures or
associates upon loss of joint control or significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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20213 H31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in joint ventures and associates
(continued)

When an investment in a joint venture or associate is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control. The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;
3 its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly;
3 its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising from

the joint operation;

3 its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the joint
operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to the Group's
interest in a joint operation are accounted for in accordance with the
HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses.
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a holding company, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a holding company of the
entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to a holding company of the Group.
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group and liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liguidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that
unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation of buildings are calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off their costs over the shorter of the lease terms and their
useful lives of 25 years.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated on
the reducing balance basis to write off the cost of each item of other
property, plant and equipment to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life. The estimated depreciation rates per annum of
different categories of other property, plant and equipment are as
follows:

Plant and machinery 15% to 25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 15%
Motor vehicles 10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation methods
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the period the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use-asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including the direct costs of
construction, capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction and transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value,
which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the period of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent accounting
is its fair value at the date of change in use.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Non-current assets and a disposal group held for
sale

Non-current assets and a disposal group are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the
case, the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale
in its present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for the sale of such asset or disposal group and its sale
must be highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary
classified as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale
regardless of whether the Group retains a non-controlling interest in
its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and a disposal group (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured
at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to
sell.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue or other income in profit or loss due
to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in
the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any
lease incentives received.

Right-of-use assets in respect of leasehold land are depreciated
on the straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and their useful lives of 50 years. Other right-of-use assets are
depreciated on the reducing balance basis over the following
deprecation periods, which are the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets:

Leased properties 1to 5 years
Plant and machinery 5 to 6 years
Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset is transferred to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold
land held as inventories, they are subsequently measured at the
lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with the
Group’s policy for “Land held for property development,
properties under development and properties held for sale”.
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with
the Group's policy for “Investment properties”.

The Group's right-of-use assets are separately presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the interest rate implicit in the lease or, where that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in
the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

The Group's lease liabilities are separately presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of financial position.
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(¢)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of plant and machinery and office
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognised as an expense on the straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite
is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Passenger service licences

Purchased passenger service licences have indefinite useful lives and
are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Software application

Software application has an indefinite useful life and is stated at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Land held for property development, properties
under development and properties held for sale

Land held for property development and properties under
development are intended to be held for sale after completion of the
property development. They are classified as current assets unless the
construction period of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond the normal operating cycle. On
completion, the properties are transferred to properties held for sale.

Land held for property development, properties under development
and properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes prepaid land lease payments, cost of
land/land use rights together with any other direct costs attributable
to the development of the properties, and borrowing costs capitalised
during the development period. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated selling price based on prevailing market
conditions less (i) anticipated cost to completion of the development
in respect of properties under development; and (ii) estimated costs
to be incurred in marketing and selling the properties.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than investment
properties, land held for property development, properties under
development, properties held for sale, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, contract assets and non-current assets/a disposal group
classified as held for sale), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of a non-financial asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior periods. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which
it arises.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, or fair value through profit or loss, as
appropriate.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset (debt instrument) to be classified and
measured at amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets (debt instruments) with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets (debt
instruments) refers to how it manages its financial assets (debt
instruments) in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets (debt instruments), or both.
Financial assets (debt instruments) classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to
hold financial assets (debt instruments) in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets (debt instruments) classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are held
within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets (debt instruments)
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial
asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host
together with the embedded derivative is required to be classified in
its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

(@)  Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

(b)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes debt instruments with cash flows that
are not SPPI and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are also recognised as other income in profit or loss when the
right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Impairment

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on
a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial
asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Impairment (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and
contract assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the assets. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
assets to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are all classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at amortised cost, which are recognised initially at fair value
and net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities at amortised cost are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included as finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set
out in “Investments and other financial assets — Impairment”; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under a share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired from the market and
held by the Company or the Group (treasury shares) under the share
award scheme of the Company are recognised directly in equity at
cost. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.

Upon exercise of share awards, the related costs of the vested
awarded shares repurchased from the market and shares acquired
from reinvesting dividends received on the awarded shares are
credited to the shares held under the share award scheme account,
with a corresponding decrease in the share-based compensation
reserve for the awarded shares.

For vesting of forfeited or unallocated shares regranted, the related
costs of the forfeited or unallocated shares regranted are credited to
the shares held under the share award scheme account, and the
related fair value of the shares regranted are debited to the share-
based compensation reserve. The difference between the cost and
the fair value of the shares regranted is credited to the share
premium account if the fair value is higher than the cost or debited
against retained profits if the fair value is less than the cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included as finance costs in profit
or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially
measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the higher
of (i) the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the
general policy for provisions above; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the amount of income recognised
in accordance with the policy for revenue recognition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

3 in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint operations, joint ventures and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint operations, joint ventures and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is
measured at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(@)  Construction work

Revenue from construction work is recognised over time, using
an output method to measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the work, because the Group’s performance
creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created or enhanced. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation of construction
contracts is measured with reference to the certificates issued
by the internal or external surveyors on the performance of
work completed to date.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The Group uses the most likely amount method to
estimate the amounts of claims because this method best
predicts the amount of variable consideration to which the
Group will be entitled.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(b)  Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer.

(c)  Rendering of services

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised over the
scheduled period on the straight-line basis because the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources
(@)  Rental income

Rental income is recognised on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

(b)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

(¢)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

(d)  Guarantee income

Guarantee income is recognised on the straight-line basis over
the guarantee period.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods
or services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract
assets are subject to impairment assessment, details of which are
included in the accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).

Contract costs
Costs to fulfil a contract

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a
contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other
contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Costs to obtain a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future reporting
period and the costs are expected to be recovered. The incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are charged to profit or loss on a
systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer
of the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments
Share award scheme

The Group operates a share award scheme for the purposes of
providing incentives for employees to achieve performance goals and
aligning the interests of employees directly with those of the
shareholders of the Company through ownership of shares of the
Company.

The amount to be expensed as share-based compensation expenses
is determined by reference to the fair value of the share awards
granted, taking into account all non-vesting conditions associated
with the grants. The total expense is recognised over the relevant
vesting periods (or on the grant date if the shares vest immediately),
with a corresponding credit to the share-based compensation reserve
under equity.

For those share awards which are amortised over the vesting periods,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of awarded shares that
are expected to ultimately vest based on the vesting conditions at the
end of each reporting period. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is recognised in profit
or loss in the current year, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve.

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors of the Company) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
option pricing model, further details of which are given in note 39 to
the financial statements.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group'’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)
Share option scheme (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any
award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

Upon exercise of share options, the resulting shares issued are
recorded by the Company as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded by the Company in
the share premium account. In addition, at the time when the share
options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in the share-
based compensation reserve will be transferred to the share premium
account.

Share options which are cancelled prior to their exercise date or lapse
are deleted from the register of outstanding options. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share-based
compensation reserve will be transferred to retained profits as a
movement in reserves.

The dilutive effect of outstanding share options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other share-based payment transactions

Certain employees of the Group received remuneration in the form
of a share-based payment provided by the Group, whereby the
employees agreed to render services for a three-year period to the
Group in exchange for acquiring a certain percentage of equity
interest in a subsidiary of the Group at a below-market price (the
“equity-settled transaction”).
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)
Other share-based payment transactions (continued)

The cost of the equity-settled transaction is measured at the fair
value of the equity interest of the subsidiary acquired less the
consideration paid and payable by the employee. The cost of the
equity-settled transaction is recognised as an employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity of the
subsidiary, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for the
equity-settled transaction at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired. The charge to profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning
and end of that period.

Other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in the PRC,
Singapore and Malaysia are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the PRC, Singapore and Malaysia governments,
the assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the subsidiaries based on a percentage of
the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the relevant
central pension schemes. The employer contributions vest fully once
made.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the activity of a construction
contract are included as part of the contract costs.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final
dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.3 FESHBERBE )

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on a change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries, joint venture and
associates established in the PRC and overseas are currencies other
than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their profits or losses are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation is
treated as an assets of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of certain subsidiaries established in the PRC and overseas
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash
flows of these subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements and have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are set out below:

Classification between joint operations and joint
ventures

The Group has numerous joint arrangements with third parties for
construction work mainly in Hong Kong and under which decisions
about the relevant activities of such arrangements require the
unanimous consent of all parties to the arrangements. For accounting
purposes, the Directors assess whether such arrangements are joint
operations or joint ventures under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements,
taking into consideration the rights and obligations of parties to the
joint arrangements with reference to the structure, the legal form of
the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the parties in the
arrangements, and the relevant facts and circumstances.

Construction contracts

With respect to construction contracts, the Group recognises contract
revenue on a construction contract over time, using an output
method to measure progress towards complete satisfaction of the
construction work, because the Group’s performance creates or
enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced. The output method recognises revenue based on the
certificates issued by the internal or external surveyors on the
performance or work completed to date, latest available financial
budgets of the construction contract with reference to the overall
performance of the construction contract, and management’s best
estimates and judgements. In developing the financial budget of a
construction contract, construction revenue is estimated in
accordance with the terms set out in the relevant contract. Because
of the nature of the construction industry, management will make
adjustments, where appropriate, to the amounts of construction
revenue based on regular review of contract work progress and
estimated construction revenue.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Construction contracts (continued)

The Group regularly assesses the possible outcome of construction
contracts based on latest facts and circumstances occurred in the
construction contracts, and past experience in conducting similar
construction work. When there is a change in the expected outcome
of construction contracts, the Group will adjust the amounts of
contract revenue to be recognised in profit or loss prospectively.

Determining the method to estimate variable
consideration and assessing the constraint for
construction work

The Group seeks to collect claims from customers as reimbursement
of costs and margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract, which give rise to variable consideration. The
Group has determined that the most likely amount method is the
appropriate method to use in estimating the variable consideration
for claims in construction work, given there is a wide range of
possible outcomes which are subject to negotiations with third
parties.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained by considering its historical
experience, current negotiations with customers and the current
economic conditions.

Determination of net realisable value of land held
for property development and properties under
development

Land held for property development and properties under
development are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The net realisable value is the estimated selling price (based on the
direct comparison method) less estimated selling expenses and
estimated cost of completion (if any), which are determined based on
best available information and valuation performed by independent
professional valuers. Where there are any unfavourable changes in
the estimated selling price, estimated selling expenses and/or
estimated cost of completion arising from any changes to the
property market conditions in Hong Kong, Mainland China and the
UAE, loss may be recognised in profit or loss of the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an
annual basis. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the recoverable amount
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash
flows from the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill carried as an asset in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2021 was HK$122,377,000 (2020:
HK$43,211,000), details of which are set out in note 18 to the
financial statements.

Income tax

At 31 March 2021, deferred tax assets of HK$20,334,000 (2020:
HK$20,334,000) in relation to unused tax losses have been
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
whereas a deferred tax asset has not been recognised in respect of
tax losses of HK$1,048,788,000 (2020: HK$1,018,671,000) as at 31
March 2021 due to the unpredictability of future profit streams (note
36(a)). The realisability of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on
whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences will
be available in the future. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are less or more than expected, a material reversal or
further recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss for the period in which such a reversal or
recognition takes place.
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5.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide. Each of the
Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and returns
that are different from those of the other operating segments.

The chief operating decision maker of the Group has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company and certain senior
management (collectively referred to as the “CODM"). For the
purpose of performance assessment and resource allocation by the
CODM, the Group's business activities are categorised under the
following five reportable operating segments:

e Construction services — provision of construction and
consultancy services in areas of civil
engineering, electrical and mechanical
engineering, foundation and building
construction mainly in Hong Kong

e Property development — development and sale of properties,
and assets leasing and leasing of assets in Hong Kong,
Mainland China and the UAE

e Professional services — provision of security, tunnel and
other facility management services in
Hong Kong
e Non-franchised bus — provision of non-franchised bus
services services in Hong Kong

e Medical technology = — production and sale of PET
and healthcare radiopharmaceuticals for medical
use in Hong Kong (a new business
line acquired during the year ended
31 March 2021)

Segment revenue and results

Segment results represent the profit generated from each segment,
net of selling expenses and administrative expenses directly
attributable to each segment without allocation of corporate
expenses, interest income, gain on disposal of a self-occupied office
premise, non-lease-related finance costs and interest on unallocated
lease liabilities. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. RETHER »#)
(continued)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DERUG S R L (E)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by REFIRN] 2MIEH L2 2 hzE R
reportable operating segment: HESHIT ¢
Year ended 31 March 2021 BZ2021F3H31HLEE

Property Medical
development Non-  technology
Construction  and assets Professional  franchised and
services leasing services bus services  healthcare Total
MERRR ke BREMH
BERH BEHE BXRK BLR% il 3= okl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT FAT
Segment revenue (note 6): AR (o) :
Sales to external customers MINPEFHEE 6,566,473 1,676 952,194 - 13,915 7,534,258
Intersegment sales HHEEE - - 15,912 - - 15,912
6,566,473 1,676 968,106 - 13,915 7,550,170
Reconciliation: i -
Elimination of intersegment sales D #fHE 7 H 3 (15,912)
7,534,258
Segment results PHEE 58,646 (271,978) 156,983 6,044 3,273 (47,032)
Interest income FISHA 26,170
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMAIERST
expenses (88,348)
Finance costs (other than intereston  BIAMA (D2
segment lease liabilities) HEAEASRIN (77,501)
Loss before tax BiiAIER (186,711)
Income tax Friss (2,374)
Loss for the year AEEER (189,085)
Other segment information: Hit A HER :
Share of profit of a joint venture ElE—RAERARH 3,532 - - - - 3,532
Share of (losses)/profits of associates ~ JE(LE# & A B (E518) /&7l (6,253) 15,187 - 6,044 - 14,978
Depreciation of items of property, — ¥1% - #ERRXEEE 2
plant and equipment e (44,367) (1,542) (8,875) - (394) (55,178)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FFREEE 2 #TE (21,204) (5,165) (5.211) - (368) (31,948)
Fair value loss of investment RENELATEBRFE
properties, net (600) - - - - (600)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME « #EK
plant and equipment, net FERE 2 BEFE 3.711) - (66) - - 3.777)
Impairment of inventories FEZRE (380) - - - - (380)
Impairment of contract assets ANEBEZRE (2,396) - - - - (2,396)
Impairment of trade receivables B S RWEE 2 RE (432) - - - - (432)
Impairment of other receivables H i B 2 RfE (5,116) - - - - (5,116)
Write-off of items of property, plant ~ #% - #ERFZEER 2
and equipment bl (357) - - - - (357)
Write-off of investment in an associate 7 — &1 A% & 2 iR - (3.556) - - - (3,556)
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. REoHWER @

(continued)

Segment revenue and results (continued) TEMERELE (E)

Year ended 31 March 2020

BZE2020FE3 A31HILEE

Property
development Non-
Construction and assets  Professional franchised
services leasing services  bus services
MEERR E=t
BERK BEME BERHB B LR
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue (note 6): 2Ea (fizTe) -
Sales to external customers AINFEEHE 7,024,827 8,799 921,536 45,638 8,000,800
Intersegment sales DEEEE - - 19,909 1,030 20,939
7,024,827 8,799 941,445 46,668 8,021,739
Recondiliation: HEE -
Elimination of intersegment sales DBREEE 2 HEHE (20,939)
8,000,800
Segment results ABEE 129,409 (49,300) 63,369 15,859 159,837
Interest income A EUA 45,089
Gain on disposal of a self-occupied HE—HERNRAEME
office premise Uz 109,479
Corporate and other unallocated CEREMANERSE
EXPenses (76,531)
Finance costs (other than intereston  EIER A (D H 2
segment lease liabilities) HEEEFR SR (123,934)
Profit before tax BT AR A 113,940
Income tax 5% (13,267)
Profit for the year REERFI 100,673
Other segment information: HivpBEHR
Share of profit of a joint venture i e NG 670 - _ _ 670
Share of (losses)/profits of associates A NT] (B8) /mF (608) 18,916 - - 18,308
Depreciation of items of property, mE  BERFEERZ
plant and equipment & (35,811) (7,170) (8,203) (4,867) (56,051)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEINE (20,209) (7,918) (1,832) (303) (30,262)
Gain on disposal of a self-occupied HE—FERRAENE
office premise (unallocated asset) ZWE (RHEEE) 109,479
Gain/(loss) on disposal of other items  HEEMYE  #aE K
of property, plant and equipment, SfeEE 2 as/
net (B1]) 5% 1,885 - 93 (168) 1,810
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE = (10,167) = = (10,167)
Impairment of other receivables H A EUGKIE 2 A fE
(unallocated asset) (RPBEE) (5,877)

Write-off of items of property, plant
and equipment

M BERREER Z

(113) = =
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

Information about segment assets and liabilities is not disclosed as it
is not regularly reviewed by the CODM.

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

No geographical information of revenue from external
customers is presented as more than 90% of revenue during
each of the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 was derived
from Hong Kong.

(b) Non-current assets

REFIER (#)

Ul
&
A

THEERERE

AR EELBREEWIETHENESE
SUEERBENER W ERE -
ih @ &

(a) RANMBES Uk

REZE 20219 % 2020F3 A31H
W7 EFERN - BE0% 2K
REBE  BERAISFREE ZIK
mZ HWEERTERT) -

(b) FRBEE

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Hong Kong B8 804,012 813,606
The UAE [on] B 236,149 235,480
Other jurisdictions HalARE R 160,097 116,784
1,200,258 1,165,870

The non-current asset information disclosed above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes goodwill, financial
assets and deferred tax assets.
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5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)
Information about a major customer

A summary of revenue earned from an external customer, which
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue for each of the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, is set out below:

REFIER (#)

- RFTERFZEHR

ANEZE 20214 K2020E3 A31 0 IE&
FEREAAEBERKEEIE10% A E
M—ZINBRP R Em BT

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Customer A: EPEA:
Contribution to construction BREERE D E
services segment 3,979,233 4,096,319
Contribution to professional BREZE R D B
services segment 391,432 390,680
4,370,665 4,486,999
6. REVENUE 6. EXH
An analysis of the Group's revenue is as follows: RNEB 7 EBEBOFWT -

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Revenue from contracts with customers REBRFEAHZ W 7,533,324 7,995,052
Revenue from another source — KB H AR 2 Was —

Gross rental income from assets leasing BEHSECHSWABEE 934 5,748

7,534,258 8,000,800

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# a
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6. REVENUE (continued) 6. EXX (»)
Notes: MIaE -
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) #BEFEZIFEH

Year ended 31 March 2021

BZ2021E3A31HILEE

Segments
i
Property Medical
development technology
Construction and assets  Professional and
services leasing services healthcare Total
MEBRR BRRE
BEER% BEHE B R izfic 4= ko]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Type of goods or services EmRREER
Construction work BETIE 6,528,665 - - - 6,528,665
Rendering of construction-related  $R{LESEARZA ARG
consultancy services 37,808 - - - 37,808
Sale of goods HEEMm - 742 - 13,915 14,657
Rendering of security, tunnel and 2R % - BRE K
other facility management services  Eth 3%t & 32 JR 75 - - 952,194 - 952,194
Total revenue from contracts REZEFAHZ MR
with customers 6,566,473 742 952,194 13,915 7,533,324
Revenue from another source R B E AR 2 Yz
— Gross rental income — s WALE - 934 - - 934
Total revenue ligar et 6,566,473 1,676 952,194 13,915 7,534,258
Geographical market HE TS
Hong Kong BB 6,480,496 - 952,194 13,915 7,446,605
Other jurisdictions =i 85,977 742 - - 86,719
Total revenue from contracts RERFAHZ =R
with customers 6,566,473 742 952,194 13,915 7,533,324
Revenue from another source R B E A 2RR 2 Yz
— Gross rental income — e WALE - 934 - - 934
Total revenue liganrt] 6,566,473 1,676 952,194 13,915 7,534,258
Timing of revenue recognition WK
Goods transferred at a point REMBEEE R
in time - 742 - 13,915 14,657
Services transferred over time WE s a2 TS IR 7% 6,566,473 - 952,194 - 7,518,667
Total revenue from contracts REREFEH 2 WmBEE
with customers 6,566,473 742 952,194 13,915 7,533,324
Revenue from another source R A H ARz Wzs
— Gross rental income — s WALE - 934 - - 934
Total revenue gy kel 6,566,473 1,676 952,194 13,915 7,534,258
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6. REVENUE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2020

6. EXE
fisx = (&)

(a) EXRBEZHFER(HE)
BZE202053A31A1LFE

Segments
AE
Property
development Non-
Construction and assets Professional franchised
services leasing services bus services Total
%%?@E& FEE
R BEME HERH B R k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FEIT
Type of goods or services EmRREER
Construction work BETRR 6,996,203 - - = 6,996,203
Rendering of construction-related  $R{LESEMARZA ARG
consultancy services 28,624 - - - 28,624
Sale of goods HEE M = 3,051 = = 3,051
Rendering of security, tunnel and ~ $RHHR% - BRE K
other facility management services  Efth 3%t & 32 fR 75 = = 921,536 = 921,536
Provision of non-franchised bus REFTEETRHB
services - - - 45,638 45,638
Total revenue from contracts REZEFAHZ KR
with customers 7,024,827 3,051 921,536 45,638 7,995,052
Revenue from another source R B E AR 2 Yz
— Gross rental income — s WALE - 5,748 - - 5,748
Total revenue ligar et 7,024,827 8,799 921,536 45,638 8,000,800
Geographical market & WS
Hong Kong BB 6,961,002 - 921,536 45,638 7,928,176
Other jurisdictions Hip A AER 63,825 3,051 = = 66,876
Total revenue from contracts RERFAHZ =R
with customers 7,024,827 3,051 921,536 45,638 7,995,052
Revenue from another source R B E A 2RR 2 Yz
— Gross rental income —HeWALE - 5,748 - - 5,748
Total revenue s 4aza 7,024,827 8,799 921,536 45,638 8,000,800
Timing of revenue recognition WM
Goods transferred at a point REMBEEE R
in time - 3,051 - - 3,051
Services transferred over time Faks RSB R 7,024,827 - 921,536 45,638 7,992,001
Total revenue from contracts REZEFPAHZ KR
with customers 7,024,827 3,051 921,536 45,638 7,995,052
Revenue from another source R EHAMHOR 2 Yz
— Gross rental income — s WALE - 5,748 = = 5,748
Total revenue Wz 4ags 7,024,827 8,799 921,536 45,638 8,000,800
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6. REVENUE (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a) Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in the current
reporting period that were included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

6.

EEHE)

fisx = (&)

(a) HBERIFEHRE)
TRIIARBRERRNFER 2 WSS 5E -

ZESBOHARSBNZANEER
HREEATEME T BB EP IR -

2021
HK$°000
FHET
Revenue recognised that was included in contract FTAREHIENEES
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period: BRI
Sale of properties HEMZE - 220
Revenue recognised from performance obligations A 5t A AR 2 A sk 30 2 SE R B 4D
satisfied or partially satisfied in previous periods: B MRz W
Revenue from construction work services not A A 4 ({8 /O BR fll i 5 AT
previously recognised due to constraints on RERZREBERETIZRS
variable consideration 2z 416,146 363,760

(b) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligations in contracts with
customers is summarised below:

Construction work

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are rendered
and payment is generally due within one month from the date of billing. A
certain percentage of payment is retained by customers until the end of the
retention period as the Group's entitlement to the final payment is
conditional on the satisfaction of the service quality by the customers over a
certain period as stipulated in the contracts.

Construction-related consultancy services
The performance obligation is satisfied over time when the services are

rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of
billing.

(b) RBHEME

FRAREZEPARNBHEEEMNE
T

BEIR

RABEEREIR MR R RmER - B5K
BE—RREMAKREISHE —EAR
BN - TR ERE —E L OIZ 5K
BEERESER - ARAEERIRZE
MR BEANBURREPESHIRE L —
BREAEEERBEEERIRE -

B ARSI
FEX) B ERE RIS IR AR R Z R -

R —fR e M ARE R S5 30 H R
HSZAT ©
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6. REVENUE (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(b) Performance obligations (continued)
Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time upon transfer of
the control of goods sold and payment in advance is normally required.

Rendering of security, tunnel and other facility management services
and provision of non-franchised bus services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time when the services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the date of
billing.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 March are as

6.

EEHE)

MicE (&)
(b) RBHEFEE)
HEEm

BHEETIREBEEEm I EHEL
BB ER - BT HERIRA N

RAHMRZ - BRIE T HL A 5R E E 7 AR A A
REHFTEB T RE

JE X B AERE RIS IR BV Z R -
R —R B FARE R S5 30 H R
HSAT o

M3A31H  MBRTEOEECRERK
BORER) NECZ R HEREELT ¢

follows:
2021
HK$'000
FET
Amounts expected to be recognised as revenue: TEEER R B EN S ¢
Within one year —FRA 6,525,504 5,938,773
After one year —FE% 8,923,530 6,757,476
Total (note) #agE (fisE) 15,449,034 12,696,249

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance
obligations which are expected to be recognised after one year relate to
construction work, of which the performance obligations are to be satisfied
within five years. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations are expected to be recognised as
revenue within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include
variable consideration which is constrained.

Note: The Group has applied the practical expedient in HKFRS 15 to its
revenue from the provision of security, tunnel and other facility
management services for not disclosing the remaining performance
obligations under the Group's existing contracts as the Group
recognises revenue from the satisfaction of the performance
obligation in the amount to which the Group has a right to
consideration from a customer that corresponds directly with the
value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed to date.
In addition, for all other contracts in which the performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue with an original
expected duration of one year or less, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed as permitted under
HKFRS 15.

DEEBEHR —FRERZHTROER
ENRSERES MHRAFRERK
ZREETRE - BHMOEER TEOEME
WA B R S EREREN —F A
RN - DAIREZ 2B IBER
BB ATERAE -

et « AEEC BB BPBREEQFE
1558 AR 1TV REE 75 A M AR A 2R
BRRHERE BEMEMREE
R RS P15 W as - A i N M 5 BR
AEEREEMNETZH TR
BEfE REAAEEZREGER
EPEREEHERESETKE
BRNHzZPEENKEDERE
REBBOBREEE 2 W - 1t
SN BLIRTBEAEAR S —F AR
ZERKER SR 2 BOEE
BFTAEMELNmE @ REEE
M REERE 55 - DEREZ
i*%ﬁié%@ﬁ@?&%%%ﬁﬂq’ﬁ
=
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7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

H A A & Wz 73 58

2021 2020
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hitat FHET FET
Other income Hgug A
Interest income FLE WA 26,170 45,089
Other rental income HEaEe U A 319 302
Other service income HAnARFUA 873 -
Profit guarantee income St AR BN 14,044 -
Guarantee income BRI - 4,325
Management fee income EREBERA 2,699 1,708
Government subsidies* R 78 B * 247,525
Sundry income FETEUWA 12,260 10,904
303,890 62,328
Gains, net W58
Gain on sale of a property interest ERLENBARLE—H
through disposal of subsidiaries YRS 2 W 43(a) 11,515 =
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries EUHEM B A RLGAE ARZIKE  430) - 9,270
Gains on deregistration of subsidiaries, i s5sE M B A 7 2 Wk F 58
net 5,689 -
Gain on deregistration of a joint BsEf—HEe g sz s
operation 2,863 -
Gain on remeasurement of B ER A E A
a pre-existing interest in an associate AR 2 WS 42(b) 3,493 -
Gain on disposal of an associate & — MBS R B 2 Was - 2,995
Gain on disposal of a self-occupied PE—RBERARAEEL
office premise included in property, Uoes (G AME ~ R KR
plant and equipment and RIEREEE)
right-of-use assets - 109,479
Gain on disposal of other items of MEEMYIE - SR
property, plant and equipment, net HBIEE 2 W F R - 1,810
Fair value gain of debt investments BRATEFABR EERE
at fair value through profit or loss Z AN ERE 97 =
Foreign exchange gain, net b 5 W a5 58 - 595
23,657 124,149
Other income and gains, net HMW AR Wz FEE 327,547 186,477
* The amount represented subsidies received under the Employment Support * ZIBEREES (R s 2RI

Scheme in Hong Kong which required the Group to undertake not to
implement employment redundancy measures during the subsidy period
and is restricted to be used for the payment of salaries and wages. All
conditions relating to these grants have been fulfilled.
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RMIERA
An analysis of the Group's finance costs is as follows: REEZREKADHTOT -
2021 2020
HK$000 HK$°000
FHET FEIT
Interest on: ATEBEZHE
Bank borrowings SRITER 59,651 107,544
Lease liabilities HEAE 2,300 1,901
Total interest expenses BAEFZ 61,951 109,445
Amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in BRAFTERLHEESE
connection with the arrangement of Z BN MR AN 2 B 5
bank loans 19,011 18,123
Total finance costs 48 @h & AR R 80,962 127,568
Less: Amount included in cost of W ET ARSI RN 2 858
construction work (1,911) (2,780)

79,051 124,788

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# a
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9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9. BRBIAT(EE), =R
The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBZBFB(ERE) SZHME M
(crediting): Br (Gt A) FHIEE
2021 2020
Notes HK$’000 HK$°000
Kt et FET FEIT
Cost of construction work BET R A 6,336,764 6,596,762
Cost of construction-related B LR AR KA
consultancy services provided 31,153 26,428
Cost of goods sold BEEERKAR 5,764 3,045
Direct operating expenses WREec BEMEAZ
(including repairs and maintenance) BELERY (BREEER
arising on rental-earning assets RE) 1,307 15,508
Cost of security, tunnel and other ERHERE - BB K EAM
facility management services provided R iE & 12 IR 7S 2 AN 848,279 811,562
Cost of non-franchised bus services BREIFFELE LRIEZKA
provided - 35,898
Depreciation of items of property, Y HBENREEBEZITE
plant and equipment 15 55,178 56,051
Less: Amount included in cost of sales ¥ : 5T ASHERK A 2 Ei58 (46,737) (47,564)
8,441 8,487
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEECTE 17(a) 31,948 30,262
Less: Amount included in cost of sales & : st ASSER A 7 258 (7.802) (14,674)
24,146 15,588

Lease payments not included in the EFAHEAETED

measurement of lease liabilities HERFHK 17(c) 80,764 118,349
Less: Amount included in cost of sales & : st ASEER AR 7 B 58 (80,233) (112,539)
531 5,810

Auditor’s remuneration Z A BN & 5,120 5,100
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9. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 0.

Employee benefit expense (including
directors’ remuneration — note 10):

BEGENFAX (BERES
B — KiEE10) ¢

BRBIAT (E548) S8R ()

2021

HK$°000
FRET

2020
HK$000
TATT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& - 3285 R EWE T 1,896,179 1,882,077
Equity-settled share option expense ARG E 2 B IR 2 39(b) 1,048 2,922
Other equity-settled share-based HaARRARLEE 2 AR &
payment expense (note) BT RE R ST (M) 1,804 2,650
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  3RURIEFIEH 214 2 65,845 60,069
Total employee benefit expense EEmAFH 2% 1,964,876 1,947,718
Less: Amount included in cost of sales W FTASHE AR 2 8RR (1,668,960) (1,671,326)
295,916 276,392
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net bE R EE, (W) F 5 245 (595)
Fair value loss of investment KEMERN T EEIRFE
properties, net 16 600 -
Fair value loss of equity investments at BRATERT A B 2 IR
fair value through profit or loss ‘A2 A FEERE 210 6
(Gain)/loss on sale of property interests 3538 H &M B A 7 HE W2
through disposal of subsidiaries 2 (W), EiE 43(a) (11,515) 1,078
Losses on disposal of other subsidiaries ~ H & H A EB A G2 EiE 43(c) 349 402
(Gain)/loss on deregistration of BUEEMmH B ARz (W),
subsidiaries, net EEFE (5.689) 5,046
Loss/(gain) on disposal of other items of & H 43 - W22 L RE
property, plant and equipment, net B ZEE () F5E 3,777 (1,810)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 17(a) - 10,167
Impairment of inventories FEZmE 380 -
Impairment of financial assets and ERMEEREGNEEZ
contract assets: BB
Contract assets BREE 24(a) 2,396 -
Trade receivables B 5 WA 25(a) 432 -
Other receivables H A FEUFRIE 26(d) 5,116 5,877
7,944 5,877
Write-off of items of property, Yz - eI REREIEE 2
plant and equipment AR 357 113
Write-off of investment in an associate A —RIBE & A B3R E 2 MR 3,556 -
Mg & EZERER AR 2020121 F1# a
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9.

(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has entered into

agreements with two directors (one of which is an executive director of the
Company) and six employees of a subsidiary (the “Relevant Subsidiary”).
Pursuant to the agreements, subject to the fulfillment of certain
performance conditions, the directors and employees shall acquire a total of
16.25% equity interest in the Relevant Subsidiary from the Group at a total
consideration of HK$7,865,000 in 5 equal tranches over vesting periods of
4 to 8 years.

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had entered into
agreements with two directors of another subsidiary, pursuant to which the
Group disposed of 2% equity interest in the subsidiary to them for a total
consideration of HK$1,330,000.

The fair value of the 16.25% (2020: 2%) equity interest of the subsidiary as
at the grant date was assessed to be HK$30,623,000 (2020:
HK$3,980,000), and therefore the difference between its fair value and the
consideration received/receivable, which amounted to HK$22,758,000
(2020: HK$2,650,000), shall be amortised as equity-settled share-based
payment expense in profit or loss over the vesting period of 4 to 8 years
(2020: 3 years) and the amount recognised in profit or loss during the year
amounted to HK$1,804,000 (2020: HK$2,650,000).

Fair value measurement disclosure

The fair value of the aforementioned equity interest of the subsidiary (an
unlisted equity investment) was determined with reference to a valuation
performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited
(2020: CH Global Valuation & Advisory Services Limited), an independent
professionally qualified valuer registered in Hong Kong, using a market-
based valuation technique, based on assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates.

In respect of the agreements entered into during the year ended 31 March
2021, the fair value of the aforementioned equity interest of the subsidiary
has been determined with reference to a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections, which were based on a financial forecast approved by
senior management covering a five-year period. A growth rate of 2% is
used for the perpetual period and the discount rate of 14.6% applied to the
cash flow projections is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to the
construction material e-procurement business. A marketability discount of
25% is applied to the corresponding equity value of the unlisted equity
investment to measure the fair value.

In respect of the agreements entered into during the year ended 31 March
2020, the valuation requires the Directors to determine comparable public
companies based on industry, size, leverage and strategy, and calculates an
appropriate price multiple (i.e., price to earnings multiple from 4.5 to 15.6
for each comparable company identified). The multiple is calculated by
dividing the enterprise value of the comparable company by an earnings
measure. The trading multiple is then discounted for considerations such as
illiquidity and size differences between the comparable companies based on
company-specific facts and circumstances. The discounted multiple (i.e.,
marketability discount of 40%), is applied to the corresponding earnings
measure of the unlisted equity investment to measure the fair value.

9.

BRBLAT (B5H]), &R

PRE :

REZE2021F3A831BILFER A%
BB AR ((HENBAR]) 2
MBEE(HA—ZARARINAITES)
KMNBIEBRIM W% - BIEW R © WERK
EBETRAZGN  NEBHEIZESFN
5B B LA 48X (B 7,865,000 78 TT A% 2
EREEBHSASELERBNBARE
$£16.25% HIRRIE -

MEZE2020F3A31HILFE  KNEE
HEIIN—ENBRARIZMBESR L
& B A E ALK (E 1,330,0008
TLAZEEF I EZME R R2%MRME -

BB A A116.25% (20204F : 2%) H) i 1
RIZ L B B/ A FE 5 530,623,000
57T (20204F : 3,980,00058 7T ) + AU
HAFEHEK TERREZERNELRE
#22,758,00074 7T.(20204F : 2,650,000
BIL)  [ERAE8EMEREBHI (20204
3F) ARAEE 2 ARG BEBNA RS
AR iEm AEESE  MARAFEEEE
NHRER 2 & 584 1,804,000 7 7T (2020 4F -
2,650,000 7T) °

ATEHBRE

B B A B A AR (—TE3E B ARARIR
B) 2 A HETSE M EBITRERF G R
wmAARAT(REEEMABLEES
BIE(EERD) (20204 : JEFRIRFT LA
FAIRBERAE) RIEW IEh AT R T E
AR 3 B RER IR A 5 AR TE
T2 HEMETE °

BRBE2021F3A31BILFERISLZ
Wk - LB A RREN R FEETL
2ENESRERAIFENFERERA
SREEEMERE R FHNMETE
BIAEE)ETE - FEHRAERANER
ER2%  MARRERETEAIMELR X
14.6% BERTEAT - WA REM ERER
SR EBREERR - 25% K AR
5 P& FA R 3 _E T AR AN 3% 5 AR FE A B A (B
BUAGEATE -

MAREE 20206331 B ILFEEILZ
g AEERESENTE  FE 8|
ERRBETEALLE ETMAR - WA
ZEHAN TR AREEENERES
H(ANTFA5F 156 HER) - (Z&8T)
BRI R A R EEBERAKESTE
KitE o HERBARBENEERE
g ZEEEA LB AR Z EAREN M &
REEESHE YRS HEETRE -
BEIR =2k (BN AR BE3R 40% ) FE AR JE &
g%$&ﬁﬁ@%§ﬂ%%uﬁ§ﬁ$
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EEE A
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to The Rules MRIRE A FraE 7 EiR AT EfRAlD -
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the BB R BEHE383(1)@) ~ () ~ () K (f)
“Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong G AR(HEEEFEER) BHIZE?2
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of B ANFEE2ESHFHEEAT

Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2021 2020

HK$000 HK$°000

FH#ET FHEIT

Fees ke 1,228 690

Other emoluments: Hip s :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBEREWERN 32,313 13,248

Equity-settled share option expense LARRAN 455 2 BE IR 2 460 1,207
Other equity-settled share-based HAth AR ARG &~ AR A

payment expense ERAHRHAX 389 -

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRTEFET B3k 200 166

33,362 14,621

Total directors’ remuneration =M 34,590 15,311
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EE%FM )
An analysis of the directors’ remuneration, on a named basis, is as DEEZARERZEEHMO T :
follows:
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE202153A31HLEE
Other
Salaries, equity-settled Retirement
allowances Equity-settled  share-based benefit
and benefits  share option payment scheme
in kind expense expense contributions
Hig AR
FEZ UG
2 =1 DRAGHE HRERGRMN BB
ik REVEHN ZBREMNX 53 BE L3 am
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEx FHET FAT T BT FEx
Executive directors: HITEE
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic T - 17,807 115 - 18 17,940
Xu Jianhua, Jerry BEE - 2,672 115 - 60 2,847
Pang Yat Bond, Derrick Z—3 - 7,877 - 389 60 8,326
Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant & &% - 2,059 115 - 60 2,234
Li Wai Hang, Christina TEIR - 1,862 46 - - 1,908
Han Li' BEF - 36 - - 2 38
- 32,313 391 389 200 33,293
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Wong Wendy Dick Yee? E=iH1R2 202 - - - - 202
Wang Nai Keung, Philco® =843 134 - - - - 134
336 - - - - 336
Independent non-executive B FEHITES :
directors:
Wu William Wai Leung HER 230 - 23 - - 253
Lam Yau Fung, Curt wHE 230 - 23 - - 253
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang CEKE] 230 - 23 - - 253
Yim Yuk Lun, Stanley* B R 202 - - - - 202
892 - 69 - - 961
Total 1 1,228 32,313 460 389 200 34,590
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 10. EEHM (=)

Year ended 31 March 2020

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Fees in kind

E =

e REMEA
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

BZE2020F3 A31HILEE

Retirement

Equity-settled benefit

share option scheme
expense contributions Total

RS RIRRET
2 FRARRER X &I k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
F#T T T

Executive directors: WIES
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic T - 2,965 302 18 3,285
Xu Jianhua, Jerry GEE - 2,894 302 22 3,218
Pang Yat Bond, Derrick TZ—H - 3,027 - 60 3,087
Shea Chun Lok, Quadrant S - 2,350 302 60 2,712
Li Wai Hang, Christina E3 i - 1,892 121 = 2,013
Han Li BB - 120 - 6 126
- 13,248 1,027 166 14,441
Independent non-executive BUFRITES :
directors:
Wu William Wai Leung HES 230 = 60 = 290
Lam Yau Fung, Curt wWhaE 230 - 60 - 290
Ho Gilbert Chi Hang OEE] 230 - 60 - 290
690 - 180 - 870
Total FEES] 690 13,248 1,207 166 15,311

resigned as an executive director on 20 July 2020

1

2 appointed as a non-executive director on 15 May 2020

g appointed as a non-executive director on 1 September 2020

& appointed as an independent non-executive director on 15 May 2020
Notes:

(a) Certain directors had share-based payment transactions with the Group in
the current and prior years, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company and another arrangement, further
details of which are set out in notes 39 and 9 to the financial statements,
respectively. The fair values of these share-based payment transactions,
which have been recognised in profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the respective dates of grant and the amount included in
the financial statements for the current year is included in the above
directors’ remuneration disclosures.

(b) There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year (2020: Nil).

H2020F7 A20 BB IHITES

2 M2020%5 A 15 BE T AERTES

8 MR2020F9 A1 HEEAENITES

4 K2020F5 B 15B XX BB IEHIT
=

P -

@ REAQRRBEEREFII-BAEMET
B ETEFRERAFERBEFEH
55 SRR E R RIS A EAE
BB REBNRR S - HfE—FHF
B RBN A RRMEIORI - ZF
55 B HTE R e WRERR A AR 7
MR P2 AFHED R AR L B HE
E o MRAFEH A BRROESHE
A LB EHIER

(b) AFEEAN - WEEALZHBEESRINK
ZYRBREEMH (20205 : £&) °

DA ERERERAR 2020721 3R




Notes to Financial Statements

IS ER AR ML

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2020:
two) directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are set
out in note 10 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
three (2020: three) non-director highest paid employees are as

11.

hERSHMES

AEERN  AEAREFTHNEEBIEAR
AN E (2020%F : WA )EE - H I
FHEEN EXHFE10 - EFR=4(2020
F:=ZR)FEERETNEE ZF M

follows: HBEMT
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EUNREYEF 16,629 12,165
Equity-settled share option expense VARR AR 45 55 2 FE AR HE A ST 134 520
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRBFIFTEI 3R 180 180
16,943 12,865

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

e F THIEE R Z IFEF &= H
BEZABT :

Number of employees

EE AR

2021 2020

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 77T % 3,500,000 78 7T 1 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 % 7T E 4,000,000 7% 7T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 & T2 4,500,000 8 7T 1 =
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001 % 7T 2 6,000,000 /7T - 1
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 7L £ 9,500,000 7T 1 =
3 3
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SRR MR

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

12. INCOME TAX

An analysis of the Group's income tax is as follows:

12. Fi8

AEBZABHAOMET

2021 2020
HK$000 HK$°000
FET FETL
Current — Hong Kong BNER — &
Charge for the year REFZRL 15,705 20,631
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BAEFECRERE) BETR (15,804) 1,185
(99) 21,816
Current — Mainland China BHER — AR B A
Charge for the year REERE 43 646
Current — Elsewhere BER — E b5
Charge for the year REEZRZ 1,009 1,361
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERETR/ CBERE) 1,032 (11,854)
2,041 (10,493)
Deferred (note 36) A (P 5E36) 389 1,298
Total tax expense for the year AREEHIBARS B 2,374 13,267

Notes:

MiaE

(@) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2020: (a)
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying entity
under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 (2020:
HK$2,000,000) of the assessable profits of this subsidiary is taxed at 8.25%
and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%. Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in

the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

EBNEGRNEAFTERNERBEEZ
& &t & &R B % F B 16.5% (2020 4 -
16.5%) sHZBAE - HEASEE—HHBR
ARSI+ Z AR AR E MRS FEH R
HIE R BB - ;%M B 2 ) & 2,000,000
7 7T (2020 4F : 2,000,00078 JT ) HY & =%
Fioi 7132 8.25% B ft + 84 FE 2R B 7
AR 16.5% @44 o Bt E fib i (2 FE R B
FEN 2B - DIREAEBEKE A
TEREE 2 RATH R E -
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

12. INCOME TAX (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) A reconciliation of the tax (credit)/expense applicable to (loss)/profit before
tax at the statutory tax rates to the tax expense at the Group's effective tax
rate is as follows:

12. Fi8®H @)

feE : (&)

b) FEEEBEFE ZBRBIA(BER), a5rl
BRAREESR) X ERREB TR
MEFEZ BRI 2 HERNT

(Loss)/profit before tax MFLRT (E518), % A (186,711) 113,940
Tax (credit)/expense at the statutory  3REFE T X 2 518

tax rates () Fx (25,524) 13.7 18,808 16.5
Profits and losses attributable to & &N A REE DR ES

joint ventures and associates 2R R EE (5,747) 3.1 (3,427) (3.0
Income not subject to tax HAGF 2 WA (55,645) 29.8 (38,885) (34.1)
Expenses not deductible for tax NI d 5 71,544 (38.3) 31,639 27.8
Over-provision in prior years, net BEFEREERETE (14,772) 7.9 (10,669) (9.4)
Tax losses not recognised KRR 7 BiIEEE 41,355 (22.2) 26,306 23.1
Tax losses utilised from previous LRI RIBEEE

periods (9,549) 5.1 (10,551) (9.3)
Others Hth 712 (0.4) 46 -
Tax expense at the Group's BAEBEBERHRRTE

effective tax rate ZHIERX 2,374 (1.3) 13,267 11.6

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE

2021

HK$000
FRET

Interim — HKO0.87 cent (2020: HK1.20 cents) A Ef — A& EiHA% 0.87 &1

2020
HK$000
TEIT

per ordinary share (20204 : 1.20784) 15,880 22,159

Proposed final — Nil EEAS—&
(2020: HKO0.40 cent per ordinary share) (2020 % : R E@AX0.408(L) - 7,334
15,880 29,493

The board of directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021.
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SRR MR

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is based
on the (loss)/profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company and the weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is (i) the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year; less (ii) the weighted average number
of ordinary shares held under the share award scheme of the
Company during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic (loss)/earnings per share
amount presented as the share options of the Company outstanding
during each of the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 had no
diluting effect on the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount
presented.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
amounts is based on the following data:

(Loss)/Earnings

4. AR FAIRREESR(E

8),BA

BRER(BR) BISEHREAR
AR EEAREE (B1R), BT E
it 8 AT B B B AN A9 85 () A
FED BT EBBNEFHE : R()
AREFRIFA QB ZREE SR AR
BRI -

B A RQFRE E2021F K 20204F
3831 BIERFERARITE 2 BIRES
B 25z BREX(EBE) B SEL
EESETE  WIWERFTEN 2 BRE
AN(ER), /B SBEELARE -

FRERREE (B1R) BN EHR
BAT BRS¢

(&8]), &7

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to RARRREERNFE (BEB),
shareholders of the Company, used in wE - AR EERERK
the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per s (518) /&7

share calculation

(184,506) 101,432

Number of shares

R BE

2021 2020

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 7<% [E B 217 & @ A% H0HE F 15 81

in issue during the year less weighted WAE B NIRIERRR (0 B2 ED T &)
average number of ordinary shares held AT BB NEFIE
under the share award scheme during ARstESREARR

the year, used in the basic and diluted e (ER) B

(loss)/earnings per share calculation

1,816,611,009 1,839,870,526
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% - BBRKRE
Furniture,
Land and Plantand fixtures and Motor
buildings machinery equipment vehicles Total
B -
T REF BERRE RERRE AE ot
Notes HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
i3 FET FET FET FET FET
(note)
(Ht)
At 31 March 2021 R202163A31H
At 1 April 2020; R2020F4 818 :
Cost (%N 50,369 419,941 149,487 68,412 688,209
Accumulated depreciation ZETERAE
and impairment (4,284) (241,780) (108,027) (43,021) (397,112)
Net carrying amount FREFE 46,085 178,161 41,460 25,391 291,097
Net carrying amount: BREDFE -
At 1 April 2020 202054 R18 46,085 178,161 41,460 25,391 291,097
Acquisition of subsidiaries é-=yNg 42(a) - 4,748 3,159 735 8,642
Consolidation of subsidiaries MBARRENRE
upon resumption of control EhlERGA AR 42(b) 42,796 436 4,097 123 47,452
Additions NG 60 83,505 7,214 4,845 95,624
Transfer from right-of-use assets  {tEFEEEEEA 17(a) - 4,533 - - 4,533
Depreciation provided during AEERNRZTE
the year (2,058) (36,697) (9,068) (7,355) (55,178)
Disposals and write-off & TR - (4,139) (4,316) (898) (9,353)
Exchange realignment B AR 647 3 57 20 727
At 31 March 2021 R2021%€3A318 87,530 230,550 42,603 22,861 383,544
At 31 March 2021: R2021F3A318 :
Cost (%N 95,146 536,960 173,760 69,563 875,429
Accumulated depreciation 2ELRE
and impairment (7,616) (306,410) (131,157) (46,702) (491,885)
Net carrying amount FREFE 87,530 230,550 42,603 22,861 383,544
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)  15. Y3 - #Es Rk fE (@)

Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
equipment vehicles Total
Rt -
T REF P E RENGEE A o]
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FET FBT FAT FBT FBT
(note)

(Hit)

Land and
buildings

Plant and
machinery

At 31 March 2020 R202063A31H

At 1 April 2019: R2019F4 /18 :

Cost BRA 27,655 341,065 148,441 70,825 587,986
Accumulated depreciation ZMERRE
and impairment (16,753) (197,636) (93,417) (44,193) (351,999
Net carrying amount BREEE 10,902 143,429 55,024 26,632 235,987
Net carrying amount: FREDFE -
At 1 April 2019 R2019F4 518 10,902 143,429 55,024 26,632 235,987
Acquisition of subsidiaries B AR 42(a) 43,548 409 4,437 103 48,497
Additions NE - 47,154 2,438 64,129 113,721
Transfer from investment RIEMEBA
properties 16 38,057 - - - 38,057
Transfer from right-of-use assets (A FIEEEE A 17(a) - 15,157 = = 15,157
Depreciation provided during AEENHEZITE
the year (1,508) (27,098) (15,419) (12,026) (56,051)
Disposals and write-off HE KR (1,005) (355) (138) (2,192) (3,690)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries ~ BUEMIBRARSGAAR  43(b) (40,911) (514) (4,606) (51,062) (97,093)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RRBAT 43(c) - - - (158) (158)
Deregistration of a subsidiary b 6= Tt i L0)= /NG - - (15) - (15)
Exchange realignment A% (2,998) @1 (261) (35) (3,315)
At 31 March 2020 R2020E3A31H 46,085 178,161 41,460 25,391 291,097
At 31 March 2020: R2020€3 8318 :
Cost KA 50,369 419,941 149,487 68,412 688,209
Accumulated depreciation ZFMERRE
and impairment (4,284) (241,780) (108,027) (43,021) (397,112)
Net carrying amount REFE 46,085 178,161 41,460 25,391 291,097
Note: At 31 March 2021, certain of the Group'’s land and buildings with a then Mz : M2021 3 A31H KA £ B B & #

total net carrying amount of HK$83,453,000 (2020: HK$44,277,000) were
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
34(d)).

ETtTHREF ERE@FER
83,453,000/ 7T (20204 : 44,277,000
BIT)  ERREEER —MIBITREZ
AR (MI7E34(d)) °
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. BEYHE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Carrying amount as at beginning of year ¥R E - 166,173
Acquisition of subsidiaries I HE K B A A 42(a) - 12,936
Consolidation of subsidiaries upon B8 A RN EFTEUS
resumption of control T R AR S ARR 42(b) 11,790 =
Net loss from fair value adjustments ATEREEEFS 9 (600) =
Transfer to property, plant and equipment @ 1 =¥ % - #22 K7 2545 15 - (38,057)
Transfer to right-of-use assets EBHEFREEE 17(a) - (125,017)
Disposals HE (b) - (3,092)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUSM B R Rl4Ra AR 43(b) - (12,109)
Exchange realignment PE W FE 2 66 (834)
Carrying amount as at end of year FREFHERENE 11,256 =
Notes: 5T
(a) At 31 March 2021, investment properties of the Group with a then total (a) FR2021E3 A31 8 » #2 B [ {8 46,010,000
carrying amount of Ringgit Malaysia (“RM") 6,010,000 (equivalent to BRALRSE (3 ]) FEER 11,256,0007%8
HK$11,256,000) were pledged to secure certain general banking facilities T AREBIREYE D IKIFEAREER
granted to the Group (note 34(d)). BRET —RBITRE 2 ER(HE
34(d)) °
(b) During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group sold a residential unit in (b) MNEZE2020FE3A31BIEEERN - ANE
the UAE to an independent third party for a total cash consideration of )% 4238 & {8 1,450,000 B Bt 28 60 5 1
Emirati Dirham (“AED"”) 1,450,000 (equivalent to HK$3,092,000). As a (MR8 1) (R & # 3,092,000 7% 70) #E i
result of the transaction, these residential units were derecognised and, PEE B — B s A HE T —RIFL
with reference to the transaction price, no fair value gain or loss was F=7 c Atk ZSFEFEEMNDIFEUETE
recognised in profit or loss on the remeasurement of these residential units R WREZSERE  REZE2020F3 A
immediately before the completion of the transaction and all sale proceeds BMNBLEFEAMERBERL S TKATE
were received during the year ended 31 March 2020. At 31 March 2020, et EZEEEB N ERNERTMAA
the Group no longer has any investment properties in the UAE. EEWKESEE - REWRETA SRS
FRIE - 2020663 A31H - REERM
BE TN EHA EMREDE -
(c) At 31 March 2021, the Group's investment properties were remeasured (c) 202138310 BIE—ZBrHE

based on valuations performed by PPC International SDN BHD, independent
professional qualified valuer. Each year, the Group’s senior management
decides which external valuers to be appointed for the external valuations
of the Group's investment properties. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group's senior management has on-going discussions with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation results during the
course of the valuation.

Fair value hierarchy disclosure

At 31 March 2021, fair value measurements of the Group’s investment
properties were using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3 as defined in
HKFRS 13). During the year ended 31 March 2021, there were no transfers
of fair value measurements between Level 1 (quoted prices in active
markets) and Level 2 (significant observable inputs) and no transfers into or
out of Level 3.

A &1 {H{ERTPPC International SDN BHD
ETZEE NEBEENAEERE
ME AEESREEETFREEME
SNEBILER AR LAKREBIREYE
EATHNEEE - BRI REMSA
B BUMRERFEEEER - N
BEBRRET  AEERRERE —HHEG

B EERRRGEESL ZERET
ATAm
DR EERE

R2021F3 8318 @ AEEREMEZ
AFEEEAERT ARG A SR
(3= TEREBMBRSERE
138%) - REIE 20213 A31BHIEEE »
ATEFEE K OERMISHRE) BE
AR (ERAIEREASIR) 2 IS
B MEEASREEE = -
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)
(0 (continued)
Fair value hierarchy disclosure (continued)
Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key inputs to

the valuation of the investment properties which are within Level 3 fair
value measurement category:

Valuation technique

fhE R EATUBEGARE

Significant unobservable inputs

16. IREM%E &)

MieE : (48)
© (&)
AFEEBREE (&)

IATREATEAEE=ZR T ZREY
%EfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂEﬁﬁzﬂﬁﬁigﬁﬁik%(ﬁiz
e

Direct comparison approach

BELEA HEMEENER(BFHR)

The valuations were arrived at by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant markets. In the valuation under the
direct comparison approach, the comparables are made by reference to
those of similar properties in the neighbourhood.

The investment properties of the Group were valued using the direct
comparison approach, under which market price is one of the key inputs,
taking into account the time, location, and individual factors, such as
frontage and size, between the comparables and the property.

A significant increase in the market price used would result in a significant
increase in the fair value measurement of the investment properties, and
vice versa.

Selling property unit rate (per square foot)

RM438 to
RM927 (equivalent to
HK$820 to HK$1,736)

438 FHE

9027%E (HER 0B TE
1,736 87T)

HETESEEETISE TN T AL
HER B TR - 4R A AR
B TRLRDRSEESHORIY
S -

AEBNBRENFZERLEOREE -
it MSEERSEEGAEZ— X
SERAL B ERZYE R - MR
R BEBE S MEERARE

PR AT S ERARENE ERIREY
ERFEFERE LT RZIA -
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

17. LEASES
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16) consisting of
residential properties in Malaysia (2020: the UAE) under operating
lease arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was HK$319,000 (2020: HK$302,000), details
of which are included in note 7 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants are as follows:

17. A&

AEBEER[HAA

AEERBEEHELTHEHEERED
% (KisE16) - BIEH KPR (2020 F -
FEE) T EWE - HEKRKATE
FKEEXMRES - AEBRAFER

22 TS WA £319,000787T(20204F :
302,000 T) * EFBEHRPBHRE
BIEE7 o

MN20215E3H31H  AEBREBEEE
PR 2 T Al BSHAC & 70 & 7 Ak 2R B
Rz RBRAENZT ¢

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK3$'000

Within one year —FR
After one year but within two years —FERERFA

FET TET

222 =
99 =

321 —

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease arrangements as a lessee for land, properties,
plant and machinery and motor vehicles for use in its operations.
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land
from the owners with a lease period of 75 years each, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land leases.

Leases of properties have lease terms ranging from 1 to 5 years,
while leases of plant and machinery and motor vehicles have
remaining lease terms of 1 year and 3 to 6 years, respectively.
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and subleasing the
leased assets outside the Group.
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

17. LEASES (continued) 17. HE »)
The Group as a lessee (continued) REEEREBA )
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FRHEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and AEBEFRHEEEZREAEBENLR
the movements during the year are as follows: REERNZEEWAT :

Leasehold Leased  Plant and Motor
land properties machinery vehicles Total

BELE HEUR HERRE nE E
Notes  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Hiat FET - TET FET FET

At 1 April 2019 R2019F4A1H 25,216 31,251 22,122 1,283 79,872
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHB AR 42(3) 6,543 226 355 2,881 10,005
Additions NE - 39,989 - = 39,989
Transfer from investment HREMEBA

properties 16 125,017 - - - 125,017
Depreciation provided AEENGHRZCIE

during the year (3,677) (23,721) (2,280) (584) (30,262)
Impairment recognised AEERERZRE

during the year (ii) - (10,167) - - (10,167)
Transfer to property, BHEYE  ER

plant and equipment B 15 - - (15,157) = (15,157)
Disposals & (7,354) = = = (7,354)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries EUEMBARIGAAE  43(b) (6,129) (303) (310) (2,460) (9,202)
Exchange realignment ERRAE (383) = (19) (155) (557)

As at 31 March 2020 and R2020%F3 A31H K

1 April 2020 202064 A 18 139,233 37,275 4,71 965 182,184
Acquisition of subsidiaries e (=N 42(a) - 4,131 - 1,719 5,850
Consolidation of subsidiaries i B A AR EFHEUG

upon resumption of R A AR

control 42(b) 6,431 3,692 256 1,897 12,276
Additions NE 4,685 12,002 - 447 17,134
Depreciation provided AEERFHRZTE

during the year (5,219) (25,406) (219) (1,104) (31,948)
Transfer to property, BB KR

plant and equipment B 15 - - (4,533) - (4,533)
Early termination of alease 1A F—IBEFE - (215) - - (215)
Exchange realignment [N AR 251 - 2 14 267
At 31 March 2021 R2021%F3A31H 145,381 31,479 217 3,938 181,015
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

17. LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued)

Notes:

(0]

(ii)

At 31 March 2021, certain of the Group's leasehold land with a then
total net carrying amount of HK$123,963,000 (2020: HK$122,032,000)
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 34(d)).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group incurred operating
losses for its assets leasing business, which did not generate enough
cash flows to cover its operating costs. In view of this, an impairment
assessment of the relevant right-of-use assets was performed by the
Group based on a value in use calculation using the discounted cash
flow method and an impairment loss of HK$10,167,000 was
recognised against these assets, based on the results of the
impairment assessment. The discount rate used in the calculation
was 10%.

(b) Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

17. & »)

AEBERAEBAE)
(a) FEREEEE)
FiE
(i) R2021E3 8318 AEED K

(b)

(i)

HETHE i HEREFE
7 123,963,000/8 7T (2020 4 :
122,032,000 7T) * tERAKE
BE—RRITHE 2 ER K
34(d)) °

REBE202063831BLEEE
N AEEREEEREERE
EREEE ZEBEENRS
REX TR AR ELERA -
EERY  AEBEAMBRRS
mEEFTERNEREALTIERE
BEEEETREZTGE &R
BREFGER  RZEEER
IR E K18 510,167,000 7 7T ©
STEFAZTIERR10% °

HESE

AREEE A EY FEERRA
FEPZEBIT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of year REA] 65,264 38,431
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT 8 A 7 42(a) 6,112 3,787
Consolidation of subsidiaries Y EENGN A=
upon resumption of control T E| RERE A AR 42(b) 6,611 =
New leases e 12,429 57,303
Early termination of a lease RAIRIE—ARE (215) =
Accretion of interest recognised NEE NER 2 2%
during the year 2,300 1,901
Payments B (36,719) (32,471)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries UM B A TS 43(b) - (3,467)
Exchange realignment PE % 23 (220)
At end of year RER 55,805 65,264
Portion classified as current liabilities 9 %8 & REI & &2 D (30,722) (27,971)
Non-current portion FEmENE 25,083 37,293
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 49 HEAG BRI EHRE

to the financial statements.
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17. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)

Other lease information (c)

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases
are as follows:

17. & »)
AEBIERAEA )
HipEEER

RIESNER EHAR &8
T

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$000
FHETT FAET
Interest on lease liabilities HEABEZHE 2,300 1,901
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZITE 31,948 30,262
Expense relating to short-term leases and ER4Q HAFE & % 4 T H B
other leases with remaining lease terms 7 20204E 3 A 31 H3k 2 Al
ended on or before 31 March 2020 fEmz EmHESE A
(included in cost of sales and GTASHEXRARITHAS)
administrative expenses) 80,764 118,349
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEE2RE - 10,167
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBRARERZ A58 115,012 160,679

The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 41(c) to
the financial statements.

The Group has various lease contracts that have not yet
commenced as at 31 March 2021. The future lease payments
for these non-cancellable lease contracts amounted to
HK$263,000 (2020: HK$4,042,000), which are all due within
one year.

FER & mHAERE B RERM
410 HEE -

AEBHEESTR2021F3A31H
MARFABRZEERL - ZETH
BHEE SN2 R REENT A
263,0007% 7T (2020 4F : 4,042,000
PEIT) (IR —FAREE) -

DNE S ERERARART 202021 F3 a
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18. GOODWILL 18. &

A K B TET3HE

Cost and net carrying amount:

2021 2020
HK$'000

HK$°000
FRET TATT

At beginning of year RE] 43,211 45,994
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE BT /8 A A 42(a) 64,916 8,634
Consolidation of subsidiaries FI B A RN EFTEUS

upon resumption of control IR R A AR 42(b) 14,044 =
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUHEBT B A R4 E AR 43(b) - (6,857)
Disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR 43(c) (2,476) =
Exchange realignment FEE 5, #E 2,682 (4,560)
At end of year RER 122,377 43,211

Impairment testing of goodwill BERERNR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
following cash-generating units (or group of cash-generating units)
for impairment testing:

o Building construction and architectural consultancy business in
Singapore of HK$45.8 million (2020: HK$43.2 million);

3 Interior design and fit-out business in Malaysia of HK$14.1
million (2020: N/A);

o Provision of electrical and mechanical engineering services
business in Hong Kong of HK$15.6 million (2020: N/A); and

o PET radiopharmaceuticals business in Hong Kong of HK$46.8
million (2020: N/A).

The recoverable amount of each of the relevant business units has
been determined with reference to a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections, which were based on a financial forecast
approved by senior management covering a five-year period.

Based on the results of the impairment testing of goodwill, in the
opinion of the Directors, no impairment provision is considered
necessary for the Group’s goodwill as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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SRETS /45,800,000 72020
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¥ 715,600,000 7T (2020 4 -
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18. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

The following describes each key assumption on which management
has based for the preparation of the cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Building construction and architectural consultancy business
(i) Budgeted gross margin

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margin is the average gross margin achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements and expected market development.

(i) Business environment

There have been no major changes in the existing political,
legal and economic conditions in Singapore.

(i) Growth rate

The growth rate of 1.4% (2020: 1.4%) applied to the cash
flow projections is based on the average annual inflation rate in
Singapore.

(iv)  Discount rate

The discount rate of 11.7% (2020: 8.6%) applied to the cash
flow projections is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to
the building construction and architectural consultancy
business.

Interior design and fit-out business
(i) Budgeted gross margin

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margin is the average gross margin achieved in the prior
years before the year with Covid-19 pandemic, increased for
expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

(i) Business environment

There have been no major changes in the existing political and
legal environment in Malaysia.

\

B

/4

i

LA

BERERH (@)

EEERREBERENANRERE
VAT RIB R S EA R R T

B3
I

Hd

BFRERREERAER
() FAEEFE

AUAEEREENREEMNESE
RERBEFERN —FMERDN
FHEMEX - BFETRERET R
Rt SR E MG -

(i) FEFIERE
IR A BOR « 7R MAS AR
AT E K E) o

(i) RE

Bem=BAMER21.4%
(2020 : 1.4%) R X Ty E R
TR FHFERBRE -

() FrRE

RemEBRAMERZ211.7%
(20204 : 8.6%) #T:E X AR
AEREEBAEFER REE
RRAFESRRFE B o

ERRFTREBEE

() BEEEFE

AU E RS EF R REGHEE
BRI B IR 2 A
BEFREAERM THERE -
R R R R RIS TS
T 40 -

(i) HEBERE

BRI RA KA ROARIRE
BEAED -

TN A EERRARAT 2020021 FH a
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18. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwiill (continued)
Interior design and fit-out business (continued)
(i) Growth rate

The growth rate of 2.5% (2020: N/A) applied to the cash flow
projections is based on the average annual inflation rate in
Malaysia.

(iv)  Discount rate

The discount rate of 16.5% (2020: N/A) applied to the cash
flow projections is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to
the interior design and fit-out business.

Provision of electrical and mechanical engineering services
business

(i) Budgeted gross margin

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margin is the average gross margin achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements and expected market development.

(i) Business environment

There have been no major changes in the existing political,
legal and economic conditions in Hong Kong.

(i) Growth rate

The growth rate of 2.5% (2020: N/A) applied to the cash flow
projections is based on the average annual inflation rate in
Hong Kong.

(iv)  Discount rate

The discount rate of 16.3% (2020: N/A) applied to the cash
flow projections is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to
the electrical and mechanical engineering services business.
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(iv)

BEE

RemnEREAMERZ225%
(2020 : @A )RR TIER
BRAGRFHFERIRE o

%

BenERBMERZ165%
(20204 : NER) FrE = RBERH
ATEY R R B = WRRET KB
EEREERRE o

REMETEREEE

(i)

(ii)

(iir)

(iv)

BEEFE

RAEEREEMNEREENEE
REXREFEA —FMERN
FHEMNE - AFETRERT R
BEITIHFREMmE M -

EHES
ERRALE SRR RAERR
Y MEXEE o

BEE
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18. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwiill (continued)

PET radiopharmaceuticals business

()

(ir)

(ii)

(iv)

Budgeted gross margin

The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted
gross margin is the average gross margin achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected
efficiency improvements, and expected market development.

Business environment

There have been no major changes in the existing political,
legal and economic conditions in Hong Kong.

Growth rate

The growth rate of 2.5% (2020: N/A) applied to the cash flow
projections is based on the average annual inflation rate in
Hong Kong.

Discount rate

The discount rate of 16.9% (2020: N/A) applied to the cash
flow projections is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to
the PET radiopharmaceuticals business.

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost and net carrying amount: A REREFE |
At 1 April 2019 201964 A 18
Additions NE
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wbt B A A 42(a)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries EUHKTB A Rl A ABR 43(b)
Exchange realignment RS

18. & »)
BERENR )

EET RHNSHEN LS
() EEEHE

(i)

(iir)

(iv)

RUABEREENXEENEE
REERBEFERN —FMERD
FHEMNE - AEGABERESR
BETTISFAE ML -

e i
EBRATOR AR REERR
LHEARD -

HEE

e nE2BBAAMERZ25%
(20204 : TNER ) BERTHER
EBFHEERRR -

L

BenERBMERZ169%
(2020 : TER) FrE = R
ATEY R R R B IE & 7 R ST
BRI E R -

19. B EE

Passenger
service
licences

HK$'000
TR

267,110

(267,110)

Software
application
BHER
HK$000
FET

Total

L
HK$'000

FET

= 267,110
5,445 5,445
(5,291) (272,401)

(154) (154)

At 31 March 2020, 1 April 2020
and 31 March 2021

202043 A318
20004818 R
2021E3H31H

DA ERERERAR 2020721 3R
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

20. REERTZKRE

Notes

kS

2021
HK$°000
FRET

2020
HK$000
TATT

Investments in joint ventures, included RA&&RQTZIRE
in non-current assets: STAERBEE :
Share of net assets EIEEEFRE 12,349 8,306
Investment in a joint venture, classified A—RI&% AT ZRE -
as a non-current asset held PERRBEELZ
for sale in current assets: FHESHE ZIERBEE :
Share of net assets FEhEEFRE - 10,000
Due from a joint venture Bl —RE& & QRIHIA (b) - 93,481
31 - 103,481
Total investments in joint ventures REBRNRIZREEEE 12,349 111,787
Notes: FfsE -
(a) Particulars of the joint venture as at 31 March 2021 are set out in note 52 @) AE RNAN2021FE3A31B 25155
to the financial statements. BRI FE 52
(b)  The balance, in substance, formed part of the net investment in a joint (b) FZEHEBELERKR—FEEEQRIKRE
venture and was not expected to be repaid within one year. There was no EEEH— o - RFEHTER—FERE
recent history of default and past due amount for the amount due from the 8o EIRA LA T Z R IER T B 0
joint venture. At 31 March 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be 40 4% % Hl 4 %8 - A20204 3 A 31
minimal. B - BERERTHAEM -
() Summarised financial information of joint ventures © ASLNT T EEREE

During the year ended 31 March 2020, Mega Champion Enterprises Limited
and its subsidiary (the “Mega Group”) are considered as a material joint
venture group and are accounted for using the equity method. The major
assets of the Mega Group are parcels of lands located at Prince Edward
Road West in Hong Kong, which are held for property development.

B E20206F3831H ILEF E R
Mega Champion Enterprises Limited & £
M~ Al ([Megafi @ 1) #%4R A —M&E
AEEEE - WHAEZRZEAR - Mega
SENIEEERUNEBATFEAN
FEMEERZ L1 -
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20. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)  20.

AEE AT ZBRE @)

Notes: (continued) Mt : (4B)

(0 Summarised financial information of joint ventures (continued) (o)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information in
respect of the Mega Group for the year ended 31 March 2020, adjusted for
any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying
amounts in the financial statements:

Proportion of the Group’s ownership LAREEFREENE D

BERRZHBENRE (&)

TR # 5| Megats BN & Z= 202043 A
B1BIEFENMBEERE Bt gst
BUR B (o] 2= R4 ) FA 28 DA R BB 75 3R
REEEETHER

2020
Mega

Group
Mega £ 8

50%

HK$000
FAT

Financial position AR

Properties under development BRAPYE 232,238
Cash and cash equivalents Re RMBSEEER 705
Other current assets HtnEh & E 49,715
Current assets MENEE 282,658
Current liabilities mBAE (264,200)
Net assets BEFE 18,458
Group's share of net assets REEREZEERE 10,000

Financial performance BRI

Revenue = -

Loss before tax KR A5 18

Loss for the year and total comprehensive loss REEBERRAFE2HEREE

for the year

(17%)

(176)

Group's share of results for the year and total AEBEEAFEEERAFEEA RS L

comprehensive income for the year

*

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has discontinued
sharing the losses of the Mega Group because the share of its losses
has exceeded the Group’s investment in it and the Group has no
obligation to take up further of its losses. At 31 March 2020, the
amount of the Group’s accumulated unrecognised share of the
losses of the Mega Group was HK$771,000.

The following table illustrates the financial information of a joint venture of
the Group that is not material:

a RE ZE2020F3A8318LEE
A AEB B KIED (HMegate
EzEE AEGEBIECEA
AEBMPREZIHE BAEEN E

BEEAEEMEE - R20204F 3

A318  REBREHMegask B

;HHEWE’JE&?Q%%EE

1,000 7T °

/

It

\“M

TEBIARE—MEEAABATH
Bak

Share of the joint venture's profit for the year FEIEE &R R 2 ANF E s A

Share of the joint venture’s other EIEE & AR AN FE A2 E R
comprehensive income for the year

Share of the joint venture's total EEEERRIZAFEEAWG AR

comprehensive income for the year
Aggregate carrying amount of the
Group's investment in the joint venture

H#

SERNGERRZRE 2 BEREE

3,532 670
511 118
4,043 788
12,349 8,306

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# a
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21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REBEERRIZRE
2021 2020
Note HK$000 HK$°000
HtaF FET FET
Share of net assets FE(REEFE 152,595 191,393
Due from associates FEURES Z N B 2 k18 (b) 223,350 257,410
Total investments in associates REEE AR 2R EBRE 375,945 448,803
Notes: MIaE -
(a) Particulars of the principal associates as at 31 March 2021 are set out in (a) ZEEHERNTNR2021EFE3A831BZ
note 53 to the financial statements. Ei‘l%%iﬁ"ﬂﬁ%iﬁ?% MizES3 °
(b)  These balances, in substance, form part of the net investments in associates (b) Eiﬁ?ﬁﬁ?%‘gi%ﬁiﬁ"ﬂw ERNAIREF
and are not expected to be repaid within one year and hence they are FHH— R TER—FREE
classified as non-current assets in the consolidated statement of financial Eitt ﬁ'ﬁ“:?éﬁﬁ%ﬁkxﬁi%qﬂ AEVSE L
position. There were no recent history of default and past due amounts for TRENVE EE o FEURE & A Rl 2 FRIB I R
the amounts due from associates. At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the loss BB R AE 8k R B B R TE - R 2021 F &
allowance was assessed to be minimal. 202063 A31 0 ' BiEBEHTEAE
e
(0) Summarised financial information of associates (c) BN BB IS E R 2

The following entities are considered as material associates of the Group
and are accounted for using the equity method during the year:

(i) Top Spring Chun Wo Property Development Holdings Limited
("TSCWPD") and its subsidiary (the “TSCWPD Group”), the major
asset of which is a quality residential development project located at
Waterloo Road, Ho Man Tin in Hong Kong;

(i) Creative Profit Development Limited (“CPDL"), which owns a parcel
of land located at Cameron Road in Hong Kong for property
development;

(iii) Clover Peak Limited (“CPL"), which disposed during the year of a
10% equity interest in an entity which has a property development
project located at 38 Lai Ping Road, Sha Tin Town Lot No. 579, Sha
Tin, N.T.;

(iv) Chun Wo Bus Services (BVI) Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Chun
Wo Bus Group”), which became an associate group of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2020 (note 43(b)) and own 92
(2020: 89) motor buses and passenger service licences for the
provision of non-franchised bus services in Hong Kong; and

(v) Rainbow Jasper Limited (“RJL"”) and its subsidiaries (the “RJL
Group”), which own a parcel of land located at Soy Street in Hong
Kong for property development.

LT?E%“?&%%%$E@E’]§KH YN
A RAFEANRARREN

) REREMYEZRZERERAR
(MERSEMMEER ) R E
RAITHRREMYEERE
B]) EBEREES/MUREEM
XHEBTEEN —EAEEETH
EIAR

(i) BFERERRABCTEF
B HBEBUNEESHHE
ZIRIEMEER

—~

(i)  Clover Peak leited(FCPLJ) AN
FEHEE—ME aﬁazw%
o ZERBBEURFALHE
imE%ﬁﬁswﬁ%Eﬂﬂﬂssﬁz#@%
BRIER

(iv) MEZE2020F3A31BILLFEER
X A 7N & B B AR ) (BTRE4300)
#J Chun Wo Bus Services (BVI)
Limited&EWE@aﬁ(HﬁuEi
£ @) I % F592(2020%F :
89)W5i&§5§L¥ AER
BREIFELEELRE &

vy FEERAR T(T JB ) REWE
AEI([HEEE]) EBEEMR
/ﬁ"%ﬁi?ﬁzfmim’ﬁ%%?é@ o
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21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. REEE RN B2 RE (#)

Notes: (continued) Mt : (4B)
() Summarised financial information of associates (continued) (0 HERRMBERMEE (&)

The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information in
respect of the TSCWPD Group, CPDL, CPL, the Chun Wo Bus Group and
the RIL Group adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the financial statements:

TREIRZEMYEZRER - 817
ER CPL - EAELTSEERVESE
(L& BRAEFERCFRRE) N
BA76 A R B A R BB IS R R AR E (B Y

2021
TSCWPD
Group

REEH
NERREEE

2020
TSCWPD
Group

2021

CPDL

HERDHT :

2020 2021 2020 2021
Chun Wo
Bus Group

#ABL

CpDL CpLf cpL

2020
Chun Wo
Bus Group
EREL

Proportion of the Group's {5 K EE AR

ANBE

EIFIER CPLY CPL

&9

ownership il 40% 40% 20% 20% 40% 40% 60% 60% 40%
HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FEr FET FET 5 FET
Financial position BERR
Motor buses and passenger B+ RZiELEE
service licences - - - - - - 326,227 318,084 -
Other non-current assets HiEnaaE 14,128 7,722 14,700 - - 278,200 543 316 -
Properties under development 2 F#% 1,515,847 1321512 1,149,868 717,887 - = - = 352,944
Equity investment at fair value AT (&t ABHZ
through profit or loss fRARE - - - - - 191,289 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RERZEER 63,933 23,036 104,730 14,191 279,165 323 12,282 4,348 7,408
Other current assets HyREEE 14,417 7 1 83,087 12 6 26,736 23123 70
Current assets mEEE 1,594,197 1,344,620 1,254,599 815,165 279,171 191,618 39,018 27,471 360,422
Current liabilities REERE (1,686,343)  (1,400,782)  (711,100)  (505,842)  (279,210) (228)  (338,773)  (329,204)  (226,513)
Non-current liabilities FrBaR - - (568,010)  (319,701) - (320900 (275) - (141,000)
Net (liabilities)/assets (BfF)/AE3E (78,018) (48,440) (9811)  (10378) (33) 148,690 26,740 16,667 (7,091)
Group's share of net assets of REEEHBL AT
the associates BEEE -+ = -* = - 59,476 16,044 10,000 -*
Period from Period from
20 December 29 December
2019 2020
(date of (date of
acquisition) acquisition)
10 31 March to 31 March
2021 2020 PAA) 2021
2019F 20206
12A20H 12290
( (hiERE) 2
20215
331 AHR
Financial performance BRRR
Revenue LEE - = - = - = 42,516 = -
(Loss)profit before taxand Bt (&%), /& H
(loss)/profit for the year/ RAEE /B
period (B1)/8H (29,578) (36,152) (567) (2,164) (66,904) 26,762 10,073 - (7,091)
Group's share of (loss)fprofit  AEEEEAEE/
for the year/period R (58) /% H -* -* -* -* (26,762) 10,705 6,044 - -*
Dividend receivable YRS - - - - 32,728 - - - -

DME A EZERER AR

2020721 3R
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21. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

21. RBE N T2 ’RE #)

feE : (&)
BERRMBEREE (&)

(0 Summarised financial information of associates (continued) ()

#

On 23 August 2019, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Well Perfection Limited (a connected person as
defined under the Listing Rules and owned as to 45% each by Mr.
Pang Yat Ting, Dominic and Madam Li Wai Hang, Christina),
pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire a 40% equity
interest in CPL together with the shareholders’ loan owed by CPL to
the connected person at a total cash consideration of
HK$119,911,000. The transaction was completed on 20 December
2019. The comparative financial information of CPL presented above
is the post-acquisition results for the period from 20 December 2019
(date of acquisition) to 31 March 2020. Further details of the

#

MR201948 A23H » AEMEE
Well Perfection Limited (B#:&E A+
(EER EWRA) RE—FExLE
REBBLTEEMAIS%iER)
AN EBEWE Bt A%
ERE AR LKE119,911,000
7 7T U B8 CPL 2 40% f% # & [
CPLRNBIEA L 2 BEERR -
T FHR2019%12 A20 B =K °
EXATHLCPLZ IS LR E R A
H20194 12 8208 (WE A H)

transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement and circular
dated 23 August 2019 and 28 November 2019, respectively.

202043 A 31 BHIRAUWEEE
EE RGN E—FLFHBEHRIHR
RAARIAHA20194F8 23 H
H)AE %2019 11 A28 B #)@
j °

* The Group has discontinued sharing further losses of the TSCWPD *
Group, CPDL and the RJL Group because the share of their losses has
exceeded the Group's investments in them and the Group has no
obligation to take up further of their losses. The amounts of the
Group’s accumulated unrecognised share of the losses of the

TSCWPD Group, CPDL and the RIL Group as at 31 March 2021 were E3A3MB AEBEGHRS

HK$30,934,000 (2020: HK$19,103,000), HK$2,189,000 (2020: BRMYERRER - Elj;’rlé’éﬁ)ﬁ&

HK$2,076,000) and HK$2,836,000 (2020: N/A), respectively. W;%; B ABRANEESE

5 511 430,934,0005%8 7T (2020 4 :

19,103,000 7T ) * 2,189,000/

7t (2020 4F : 2,076,000 7T ) &

2,836,000787T(20204F : @A) °

AEBERIESIERREMDE
BEEE - BFBEERVEELE
ZiE—TEE  BEGEERED
BEAEERNEREBEAEE
WEE 1£7¥<ﬁ§ﬁftﬁ)§§?§°ﬁ/\2021

TREFIAREE 2 @R IEE AR E AR
2 EREEATEE R -

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of the
Group's associates that are not individually material:

2021
HK$’000
FET
Share of the associates’ comprehensive EEEEATZEKESREE -
income or loss:
Profit for the year AN 35,696 7,603
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year KREEHM2EMES(EE) 1,582 (895)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEEEK=BTE 37,278 6,708
Share of the associates’ assets and liabilities: MENBHEATEEREE
Non-current assets EREEE 99,618 109,252
Current assets mENE E 37,461 88,129
Current liabilities mEEE (306) (54,108)
Non-current liabilities ERBBIE (222) (21,356)
136,551 121,917

Q Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21




Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MR

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

22. PROPERTY INVENTORIES

22. EEE

2021 2020

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

Mt at FET FET

Land held for property development — #H{E¥IEEERE 2 T i (@) 274,036 270,642
Properties under development KRR (b) - 293,990
Properties held for sale HEHEWE (b) - 1,028
274,036 565,660

(a) Land held for property development

The Group's land held for property development is leasehold
land or land use rights acquired by the Group for future
property development for sale. An analysis of the Group’s land
held for property development by geographical area as at the
end of the reporting period is as follows:

(a) FEMEBRRE 2T

AEEFENFERR LA
SERRRMERRIFHER S
i % BX 2 A & + 5 + i
- BERSHRAKEREY
ERRZ THRBWR IO

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$°000

F#ET FET

Hong Kong B 37,887 35,162
The UAE fon] B 236,149 235,480
274,036 270,642

Portion classified as current assets DEARINEEZ D (37.887) (35,162)
Non-current portion FEmENEB D 236,149 235,480

The directors expected that the development of the land in the
UAE would be completed beyond the operating cycle of the
property development business, and hence it is classified as a
non-current asset.

The development of the Group’s other land held for property
development is expected to be completed within the normal
operating cycle and hence they are classified as current assets.
The expected timing of recovery of these assets as at the end
of the reporting period is more than one year.

E=EY RMBE L HER
R R EREER 2 EEBHRIA
‘T - At EE DB RIERE

AEERIEMERR 2 E ML
FRBHFNESEEBHAT
o EAEEEDESRBDEE
RBERR HEFEEZAHK
Bl AR — 5 -

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# a
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22. PROPERTY INVENTORIES (continued)

(b) Properties under development and held for

sale

The Group’s properties under development as at 31 March 2020
represented a comprehensive commercial development project in
Mainland China, which is expected to be completed within the
normal operating cycle and hence is classified as a current asset.
The expected timing of recovery of these assets as at the end of
the reporting period is more than one year.

The Group's properties held for sale as at 31 March 2020 are
residential properties and car parking spaces in Mainland
China.

Both the Group’s properties under development and held for
sale as at 31 March 2020 were held by £ K18 & EHE 52
B BR 2 8] (“Shijiazhuang Junling”, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group), which was accounted for as a disposal group
classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2021 as the
management has been in negotiation with interested parties
for the sale of the Group's controlling interest in Shijiazhuang
Junling during the year and a memorandum of understanding
has been entered into between the Group and an independent
third party before 31 March 2021. Accordingly, the properties
under development and held for sale of the Group were
included in a disposal group classified as held for sale in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2021 (note 31).

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 6 April 2021, the
Group entered into a share transfer agreement with the
independent third party for the disposal of 51% equity interest
in Shijiazhuang JunlJing for a total cash consideration of
RMB180 million. Shijiazhuang Junling holds the Group’s
properties under development and properties held for sale in
Mainland China. As at the date of the approval of these
financial statements, the completion of the transaction has not
taken place and is subject to fulfillment of all conditions
precedent.
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23. INVENTORIES

23. FE&

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FE&r

Raw materials R 5,253 =
Clinical supplies EER 2,250 =
7,503 -

24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES

(a) Contract assets

2. SNEERENERE

(a) EWEE

31 March 31 March 1 April
2021 2020 2019
20215 20204 20194
3H31H 3HA31H 4H1H
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Unbilled revenue REEE 2 W 0] 2,837,879 2,802,411 2,195,863
Retention receivables IR E & (if) 493,282 531,333 557,046
3,331,161 3,333,744 2,752,909
Impairment T E (iii) (2,396) = =
3,328,765 3,333,744 2,752,909
Notes: BHIsE -

(ii)

Unbilled revenue is initially recognised for revenue earned from the
provision of construction work as the receipt of consideration is
conditional on successful completion of construction. Upon
completion of construction and acceptance by the customer, the
amounts recognised as unbilled revenue are reclassified to trade
receivables.

Retention receivables arise from the Group’s construction work
business and are held by contract customers in order to provide the
customers with assurance that the Group will complete its
obligations satisfactorily under the contracts, rather than to provide
financing to the customers. They are in general settled within a
period ranging from one year to three years after the completion of
the construction work, as stipulated in the construction contracts.

(0]

(i)

ARBEZ R W)
THERTERER 2 2R 7 AR - R U
RELARKIN SERK T2 R 161 =
TERERIERPRIE  ER
RABREBZRE SHEKE
MO BEEHREIKKIA -

BHRPRHAZEBRRERTIE
EAAEEZEETRER  #
NAEFREREBEGREA L
R MR - M IERR
FRRERE - RIEBZETRESH
FRE  —RNEERTRRERTE
NF—FEZ=FREN -

DA ERERERAR 2020721 3R
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24. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 24. ERNEERBNEE®
LIABILITIES (continued)
(a) Contract assets (continued) (a) BHEE®)
Notes: (continued) MizE : (&)
@iy~ The expected timing of recovery or settlement of contract assets as (i) R|MEHRAR - SHEEZEHRK
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: Bk B ERFREAT ¢
2021
HK$°000
FET
Within one year —FR 1,922,328 1,228,037
More than one year iR —F 1,406,437 2,105,707
3,328,765 3,333,744
The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected NEE R A M WS R
credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the 295K T R T Y 1k 77 < 5k 78 B
lifetime expected loss provisions, for all contract assets. The Group EEBEELRE  BETRA
has assessed the impairment of its contract assets on an individual BENEEFEALMERERR
basis based on the internal credit rating and ageing of these balances - AEEERBEAREETR
which, in the opinion of the Directors, had no significant increase in RZEEHHEREERNANE
credit risk during the year. ECL is estimated based on historical EREETHE  MESFRAAR
observed default rates over the expected life of debtors and are FEAEERBRIEBEZZEM -
adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without TREAE E BB ENER AT
undue cost or effort. ECL provision of HK$2,396,000 was made for FHANBAERMEENERMG
contract assets as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil). - WHERBZ K AKSE A

A ESHATIE AR EITHEE -
R20214E3 A318 * AKWEE
YEH TE A= B 518 78 2,396,000
7T (20204 « #) ©

(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHERE

Details of contract liabilities are as follows: BHEEFBET :

31 March 31 March 1 April
2021 2020 2019
20214 20204 20194

3A31H 3A31H 4H1H
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FRET TATT TATT

Advances from customers for RERFERESZRTIZ

construction work ZETR 64,085 33,105 33,685

Customers’ deposits for HEMHE 2 EFPZE
sale of properties - - 220
64,085 33,105 33,905
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25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

25. EZ WA

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

Trade receivables E 5 EN T 783,551 951,828
Impairment (note (a)) A (k@) (432) =
783,119 951,828

Notes:

(@)  The Group generally allows a credit period of not exceeding 60 days to its
customers. Interim applications for progress payments on construction
contracts are normally submitted on a monthly basis and are normally
settled within one month.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Limits and
scoring attributed to customers are reviewed periodically. The majority of
the Group's trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate
to customers that have good credit quality with reference to the respective
settlement history.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date and net of impairment, is as follows:

fix

AEE—RAEFPRENERBE0RZ
EEH - FRBRES NP HERENRK
FRBARZXERN—EARNGEE -

REREFFHEE A - AEESFTEE
EEPHEREAEREEPAERER
B BPEREMNBREAFAKERS
B - RIBARBAERLE - AEEAD
I 458 H R [ 0 E 5 8 R S A
BRIEFEEEZNEFAR -

RNBEMR  EREFEARCEF R
FOR(BHFRBE) MBRE DTSN BT -

2021

HK$°000

FET
Within 1 month —@EAR 558,522 733,517
1 to 2 months —ZMEA 73,707 80,575
2 to 3 months MZE={E A 26,441 25,677
Over 3 months = EE 124,449 112,059
783,119 951,828

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for expected credit
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. The Group has assessed the
impairment of its trade receivables on an individual basis based on internal
credit rating and ageing of these balances which, in the opinion of the
Directors, had no significant increase in credit risk during the year. ECL is
estimated based on historical observed default rates over the expected life
of debtors and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. ECL provision of HK$432,000 was made for
trade receivables as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

(b) Included in the trade receivables of the Group as at 31 March 2021 are
amounts of HK$60,110,000 (2020: HK$46,695,000) in total due from other
partners of joint operations.

(b)

NEBERB BB REERIFE IS AT
RER BT AR TEREEBBED
% BEFAEMEESRKGBFER2
B EAES 1B AR - ARE B RIBEAZE
B4 RS EGORR Y ERNE S E
WRIBR BT S - MESRARE
EAEERBRITEEELN - BHEE
EBRIDERNESAGTFEHRRNNBAEH
RESENRGEE  YREZTBZHAR
NE AR A EFSRIEEERETTHA
o A202143 A31H - B F K
IB{EH TE S B B 18 B 5 432,000/8 7T
(20204 : 4) ©

FFARNEBENR2021E3831BHNE S
ERFRIBR NG EEBEMBEZ
X T8 4258 /60,110,000 7T (2020 4 -
46,695,000 7)) °
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. A HIE RERHME

RECEIVABLES Wk IE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°000
FHET FEIT
Prepayments TEfTZRIE 49,161 23,061
Deposits and other debtors e R HAEYARIE 148,574 24024
Investment deposit and partial —HERHEBERSH
consideration paid for a rescinded EfREReRIBHNE
acquisition transaction @) 74,000 74,000
Loan receivables FEE TR (b) 199,069 281,950
Consideration receivable e AE 7,440 7,463
Profit guarantee income receivable JE W ) R B IR 14,044 =
Dividend receivable EURZ B 32,728 -
Due from joint ventures FEU A &N B2 FRIE (© 8,910 6,799
Due from associates FE W B 2 A B 2 FIR © 541,436 370,793
Due from a fellow subsidiary of other — FELL — 514 4% 2 76 B f B2
partner of a joint operation AR E NG (© 14,523 12,521
Due from other partners of JEIN G &S HM B 2 I8
joint operations (©) 41,739 25,493
Due from non-controlling equity FE WS B S & R FE I AR A A
holders of subsidiaries BB AZ A () 14,864 15,204
1,146,488 941,308
Impairment allowance BB R (@) (68,552) (63,436)
1,077,936 877,872
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The amount was an investment deposit and partial consideration paid in
connection with the acquisition of the entire issued share capital of CCCC
Development Limited (the “Target Company”).

On 4 November 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Original Agreement”) with China Chengjian Investment
Limited (the “Vendor”), pursuant to which the Group conditionally agreed
to acquire and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued
share capital of the Target Company at a cash consideration of HK$660
million (the “Acquisition”). At the material time, the Target Company held
50% equity interest in each of the two PRC construction companies, namely
RIEENTIRBEEAR AT (“CCCC Fourth”) and FEEE +=T72
BB AR (“CCCC Thirteenth”). The Target Company and the two
construction companies were principally engaged in municipal construction,
building construction, and construction of build-transfer, build-operate-
transfer, public-private partnership projects, property development and
investment in the PRC. An investment deposit and partial consideration
(collectively, the “Deposit”) of HK$198 million in total was paid to the
Vendor at the original completion date of the Acquisition.

The Acquisition was subsequently rescinded on 31 March 2017 pursuant to
a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”) which was
entered into between the Group and the Vendor on 25 August 2016, and
was approved at the Company’s special general meeting on 31 October
2016. In accordance with the Supplemental Agreement, the Vendor shall
refund the Deposit to the Group and the Group was entitled to take steps
to protect its interest, including selling the shares of the Target Company in
part or in whole to a third party and claiming any shortfall, loss or damages
directly against the Vendor and its shareholder (as guarantor in the
Acquisition) should the Vendor fail to fulfil its obligations to repay the
Deposit to the Group. Further details of the Supplemental Agreement are
set out in the Company’s announcement and circular dated 25 August
2016 and 30 September 2016, respectively.

The Group was able to recoup HK$50 million as part of the refund of the
Deposit, but the larger portion of the Deposit, being HK$148 million (the
“Qutstanding Amount”), remained unpaid as at 31 March 2019, despite
the Group's repeated efforts to pursue the Vendor for refund.

On 19 June 2019, for the purpose of recovering the Outstanding Amount,
the Group entered into two conditional sale and purchase agreements (the
“Sale Agreement(s)”) with an independent third party (the “Buyer”). In one
of the Sale Agreements, the Group agreed to sell to the Buyer the shares of
a subsidiary of the Company which holds the equity interest in CCCC
Thirteenth for a total consideration of HK$74 million. The transaction was
completed and the consideration was fully settled during the prior year.

In the second Sale Agreement, the Group agreed to sell the shares of the
Target Company to the Buyer for a maximum consideration of HK$74
million. If the Group is not able to procure the equity interest in CCCC
Fourth to be placed under a subsidiary of the Target Company on or before
24 June 2023 (as extended pursuant to a supplemental agreement dated
24 June 2021), the consideration will be reduced to HK$22.2 million.

I

FYaE

26. T8 {3 7 IE -

t Y=
FIE (&)

(a)

BRERHME

ZERAREBHIRMTEREGRAA
(TBRAR ) 2 2 AP B BITRAT X+
M—RRERE REORE

2015611 B4H » AEBEPERE
BEERARTER DL —HEER
Z(R#BZED - Bt NEEH KGR
EWE MESERERELERER
RIZEHMEHETRA ReREAR
660,000,000 77T ([WEEEIE]) - E -
BEARFEMBEFBEEERR - 55l
ATHEENTREREBAR AR ([
WEFNIRER RPHEE =T
BERAR(THRHEE+F=TERR])&
B2 50%f%#E - BIZEA R RZmEEE
RAIEFERFEREMBERE 278
£ RUERE —BR - HE— %8 —
B AREETHEERR MEERK
BE - FEESRHEPRE(HBA R
% 1) ££51198,000,0007% 7T B A W B =
BZRRERBAIAFES -

REAEEMEEHR2016F8 A25H%
T EEARRTR2016F10H31H
TZBRREFRIAS FEREZ — BT
mE(HEBE])  KESEEER
20174F3 A31 HEREH - BB
EHARERSTAER UREES
REEBITERAAEBEBRS R
AEEEREDIERARELERD &
EREEARNTSKEBROEE T
F=F WEEREHRERRE(EAK
BEEENERA) REEMERE - 1885
BE - AlurhaNE—2FBS R
N AREIHEAE2016F8 A25HAA
%% 201649 A 30 HAYEK ©

7N g2 B gE YR [3 50,000,000 58 TT1E AL &
ZEMER  REAKERHELZSES
NHREFBAER  HRE ZBAHMH
(B1148,000,000%8 7t) ([ REZE SR ])
720193 A 31 BINAMAK TS »

MW2019%6 5198 » sikEAREELEHE
mes AEEE-—ZBIE=FTE
FDRIRDEGREHEERBEE Kz
(THEWHZE]D - REF—HHESERE
AEERZERESHEARARE—EHEB
AR(EBBEPHREET=TIERZR
W) 2 B f5 - 48R {8 574,000,000 7T °
RHIERBEFENTR - BEREDE
EEUEL -

REZDHEERR  A5ERERES
PEBRARZED ZalEAR
74,000,000/ 7T © i AN & B 7 2023 F 6
A24B8 (BEBHAE2021F6 A248H
IR ELER) 5.2 AT R BE 1R B 5
BENIRERBZBREFZEZEARZ—
FHBARET  EREZSRILE
22,200,000 7T °
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(continued)

In prior years, after taking into account the Sale Agreements and the
possible reduction in consideration in the second Sale Agreement as
mentioned above and the costs incurred to execute the actions and
agreements, the Directors are of the view that a total of HK$52.5 million
was not expected to be recoverable out of the Outstanding Amount and
hence an impairment loss against this amount was recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The loan receivables, which are loans provided to some independent third
parties, bear interest at rates ranging from 8% to 24% per annum (2020:
8% to 24% per annum) and are repayable within 1 year. The loan
receivables are secured by (i) certain trade payables owed by the Group to
the business partners; or (ii) shipping vessels and properties held by
borrowers.

The Company has assessed the impairment of its loan receivables on an
individual basis based on internal credit rating and ageing of these balances.
ECL is estimated based on historical observed default rates of debtors and
are adjusted for forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. An impairment loss of HK$5,877,000 against the loan
receivables was recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2020.

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. At
31 March 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The movement in the loss allowance for impairment of other receivables is
as follows:

26 R E - HEREME
W FRIE ()
Mt : (&

(a)

(&)

RBAFE  CEREERER LME
—PERB AR EZRERD 0 K
R ERITHITE R I rE M EE £ Z BUAS -
BEERAA 52,500,000 T2 KIEE
SEBRATKRE - BitZeBEREE
20193 A31 HILFEMBEANERE
B EIE o

BRER T ARETEBYE=HREN
BN BFEENT 8% E24%(2020F -
BF8% £24%) WA E5t B RER —
FRNEE - ZEREFAN)REEBLER
EBRHZHNE S EMARIE : i) fE
FRAZ MM RYEEER o

AABERBATEEFTRRZEEH
R BR e X7 H P W B FORL B #1716 Bl 5T
& BEEEEBRDERBBANBE
BEASENXRGE UHEFTBEEK
ANk ) Bl ] 1S Y BT RE 1 B BT
B o EUE K 2 %3 E 18 5,877,0008
TTEREE202063A31 B IEFER
B AR

ZEFEAEKF - R RARENRE
& o 20214 K2020F3A318 &
BREHEREREM -

HA USRI ER IR R ENEE T

2021

HK$’000

FHET
At beginning of year RE] 63,436 59,873
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE 5,116 5,877
Amount written off as uncollectible WiE AT RE 2 £ 58 - (2,314)
At end of year REFER 68,552 63,436

In addition to the impairments as detailed in notes (a) and (b) above,
allowance for impairment of RM2,732,000 (equivalent to HK$5,116,000)
(2020: Nil) was made against a profit guarantee income receivable during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

B b SCHT (@) K (b) sEa R B O - PR
2202143 A31 B L FE 5t U= FIR
BUWALE L 2 RERE 52,732,000 F
(HBE 5,116,000 4 7T) (2020 F : £&) ©
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27. PROMISSORY NOTES

On 9 May 2019, the Group subscribed promissory notes issued by a
then shareholder of the Company with a total principal amount of
HK$180 million. The promissory notes were unsecured, bear interest
at an effective rate of 8% per annum (after taking into account the
entitlement to an arrangement fee) and had a term of 364 days.
During the current year, on 7 May 2020, the promissory notes were
fully redeemed by the issuer.

Further details of the promissory notes are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 9 May 2019.

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Debt investments at fair value

B E ARG 2 ERNE

27. AR EE

R2019F5H9R ' AEERERAR
AER —ZREBTZ2AGEEL
180,000,00078 7T 2 H 5. 24k - BRIEAR
ZEAEER  BERFEMNES%RTE
(B RAIZELHEZER)  BH
364K c RAFENRN » BT AB 12020
F5 A7 ABRHEE AL EE -

BEAAER 2 EZFBHNRAARA
HAA2019F5 A9 Z A% -

28. WAV E A B EREE

2021 2020
HK3$'000

TEIT

HK$000
FRET

through profit or loss (@) 3,642 -

Equity investments at fair value BRAFEGFABE 2 RAKRE
through profit or loss (b) 1,868 59
5,510 59

(a) Debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss

Debt investments at fair value through profit or loss of the
Group as at 31 March 2021 were convertible bonds and
convertible promissory notes as their contractual cash flows are
not SPPI.

(b) Equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss

Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss of the
Group as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 were equity investments
listed in Hong Kong and overseas (2020: overseas), which were
classified as held for trading and stated at fair value determined
based on their quoted market prices (Level 1 fair value
measurement).

() BAFEFAEBERZZERE
rE
R2021 3 A31H @ AT AT
ANBm BREERE AR ES
RARREA S ER - THRRES
HREMEW AR FAE &
FE o

(b) BAFEFABRZRZERAE
rE
R2021FE K 202043 A318 @ &
EBEAFEFABRSE ZBRAR
BRBEBREGIN20204F  )BIHN)
ETRARKRE  EDHEAREER
BEWRERTSREEENAFE
B(BE—RAFENE)IIER -
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29. RESTRICTED CASH AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS 29. SR4IBE€ R EIEEIFER

Restricted cash for issuance of

MEHERZZREIR S

Notes

kS

2021
HK$°000
FRET

2020
HK$000
TATT

guarantees (a) - 2,637
Pledged deposits for general M—RIRITHE 2 B BTN

banking facilities (b) 14,294 7,677
Restricted cash and pledged deposits ~ 5[R #38 © & & HIR1F X 14,294 10,314
Notes: MIaE -
(@ In respect of the sale of the properties held for sale in the PRC, the Group @ HRPERFEHEVEZHEENS &

entered into agreements with certain banks in the PRC to arrange mortgage
loans to eligible purchasers of the Group’s properties held for sale and
pursuant to which, the Group is required to place at designated bank
accounts certain amounts as guarantee deposits for potential default in
repayment of mortgage loans advanced to property purchasers. Such
guarantee deposits will be released after the property ownership certificates
of the relevant properties have been passed to the banks. At 31 March
2021, such guarantee deposits amounted to RMB8,071,000 (equivalent to
HK$9,551,000) (2020: RMB2,413,000 (equivalent to HK$2,637,000)) and
were included in disposal group classified as held for sale (note 31) as at
31 March 2021.

The pledged deposits have been placed in designated banks as part of the
security given to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group (note
34(d)).

& Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited ~Annual Report 2020/21

(b)
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TEABLTHE  (EAMEERAAEIE
REZFERN ZIZBEREZ ERT
oo ZEERTRENAEDEZME
FrEREEDERRITRER - 1K 20214F
3A3MA EHERGEREARK
8,071,000 7T ( 48 & $9,551,0007% JT )
(20204 : AR#2,413,0007T (HE R
2,637,000 7t )) + M pA20214 3 A 31
iﬁ¢ﬁﬁﬁ%¢%%2ﬁ%%@ﬂ#
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30. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances other than

30 Re BB S EHIEH

B RRITHES (T RIEERFR)

2021
HK$°000

2020
HK$000
TATT

FET

time deposits 1,491,477 776,493
Time deposits TE B K 79,399 368,645
Total cash and bank balances IR RIRTTHESRLREE 1,570,876 1,145,138
Less: Restricted cash and A ZRE13R e REERFR

pledged deposits (note 29) (MI7£29) (14,294) (10,314)

Cash and cash equivalents Re RERSEMHEIER 1,556,582 1,134,824

Notes: =T -

(a) At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the (a) RFERR KEBUARETAR
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$77,109,000 MDA BEZCHRHLERERBITER A
(2020: HK$182,798,000), of which HK$75,093,000 (2020: 77,109,000 7t (20204 : 182,798,000
HK$182,546,000) in total was deposited at banks in Mainland China. The L) & R 42 %8 475,093,000 T
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under the (20204 : 182,546,000 7t ) B 77 B

PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of 7 days depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the
respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

(b)

BRI AH < $RTT - ARKETEEA BT
REMEE - AW - RIB(FEARKEM
B E B 32 (691 ) Jo (A BE - BB R T EE
EERTE) - NEEAEBERIEL 25N
X RITHEARB LMK EMER -

RITRSRBABRITERFEAEZZ
@ﬁfﬁﬂﬂgoﬁ?$$lw%ﬁﬁ
FBXR - EHERZERBRTIR - Wi
A A5 HA T HATE B R AR B o $R1T
ERTFERNOSEY EENTE AR
HIRTT ©
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31. NON-CURRENT ASSET AND A DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

DRRFHEHEZRRBEE

Non-current asset classified as held

HK$’000 HK$'000

TBTT

FET

for sales: (@)
Investment in a joint venture R—HEEERFIRE - 103,481
Assets of a disposal group DERFEEHE 2 — A
classified as held for sales: HESECEE - (b)
Properties under development BREPYE 372,104 =
Properties held for sale FHEHE = 714 -
Other receivables Hofh pE i kIR 12,391 =
Restricted cash and pledged deposits 2R %138 & & & i 1E 3 9,551 =
Cash and cash equivalents Re kEESEEEB 5,187 =
399,947 —
Non-current asset and assets of PERFEHEZFRBEE
a disposal group classified as k—HHEEEZEE
held for sale 399,947 103,481
Liabilities directly associated with EEZEEFEHEEZ—B
the assets of a disposal group HEEBCEERE
classified as held for sale: HEENARE (b)
Contract liabilities AEHBAE 54,092 -
Other payables H At T FRIE 14,216 =
Income tax payable FER PSR 8,760 =
77,068 =
Notes: P -

(a) On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with the joint venture partner of a joint venture for the disposal of the
Group's entire 50% equity interest in the Mega Group (a joint venture
group) through disposal of a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, for
a total cash consideration of HK$116,900,000.

Deposit of HK$11,690,000 in total had been paid by the purchaser as at 31
March 2020. The Group's investment in the Mega Group is classified as a
non-current asset held for sale as at 31 March 2020. Further details of the
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 13 March
2020.

The transaction was completed on 30 June 2020 and all the remaining sale
proceeds were received during the current year.

(b) Details of the disposal group classified as held for sale as at 31 March 2021
are set out in note 22(b) to the financial statements.
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32. TRADE PAYABLES

32. EZE(IRIE

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade payables other than H S IER IR

retention payables (EHRE SR (@) 885,774 1,215,459
Retention payables FERE S (b) 619,338 594,265
1,505,112 1,809,724

Notes: FiE

The Group's trade payables (other than retention payables) are non-interest
bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables (other than retention
payables) as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is
as follows:

AEE 2 E 5 RN R (BN RE SR
5N % BB F IR 30 KM EEE -

RBEHR - AREZ B HRNFAE
HREERN) AEZARBELEAE
ZIRERDMTHIFAAT

2021
HK$°000
FHT
Within 1 month —@AR 325,061 609,415
1 to 2 months —ZE=mfEA 154,365 191,662
2 to 3 months ME=MEAH 100,455 82,510
Over 3 months =EAMUE 305,893 331,872
885,774 1,215,459

Retention payables held by the Group arose from the Group's construction
services business and are settled to subcontractors within a period ranging
from one year to three years after the completion of the contract work by
the subcontractors, as stipulated in the subcontracting contracts.

The due date for settlement of the Group's retention payables as at the end
of the reporting period was analysed as follows:

AREMBERNRES IELBASE
B 2ERBEY  ARBESBTRES
HMFTARE - R BRSTRAEREETE
BNF—FE=FARRDEHEN -

BEREHR AKREENRESHE
HEDHOT

2021

HK$°000

FET
Due within one year —FRNF|HE 564,425 459,999
Due after one year —F A FFHE 54,913 134,266
619,338 594,265

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# a
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33. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 33. Hith fE{+ FRE R FERH R
2021 2020
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hitat FHET FET
Accruals JEET IR 602,747 423,869
Deposits received BUE 2 S 8,171 9,631
Deposit received for sale of a non-current gt & —IBIFEEHE 2
asset held for sale SEmBBEECEWRZZE 31 - 11,690
Other liabilities EmaEfE 90,429 91,473
Consideration payable for the acquisition — UYtBEMIE A &) 2 BN RE
of subsidiaries 22,034 -
Consideration payables for the acquisition Y B 2 N 7] 2 FEF KB
of associates 1,516 7,175
Client money received incidental to the FLIR R B B 1R RS UK EX
provision of tunnel management services 7 & F 18 3,267 26,698
Due to associates FERTER & R B2 58 28,688 16,556
Due to other partners of joint operations B & & S H b B 2 F 18 90,843 74,709
Due to non-controlling equity holders FEASTB B8 A B R FE i A e
of subsidiaries BAEAZRIE 16,302 6,446
863,997 668,247
Note: The amounts due to associates, other partners of joint operations and non- MisE : BB E QR - B8 EBHEMB AR
controlling equity holders of subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and BRARMIEERRERT B A2 RIERE
repayable on demand. HH - LERBRERERE -
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34. BANK BORROWINGS 34. SRITER
2021 2020
Notes HK$000 HK$°000
Hitat FHET FET
Bank borrowings comprise: IRITIEREIE (@), (b)
Trust receipt loans, secured ZEEBE e - A 22,310 12,076
Trust receipt loans, unsecured ERWEER - EER 110,841 154,815
Bank loans, secured BITER - HHEA 402,663 364,825
Bank loans, unsecured RITER - K 2,719,533 2,355,839
3,255,347 2,887,555
Less: Unamortised ancillary costs B RIRITERLHEEZ
incurred in connection with the Efi?éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj]'lﬁfﬁ$
arrangement of bank loans (40,249) (34,350)
Total bank borrowings RITIERARE 3,215,098 2,853,205
Analysed into: DT
Repayable on demand B BEKER (© 3,172,700 1,623,277
Within one year —FR 6,319 343
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ERF(BEEEME) 16,121 1,226,741
Beyond five years AFMNE 19,958 2,844
Total bank borrowings RITIERAEEE 3,215,098 2,853,205
Portion classified as current liabilities SEARBAERBZHY (3,179,019) (1,623,620)
Non-current portion EREE 36,079 1,229,585
Notes: FiE
(@)  Except for certain bank loans of approximately HK$8,619,000 (2020: (@)  BR%98,619,000757T(20204F : 10,116,000
HK$10,116,000) and HK$112,070,000 (2020: Nil) which are denominated /’Eﬁ)&ﬂz 070, 0003 7T (2020 4F : £&)
in Singapore dollars (“SG$”) and RM, respectively, the Group’s bank Z%?%Eﬁgﬁﬁﬂﬂl%%ﬁbﬂi&m(f%ﬁbﬂ
borrowings are denominated in HKS$. Bl RLEEN - NEB ZRITE
FILAETTETHE ©
(b)  The trust receipt loans of the Group denominated in HK$ and RM carry by AEEUABTERSTEZETLTREE
interest at floating rates ranging from one-month HIBOR plus 1.4% to 1.7% A RIRER KN F—E A BBERITRE
(2020: one-month HIBOR plus 1.4% to 1.7%) per annum and at rates HERBEM1.4% E1.7% (20204 : —1{&
ranging from 6.95% to 7.14% (2020: Nil), respectively. A %@%f&f FEFEMIA4%FE1.7%)
238 A E R FE KN F6.95%F
7.14% (20204 « &) 2 KGR -
The bank loans of the Group denominated in HK$, SG$ and RM carry REBLAT  FIMBETRLSTHEZ
interest at floating rates ranging from one-month HIBOR plus 1.25% to BITERDIRFEFENF— AR B
2.5% (2020: one-month HIBOR plus 1.25% to 2.5%) per annum, at fixed 817 A 2 97 B 111.25% £2.5% (2020
rates of 1.88% (2020: 2.98%) and floating rates of SIBOR plus 2% (2020: F: —(EAARBRITAEFRSM.25%
SIBOR plus 2%) per annum and at rates ranging from 3.25% to 8.85% £2.5%) 2 FBHE - FEFED1.88%
(2020: Nil), respectively. (20204F : 2.98%) 2 [& 7 F % J2 4 Fi| &
AFTINBERIT R IR SN 2% (2020 4
N RITRIZEHF B 2%) 2 F B F =
EAF 3. 8.85% (20204 :
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34. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

34. RITERK &)
fisx = (&)

(0 At 31 March 2021, the Group did not comply with certain financial (© M20214F3[318 ' REEREETA
covenants of bank loans with an aggregate principal amount of HK$2,620 % 48 %8 /4 2,620,000,0007% 7T (2020 £ :
million (2020: a syndicated bank loan of HK$864 million) and hence these 864,000,000/ T2 —HIRBE ) Z iR
bank borrowings were classified as current liabilities and grouped into the TERNE THBRLY  HZSHRITE
“Repayable on demand” category in the bank borrowings repayment RO EERDBEBY N EXHE R
analysis disclosed above. Consent waivers of non-compliance with financial TEREESWHEREL[BREXRE
covenants have been received by the Group subsequent to the reporting B NIREHR  AREEDEE R
period (2020: the term of the bank loan with a financial covenant not TR 2 FAEE# R (2020F © %K
complied has been revised on 12 May 2020). WEBTFHMEZAOZBITETEZER

202045 A 12 BE(ER]) °
The expected repayment dates of the Group’s bank borrowings that are Z2EHHERBEMEAERERER - K
grouped under “Repayment on demand” category, with reference to EBEEA [BREKEER] 2BITER
schedules of repayments set out in the term loan agreements, are as ZTEERE N HERI R ¢
follows:
2021
HK$’000
FHET
Within one year —FR 1,124,012 1,604,262
In the second year Sk 2 1,260,332 7,015
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE=ERF(BEEEMF) 784,581 12,000
Beyond five years AFLALE 3,775 -
3,172,700 1,623,277
(d) At the end of the reporting period, the following assets were pledged to (d) RMIMEHR DEBUATEE  FAK

secure the banking facilities granted to the Group:

SEERRITRE ZHER

2021

HK$°000

FET
Property, plant and equipment e YN 15 83,453 44,277
Investment properties REYHE 16(a) 11,256 =
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17()(i) 123,963 122,032
Bank deposits RITIF 29(b) 14,294 7,677
232,966 173,986

In addition to the above, as at 31 March 2021, the Group has pledged the
equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary to secure a banking facility
granted to an associate.

At 31 March 2021, certain of the Group’s bank borrowings in the total
amount of HK$8,619,000 (2020: HK$10,116,000) and HK$138,448,000
(2020: Nil) were guaranteed by the non-controlling equity holders of a
subsidiary and shareholders of non-controlling equity holders of subsidiaries,
respectively.

B EXXoh - R20214943 8318

SEEER-—HM2EREHB AR
ZHBE EA—HBEQRERS
TEEZER-

K2021F3 8318 » AEBEHEES R A
8,619,000 7T (20204 : 10,116,000 %
7T ) K 138,448,0007% 7T (20204 : f& )
2 & TFRITIE KA — M E A 72 T
BB B A KM B A Bl IR AR 4
BAZBRESER -
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35. PROVISIONS

35. &5

Provision for construction works BT BE
Provision for litigations SRR 2 Bt

2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$°000
FTET TETT
103,695 130,323
272,010 -
375,705 130,323

(a) Provision for construction works

(a) BRIRBZEE

2021 2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

At beginning of year REH) 130,323 133,128
Additional provision FRONEE A 93,619 100,913
Amounts utilised during the year FACEHESEE (108,810) (74,703)
Reversal of unutilised amounts OB P (11,437) (29,015)
At end of year RER 103,695 130,323

The Group recognises provision for construction works when
the unavoidable costs of meeting the performance obligations
under the construction contracts exceed the economic benefits
expected to be received. The amount of provision is estimated
based on contract costs to completion and contract claims. The
estimation basis is reviewed on an ongoing basis and revised
where appropriate.

BENEESVENRENTT
R BBRIBEES VB
G RBEM SRR - NEE R
REERTREZEE BELHER
BERAEAORARERREM
B ARERFERAHAER
WHEE BR MERER -
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35. PROVISIONS (continued)

(b) Provision for litigations

35. &)
(b) FFREAZBE

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

At beginning of year REA] - -
Additional provision FBINE 272,010 -
At end of year RER 272,010 =

In or about December 2013 and March 2014, a plaintiff
commenced two separate legal proceedings against the Group
alleging that the Group's termination of a proposed transaction
in relation to the sale of a commercial development at No. 8
Clear Water Bay Road and 49% interest in the car park
development at No. 8 Clear Water Bay Road (collectively, the
“Properties”) was wrongful and in breach of a memorandum
entered into between the plaintiff and the Group in September
2013 (the “MOU"). The plaintiff claimed against the Group for
the loss of capital appreciation of the Properties.

In prior years, as advised by the legal advisers to the Group,
having considered the facts and submissions made in relation
to the two cases, the Group had a reasonable prospect in
successfully defending the claims and, therefore, in the prior
years' financial statements, no provision for these litigations
has been provided and contingent liabilities in respect of these
litigations were disclosed.

Subsequent to the reporting period, on 16 June 2021, the Court
of First Instance in Hong Kong handed down its judgments on
the two legal proceedings against the Group and decided that
the Group's termination of the proposed transaction in relation
to the sale of the Properties was wrongful and in breach of terms
and conditions of the MOU. The court therefore ordered the
Group to compensate the plaintiff's loss in the sum of HK$164.0
million plus interest and the plaintiff's legal costs incurred (the
“Compensation”), which is estimated to be approximately
HK$272.0 million in aggregate as at 31 March 2021.

In accordance with HKAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period,
the court judgements are considered as adjusting events and,
therefore, the Group recorded the Compensation in profit or
loss during the year.
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36. DEFERRED TAX

Net deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position are as follows:

36. IELEFIH

KR & B RRER CEEHIAEE
REAEFEMT :

2021 2020

HK$000 HK$°000

FH# T FET

Deferred tax assets RIEFIEE B 1,648 891
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIEA & (3,703) (3,469)
(2,055) (2,578)

AEER  BREHBEE(BFE)2A
RRER D BB I

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) and their
movements during the year are as follows:

Attributable to
i3

Depreciation
allowances
in excess

of related

depreciation

FERHE
BRERAE
HK$000
FET

BERR
HK$000
TR

Other
taxable
temporary
differences

HitERH
HREERE
HK$'000
FEr

Net deferred
tax assets/
(liabilities)

BB E
BE/(8#E)
B
HK$'000
FEL

At 1 April 2019 R2019F 47811 (19,992) 20,320 (1,607) (1,279)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR 42(a) - - (803) (803)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to AEFRBEA/(FK)

profit or loss during the year ZIRERE 12 (693) 14 (619) (1,298)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUBMB A RRE AR 43(b) - - 785 785
Exchange realignment [ TR - - 17 17
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 420203 A31 B}

2020F4A1H (20,685) 20,334 (2,227) (2,578)

Acquisition of subsidiaries g NG 42(a) - - 278 278
Consolidation of subsidiaries upon T8 A AR E IS L 4 RS

resumption of control BREAR 42(b) - - 634 634
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to REERNERTA/GIKR)

profit or loss during the year ZIRFERIIA 12 (156) - (233) (389)
At 31 March 2021 R202143 4318 (20,841) 20334 (1,548) (2,055)
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36. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Notes:

(a) At 31 March 2021, deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of unused tax losses of HK$1,048,788,000 (2020: HK$1,018,671,000) as
they have been arisen in certain subsidiaries and joint operations that have
been loss-making for some time and it is not assured that taxable profits will
be available against which such tax losses can be utilised.

(b) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in the PRC. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5% or 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in the PRC.

At 31 March 2021, no deferred tax has been recognised for withholding
taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject to
withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in the PRC (2020:
Nil). In the opinion of the Directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future.

(0) There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

36. IEAERIIE (&)

B -

(@ M2021F3A[8318 MEH KX H
7 78 5 18 1,048,788,000 8 7T (2020 4F :
1,018,671,0007% 7T ) i R I 1T Fi 10 &
E RAEELEETHEBARIRA S
5% HERN - TEHMAFERE A
AT EER S AR AERIEE
B2 ERBER] o

() REBEPELEMRSIE  RPBEKIZZ
SVE RSN A E T IRAE AR
10% FEFNBE = fisf o B 625 RSB 4R  2
ZAVERERRT A RIS RA - RIAHZERIE
BIR X - RAKEMS  ERAM
KR5%K10% ° FEIt - ANEE AR
BRI 2 25 B R R 9k RS A
RIEHIF ©

20213 8318 @ BERAEERH
BIpk Sz 2 M B ARl 2 REE &R F| (B
MIBIRL) 2 FE B 0B BRI L F TE
(20204 : &) - BEER B ZSHBQ
AN ARATRER A BRI B & F) ©

@  AARARRXMREBEMSHEE -

37. SHARE CAPITAL 37. A
(a) Shares (a) &
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FET
Authorised: JARE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000 fi%
HK$0.1 each EFREEO. 1B Tk 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRERE
1,820,127,847 (2020: 1,838,325,847) 1,820,127,847 I%
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (2020 : 1,838,325,847 i%)
SREEO.1 BTz TR 182,013 183,833
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 37. BRA& &)
(a) Shares (continued) (a) B &)
A summary of the movements in the Company's issued share REE2021F % 2020F3 A31H
capital and share premium account during the years ended WEFE - NABE BITRA &R
31 March 2021 and 2020 is as follows: DR ERZEFHBEEMT :

Number of

ordinary Share

shares Issued premium
in issue capital account
BT
ZEKRHE ERITRE ROBER
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET

At 1 April 2019 R2019F481H 1,863,391,847 186,339 773,174 959,513
Cancellation of FHEHE B EAR D (FsE)
repurchased shares (note) (25,066,000) (2,506) (13,103) (15,609)
At 31 March 2020 and 202053 A31 B K
1 April 2020 2020F4 A1H 1,838,325,847 183,833 760,071 943,904
Cancellation of B R RIAR G (M)
repurchased shares (note) (18,198,000) (1,820) (9,171) (10,991)
At 31 March 2021 2021438318 1,820,127,847 182,013 750,900 932,913
Note: During the year, the Company repurchased 18,198,000 (2020: M AFEEAR A2 h@nE
25,066,000) ordinary shares in total on the Stock Exchange at an #710,991,0007 L (2020 % :
aggregate consideration of approximately HK$10,991,000 (2020: 15,609,000 7T ) B Bk 32 FT BE
HK$15,609,000) and all these shares were subsequently cancelled B & $£18,198,000 f% (2020 4F :
on or before the year end date. The premium of approximately 25,066,000/ ) Ei@AR - AATH
HK$9,171,000 (2020: HK$13,103,000) paid over the nominal value E?%Hﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁéiéﬁ Bk Z Al
of the shares repurchased was debited to the share premium A o A8 Bl % 5 AR 1 B 2 A 2 B
account. The repurchases were effected by the Directors with a view i R TH {8 704 {8 409,171,00078
to benefiting the shareholders of the Company as a whole by 7L (20204 : 13,103,000 7C) B
enhancing the Company’s net asset value and earnings per share. T REAR i (8 Bk R A B = 5 BARE (2]
Details of the repurchases are summarised as follows: HEFET BEEFBRAREAR

AEEFERSREFIBS AR
TR T - S
e :
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37. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 37. BRA&R (&=
(a) Shares (continued) (a) B&fp (&)
Note: (continued) Mzt : (&)
Year ended 31 March 2021 BZ2021F3HA31BLEE
Number of Purchase price
ordinary paid per share Aggregate
shares BREMNBAM consideration
Month of repurchases repurchased Highest Lowest paid
2EE 2
KBE A6 ZEREE BS BIE BRE
HK$ HK$ HK$°000
ET B FHET
April 2020 2020648 3,798,000 0.66 0.64 2,437
August 2020 20208 A 558,000 0.61 0.61 340
September 2020 202069 A 6,450,000 0.60 0.57 3,825
October 2020 2020 10 A 1,862,000 0.60 0.60 1,117
December 2020 2020412 A 1,126,000 0.59 0.58 662
January 2021 2021 1A 3,256,000 0.60 0.59 1,927
February 2021 202142 A 586,000 0.59 0.59 346
March 2021 202143 A 562,000 0.60 0.60 337
18,198,000 10,991
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2020F3HA31HLLFEE
Nuilser @f Purchase price
ordinary hpaid per shireﬁ Aggregate
shares SREMNBER consideration
Month of repurchases repurchased Highest Lowest paid
BEE .

EAEDERY) pilie g &= HIE

HK$ HK$

BT BT
June 2019 201946 A 392,000 0.60 0.59 232
July 2019 201947 A 2,112,000 0.60 0.57 1,241
August 2019 201948 A 10,626,000 0.62 0.56 6,292
September 2019 201949 A 2,616,000 0.68 0.59 1,663
October 2019 2019410 A 962,000 0.84 0.69 737
December 2019 2019 12 A 280,000 0.70 0.69 194
January 2020 20201 A 1,236,000 0.70 0.68 856
February 2020 202042 A 1,314,000 0.65 0.63 843
March 2020 202043 A 5,528,000 0.67 0.62 3,551

25,066,000 15,609
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37.

38.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

(b) Shares held under a share award scheme

Details of the Company’s restricted share award scheme and
the shares held under the scheme are included in note 38 to
the financial statements.

(9]

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share
options issued under the scheme are included in note 39 to the
financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Board approved the adoption of a restricted share award scheme
(the “Share Award Scheme”) with effect from 1 August 2017 (the
“Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to
encourage and retain the selected participants (the “Selected
Participant(s)”), including directors of the Company, to work with the
Company and to provide incentives for them to achieve performance
goals with a view to achieving the objectives of increasing the value
of the Company and aligning the interests of the Selected Participants
directly with those of the shareholders of the Company through
ownership of shares of the Company. Unless otherwise early
terminated by the resolution of the Board, the Share Award Scheme
is valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the Adoption
Date.

The Share Award Scheme is operated through a trustee which is
independent of the Group. The shares to be awarded under the
Share Award Scheme will be acquired by the trustee from the open
market after the notification and instruction by the Company. The
trustee shall not hold more than 10% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company.

These was no share awards outstanding under the Share Award
Scheme as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

37.

38.
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38. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 38. R 17 R B=t &l @)
The movements of the Company’s shares held under the Share HZE2021F K2020F3A31HIEFE -
Award Scheme account during the years ended 31 March 2021 and AARBERD EZRT2ERE THE0
2020 are as follows: &z T -
Number of
ordinary shares
held under
share award
scheme account Amount
BB R0 R BT 8
IRETEEH
EEREE k2l
HK$’000
FET
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, 20194818 2020638318
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 2020F4 A1 B&2021%3HA31H 12,452,000 10,643
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2018, an aggregate of 30,896,000 share ek : 8 E2018F3A3MA L F E: & #
awards were granted to the Selected Participants, who were employees of 30,896,000 AR A& 17 SEEN AR 5 5% AR 17 52 B
the Group, pursuant to the grant on 2 August 2017 under the Share Award FETR20174E8 2B 2 BEERT
Scheme. None of the grantees was a director, chief executive or substantial BAEEREEZETLHEE  HEAR
shareholder of the Company, or an associate (as defined under the Listing AFABRRANES  HFRTHRABR
Rules) of any of them. An aggregate of 22,590,000 share awards granted FERRATIMBEEZHEA(EER
were accepted by the grantees. EmRA o Bz & $£22,590,000 i%
FR1D B2 BRI AR -
Subject to the acceptance of the grantees and that the grantee remain as REARER A 1 SRR AR IR D 2B =T 2l
eligible person on the vesting date of the Share Award Scheme, the share FEABRMNASER AL - BIRMEE
awards shall vest in them on 2 August 2018, at which time the awarded 150201848 A2 HEREB R » 2 + 52
shares will be transferred to the grantees at a consideration of HK$0.57 per & 17 1§ i KB IR LB R 5 0.57%8 7T
award share. HETHEEA -
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 39. IR HERTE

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 3 September 2012, the
Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing eligible personnel
with the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company,
which will encourage the grantees of such options to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Board will set out
in the offer the terms on which the option is to be granted. Such
terms may include (i) minimum performance targets that must be
reached before the option can be exercised in whole or in part; and/
or (i) such other terms (including the vesting period) as may be
imposed at the discretion of the Board either on a case-by-case basis
or generally.

The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and other share option schemes of
the Company (if any) must not exceed 30% of the ordinary shares in
issue from time to time (the “Share Option Scheme Limit”). No
options will be granted under the Share Option Scheme at any time
if such grant will result in the Share Option Scheme Limit being
exceeded.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and all other
share option schemes of the Company (if any) shall not exceed 10%
of the ordinary shares in issue as at the date of approval of the Share
Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme Mandate Limit”), subject
to the refreshment of the Share Option Scheme Mandate Limit.
Options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Share Option
Scheme Mandate Limit.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to any eligible personnel (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue without prior approval from the
shareholders. An offer of the options shall be deemed to have been
accepted by way of consideration of HK$1 payable by the eligible
personnel within 30 days from the date of offer.
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Where any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director, or any of their respective
associates, would result in the shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue; and (ii)
having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange
on the relevant date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such further
grant of options must be approved by the shareholders.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion and will be notified to the eligible personnel in
the offer and shall be no less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of a share as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(i)  the average of the closing prices of a share as stated in the
daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the 5
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a share on the date of grant.

The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the adoption date of 3 September 2012.

a Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. BiRAEEHEl ()
Details of the movements in share options granted under the Share BB IS T 23T A BE RS i B B =S
Option Scheme are as follows: AR
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ2021F3A31HILLEE
Number of share options
BREZE
Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
price per asat during asat
Category of eligible participants Date of grant Exercise period option 1 April 2020 the year 31 March 2021
R2020% R2021%
SHERE 4A1R REE 3A31H
RERSHRE BRI RiEAH it e MR BAH HARITHE
HKS$
AT
Executive directors 5/12/2017 5/12/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 3,060,000 - 3,060,000
HES 5/1212019-4/12/2021 102 3,060,000 - 3,060,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 4,080,000 - 4,080,000
Independent non-executive directors 51212017 512/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 540,000 - 540,000
BUFRNES 5/1212019-4/12/2021 102 540,000 - 540,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 720,000 - 720,000
Employees 5/122017 5/12/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 5,142,000 (828,000 4,314,000
E8 5/12/2019-4/12/2021 1.02 5,142,000 (828,000 4,314,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 6,856,000 (1,104,000) 5,752,000

29,140,000 (2,760,000) 26,380,000

Number of options exercisable at REERRATE 2 BREZE

the end of the reporting period 26,380,000
Weighted average exercise METHER

price (HKS$ per share) (Br(8R) 1.02 1.02 1.02

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# g
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 39. BB RERTE ()
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2020F3A31HILFEE

Number of share options

EREHE

Exercise  Outstanding lapsed  Outstanding
price per asat during asat
Category of eligible participants Date of grant Exercise period option 1 April 2019 the year 31 March 2020

120195 120205
ol 4R18 REE 30318
R B i FE HATE B AT

Executive directors 51212017 5/1212018-4/12/2021 102 3,060,000 = 3,060,000
BITES 5/12/2019-4/12/2021 1.02 3,060,000 = 3,060,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 1.02 4,080,000 = 4,080,000
Independent non-executive directors 5/12/2017 5/12/2018-4/12/2021 1.02 540,000 - 540,000
BUFHNES 5/12/2019-4/12/2021 1.02 540,000 - 540,000
5/1212020-4/12/2021 102 720,000 = 720,000
Employees 5/12/2017 5/12/2018-4/12/2021 102 5,610,000 (468,000) 5,142,000
&8 5/12/2019-4/12/2021 1.02 5,610,000 (468,000) 5,142,000
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 102 7,480,000 (624,000) 6,856,000

30,700,000 (1,560,000 29,140,000

Number of options exercisable at REEBHRATE 2 BRESR
the end of the reporting period 17,484,000
Weighted average exercise IETTRE
price (HKS per share) (B (ER) 102 102 102
Notes: Bz
(@)  The vesting period, which is the period from the date of grant to the first @ EEREREZGBH(ELASNZEEME
exercisable date, of the share options granted is determined by directors of AITE B HAEARE) TR R AR EE NI
the Company at each time when the options are granted. Holders of share X EIRIEREE o ARIRERERT &I
options granted under the Share Option Scheme may only exercise their 2 AR 2 7B AME AR LA 1T B
options during the exercisable periods as follows: T E R AR AE -
S—— Maximum percentage of BRI AT BB AR
171 EA share options exercisable ZEReAEDL
5/12/2018-4/12/2019 up to 30% BB 30%
5/12/2019-4/12/2020 up to 60% Tit8iE 60%
5/12/2020-4/12/2021 up to 100% B3R 100%
(b)  During the year, the Group recognised a share option expense of b) REAFE AEBERBATEFELRRR
HK$ 1,048,000 (2020: HK$2,922,000) in relation to the share options REBEREFERDL 2B RZE
granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme in prior years. it 52 B8 % # B9 2 1,048,000 JT. (2020

£ :2,922,000587T) °
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40. RESERVES

(a)

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The capital reserve mainly includes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

a debit balance of HK$7,340,000 recognised in prior
years, which represented the aggregate amount of the
non-voting deferred share capital of Chun Wo
Construction and Engineering Company Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, and the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company and the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to
a group reorganisation undertaken in 1993;

a deemed contribution of HK$10,240,000 recognised
upon the acquisition of the remaining 62% interest in
Mandarin Group Limited (“MGL") from a then director
and a then controlling shareholder of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2010. MGL was
deregistered during the current year, the aforementioned
capital reserve of HK$10,240,000 was transferred to
retained profits.

the amount of profit capitalisation upon allotment of
share capital of Chun Wo Foundations Limited (a wholly-
owned subsidiary) during the year ended 31 March 1997;

a deemed contribution of HK$6,961,000 recognised
upon the acquisition of a 40% interest in CPL from a
controlling shareholder of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2020, which represented the difference
between the consideration paid and the acquisition-date
fair value of the net assets of CPL attributable to the
Group.

40. &
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() EBEXFBEEERE:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 41. &2 B 4 RE R M
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) EXFERERS
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had non- REZE2021F3A31BIEFERA
cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of rEEEMSREERERHZE
HK$12,429,000 (2020: HK$39,989,000) and HK$12,429,000 RAEEERMEAEZIREIE
(2020: HK$57,303,000), respectively, in respect of lease 2 Bl 412,429,000/ JT(20204F :
arrangements for various assets. 39,989,000% 7T ) % 12,429,000 7T

(20204 : 57,303,000787T) °

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have other major Br BT ERE SN - RELE 2021
non-cash transactions of investing and financing activities FR2020F3 A3 HIEFER -
during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020. REBWAREGEMERRE KA
BRBZIRERG °
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEETBEMELE 2EESR
activities 3]
Due to
non-controlling
equity holders Bank Lease
of subsidiaries ~ borrowings liabilities
EAREAR
FERRE
BEA RATEH HEaE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET TET A7
Year ended 31 March 2021 BEANFIANBLEE
At 1 April 2020 1202054 A1H 6,446 2,853,205 65,264
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAR 42() - 23312 6,112
Consolidation of subsidiaries upon resumption  HitB A RIN B FEUS kS
of control FANE 42(b) - 96,886 6,611
Changes from operating cash flows BERETELEY 9,856 - -
Changes from financing cash flows HERSNEZ 2T - 161,957 (36,719)
New leases Mg - - 12429
Early termination of a lease RER—EHE - - (215)
Interest expense FBRES 8 - 59,651 2,300
Amortisation of ancillary costs BRBTETTHELZ
incurred in connection with the BRI 2 B8
arrangement of bank loans 8 - 19,011 -
Exchange realignment EEES - 1,076 23
At 31 March 2021 2021434318 16,302 3,215,098 55,805
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41. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities (continued)

4. GEREREBRZME @

(b) REEZBRELEZ2EESR
B®)

Due to
non-controlling
equity holders Bank Lease
of subsidiaries borrowings liabilities
ERHBAR
FEEIRARE
BEA RITER HEER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FEL
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZ2020F3831BILEE
At 1 April 2019 201954 A1H 38,482 2,754,146 38,431
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERRB AR 42(a) - 89,458 3,787
Additional interest in a joint operation R-FaesBz@iMEn = 14,651 =
Changes from operating cash flows C Sy L) 1342 = -
Changes from financing cash flows BERSRELED 19,765 143,554 (32,471)
New leases Mg = = 57,303
Interest expense FBREE 8 = 107,544 1,901
Amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in BRBTETTHELZ
connection with the arrangement of Tl w2
hank loans 8 - 18123 -
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries EEMBARISA AR 43(b) (53,143) (268,766) (3,467)
Exchange realignment [ 53R - (5,505) (220)
At 31 March 2020 12020E3 8318 6,446 2,853,205 05,264
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HERSRHATE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the consolidated AFAGREHeRERcHER S
statement of cash flows is as follows: ML ABREAT

2021 2020

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET F#E

Within operating activities ZVR & EE) 2,300 1,566
Within financing activities 25N e & EEH 36,719 32,471
39,019 34,037
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND
CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON
RESUMPTION OF CONTROL

(a) Business combinations

The Group had the following business combinations during the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020:

Year ended 31 March 2021

0) In July 2020, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company acquired a 84% equity interest in Prosperouse
Education Consultancy Limited (“PECL”) from an
independent third party for a total consideration of
HK$2,500,000. PECL is principally engaged in the
provision of school management services.

(i)  On 8 October 2020, an indirect non-wholly-owned
subsidiary owned as to 92.73% by the Company, as a
subscriber and a purchaser, entered into a share
subscription agreement and a sale and purchase
agreement with JA & Associate Corporation (“JA”) and a
vendor, both being independent third parties,
respectively, for the acquisition of not more than a 55%
equity interest in JA for a total cash consideration of
HK$27,500,000. JA and its subsidiaries (the “JA Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of electrical and
mechanical engineering and solar energy installation
services.

Following the completion of the acquisition taken place
on 4 November 2020, the Company holds 50.99% of the
entire issued and paid up share capital of JA.

In accordance with the aforesaid agreements,
HK$15,125,000 out of total cash consideration were paid
in October and November 2020 and the remaining
balance shall be paid upon fulfillment of the profit
guarantee provided by the vendor. The contingent
consideration is an embedded derivative instrument
which is measured at fair value through profit or loss. In
the opinion of the Directors, the fair value of this
embedded derivative is not significant as at the date of
completion of the acquisition and 31 March 2021.
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND 42. ¥BESHEHMBATNRE
CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON B EEERES AR
RESUMPTION OF CONTROL (continued) (1)

(a) %BEOtH)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021 (continued)

(i) On 20 October 2020, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to
which the Group has conditionally agreed to purchase,
and the independent third party has conditionally agreed
to sell, the entire issued share capital of Hong Kong
Cyclotron Laboratories Limited (“HKCL") for total cash
consideration of HK$64,000,000. HKCL is principally
engaged in the production and sale of PET
radiopharmaceuticals for medical use.

Completion of the acquisition took place on 3 November
2020 and HK$60,000,000 of the total cash consideration
was paid to the independent third party in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the sale and purchase
agreement on the completion date. The remaining
balance of HK$4,000,000 shall be paid upon the
fulfillment of the profit guarantee provided by the
independent third party. The contingent consideration is
an embedded derivative instrument which is measured at
fair value through profit or loss. In the opinion of the
Directors, the fair value of this embedded derivative is not
significant as at the date of completion of the acquisition
and 31 March 2021.

Further details of the acquisition are set out in the
announcements of the Company dated 20 October 2020
and 3 November 2020.

Year ended 31 March 2020

In January 2020, the Group acquired a 51% equity interest in
ECO Group Holdings Sdn. Bhd. (“ECO") from an independent
third party at a total cash consideration of RM19,890,000
(equivalent to HK$37,725,000). ECO and its subsidiaries (the
"ECO Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of
construction and other professional services in Malaysia,
including interior design and fitting-out.

In accordance with the share sale and purchase agreement,
RM2,983,000 (equivalent to HK$5,659,000) out of the total
cash consideration shall be paid upon fulfillment of the profit
guarantee provided by the vendor from 2021 to 2023. The
contingent consideration is an embedded derivative instrument
which is measured at fair value through profit or loss. In the
opinion of the Directors, the fair value of this embedded
derivative is not significant as at the date of completion of the
acquisition and 31 March 2020.

BE2021F3A31BLEEE(E)
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND REXSHEHBLARARE
CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON FEBEHERES AR
RESUMPTION OF CONTROL (continued) (4&)

(a) Business combinations (continued) (a) XSt
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the CNEER A EREEREE
entities acquired as at the date of acquisition were as follows: R HE A EImT

2021 2020
PECL  JA Group HKCL Total  Eco Group

B®E JAKE HKCL aE  EoEE
Notes HK$7000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
izt FET FET FET FET FET

Property, plant and equipment  #3 + #28 2% 15 - 4,553 4,089 8,642 48,497
Investment properties KEME 16 - - - - 12,936
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17(a) - 3,197 2,653 5,850 10,005
Intangible assets EVEE 19 - - - - 5,445
Deferred tax assets BRERREE 36 - - 278 278 -
Inventories FE - 4,606 2,468 7,074 -
Contract assets AWBE - 10,303 - 10,303 56,537
Trade receivables 2 5 W EE - 6,513 6,528 13,041 28,726
Prepayments, deposits and BNFE  &ZE R
other receivables Hfth W i oE 12 22,646 1,902 24,560 11,063
Income tax recoverable AR EFTER - - - - 899
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERSEEEE 35 8,686 5,477 14,198 39,993
Trade payables EC NN - (5.156) (226) (5.382) (21,534)
Contract liabilities AHEE - - - - (1,285)
Other payables and accruals — E-f e F00B K ezt
E0rE] (19) (6,849) (385) (7,253) (40,192)

Bank and other borrowings  $R{T R ELfh{E - (23.312) - (23.312) (89,458)
Lease liabilities HEAR 17(b) - (3,534) (2,578) (6,112) (3,787)
Income tax payable SIS - - (3,053) (3,053) -
Deferred tax liabilities EXHEEE 36 - - - - (803)

Total identifiable net assets at 322 T{Ezt &2 A 4Bl

fair value BEFEEE 28 21,653 17,153 38,834 57,042
Non-controlling interests IR @ (9,746) - (9,750)  (27.951)

24 11,907 17,153 29,084 29,091
Goodwill on acquisition WEERZEE 18 2,476 15,593 46,847 64,916 8,634

2,500 27,500 64,000 94,000 37,725

Satisfied by cash EXAAAREXN 2,500 27,500 64,000 94,000 37,725
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND 42. ¥ EHEMBATRE
CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON IS EHERSGS AR
RESUMPTION OF CONTROL (continued) (4&)

(a) Business combinations (continued)

(a) ¥BE/E)

At the date of approval of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Group had not completed the fair
value measurement of the identifiable net assets of the
subsidiary acquired and the initial accounting for acquisition
was incomplete. The goodwill on acquisition recognised by the
Group represented the provisional amount estimated by the
Directors.

The initial accounting was completed during the current year
and the acquisition date fair value of identifiable net assets was
HK$57,042,000, which is the same as the provisional amount
and hence no comparative information was restated.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
subsidiaries is as follows:

P EEZE 2020F3 A31 B IEE
EzHBHkRBE  AE®EIL K
SERCFTUR BE 2 [T /B A B .2 AT 3% )
BEFEATENZ BWES
BZEHRETEEIL RTHK ° A
EEmAZWER g EEES
Fifbat 2 EESHE -

BAERIBERAFETA
RUEE B R B EFEAF
{E/557,042,0008 7T » Z 458 H
TESEMAR Bt WES? L

WEEHB AR ZREREDITANT

2021 2020
PECL  JA Group HKCL Total  Eco Group

B®E JAKE HKCL aE E5£E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FHET FHET FET

Cash consideration BeRE (2,500)  (27,500)  (64,000)  (94,000) (37,725)

Cash and cash equivalents acquired Bz RE R E
ReEEHEE 35
Add: Qutstanding cash consideration mn: RERAREER
as at the end of the year ZHRERE 230

5477 14,198 39,993

4,000 16,605 5,659

Net (outflow)/inflow of cash and cash WENBARIZES
equivalents in respect of the acquisition 28337 4 % (&1 B
of subsidiaries (M) mAFE (2,235)

(54,523) (63,197) 7927

Since the acquisition, the acquired entities contributed
HK$58,903,000 (2020: HK$32,557,000) to the Group's
revenue and incurred a profit of HK$8,029,000 (2020: loss of
HK$4,552,000) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Had the above business combinations taken place at the
beginning of the year, the Group's loss for the year would have
been HK$181,001,000 (2020: profit of HK$93,857,000) and
the Group’s revenue would have been HK$7,552,746,000
(2020: HK$8,087,413,000).

BUEEENR  ERERAR A
REE 2 & ZEFEER 7 58,903,000
77T (20204 : 32,557,000/87T) -
WREZE2021FE3A31BILEE
EEA 18,029,000 7T (2020 4F -
[E318 4,552,000/ 7T) °

firg £l 275 & B 413 A&
KEBNWAFEFEBEES AR
181,001,000 JT.(20204F : 4 ¥l
93,857,000/ 7T ) + AL B H &
5835 57,552,746,00078 7€ (2020
£ : 8,087,413,000787T) °

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# a




Notes to Financial Statements

BB R R MY RE

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND 42. ¥ EHEMBATRE
CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON HFEEEHERSSAE

RESUMPTION OF CONTROL (continued) (#&)
(b) B ARREFEBGIES

(b) Consolidation of subsidiaries upon resumption

of control

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group executed its
right to resume control over ECO, which was deconsolidated in
the prior year as further detailed in note 43(b) to the financial
statements, in accordance with the terms of a supplementary
agreement entered into between the Group and the minority
shareholder of ECO in March 2020. Accordingly, the Group’s
investment in ECO was reclassified from an investment in an
associate to an investment in a subsidiary during the year and
financial statements of the ECO Group have been consolidated
since then.

In accordance with the share sale and purchase agreement
entered in November 2019, RM2,983,000 (equivalent to
HK$5,659,000) out of the total cash consideration shall be paid
upon fulfillment of the profit guarantee provided by the seller
of ECO from 2021 to 2023. The contingent consideration is an
embedded derivative instrument which is measured at fair
value through profit or loss. In the opinion of the Directors, the
fair value of this embedded derivative is not significant as at
the date of resumption of control over ECO and 31 March
2021.

a Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

ER&E AR

REZE2021F3A31HLEFE -
BEAEERRES 2 DEBRER
2020 3 ART M 2 7 hak 2 1§
o AEETEEENEFIREG
HiER EHE  mMEaRNBE
FEEMHEVELRE AR (87558
FMTFEA3 (D) — o 5Fa) o Eitt -
RAFEAN  AEBRESZHE
BHRRN—HBERRZIREEN
SEAER—HENBARZIRE
BESEE 2 HBHREB T M)
AN ©

RIER2019F 11 BEFT 2 KK
EEWH& BB 2REFP
2,983,000 2 & (#8E 7 5,659,000
BLT)BRERCEAREZ
2021F £2023F ja F R BB X
- BB ARE BIZ AT AR
ABHFTEZHRARNITETA -
BEERE ZMARTETAER
ENREESES B KX20214F3
A3MBZRAFELTERX °




Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MR

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND 2. ¥R ESHEMBLARRNE
CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON MRS EHERGES AR
RESUMPTION OF CONTROL (continued) (&)

(b) Consolidation of subsidiaries upon resumption (b) B AT REHEEGESF
of control (continued) EEFEEAR®E)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the EeEEa#EEREBERNE
ECO Group as at the date of resumption of control were as AV EE B2 A ET
follows:
2021
ECO Group
BEEE
HK$°000
FET
Property, plant and equipment Y - IR 15 47,452
Investment properties B 16 11,790
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 17(@) 12,276
Deferred tax assets BEFITREE 36 634
Inventories FE 631
Contract assets EREE 46,406
Trade receivables H 5 IR 27,880
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERIE « e R E MBI GRIE 13,353
Income tax recoverable BIE S CY 1,346
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERSEEIER 16,006
Trade payables B SRR IE (15,329)
Contract liabilities AHAaE (1,387)
Other payables and accruals o Ath & IR KR FERT IR (25,608)
Bank and other borrowings HRIT RE MK (96,886)
Lease liabilities HEaE 17(b) (6,611)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFE 2 #HAEE
FEAEE 31,953
Non-controlling interests IR R (15,657)
16,296
Goodwill on acquisition I iRy 2 P9 2 18 14,044
30,340
Satisfied by: ER A
Reclassification from interests in associates S N Rl kRS
to interests in subsidiaries ENMOBEAWB AR ER 26,847
Gain on remeasurement of a pre-existing SHFTER —EEE AR
interest in an associate BaEER = 7 3,493
30,340
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42. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND 2. ¥R ESHEMBLARRNE
CONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES UPON MRS EHERGES AR
RESUMPTION OF CONTROL (continued) (#4&)

(b) Consolidation of subsidiaries upon resumption (b) B AT REHEEGESF
of control (continued) EEFEAR®E)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the resumption of EREFNEESEFE RS
control of ECO is as follows: WANTES AT ¢
2021
ECO Group
Be&EH
HK$°000
FHET
Cash and cash equivalents consolidated SAEARZIERES REBSEEIEE 16,006
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in BB A RN ENEEIE RS AR Z
respect of the consolidation of subsidiaries Re REESEEEERAFHE
upon resumption of control 16,006
Since the consolidation of the ECO Group upon resumption of R EIIAEE G ERLGS ARE
control, the ECO Group contributed HK$46,451,000 to the BEEEZ BB AREEE
Group's revenue and incurred a loss of HK$ 13,546,000 for the ZE2021FE3IANBILEEMNEE
year ended 31 March 2021. # & Bk 46,451,000/ 7T W E £

718 13,546,000 7 7T,

Had the above resumption of control over ECO taken place at fisi L= 3t BT ERAS B = 12 I 4 A
the beginning of the year, the Group’s loss for the year would EE  AEBHAFEEEK
have been HK$196,705,000 and the Group’s revenue would /£5196,705,0007% T AN & B #Y
have been HK$7,559,568,000. &R R 7,559,568,000 8 T
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43. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF 43. LEREBUEM B A TGRS
SUBSIDIARIES AR

(a) Sale of property interests () HEWMERER

The Group completed the sale of the following property
development and investment projects through disposal of
subsidiaries during the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020:

Year ended 31 March 2021

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the joint venture partner of a joint
venture for the disposal of the Group’s entire 50% equity
interest in the Mega Group through disposal of a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, for a total cash
consideration of HK$116,900,000. The Mega Group was
classified as a non-current asset held for sale as at
31 March 2020, as further detailed in note 31 to the financial
statements. As a result of the transaction, a gain on disposal of
approximately HK$11,515,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year upon completion of the transaction on 30 June
2020.

Year ended 31 March 2020

On 5 March 2020, the Group entered into a share purchase
agreement with an independent third party for the disposal of
the Group's entire equity interest in Champ Prestige
International Limited (“CPIL", a then wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company) together with a shareholder’s loan of HK$314
million owed by Dingway Investment Limited (“Dingway”, a
joint venture owned by CPIL) to the Group for a total
consideration of US$44,018,000 (equivalent to HK$341.1
million). CPIL held a 45% equity interest in Dingway. The major
assets of the Dingway and its subsidiaries are parcels of land
located in Miami, the USA, which are held for property
development.

The disposal transaction was completed on the same date and,
as a result of the transaction, a loss on sale of property interests
through disposal of a subsidiary of HK$1,078,000 was
recognised in profit or loss during the prior year. Further details
of the disposal transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 5 March 2020 and the Company’s
circular dated 24 June 2020.

NEBENEE20214F K 202043
A31BLEFEREEBZBHEN
BARTERHE T MFEMNME
EREREIRE -

BZ2021F3HA31HLEE

R 202063 13 H » REBE—
MEE AR ZAEEBMHTL 7
BEEWE SRANEARQR—H
2EBEEHBARLEREER
Mega % B 2 2 #850% i & - 42
I & (& & 116,900,000/5 T °
720203 A31H * Megafe B 5
HABEHECIERDEE &
— B AT BRERME3 - A
REBRZER 20206 A30H
SRk HEUREE 411,515,000
TERAFE 2 BePHER -

HZ2020F3A31HILEFE

MR2020F3A5H  NEBEH K
EXAEERBTERBHRA A
((EBERE]  XARERZ—H
2 EHEMBAR) A REER
BEREGRAR ([RE] > T2
BRHEE 2 —M&%QE) KK
&£ B 7 IR R E 314,000,000 70
B — 2BV E=HE S HIRG
BB & 8RB R44,018,000
%7t (FE 7 341,100,000787T) °
WEBRER RE4S% 2 B -
BENENBARZEIEEES
MR EBBNZ 2 FEYEER
2 e

FETZGRERTA - BtX 5
Bz BaBHE—MWBRRL
EYEER 2 E1E 1,078,000
TL - ERIBAFE 2B RER ©
ERHERZG ZE—THBIR
RATIBEA2020F3 A58 2 A
ERAAFBHA2020%6 A 24
HZi@pm e
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43. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF 3. HERBENMBLARESE
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) AR
(a) Sale of property interests (continued) (a) HEW=ED#)
An analysis of the assets and liabilities derecognised as a result B bt EEEmMEUSER
of the above disposals is as follows: BEHBEIFAT
2021 2020
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Hitat FHET FET
Net assets disposed of: HEEBEZFE :
Loan to a joint venture m—EEERAFER - 313,993
Investment in a joint venture R—REEaERFIZKE 105,205 =
Prepayments, deposits and other TE IR ~ e R EAM
receivables FENRIR - 28,224
105,205 342,217
Expenses incurred for the disposal & FTESE 2 B 180 -
Gain/(loss) on sale of property interests %8 H &M B A A HEYE
through disposal of subsidiaries Rz Wz (BE) 9 11,515 (1,078)
116,900 341,139
Satisfied by cash EXRARABIRES SN 116,900 341,139
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents as a AR EMEEEEMESA 2R S
result of the above disposals is as follows: FHEBESEEEE Z2RAFED
T
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Cash consideration HEREB 116,900 341,139
Outstanding cash consideration in =~ RAFESWERM E—FE
relation to prior year disposal HESEEAREECHSNRE
received during the year - 95,629
Less: Sales deposits received for sale 3 : H%& —IB#REE ~ IER
of a non-current asset held BEZEWHEZRS
for sale (11,690) -
Expenses incurred for the disposal ~ HEREA 7Y (180) =
Net inflow of cash and cash FERLERBARILE
equivalents in respect of sale of VEEmcRe Rk
property interests through disposal B35 & 2 (E18 B i A H5E
of subsidiaries 105,030 436,768
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43. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF 43. LEREBEM B A TGRS
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) A,E"EE‘

(b) BUEKMIB R RA&EE AR

(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s non-
franchised bus services operation in Hong Kong and the
construction and other professional services operation in
Malaysia have been negatively impacted by the social
movements in Hong Kong and/or the outbreak of Covid-19
pandemic. In order to provide the relevant operating entities of
these operations with flexibility, namely Chun Wo Bus Services
(BVI) Limited (“CWBS") and ECO, to make decisions and
introduce measures to improve their operating performance
and efficiency, the Group entered into supplementary
agreements in the first quarter of 2020 with the minority
shareholders of CWBS and ECO who have expertise and
experience in these operations in the local markets such that
the control of these entities is temporarily passed to the
minority shareholders of CWBS and ECO for a period of 6
months and 4.5 months, respectively, from the respective dates
of the supplementary agreements. In the opinion of the
Directors, these arrangements are in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole amid the social
movements in Hong Kong and Covid-19 outbreak.

As a result of the aforesaid arrangements during the second
half of the prior year, the Group lost control over CWBS and
ECO and hence they have been accounted for as associates of
the Group since then. Accordingly, the Chun Wo Bus Group
and the ECO Group were deconsolidated in March 2020.

For CWBS, as the non-franchised bus business hasn‘t been fully
recovered from Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has not
resumed control over it during the year.

For ECO, the Group resumed control over it during the year,
details of which are set out in note 42(b) to the financial
statements.

RE Z2020F3 8318 LLFE
B EEE &R RIS
BEHEASERESZIEZE
THRRBEERRERAR ZEE
NHMBEERS S EEKE AR
. BRZSEBCHBEESR
82 ( B Chun Wo Bus Services (BVI)
Limited ([EFIE LR ) KBS
RMEEIEMELURE RS #EEH
EERARRE 2B ~NEE
R2020F F —FF EEME TR
BRIESZ VEIRERT LT 1
E MzsBRREERE TS
EEZREEB 2 EEMFH ML
B ALHZEEB2EHEDS
W7 ek < tHFE B HiE 9 B & s
EETFERNBEIREEES 2D
AR - DAl AH6ER K451
R-ZBBZRE EABULEES
EEraE b KB EHE - ST
FERNRIER 2B F| R o

HRERAR E—FEZ2THEEFEZ
ZHE - NEBKEEME R
KES G - WEE AR
BIEARNE B 2Bt A aE] o Bt
MR202063 7 EAMETEE K
BEEEHIUBLRE AR -

HRIFEEE L EBRAREHT
iR ERTR2RE HAKE
RAFERARENBRGHEME
T ARTG 2 R IIAE

FEBRAFEREHRNGEHE
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43. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF 43. HERBUEMBARGRS
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ABR#®)
(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (continued) (b) BUEMIBATGE AR &)
An analysis of the assets and liabilities derecognised as a result EECEENBELEE R ETSER
of the deconsolidation of the Chun Wo Bus Group and the A ABRMECERZEERE
ECO Group is as follows: BEATHOT :

ECO Chun Wo
Group Bus Group Total
&R
] BEt&E ek
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz FET FETL FETT
Net assets deconsolidated: BUEGREAREEZHE
Property, plant and equipment ME MR RIE 15 45,803 51,290 97,093
Investment properties REME 16 12,109 = 12,109
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 17@) 8,899 303 9,202
Goodwill EES 18 6,857 - 6,857
Intangible assets B EE 19 5,291 267,110 272,401
Contract assets ANEBE 65,681 = 65,681
Trade receivables g 5 EMGE 28,364 6,969 35,333
Prepayments, deposits and HENFIE - Re REAM
other receivables FEW IR 9,266 7 9,977
Income tax recoverable AREMEHR 993 = 993
Cash and bank balances Be RRITESS 13,844 4,348 18,192
Trade payables B S ENFIR (21,028) (2,258) (23,286)
Contract liabilities BHERE (1,613) = (1,613)
Other payables and accruals H {5 5008 K% FE 5T A (36,329) (2,975) (39,304)
Due to a non-controlling equity holder e — A JE R R AR A
BB AZFE - (53,143) (53,143)
Bank borrowings RITIEK (77,901)  (190,865)  (268,766)
Lease liabilities HEAR 17(b) (3,159) (308) (3,467)
Income tax payables FEBPRAEHE = (248) (248)
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEAE 36 (785) - (785)
Non-controlling interests FEERR R (25,736) (490) (26,226)
30,556 80,444 111,000
Gain on deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUEMBARISZAE ARZ
ez 7 - 9,270 9,270
Exchange fluctuation reserve realised BER ZMNERBNFE 4,784 = 4,784
35,340 89,714 125,054
Satisfied by: ERAAA
Reclassification of investments in BN ERMBRARZIRE
subsidiaries to investments in associates ARBENRZIRE 35,340 10,000 45,340
Reclassification of an amount due from a BN RN RN B
subsidiary to an amount due from NElZFIERER—E
an associate A NE O - 79,714 79,714
35,340 89,714 125,054
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43. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF 43. HERBUEM B RAREGZRE
SUBSIDIARIES (continued) ABR &)

(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries (continued) (b) BUEMIB ARIZE AR (E)

At the date of approval of the financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Group had not completed the fair
value measurement of the identifiable net assets of the ECO
Group as at the date of deconsolidation and the initial
accounting for the Group’s investment cost in the ECO Group
was incomplete. The fair value of the investment in the
associate as a result of loss of control over ECO recognised by
the Group represented the provisional amount estimated by
the Directors.

The initial accounting was completed during the current year
and the deconsolidation date fair value of identifiable net
assets was HK$57,042,000, which is the same as the
provisional amount and hence no comparative information was
restated.

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents as
a result of the deconsolidation of the Chun Wo Bus Group and
the ECO Group is as follows:

REERZE 2020543 A31 HIEE
Bk BE  AEEW
AEREREBREVELRE AR
HBEZ A] R & EFERFER
2 BASERESSEEZKE
PRA 2 B8R EETBRIEI AR T °
REBMBRZNZBE AR 2K
E(RAXERESZEZHE) 2R
FEEESHHIZEESHE -

BRETREBEREAFETA
REUE#L & AR BEIRI 45 & &
SHE N F{E A 57,042,0008 7T
ZeRETFESREMER - Bt
mE|LLERER -

HEUEEMELREERESEE
HeaAEMELZRE AR
FEEBZREFESFAOT

2020

HK$000
TATT

BUHIR & MERTTHE AT A AR K
BUEMIB A RGRAEARZRE R
IR EEIEB R FRE (18,192)

Cash and bank balances deconsolidated and
net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of deconsolidation of subsidiaries
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43. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Other disposals

In addition to the above disposal and deconsolidation of
subsidiaries as set out in notes (a) and (b) above, the Group
also completed the disposal of two (2020: two) immaterial
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2021.

As analysis of the assets derecognised as a result of the
disposal of the two subsidiaries is as follows:

43. HERBUEM B R R&HRE
ABR#)

() HfbHE

B EXHTE (@) R (o) sl B ES
HMEUEK B A RS AR -
REBIIREZE2021F3 A31H
1E4F JE SE AR & M A (2020 4F -
ME) IEEARWEB AR o

7 6 R B B 2 B M BUOH FE
RZEEDNWT

2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FE&T
Net assets disposed of: HEEEZFE
Goodwill e 18 2,476 -
Property, plant and equipment M R 15 - 158
Inventories 7E 133 —
Prepayments, deposits and TERTRIR « e REMEK
other receivables FIE 533 274
Cash and cash equivalent Re kP EFMEIEE 425 =
Trade payables B 5 RENTRIA (56) =
Other payables and accruals H fth A FRIA K AT AR IA (1,084) =
Non-controlling interest IR R (74) =
2,353 432
Losses on disposal of subsidiaries HEK B AR ZEE 9 (349) (402)
Exchange fluctuation reserve realised & %35 7 SNE R B 1 106 (30)
2,110 =
Satisfied by: ERHRA -
Cash consideration BE&RE 1,880 -
Other payable assumed P 2 E fth FE A 3R IE 230 -
2,110 =
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43. DISPOSAL AND DECONSOLIDATION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(c) Other disposals (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents as a
result of the above disposals is as follows:

43. HERBUEM B ARG E
ABR®)

() HttHE @)

B E AL 2 B R AR
SSEBR ZRAFEDTMT ¢

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Cash consideration HERE 1,880 -

Cash and bank balances disposed of EHEZRE RIBITEH (425) =
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HEMHEB AR 2R & KE

in respect of disposal of subsidiaries ReEEEERAFE 1,455 =

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
contingent liabilities, which have not been provided for in the
financial statements:

(a) Corporate guarantees and performance bonds
given

Indemnities issued to financial institutions
for performance bonds in respect of

44, HFAREE

RB|ERR - XEREE AT HARRTH
WRHRBHZHAEE

() EFHZRRAERREN
R

2021
HK$°000

2020
HK$000
TATT

FET

HAEEETREREERBAL
ZBHRFE M A& BB (E

construction and professional services ZHER
contracts undertaken by:
— subsidiaries — B A 1,022,183 1,028,495
— joint operations — BEET 107,285 118,611
— ajoint venture — —H&EERAR 40,445 40,445
1,169,913 1,187,551
Guarantees issued to financial institutions gt —f14& 2 A 7] KB 2N B)ES
to secure credit facilities granted to a EEmE MRS RmEBELZ
joint venture and associates (note (ii)) PR (B EEGI)) 1,527,275 1,515,530
Guarantees for property development M EERERBEMESEAEE
projects given to banks which granted FHEHEMEZ ALIRERE
facilities to purchasers of the Group's ZIRITHR 2 ER (B i)
properties held for sale (note (iii)) 14,835 18,216
2,712,023 2,721,297
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31 March 2021
20213 H31H

44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) Corporate guarantees and performance bonds
given (continued)

In addition to the above, corporate guarantees were provided
by the Group to two parties to indemnify them any losses and
liabilities that they may incur in connection with certain
construction works of the Group in which the two parties have
involvement, however, the financial impact of the contingent
liabilities that may arise from these arrangements is not
disclosed as, in the opinion of the Directors, the estimate of
which is not practicable to do so.

Notes:

(i) In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the financial
guarantee contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial
recognition and the possibility of the default of the parties involved is
remote. Accordingly, no value has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position in respect of these
financial guarantee contracts.

(i) At 31 March 2021, the banking facilities granted to associates (2020:
a joint venture and associates) and guaranteed by the Group were
utilised to the extent of HK$1,045,605,000 (2020:
HK$762,473,000). The other shareholder of an associate provides to
the Group a counter-guarantee in respect of the amount of banking
facilities in excess of the Group'’s pro rata share based on the Group’s
equity interest in the associate.

(i) At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by certain banks relating to the
mortgage loans arranged for certain purchasers of the Group's
properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, in the event of default on
mortgage payments by these purchasers before the expiry of the
guarantees, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principals together with the accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks, and the Group is
entitled to take over the legal title and possession of the related
properties through taking legal actions. The Group’s guarantee
period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant mortgage loans
and discharges upon the earlier of (i) the issuance of real estate
ownership certificates to the purchasers; and (i) the fully repayment
of the relevant mortgage loans by the purchasers.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the Directors
consider that in the event of default on payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage principals together with the accrued interest
and penalties and therefore no provision has been made in the
financial statements for the guarantees.

(b) Litigations

Further details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2021
and 2020 in respect of litigations are set out in note 35(b) to
the financial statements.

44. FREE @)

(a)

(b)

EFHZRAAERRREY
R (&)

B EXFri &SN - NERE R4
ATRBHARER UEEXS
BETRZETRE(ZEMBALH
SEHEA) ] REH K E S R E
BRAE AN EFRS - H
RARENEEEZFTRHAIEE
ENXREBENMBEE  Fit
I A H IR -

B2 -

iy EERL AEEUBERED
RERERBEZAFETBE
R BEMAETENOZAIRMLEE
1K o EE - W B E M B ER
gf\%’\ﬁé\ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁﬁiWﬁﬁaﬂg

(i)  M2021F3A318  AARKEE
R A B & A R) (2020 F © —fA)
EENRRBEAT)BEEZE
TRVE B 1 E) A 1,045,605,000/8
7t (20204 : 762,473,000 7T ) °
— B & A R A E A AR SR BE AR
ERAEBMBAHZE S QAR
Bt EAREE G DR ZRTT
fﬁé@%ﬁﬁﬂS%%f#\ﬂE&%
% °

(i) MR2021FK2020F3 A318 -
AREEGETRITHAERE T
MEERNZBERLZHEME D
HIZIBE IR LR o

RIBERG > MZEERNE
REIBBRIHERIZ B - AEE
AABEBEERERRITHOAE
MRIBA S E R R5H8 A K E
K o MG E A 1S R REUA R
TTEN AR AR KR B A8 -
AEBNERE AR THBRIE
ESAMREE () ERE LS
EREHE: Ri)ERE2HEE
HEIRIBE R P R -

ZEEROAFELIFEA - B
BEERRERLERRARNER
™ ARRA Y ) AT B R FE B LA
BN P A RIZIB A 2 &R R 5t F
BUAREIR - Hit - I BRI
BRARZEERIELEE -

AR

B B 122021 4F K% 20204 3 A 31
BRFAZ S ABEZE—FF
BRI RS RAR M 5E 35() ©
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45. COMMITMENTS 45. EiE
The Group had the following commitments at the end of the AIREHIR - AREE A LA T AE -

reporting period:

(a) Capital commitments () BAEIE
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: EREEINEESZT-E
Acquisition of items of property, BEMH WRRERBEE
plant and equipment 7,387 86,789
(b) Property development commitments (b) MMERREAE
2021 2020
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: BRI 4B REE -
Residential developments FTEEE 745,191 680,279
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45. COMMITMENTS (continued)

(c) Commitment for sale of a property interest

(i)

(ii)

On 6 April 2021, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with an independent third party for the
disposal of a 51% equity interest in Shijiazhuang JunJing.
Details of the commitment for the sale of Shijiazhuang
Junling are set out in note 22(b) to the financial
statements.

On 13 March 2020, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement with an independent third party for
the disposal of the Group’s entire 50% equity interest in
the Mega Group through disposal of a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, for a total consideration of
HK$116,900,000. Deposit of HK$11,690,000 in total had
been paid by the purchaser as at 31 March 2020.

At 31 March 2020, the disposal transaction has not yet
been completed and hence, the Group's investment in
the Mega Group is classified as a non-current asset held
for sale as at 31 March 2020. Further details of the
transaction are set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 13 March 2020 and note 31 to the financial
statements.

% Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

45. A& (@)

() HE—BEYEHEDZEE

(i)

(ii)

R2021F4H60H ' A5 H
H—2BYE=ARHER
KRS 251%RERT L
— iR EEGE - HEA
KRB g 2 AEF BN
SRR MIE22(b) °

R2020F3H13H » KN &
EHE— B E = AN —
PEERE  BRLEARR
A—HE2EHEWBARN
EXEB R Mega LB FTE
50% 2 B BREAR
116,900,000/ 7t - E 75 B
M2020F3 A318 X 1%
%4 3£ 11,690,000 7T ©

M202063 8318 B &
RBHEAKRTK EIER
20203 A31H ' K& H
MRMega & B 2R ED A
BEHEZIERBDEE - B
MR 52— TFFIBENA
A Al B H A2020F3 13
Bz RERTBIHREN T
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46. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material transactions with related parties during the year:

Joint venture: =R/
Management fee income (note) ERBWA ()

Associate: /NG
Management fee income (note) EEBRA ()

46. BEFTIRE
BREMERE LMD O ER T

(a)

RPN NREBERANFE A LR
BHRIMATEARRS :

2021 2020
HK3$'000

TEIT

HK$000
FRET

- 1,458

1,294 =

Note: The transaction prices were determined by reference to the then

prevailing market rates.

Outstanding balances and other transactions with related
parties:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Details of the balances with joint ventures and associates
at the end of the reporting period are disclosed in
notes 20(b) and 21(b) to the financial statements,
respectively.

Details of the trade receivable balances with other
partners of joint operations at the end of the reporting
period are disclosed in note 25(b) to the financial
statements.

Details of the guarantees provided by non-controlling
equity holders of a subsidiary in respect of certain bank
loans of the Group are set out in note 34(d) to the
financial statements.

Details of the corporate guarantees and performance
bonds given by the Group in connection with the
operations of joint operations, a joint venture and
associates of the Group are disclosed in note 44(a) to the
financial statements.

Details of the acquisition of an associate from a
connected person of the Company are disclosed in note
21(c) to the financial statements.

M RPERDLZERER LTS

HEREN 2 RN HREREMR S -

—
=

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

DNE S ERERARART 202021 F3 a

RIREHR - HEE QR R
BN A 2 SAREREIE D B
B 7% R 3% B 5% 20(b) X2 21(b)

B -

RBEHRR - BAERBH
R 2 8 5 R RE R
=15 70 B % R 3R MY 5 25(b)

B -

—MIE A R EE AR AR #E 15
BABRAEEE TRITER
REERZ FBHNRI B
KM EE 34(d) °

ARERARE L BET -
—MAEARRBEATZ

RECIFR 2 RRIERKLE

HIRB 2 BRI RRHT
FEA44(a) #EE -

EZARA B A LU EE—
kNI 2 hiY Be e
MI5E21(c) #2558 -
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46. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

(0 Compensation of key management personnel of the Group (@]

46. BELTRE &)
AEMEEEEA ST HH

2021 2020

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Short term employee benefits HEE EEA 59,824 37,455

Equity-settled share option expense LARAGEH 2 BRER 662 1,816

Other equity-settled share-based HAb LARAGEE 2 DA D

payment expense RERI AR 777 -

Retirement benefit scheme contributions 38 k4@ FI|5H & it 3% 793 587
Total compensation paid to REEEE A B THF B

key management personnel 62,056 39,858

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note

10 to the financial statements.

47. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Except for debt investments and equity investments being classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as disclosed in
note 28 to the financial statements, all other financial assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 are classified
as financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost, respectively.

BEEFHE S FEBINTB
ERMEE10 ©

47. Z¥ERIE s 2T A

BROBAEATEFABSZCRIEE
2 ERERE R E (R RR M
FE28 & ) AN 520214 K 202043
A31R AEEfBEMEREER
AEDA RS BEAREHENTTEZS
MEENAMG-

48. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 48. €M T A AFEEAFRE

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS & 4%

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are TREENTRABBZAFETIZ TS

determined as follows: AAERE :

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and ° SIEEER LI E WG RR
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined MR EE S REEZ AT E
with reference to quoted market bid prices; and T2ETISMREANEETE : &

. the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities . HEemiEEremasEGtAS

included in the Level 2 and Level 3 categories have been
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on a discounted cash flow analysis, with the
most significant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the

credit risk of counterparties.
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48. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY 48.

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Directors consider that the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities which are due to be received or settled within one
year approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the short
term maturities of these instruments.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that
are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped
into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices)
or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

2021
Level 1 Level 3

-/ HB=R
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

EMITECZATFERAFE
B# @)
BERA R —ERFIEBKTRREE
SRMEERSMEE ATFERARAY
BEEEMAL  FEHMRLETAYHR
YA o

REEMBRRKRER ZAFE
iR
TREEEERBAATEFEZ
BT AL  HEZABRATERE
B—E=f-

G
)

. F-BATVENEDEARNEE
S8 AR RS TR (R
) -

o F_RAFEFEDIRE MG
AZHEI KEEEXARFT
BEE(BIER) REZR(ANEER
TE) BRBABESS -

o FEMDHEFETFALIRE
AEREMSEIEGFRBRE AR
BZEBESBBZMHETNESL -

2020
Total Level 1 Level 3 Total
MmE  FE-4 =R Fak]

FExT  TERT

Debt investments at fair value E AT EFAEZEZ

FExT  TET BT TET

through profit or loss EREHRE - 3,642 3,642 = = =

Equity investments at fair BAFEFABRZ
value through profit or loss BAIEE 1,868 - 1,868 59 = 59
1,868 3,642 5,510 59 - 59

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer
into or out of Level 3 in the current and prior years.

RAFERBEFE  F-REBE_H
2[RI A (e 8 4R N 3 S Py 58 = AREEA

DNE S ERERARART 202021 F3 a




Notes to Financial Statements

BB R R MY RE

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's financial instruments include trade and other receivables,
debt investments and equity investments at fair value through profit
or loss, balances with joint ventures, associates, other partners of
joint operations and non-controlling equity holders of subsidiaries,
cash and bank balances, trade and other payables, accruals and bank
borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in the
respective notes to the financial statements. The risks associated with
these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below:

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
HK$ or RMB, which are the same as the functional currencies
of the relevant group entities. The Group undertakes certain
transactions denominated in foreign currencies, and hence
exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. The Group does
not expect any significant exposure to foreign exchange
fluctuations and shall use derivative contracts to hedge against
its exposure to currency risk only when it is required. The
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring
the movement of the foreign currency rate.

(ii) Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks

The Group has significant bank borrowings and bank deposits
with floating interest rates which are exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk. During the year, the Group has not hedged its
cash flow and fair value interest rate risks. The Directors
consider the Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk on
the bank deposits is insignificant as most deposits bear variable
interest rates which have not significantly fluctuated in recent
years.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. i E KM EEEERKE
AND POLICIES (continued) (%)

SRR (&)
(i) AFERRSTREFNRER ()

Market risk (continued)

(ii) Fair value and cash flow interest rate risks (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate bank borrowings
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 100
(2020: 100) basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 (2020: 100) basis points higher/
lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 would have
decreased/increased by approximately HK$26,257,000 (2020:
HK$23,317,000).

Sensitivity analysis on bank deposits is not presented as the
Directors consider that the Group’s exposure to interest rate
fluctuations on bank deposits is insignificant.

B DT

TH SRR D MIRE R HREH R
FERITER T ERREE -
REEEONE - DRERRE
HARREEZAESENEF —
B AEE - 100525 (20204 -
100 £ 2 ) 38R Th R R E IR FE £ 7
K2 BB REEBPTESE - Ih
RNEE EBEE A BERF=E
B B BT P 2 o

REEA R EFH TR 100524(2020
F 1005 - MATE LM EEs
T AEEEZE2021F3 A
31BIEFE 2 BB EFE SR
A /18 A4 26,257,000 7T (2020
£ :23,317,000787T) °

HREFAR/AKERITFRZ

MERE BRI NEX - Fitb I
E2IRITEFRZHRED

TMNEA ERIERERA R
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its debtors and
amounts due from other partners of joint operations. The Group is
exposed to credit concentration risk as a substantial portion of its
trade debtors are generated from a limited number of customers.

At the end of the reporting period, three (2020: two) customers of
the Group accounted for approximately 47% (2020: 50%) of the
Group's trade receivables. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. To mitigate credit risk arising from guarantees
provided to banks in respect of credit facilities utilised by associates
(2020: a joint venture and associates), the Group has delegated a
team responsible for assessing credit standing and limits to the
guarantees to be made. In addition, management considers the
credit risk exposure to financial guarantees provided to property
purchasers is limited because the facilities are secured by the
properties. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group's
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Except for the above, the Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spreading over a number
of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due from joint
ventures, associates and other partners of joint operations, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from default of the
counterparty is limited as the counterparty has sufficient net assets to
repay its debts and/or a good history of repayment.
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure
to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly
based on past due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at
31 March 2021 and 2020. The amounts presented are gross carrying
amounts for financial assets.

At 31 March 2021

12-month

ECLs

1288 R

HITE

EEEE

Stage 1

FHAT

Contract assets* BHEE* -

Trade receivables* B 5 W IR * -

Financial assets included in &t AFE{I 3508
prepayments, deposits e REA
and other receivables FEWGRIERY
CRLEE

— Normal** — ME& &% 1,009,283

— Doubtful** — A &R ** -
Restricted cash and ZRAIRS &
pledged deposits BRI

— Not yet past due — RAREE 14,294
Cash and cash equivalents 84 K& EiIH 4

£E1EH
— Not yet past due — [EAREE 1,556,582

49. IR EREEEERBKEK
(&)
EERk &)
TRINRERASEEERRNEES
ERGAEERBM O ZEEBRE
ZHNBAENEBER (BRIEE A E R
EENH T UENKASNE DB ES)
DA R B 220214 K 2020F 3 A31HHY
FRIZBEBEDE - RS AEHME
EZERMEBE -

M2021¥3A31H

Lifetime ECLs

2HEMEEER

Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—EER F-REER FEZRER B % wE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FHETT FHET

3,328,765 3,328,765
783,119 783,119

- - - 1,009,283
88,044 - - 88,044

- - - 14,294

- - - 1,556,582

2,580,159

88,044

4,111,884 6,780,087
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. BB EMEEBERBEK

AND POLICIES (continued) (4&)
Credit risk (continued) FEERRZ)
At 31 March 2020 7R202063A31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12@MA A
OB L
EEEE 2 HEEE B EE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—fEER F-BER F=BR SN k]
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T TFET T TFET T&T

Contract assets* BHEE* - = — 3,333,744 3,333,744
Trade receivables* 2B F W * = = - 951,828 951,828
Financial assets included in 5+ AFE{S 718 -
prepayments, deposits e RHA
and other receivables FEURSRIERY
— Normal** = IE& &% 844,247 - - - 844,247
— Doubtful** — A] &R ** - 74,000 - - 74,000
Promissory notes G E 180,000 - - = 180,000
Restricted cash and ZRFIR S &
pledged deposits [mEB RN
— Not yet past due — Ak EHE] 10,314 = = - 10,314
Cash and cash equivalents 184 K EiIH &
£EEH
— Not yet past due — HAREH 1,134,824 = = - 1,134,824
2,169,385 74,000 - 4,285,572 6,528,957

* For contract assets and trade receivables to which the Group applies the & MASEERAGEZETRENENE
simplified approach for impairment, information based on historical ERBIHEVHIENS - EREB AR
observed default rates over the expected life of debtors and adjusted for AERANNBEBRMENELNEG
forward-looking information as disclosed in notes 24(a) and 25 to the & URAEEEHETRAENER D
financial statements, respectively. RIR B T 3R MY 5 24(a) 2 25 # 5% -

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, deposits > BERBMNRIE - RE RH (- W
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when they are not past HeEMEENEELEERAEE WA
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a BEMPREPAZEMEE S T AER
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the ASREAE B R\ B B B IR hNES AR [ IE
credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. Bl BH ZeBMEENEEEERR

R TARE]
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
In the management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Management monitors the

utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings and equity financing as
significant sources of liquidity. Details of which are set out in notes
34 and 37 to the financial statements.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The tables include
both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that cash flows
are at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from the
interest rate at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity and interest risk tables
At 31 March 2021

Weighted  Repayable

BHEREERBERBE
()

RBETRER

EEBRBECRBRIE B AEEEE

MR —EK TPz RERSFEIR

B MERERRERUARAEEEE

ﬁ{#é%&%ﬂﬁé/mi/&ﬁzgg °

a i%J'ﬁb TIRITIE N Z R BER L FELR
H’Aﬁ%’]

NEBERERITERMBAREELSE
FERHESKR - BEFBHNRIE
|MARMIFE34 37 °

TERFNAEEFTESRBBEIRBE
BEEIEKON < RBRBOFH - THRR
BAKERFFRERNZAHREREA
ﬁZﬂiHEfﬁiﬁﬁmifﬁ% o %FHIKRMA

HEEMNERAEZRERE - MZF
ReRnBREE  AERSH|RBEH
RZFERAE -

RBES R A SRR
A2021%3A831H

average  on demand Total
effective or within 1to5  More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1year years 5years  cash flows amount
nETY  RRERS KRR E
BRNE -FREE -5ZIf  BBRIE < REAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FEn FEn FEn FEn
Trade payables ZSEMTE 1,450,199 54,913 - 1,505,112 1,505,112
Other payables and accruals N R e 208 719,993 - - 719,993 719,993
Due to other partners of joint EREEEEEM
operations — interest-free BHITE—48 90,843 - - 90,843 90,843
Due to associates & NG 2308 28,688 - - 28,688 28,688
Due to non-controlling equity NG R e
holders of subsidiaries RBAZTA 16,302 - - 16,302 16,302
Bank horrowings — variable rates /7 — 28 186 3,272,923 21,914 30,072 3324909 3,215,098
Lease liabilties HEARE 357 32,201 26,079 - 58,280 55,805
Financial quarantee contracts BBEREN 903,532 - - 903,532 -
6,514,681 102,906 30,072 6,647,659 5,631,841

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# a
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 49. BB EMEEBERBEK

AND POLICIES (continued) (%)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRRRE)
Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued) RBESRFERBE(F)
At 31 March 2020 R2020%F3 A31H

Weighted Repayable
average  on demand Total
effective or within Tto5  Morethan undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year years Syears  cash flows amount

WEFS  REEER AMRAE
ERNZE  —FREER -FERF  BBREF  RELE HaEE
% HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET

Trade payables BARMTE 1,675,458 134,266 - 1809724 1,809,724
Other payables and accruals H ot e 508 R JERH 508 549,215 - - 549,215 549,215
Due to other partners of joint EAEEREEM

operations — interest-free YHITE—%E 74,709 - - 74,709 74,709
Due to associates [EfTBEE DA 2 28 16,556 = = 16,556 16,556
Due to non-controlling equity FERMBA RN ERRE

holders of subsidiaries BBAZTE 6,446 - - 6,446 6,446
Bank borrowings — variable rates {753 — 28 377 1,697,734 1,309,148 3159 3010041 2,853,205
Lease liabilties HEAE 3.88 29,805 38,834 - 68,639 65,264
Financial quarantee contracts HBERAN 762,473 = = 762,473 =

4,812,396 1,482,248 3,159 6,297,803 5,375,119

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts are the FETAMBEREANZSERRSHE
maximum amounts the Group could be required to settle under the FRIERRERERBHIER - ~NEE
arrangements for the full guaranteed amounts if those amounts are BERZHAIEEREHERSEEEZ
claimed by the counterparties to the guarantees. Based on expectations BRef BENMERRZESR K
at the end of the reporting period, the Group considers that it is more SBRE - TARAEAEBRBLHESNE
likely than not that no amount will be payable under the arrangements. fAI5RIE - A - RIBEMTBEER S
However, this estimate is subject to change depending on the probability FREERRHBR AT MHIRE
of the counterparties claiming under the guarantees which are a B MBBIUEMEAEIZHFMED
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the ERzMBERKFIBELREEBEZA
counterparties which are guaranteed suffer credit losses. BEMEERE o
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in
the “repayable on demand or within 1 year” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 31 March 2021, the aggregate carrying amount of
the bank borrowings classified as repayable on demand was
HK$3,172,700,000 (2020: HK$1,623,277,000). At 31 March 2021, the
Group did not comply with certain financial covenants of bank loans
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$2,620 million (2020: a
syndicated bank loan of HK$864 million). Consent waivers of non-
compliance with financial covenants have been received by the Group
subsequent to the reporting period (2020: the term of the bank loan
with a financial covenant was not complied has been revised on 12 May
2020), as further detailed in note 34(c) to the financial statements.

For the purpose of managing liquidity risk, management reviews the
expected cash flow information of the Group’s bank borrowings. The
maturity profile of the Group’s bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause as at the end of the reporting period, based on
the scheduled repayment dates and the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

49. M EREEBRERBE

(%)
REBEEERE®)

MiE BiR EREBIGE ZRITEFRR L
MEEAD TR IA [BRERS—FR
B8 R R - R20219F3 8318
PHEEREREBEZRTERZAR
BRMEIfE 4 3,172,700,000 7 7T (2020 £ -
1,623,277,0007% 7T ) ° $A 202143 A
31 ARBAREBTASBESR
2,620,000,000/8 L ZSRITER M E T
B 75 22 49 (2020 4F : 864,000,000% 7T
2 —HIREER) - RmEH%E - A%
EEEERGEETYERAOZAERE
(20204 : R ARW BT B L 2 R1T
ERIERE R 202045 A 12 BHEEE])
(INBA SRR 5E34() e — B RFit) -

RERRBDECRER  ERERNAE
BZRITERZBHREREER - 1
BERR  REBEOEERBHRREOR
BN AREM A RIZERERF
REVRITIERB BT :

G EVEL Total
within 1to5 More than undiscounted  Carrying
1 year years 5years  cash flows amount
A—FR —£z ABREE
& hFE BBEF REAHE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET AT FHAT FAT
At 31 March 2021 20213 831R8
Bank borrowings with a repayment KI5 BREREEEX 2
on demand clause RITER 1,167,733 2,091,559 5929  3,265221 3,172,700
At 31 March 2020 K2020%3 A31H
Bank borrowings with a repayment  Ki5 B BSREEE 2
on demand clause BITER 1,607,161 19,870 - 1,627,031 1,623,277

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for
non-derivative financial liabilities are subject to change if changes in
variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.

Bl AGHITESRAEFBANETA
L& RNFBAR BB RN RS
HIRERE 2 fhat MR EFHAEREFD

fB2 -
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49. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020.

Depending on the market conditions and funding arrangements, if at
any time, repurchase of the Company’s shares will lead to an
enhancement of the net asset value per share and/or earnings per
share of the Group, the Directors will authorise such transactions.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debts
less total cash and bank balances divided by the equity attributable
to shareholders of the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods are as follows:

9. MBEREERAERBX

(%)
EXER
AEEEAEENEZBREREALAS

ERECEVERFIRENEALRIUS
REXGLEERTBRREENES -

REERBEERSNSECREEEE
HERSEEEEERNERKIELA
B o BERSTARERERE - AEE T
BEAE YN TREMAR B e TR
o REVE 2021 202043 A31 H
IEFE BAEEBEE  BURSEFRH
AT EE) o

BIMAKRES L W ERREE
BIAR BB AR SEEREES
B/ REREBN  EEEHEFER
% o

AEBEREARBLRERELN &
AEELXRABRERER S RIRITER
FRERRR AR R RIBCR BG4 R - RIS
HREABBLRMT

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20215 2020

3A318 3A31H
HK$°000 HK$000
THET TATT

Bank borrowings RITER 3,215,098 2,853,205
Lease liabilities HEaE 55,805 65,264
Total debts BEI5185E 3,270,903 2,918,469
Less: Total cash and bank balances B IRE RIRITE AR (1,570,876) (1,145,138)
Net debts BT F58 1,700,027 1,773,331

Equity attributable to shareholders of ~ ZANA FIAX B FE(EHE 2%
the Company

2,288,006 2,462,238

Gearing ratio BERBELE

74% 72%
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

50. T EMB A BFE
AATEEMMBARINK2021E3 8318

2021 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

HEAREE

Place of

incorporation/
registration
and business

MBI K
BRI

Issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRITRE
&R

RIS IT

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
AREEMS
BRERSL
2021 2020
% %

Principal activities

FEEK

Bloom Team Building Construction Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Building construction
Company Limited ordinary shares works
EHEETIRERAT ) 2T B BFRETR
Champion Surveying & Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Surveying and
Engineering Co., Limited ordinary shares engineering works
EEARTREERAR 5 2B TTE R REREETRE
Chun Wo Building Construction Hong Kong HK$600,000,000 100 100  Construction
Limited ordinary shares
RAMZERR DA £ 600,000,000 8 7T e
TR
Chun Wo Construction and Hong Kong HK$291,000,000 100 100  Construction
Engineering Company Limited ordinary shares
HK$9,000,000
non-voting
deferred shares
ERMRETRARAR & 291,000,000 8 7T BE
R
9,000,000 7T
ERFRELERN
Chun Wo E & M Engineering Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$90,000,000 100 100  Electrical and mechanical
ordinary shares contract works
BAIRETERRARF B 90,000,000 47T BESHTRE
e
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Name of subsidiary

HWEAR AR

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and business

Issued

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRE
&R

il 311D
EE S

Chun Wo Elegant Decoration Hong Kong HK$100,000,000
Engineering Company Limited ordinary shares
NSRS TIRERAF £ 100,000,000 7T
A

Chun Wo Engineering (Macau) Macau MOP1,000,000
Company Limited capital
&AM TR R BRAF i da 1,000,0002F5 7T
B

Chun Wo Foundations Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000,000
ordinary shares

BEIHETREERAR S 100,000,000 77T
3l

Chun Wo Foundations (Macau) Macau MOP100,000
Engineering Limited capital
&M E ORF) TIRBR AR i 100,000 7T
B

Chun Wo Group Finance (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$1
ordinary share

5 BT L AR

Chun Wo Tunnel Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1
ordinary share

EMBRBERARAR BB 1T ERR

Q Asia Allied Infrastructure Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020/21

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
ANEEN
BREFDL
2021 2020
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
93 93

50. T EMB QA AFEE @

Principal activities

TEEK

Interior design and
decoration

ERRE REE

Construction

e

Construction

e

Construction

e

Provision of financing
services

Rt R E R

Tunnel management
services

B EE R R
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  50. = E/E A B&F1E#)

(continued)

Name of subsidiary

HWEAR AR

Place of

incorporation/

registration
and business

il 311D
EE S

Issued
share capital/

registered capital

BRITRE
S EAR

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
ANEEN
BREFDL
2021 2020

% %

Principal activities

TEEK

City Professional Management Limited Hong Kong HK$8,230,000 93 93  Property management
ordinary shares services
W EXERRAR AR BB 8,230,000/ 7T MEEERSE
gL
City Security Company Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 93 93  Security guard services
ordinary shares
W R AR A A B 1,000,000 7T EE RS
gL
Full Fame Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Property development
ordinary share
BEERERAA BB 1ETEBR WEER
Honest Kind Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Provision of financing
ordinary share services
RBEBRAT EE 1BTEBR RERE RS
Hong Kong Cyclotron Laboratories Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Production and sale of PET
Limited ordinary shares radiopharmaceuticals
BB 100 L& @Ak KERHELEEFRE
PRSI EEY)
Smartwill Asia Limited Hong Kong/ HK$1 100 100  Property development
the UAE ordinary share
SRETMNERLDA B/ PIH BT ERR MEER
Vasteam Construction Limited Hong Kong HK$180,000,000 100 100  Civil engineering
ordinary shares construction work
services
HEREAR LA 5 180,000,000 7T TARBETRETRE
e
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50. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES  50. = E[ B A B #)

(continued)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ Issued of equity
registration share capital/  attributable to
Name of subsidiary and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
KL K BRTRE ANEEN
WELRER BRI E EfER BREFDL TEXB
2021 2020
% %
Wing Cheong Electrical Engineering & Hong Kong HK$20,000,000 100 100  Electrical and mechanical
Contracting Company Limited ordinary shares contract works
XEERIRARAR £ 20,000,000 8 7T KEANTE
el
Shijiazhuang Junling PRC/Mainland HK$150,000,000 100 100  Property development
(notes (i) and (iii)) China registered capital
RREER e/ R ERt 150,000,000 % 7T EL
CEIOPA) A E A
RYIATBEMREZRAER AR PRC/Mainland RMB 10,000,000 100 100  Consultancy service
(note (ii)) China registered capital
(B Gi)) hE/REAN AR 10,000,0007T BRI RS
A MER
Notes: BT
(i) All the above principal subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company. (i) LitFrETEWB AT A AAFREE
A -
(ii) These subsidiaries are wholly-foreign-owned enterprises established under (i) ZEWB AT ABRERBEEEKS 2
PRC law. SEBERE o
(i) This entity is classified as a disposal group held for sale as at 31 March iy HZEBEA2021E3A3MBEYEARE
2021, as further detailed in note 31 to the financial statements. ESEY —HEEER @ E—FHEH
REATEIRAR M3
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the RN REERATEEENET RS
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year HENEBEEFEHE L E Y ARA T
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To MEBAT - BEZ2ANEEMHEDT
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the THEESERBNIE -

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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51. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL JOINT
OPERATIONS

Particulars of the Company’s principal joint operations as at 31 March
2021 are as follows:

51. TESEXKHE

AEBEEEEEKEN2021F3 A31H
MBI

Form of Place of Percentage of
business registration/ attributable interest
Name of joint operation structure operation of the Group Principal activities
BEXKAR RERBER SR EEEY FREEGCESEIL TEER
2021 2020
% %
(note (a)) (note (@) (note (b))
(Wiat(@) (K@) (Hztb)
ATAL — CW — MH IV Unincorporated  Hong Kong 48 - Construction
R4 — (RF — BAEEgE FRBEA Bt e
CW — CMGC Joint Venture Unincorporated  Hong Kong 51 51  Construction
&M —AigkE FEREDEA Bt £
DCK IV Unincorporated  Hong Kong 52 - Construction
FRFVEA E £

Notes: 5T -

(@) The Group's attributable interest is equal to, greater or less than 50% in (a) REBFEEEZBER  aRHERZ
these body unincorporates. However, under the joint venture agreements, FIENREANE R S0% ° A1 - R
the joint operators have contractually agreed on the sharing of control over S8 E AR PRI ERREA
the relevant activities of these body unincorporates, and hence all these 25 IE R BSE N B BE AR BE T B A3 A
body unincorporates are jointly controlled by the Group and the other joint # B ZEEATEAEBE I
operators. Furthermore, the relevant joint venture agreements specify that HMAEEREME L RS - It
the Group and the other parties to the joint arrangements have rights to the SN IHEE S EEEIH - AEEREY
assets and obligations to the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements in ZHEHMET AT B RERN D RIRE it 2
accordance with the attributable interest of the Group as disclosed above EEREEZESREMES S R 2§
and the interest attributable to the other joint operators respectively, and B EEARLHFISREE  RAIE
therefore these body unincorporates are classified as joint operations. HOWMET B ZEELTEAE

BRWOBRAEER -
(b)  All principal joint operations engaged in construction works are contracted (b) FERSERETENTIESLERHE

to carry out infrastructure and public facilities related works in Hong Kong.
These joint operations are strategic to the Group’s principal activities in
construction works.

The above table lists the joint operations of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affect the results of the year or
constitute a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other joint operations would, in the opinion of the
Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

FIH) . DMREBETEER ARRMEE
LR REAEFRBHARERNEE
ITRNEZEHEHESR -

ERINBRESRRERFEAFERE
SEAKEEEFERELE 2 AKE
BEER - BEERARIBEMAEER

Z ¥

FESRBBNITE -
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52. PARTICULARS OF A JOINT VENTURE 5. —EEEAAFE
Particulars of the Group's joint venture, which is indirectly held by the M2021563H31H - AEEZEE A
Company, as at 31 March 2021 are as follows: (RARDTIEEES) 2EREBNT -

Place of Percentage

Name of Particulars of registration Ownership of voting Profit Principal

joint venture issued shares held and business interest power sharing activities

BENTER FrsER#TRA 2 #E aRREXRY FEEEE REEBRSN FBDA TEEK

% % %

Novabala JV Corp. 2,000 common shares of Philippines 20 20 20 Design and
PHP100 each and 9,000 construction
redeemable preferred
shares of PHP200 each

2,000 R BREE 1005FRE FEE Rt kg
SREEBRK9,0008
BREE200EEELRA
QEHEEY A
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53. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Group’s principal associates as at 31 March 2021

are as follows:

Name of associate

BEQARER

Place of
incorporation/
business

Rl A

XM

Issued
share capital/

registered capital

BRIRE/
AMER

53. T EBE N TS

R2021F3A31H A"EEZ X EH

BREZFBOT

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Group

FEMERS
REEDL

2021
%

2020
%

Principal activities

FRER

Vietnam Land (HK) Ltd. BVI US$25,000,000 20 20 Investment holding
ordinary shares
RERIES 25,000,000 REZKR
EE
TSCWPD Cayman Islands Us$10 40 40  Property development
= ordinary shares
KEENERR HEMHS 10%7T NEER
BRI
CPDL Hong Kong HK$12,000 20 20 Property development
ordinary shares
BINERE 35 12,0007 7T NEER
CPL BVI us$100 40 40  Property development
ordinary shares
RBRURS 100% T & BAR NEER
RIL* BVI Us$10 40 - Property development
- ordinary shares
WE* RBRAHE 10X T EBR NEER
CWBS BVI Us$10 60" 60"  Non-franchised
ordinary shares bus services
BB+ R EBRAHE 10T EBR FEEETIRY
ECO Malaysia RM36,601,500 - 51 Interior design and
ordinary shares fitting-out and
construc‘uon
Es HRAEE 36,601,500 % ARGt REE
EER L/USU%&
Kwan Lee Holding Limited Hong Kong HK$51,057,000 40 40  Provision of consultancy
ordinary shares and structural
engineering services
BNEEARRRR &b 51,057,000/ 7T REtHEAR
LRk HERETIRRH
* Acquired during the year & REF AU EE
W As at 31 March 2020, ECO was an associate of the Group and reclassified # BER2020F3 A31H AAERE 2B
as an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group in the current %Qﬂ Ez&iﬁ%ﬂzi;ﬁ“*ﬁﬁgz}:%.
year, as further detailed in note 42(b) to the financial statements. HEEZIEEEHANB AR AR#E
R IR I RKR P FE 42(b) ©
A As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group temporarily passed the control &

20214 K 2020663 A31H » A&
HEEEREETOERRE - &
IEER B TS IRER I 7 43(0) ©

tﬁﬁu%iéwﬁig 2 VNG
SEKNASBEEFERAELEC RS
EEtENE - EER AN L EMmBEQ
EjZnﬁﬁa?émaaﬂﬁ/\ﬂE"

B!

to minority shareholders, details of which are set out in note 43(b) to the
financial statements.

I%E

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for the year
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the Directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.
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54.

55.

56.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the reporting period and up to the date of these
financial statements, 610,000 ordinary shares in total were
repurchased by the Company on the Stock Exchange for an
aggregate consideration of HK$360,400 and all these shares were
cancelled accordingly.

Save as disclosed above and in notes 22(b), 26(a) and 35(b) to the
financial statements, there are no other significant events occurred
subsequent to the reporting period.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to
the current year’s presentation and disclosures.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

54, [{EHREIE
RMEMBEREEZSETEHRERZHE
8+ AN A A 42 AR 360,400 78 T A B
ZFTEEE A 610,000 IR Ei@A% - BT
BZERMCHEEENS -

B b SR B 75 2k M R 22(b) ~ 26(a) &
35(b) T BB A AN - MR EHA R BE 2
HHMEKEIE o

55. Lk & =
ETHBERTREFAE - WFARE
EZ2HARREE

56. A1 7] 2 B AR &

RS - AL T2 HRRE
ZEHMT :

Company as at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2021 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment WSt - MBS NG 544 640
Right-of-use assets FREEE 11,294 11,718
Investments in subsidiaries (note 50) A B A RIEE (MI5E50) 2,048,528 1,830,878
Total non-current assets IERBEELTE 2,060,366 1,843,236
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BT 3KIE - &4 R E i fE W k18 664 645
Equity investments at fair value through BAFEFABRZ R EE
profit or loss 1,848 -
Income tax recoverable A] iR Bl A5 H7 - 295
Cash and bank balances BE NIRITHES 14,804 7,529
Total current assets mE)EEARE 17,316 8,469
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R
Other payables and accruals At ST RIE R FEET SRR 2,283 2,240
Total current liabilities mEN B BB 2,283 2,240
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 15,033 6,229
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EE&LERME A& 2,075,399 1,849,465
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FEREBEME
Due to subsidiaries ANLRIENGIE e 964,280 699,083
Total non-current liabilities EmB B ERRE 964,280 699,083
Net assets BEEE 1,111,119 1,150,382
EQUITY E
Issued capital BEITRA 182,013 183,833
Reserves (note) et (P EE) 929,106 966,549
TOTAL EQUITY A 1,111,119 1,150,382
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Notes to Financial Statements

SRR MR

31 March 2021
20213 H31H

56. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: The movements of the Company’s reserves during the year are as follows:

56. "D B Z B AR R T (8

Mk : REEAARRRIZHEHESHMT

Shares held
under the Share-
Share  share award based
premium scheme  Contributed compensation
account account surplus
BERG
4Ry |
RAT
ROEEE  HENRG
HK$000 HK$000

Retained

reserve profits

N RERER AR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HI<’$ 000

T e
-3 » BT T
T/2TC T/BT FET T/2TL

At 1 April 2019 R2019%4F18 173,174 (10,643) 52,552 8,764 79,527 903,374
Profit for the year and total RERRNRAER R ENELR

comprehensive income for the year - - - - 111,076 111,076
Cancellation of repurchased shares FEBEDRG (13,103) - - - - (13,103)
Equity-settled share option expense IRAEE 7 BRER S 39() - - - 2922 = 2922
Transfer of share-based compensation  FSRMEERR AT AR D et

reserve upon the forfeiture of

share options - - - (444) 444 -
Final 2019 dividend declared BER2019FEREHE = = = = (15,561) (15,561)
Interim 2020 dividend declared BER020EEPHRE 13 - - = = (22,159) (22,159)
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 1202063 A31BR20205481H 760,071 (10,643) 52,552 11,242 153,327 966,549
Loss for the year and total TEEERRAFEREFRLE

comprehensive loss for the year - - - - (6,106) (6,106)
Cancellation of repurchased shares FHEBERR 9171 - - - - 9.171)
Equity-settled share option expense IR EE 7 ERER S 39b) - - - 1,048 - 1,048
Transfer of share-based compensation ~ FRMERIER S AR B E

reserve upon the forfeiture of

share options - - - (1,094) 1,094 -
Final 2020 dividend declared BER00EERBHE 13 - - - - (7,334) (7.334)
Interim 2021 dividend declared BER01 FERERS 13 - - - - (15.880) (15,880)
At 31 March 2021 R2021538318 750,900 (10,643) 52,552 11,196 125,101 929,106

57. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 57. #t/&E Bk

BRI 2021 56 A30HEE S
LA R IR TR o

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board on 30 June 2021.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MG EE

Year ended 31 March
BZ3A31HILLEE

2017 PAONKS] 2019 2020 2021
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FEIT FET FHEIT FET
RESULTS E45
Revenue F 2] 8,810,797 8,231,055 8,076,048 8,000,800 7,534,258
(Loss)/profit before tax B ET (ER) S A 235,947 230,200 165,161 113,940 (186,711)
Income tax FTiSHi (30,126) (66,523) (24,066) (13,267) (2,374)
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (F18), % H 205,821 163,677 141,095 100,673  (189,085)
Attributable to: FE(L
Shareholders of the Company /NG 205,506 150,176 136,648 101,432 (184,506)
Non-controlling interests IR e e 315 13,501 4,447 (759) (4,579)
205,821 163,677 141,095 100,673 (189,085)

As at 31 March

M3A318
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET F&T FE&T F&T FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREME
Total assets BEmLE 8,463,164 8,628,952 8,225,514 8,154,258 8,574,536
Total liabilities BEEHE (6,217,904) (6,104,870) (5,751,364) (5,655,516) (6,229,251)
2,245,260 2,524,082 2,474,150 2,498,742 2,345,285
Equity attributable to: E{h R
Shareholders of the Company RNATIRE 2,220,482 2,505,803 2,441,602 2,462,238 2,288,006
Non-controlling interests IR e 24,778 18,279 32,548 36,504 57,279

2,245,260 2,524,082 2,474,150 2,498,742 2,345,285
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PARTICULARS OF PROPERTIES
L EEEI

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT/SALE BERR tHEWHE

Total

Total  estimated
estimated  gross floor
site area area

Stage of Expected date (square (square Group's

Location completion of completion metres) metres) interest
fhst  fhEt@EmE

i B BEEE KEE

1t B TIEE TR A ; (EHK) (FHK) Frib s

A parcel of land located Phase 1 Completed Residential, 111,554 219,990 100%
between northern side of Phase 2: Completed commercial and (Phase 3)
He Ping Road and Phase 3: T1 & T2 2023 carpark
southern side of construction
Guang Hua Road, in progress
Shijiazhuang,
Hebei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
i AR EFE F-H: BRI - e HEK 111,554 219,990 100%
LB R R FZH:EBxT = FHE (F=H)
AN 3 B 62 2 X R ) S=H: 1RR2% 2023
Z Bk IBEET
FRELTH

Plot No. S5-C35 at Planning - Residential 2,425 22,715 100%
Shams Abu Dhabi,

Al Reem Island,

Abu Dhabi,

United Arab Emirates

R AP A b &l - T 2,425 22,715 100%
Al Reem Island

Shams Abu Dhabi

o584 5% 55-C35

Lot Nos. 1770, 1771 R.P., 1774, Planning - Residential 3,075 6,150 100%
1766 R.P. and 1768 in

Demarcation District No. 3

Tung Chung, Lantau Island,

New Territories, Hong Kong

BEAMARNELFRLE FElF - FE 3,075 6,150 100%
ERED

HWEE 1770~ 1771 RP.

1774 ~ 1766 R.P. 2 1768 5%

SN A ERERERAR 2020121 F# a




Particulars of Properties

e

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT/SALE BERRE HEVE »)

(continued)

Total

Total  estimated
estimated  gross floor
site area area

Stage of Expected date (square (square Group's

Location completion of completion metres) metres) interest
fhst  fhEtERE

‘R mE BEEE rEE

1t B TIRER T ER B ; (FAK) (E5K) FribfEs
Nos. 35 and 37 Cameron Road,  Foundation work 2023 Commercial 542 6,501 20%
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon in progress

NEXRDHE WETRETH 2023 GE3 542 6,501 20%
& HmE35 X375

Residential Accommodation, Superstructual work 2021 Residential 1,692 7,966 40%
No. 128 Waterloo Road, in progress

Kowloon

Kowloon Inland Lot No. 1900

NEERHLER S 1900 5% FETRETT 2021 = 1,692 7,966 40%
NEBITEE128%

EEREH#

Nos. 61-67 Soy Street, Foundation work 2023 Residential and 336 3,020 40%
Mong Kok, Kowloon in progress commercial

NERA WETRETH 2023 FEREZE 336 3,020 40%

TR AT61-67 5
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MAJOR MEMBERS OF

ASIA ALLIED INFRASTRUCTURE GROUP

TNBEEEZEEETENRE

CONSTRUCTION
=
®  Chun Wo Construction Holdings Company Limited
BEAEEZERFR AT
= Chun Wo Building Construction Limited
BAMZEFR AT
s Chun Wo Construction and Engineering Company Limited
BARETZEBRAR]
s Chun Wo E & M Engineering Limited
EANREIRGRAA
= Chun Wo Elegant Decoration Engineering Company Limited
NSRRI TIZER AR
= Chun Wo Foundations Limited
A ETEBRAR]
= Kwan Lee Holding Limited
HNEEBERAR
= Century Elite Technology Limited
AR BER AR
® ECO Group Holdings Sdn. Bhd.
EeEEERER AR
m  R.J. Crocker Consultants Pte. Ltd.
TSR AR A A

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT AND ASSETS LEASING
M=RRKEERE

m  Chun Wo Property Development Holdings Limited
BN EERERGR AR

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
R

m  City Services Group Limited
W RBEEER AR
= City Professional Management Limited
W EEEREFRAF
= City Security Company Limited
U ERARAF
= Chun Wo Tunnel Management Limited

EMBEEEEBRAR

NON-FRANCHISED BUS SERVICES
FELEBLRE

m  Chun Wo Bus Services Limited

EMETREBR AR

MEDICAL TECHNOLOGY AND HEALTHCARE
BEN SRR
m  AAIl Medical Technology Limited
TMNEEES REBBERRARAA
= Hong Kong Cyclotron Laboratories Limited
OTHER BUSINESS
HAth %75

m  AAI Overseas Holdings Limited
TMNEES EREIMERBR A A

& Fo
Caun Wo

C§&O

5k it e s o

Cirry Services GRoup

ECO

BRAINEEBEFRR2E
KWAN LEE HOLDING LIMITED

'. R.J. CROCKER Consultants Pte Ltd
‘ T A% 51 1) A7 PR )

CETE

ER R E L

CENTURY ELITE TECHNOLOGY GROUP

@y HoNg KoNG CYCLOTRON LABORATORIES LTD.



(‘“‘I‘;ltﬁﬂi

o ON W Ak I A BR 2 ]

AsIA ALLIED INFRASTRUCTURE HoLDINGS LIMITED

@ (852) 3798 5711
(852) 3798 5700

www.asiaalliedgroup.com

© & m

C1, 5th Floor, Hong Kong Spinners Industrial Building Phase 1
601-603 Tai Nan West Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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